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7,000,000 Shares

Common Stock
Seattle Genetics, Inc. is selling all of the shares of common stock in this offering. This is our initial public offering. We estimate that the initial
public offering price will be between $ 11.00 and $ 13.00 per share.
Under an agreement between us and Genentech, Inc., a stockholder of ours with whom we have a license agreement, Genentech has
agreed to purchase directly from us at the initial public offering price $ 2,000,000 of the common stock sold in this offering. In addition, under
an agreement between us and Medarex Inc., a collaborative partner, Medarex has agreed to purchase at the initial public offering price
$ 2,000,000 of our common stock in a private placement concurrent with this offering. The 7,000,000 shares of common stock being offered
by this prospectus include the 166,667 shares being sold to Genentech but exclude the 166,667 shares being sold to Medarex. We will
receive the full proceeds and will not pay underwriting discounts with respect to the shares being sold to Genentech and Medarex.

Our common stock has been approved for listing on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "SGEN."

Investing in our common stock involves risks. Please read "Risk Factors" beginning on page 7.
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these
securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
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Until
, 2001, all dealers that effect transactions in the common stock, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to
deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to the dealers' obligations to deliver a prospectus when acting as underwriters and with respect to
their unsold allotments or subscriptions.

Prospectus Summary
In this prospectus, "Seattle Genetics," "we," "us" and "our" refer to Seattle Genetics, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and not to the
underwriters. This summary highlights selected information contained elsewhere in the prospectus. You should read the entire
prospectus, including "Risk Factors" and the financial data and related notes, before making an investment decision.

Seattle Genetics, Inc.
We discover and develop monoclonal antibody-based drugs to treat cancer and related diseases. Using our monoclonal antibody-based
technologies and our expertise in cancer, we have assembled a portfolio of drug candidates targeted to many types of human cancers. We
utilize our monoclonal antibody-based technologies to increase the potency and efficacy of antibodies with specificity for cancer. We are
currently testing our two most advanced product candidates, SGN-15 and SGN-10, in patients with breast, colon, prostate or other cancers.
SGN-15 is in three phase II clinical trials in combination with the chemotherapy drug Taxotere. SGN-10 is in two phase I clinical trials, one as
a single agent and the other in combination with Taxotere. We have five preclinical product candidates being developed to treat patients with
solid tumors, melanoma or blood-cell cancers, commonly known as hematologic malignancies. One of our preclinical product candidates,
SGN-14, is being developed by Genentech pursuant to a license agreement. In addition to providing us with the means to discover and
develop monoclonal antibody-based product candidates ourselves, our technologies allow us to partner with other companies also developing
monoclonal antibodies.

Monoclonal Antibody Therapeutics for Cancer
Monoclonal antibodies are proteins that bind to specific molecules and can be used to target cell populations such as cancer cells. Some
monoclonal antibodies are effective as anti-cancer drugs on their own. However, most monoclonal antibodies are not potent enough to be
used as anti-cancer agents alone and require additional payloads of drugs or toxins to effectively kill cancer cells. Due to advances in

monoclonal antibody technology, monoclonal antibody-based therapeutics have become a rapidly expanding area of drug development. The
FDA has approved nine therapeutic antibodies, seven of them in the last three years, with total sales in 1999 in excess of $1.4 billion
worldwide.

Our Monoclonal Antibody-Based Technologies
We have four monoclonal antibody-based technologies: monoclonal antibodies; monoclonal antibodies chemically linked to cell-killing drugs,
or monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates; single proteins containing monoclonal antibody and toxin components, or single-chain
immunotoxins; and antibody-directed enzyme prodrug therapy, or ADEPT.
•

Monoclonal antibodies are generally made in mouse form. Our monoclonal antibodies have been genetically altered to make them
appear more human-like to a patient's immune system. Monoclonal antibodies have been shown to be effective either on their own or
in combination with chemotherapy in treating hematologic malignancies and solid tumors. Monoclonal antibodies have lower toxicity
than chemotherapy and allow for multiple doses or cycles of therapy.
•

Monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates are composed of monoclonal antibodies that enter into cells, or internalize, and are linked to
potent cell-killing drugs. Our technology uses stable linkers to attach these potent cell-killing drugs to monoclonal antibodies. The cellkilling drugs are inactive until released from the monoclonal antibodies inside the cancer cell, thereby sparing normal tissue.
•

Single-chain immunotoxins are comprised of the receptor binding portions of monoclonal antibodies that internalize, combined with
toxin components genetically assembled into a single protein. The single-chain immunotoxins internalize and then kill cells by
blocking protein production.
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•
Antibody-directed enzyme prodrug therapy, or ADEPT, represents a novel approach to minimizing drug exposure to normal tissues.
This approach involves a single protein containing monoclonal antibody and enzyme components that can localize to solid tumors and
activate subsequently administered inactive forms of anti-cancer drugs, or prodrugs, thus locally releasing active drugs that have anticancer activity.

Our Product Candidates in Clinical Trials
We are testing our two most advanced product candidates, SGN-15 and SGN-10, in patients with solid tumors.
•

Our lead monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate, SGN-15, is composed of a monoclonal antibody called BR96 that binds to a
carbohydrate found on many different cancer types, chemically linked to the cell-killing drug doxorubicin. SGN-15 binds to cancer cells
and kills them by delivering doxorubicin inside the cell. SGN-15 is currently in three phase II clinical trials in combination with
Taxotere to treat patients with breast, colon or prostate cancer. Aventis, the manufacturer and marketer of Taxotere, is co-funding the
studies in breast and colon cancer.

•

SGN-10 is a single-chain immunotoxin that binds to cancer cells and kills them by delivering a protein toxin inside the cell. SGN-10 is
composed of the receptor binding portion of the BR96 monoclonal antibody and a truncated portion of a protein toxin called
Pseudomonas exotoxin A. SGN-10 is currently in two phase I clinical trials, one as a single agent and the second in combination
with Taxotere with co-funding by Aventis. Both studies include patients with breast, lung, colon, prostate, or ovarian cancers.

Our Preclinical Product Candidates
We have five product candidates in preclinical development. These product candidates are:

•

SGN-14, our humanized monoclonal antibody targeted to the receptor identified as CD40, being developed by Genentech for patients
with hematologic malignancies or other types of cancer;
•

SGN-30, our monoclonal antibody targeted to the receptor identified as CD30, being developed for the treatment of patients with
hematologic malignancies or other types of disease;
•

SGN-17/19, utilizing our ADEPT technology, being developed for the treatment of patients with melanoma;
•

novel BR96 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate, utilizing our stable linkers and high-potency drugs to kill solid tumor cells; and

•

novel SGN-30 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate, utilizing our stable linkers and drugs for targeting and killing of hematologic
malignancies that express the CD30 receptor.

Our Strategy
Our objective is to utilize our expertise in cancer and in monoclonal antibody-based technologies to advance our product pipeline and discover
new product candidates for the treatment of cancer and related diseases. Our strategy includes initiatives to:

•

continue to apply our expertise in monoclonal antibodies to develop anti-cancer therapeutics and to identify novel monoclonal
antibodies that bind to new cancer targets;
•

utilize our technologies to take highly specific monoclonal antibodies being developed by us or by other companies and make them
into product candidates by improving their efficacy;
•

continue to develop multiple products simultaneously that target different receptors on cancer cells and utilize multiple mechanisms of
action for cell killing, thereby increasing our opportunities to identify successful pharmaceutical drugs;
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•
expand our portfolio of product candidates through in-licensing of products and technologies; and

•
enter into corporate collaborations at various stages in the research and development process, enabling us to develop a greater
number of product candidates than would otherwise be possible while allowing us to participate in downstream product sales.

Financial History
We incurred net losses of $7.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 and $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 1999. We
currently do not have any commercial products for sale, and to date we have funded our operations through private equity financings,
licensing fees and investment income. We anticipate that our losses will increase for the foreseeable future as we continue to expand our
research, development and clinical trial activities and build additional infrastructure. As of December 31, 2000, we had an accumulated deficit
of $12.8 million.
Corporate Information
We were incorporated in the state of Delaware on July 15, 1997. Our principal executive offices are located at 22215 26 th Avenue SE, Suite
3000, Bothell, WA 98021. Our telephone number is (425) 489-4990. Our website is www.seattlegenetics.com. Information contained in our
website does not constitute part of this prospectus.
We own or have the right to various trademarks, service marks and trade names used in our business. These include: Seattle Genetics,
seagen, SGN-10, SGN-15, SGN-14, SGN-30 and SGN-17/19. This prospectus also includes trademarks, service marks and trade names
owned by other companies. These include Taxotere®, Rituxan®, Herceptin®, Mylotarg® and Panorex®.
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The Offering
Common stock offered to the public
Common stock to be purchased by Genentech

Common stock to be purchased by Medarex

Common stock to be outstanding after this
offering
Use of proceeds

6,833,333 shares
Genentech is purchasing 166,667 of the shares for
sale in this offering directly from us, assuming an
initial public offering price of $12.00 per share.
Medarex is purchasing 166,667 shares of common
stock in a concurrent private placement, assuming
an initial public offering price of $12.00 per share.
29,134,816 shares
To fund preclinical research and development
activities, contract manufacturing activities, clinical
trial activities and for other general corporate
purposes, including capital expenditures and

working capital. See "Use of Proceeds."
"SGEN"

Proposed Nasdaq National Market symbol

The number of shares of our common stock outstanding after this offering is based on the number of shares outstanding as of December 31,
2000 and includes 166,667 shares to be purchased directly by Genentech and 166,667 shares to be purchased in a concurrent private
placement by Medarex. However, it excludes 1,313,818 shares issuable upon exercise of options outstanding as of December 31, 2000 with
a weighted average exercise price of $2.07 per share and an additional 2,208,605 shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of options
which may be granted subsequent to December 31, 2000.
Except as stated in the financial statements or as specifically indicated in this prospectus, all information in this prospectus:

•

assumes no exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option; and
•
reflects the conversion of all shares of our outstanding preferred stock on a one-for-one basis into 17,387,072 shares of our common
stock upon the closing of this offering.
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Summary Financial Data
The summary financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to our financial statements
and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained elsewhere in this prospectus.
The summary balance sheet data as of December 31, 2000 and the summary statements of operations data for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1999, 2000 and for the period from inception (January 1, 1998) to December 31, 2000 have been derived from our
audited financial statements appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The pro forma net loss per share data give effect to the conversion of our
preferred stock from its date of original issuance. The pro forma balance sheet data reflect the conversion of our outstanding preferred stock
into shares of our common stock upon the closing of this offering. The pro forma as adjusted balance sheet data reflect that conversion and
also reflect the sale of 6,833,333 shares of common stock in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of $12.00 per share after
deducting underwriting discounts and estimated offering expenses, 166,667 shares to be purchased directly by Genentech and 166,667
shares to be purchased by Medarex in a concurrent private placement.

Cumulative
from
inception
(January 1,

Year Ended December 31,

1998) to
December 31,
1998

1999

2000

2000

$ —

$ 1,000

$ 99

$ 1,099

1,331
671
347
(2,349)
243
$(2,106)

4,947
1,872
3,138
(9,858)
2,020
$(7,838)
(504)

8,747
3,402
4,211
(15,261)
2,499
$(12,762 )

(5)

2,469
859
726
(3,054)
236
$(2,818)
(6)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

$(2,111)

$(2,824)

$(8,342)

Basic and diluted net loss per share

$ (0.94)

$ (1.03)

$ (2.54)

2,235,997

2,749,212

3,289,731

In thousands, except share data
Statements of Operations Data:
Revenue
Expenses:
Research and development
General and administrative
Noncash stock-based compensation expense
Loss from operations
Investment income, net
Net loss
Preferred stock deemed dividend and accretion

Weighted-average shares used in computing basic and
diluted net loss per share

Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share
Weighted-average shares used in computing pro forma basic
and diluted net loss per share

$ (0.38)

20,627,995
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As of December 31, 2000

Actual

Pro Forma
As Adjusted

Pro Forma

(unaudited)

In thousands
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments
Restricted investments
Working capital

$

Total assets
Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock
Additional paid-in capital
Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

24,330 $
3,421
24,558
29,874
37,556
14,798
(8,493)

24,330
3,421
24,558
29,874
—
52,336
29,063

$

103,850
3,421
103,518
108,834
—
131,289
108,023
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Risk Factors
You should carefully consider the following risk factors and all other information contained in this prospectus before purchasing our
common stock. Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. If any of the following risks actually occurs we may be
unable to conduct our business as currently planned and our financial condition and operating results could be seriously harmed. In
addition, the trading price of our common stock could decline due to the occurrence of any of these risks, and you may lose all or part
of your investment. Please read "Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."
Risks Related to Our Business
We have a history of net losses. We expect to continue to incur net losses and may not achieve or maintain profitability. Our
limited operating history may make it difficult to evaluate our business and an investment in our common stock
We are a development stage company incorporated in July 1997 and have a limited operating history upon which an investor may evaluate
our operations and future prospects. We have incurred net losses since our inception, including net losses of approximately $2.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 1999 and approximately $7.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. As of December 31, 2000, we
had an accumulated deficit of approximately $12.8 million. We expect to make substantial expenditures to further develop and commercialize
our product candidates and expect that our rate of spending will accelerate as the result of the increased costs and expenses associated with
clinical trials, regulatory approvals and commercialization of our potential products. In the near term, we expect revenues to be derived from
milestone payments and sponsored research fees under existing and possible future collaborative arrangements. However, our revenue and
profit potential is unproven and our limited operating history makes our future operating results difficult to predict. Consequently, an
investment in our common stock must be considered in light of the risks and uncertainties that may be encountered by a development stage
biotechnology company, including the need for substantial capital to support the development of our products and technologies and our ability
to manage growth as we hire a substantial number of additional employees to support our planned increase in development activities.

Our product candidates are at an early stage of development and if we are not able to successfully develop and commercialize
them, we may not generate sufficient revenues to continue our business operations
All of our product candidates are in early stages of development. Significant further research and development, financial resources and
personnel will be required to develop commercially viable products and obtain regulatory approvals. Much of our efforts and expenditures over
the next few years will be devoted to SGN-15, SGN-10, SGN-14, SGN-30, SGN-17/19, novel BR96 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate
and novel SGN-30 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate. These are our only product candidates in preclinical development or clinical trials.
We have no drugs that have received regulatory approval for commercial sale. We expect that none of our product candidates will be
commercially available in the near term.

Our ability to commercialize our product candidates depends on first receiving FDA approval. The future commercial success of these product
candidates will depend upon their acceptance by physicians, patients and other key decision-makers as therapeutic and cost-effective
alternatives to currently available products. If we fail to gain approval from the FDA or to produce a commercially successful product, we may
not be able to earn sufficient revenues to continue as a going concern.
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We may continue to need significant amounts of additional capital which may not be available to us
We have consumed limited amounts of cash to date but expect capital outlays and operating expenditures to significantly increase over the

We have consumed limited amounts of cash to date but expect capital outlays and operating expenditures to significantly increase over the
next several years as we hire additional employees and expand our infrastructure and preclinical development and clinical trial activities. We
believe that the net proceeds from this offering, along with our existing cash and investment securities, milestone payments and research
grants, will be sufficient to fund our operations for at least the next two years. However, changes in our business may occur that would
consume available capital resources sooner than we expect. If adequate funds are not available to us, we will be required to delay, reduce the
scope of or eliminate one or more of our development programs. We do not know whether additional financing will be available when
needed, or that, if available, we will obtain financing on terms favorable to our stockholders or us. To the extent that we raise additional capital
by issuing equity securities, our stockholders may experience substantial dilution. To the extent that we raise additional funds through
collaboration and licensing arrangements, we may be required to relinquish some rights to our technologies or product candidates, or grant
licenses on terms that are not favorable to us.

Clinical trials for our product candidates are expensive and time consuming and their outcome is uncertain
Before we can obtain regulatory approval for the commercial sale of any product candidate that we wish to develop, we will be required to
complete preclinical development and extensive clinical trials in humans to demonstrate its safety and efficacy. Each of these trials requires
the investment of substantial expense and time. We are currently conducting a total of five clinical trials of our two most advanced product
candidates, and expect to commence additional trials of these and other product candidates. There are numerous factors that could delay each
of these clinical trials or prevent us from completing these trials successfully.
Success in preclinical and early clinical trials does not ensure that large-scale trials will be successful nor does it predict final results.
Acceptable results in early trials may not be repeated in later trials. A number of companies in the biotechnology industry have suffered
significant setbacks in advanced clinical trials, even after promising results in earlier trials. Negative or inconclusive results or adverse
medical events during a clinical trial could cause it to be redone or terminated. In addition, failure to construct appropriate clinical trial protocols
could result in the test or control group experiencing a disproportionate number of adverse events and could cause a clinical trial to be redone
or terminated.

The length of time necessary to complete clinical trials and to submit an application for marketing approval for a final decision by the FDA or
another regulatory authority varies significantly. To date, we have limited clinical data and have seen evidence of gastrointestinal toxicity with
SGN-15 and SGN-10. Future trials may not show sufficient safety and efficacy to obtain the requisite regulatory approval for these product
candidates or any other potential product candidates. Because SGN-15, SGN-10, SGN-14, SGN-30, SGN-17/19, novel BR96 monoclonal
antibody-drug conjugate and novel SGN-30 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate, are our only product candidates in clinical trials or
preclinical development at the present time, any delays or difficulties we encounter may impact our ability to generate revenue and cause our
stock price to decline significantly.

We may choose to, or may be required to, suspend, repeat or terminate our clinical trials if they are not conducted in
accordance with regulatory requirements, the results are negative or inconclusive or the trials are not well designed
Clinical trials must be conducted in accordance with the FDA's guidelines and are subject to oversight by the FDA and institutional review
boards at the medical institutions where the clinical trials are conducted. In addition, clinical trials must be conducted with product candidates
produced under the FDA's Good Manufacturing Practices, and may require large numbers of test patients. Patient enrollment is a function of
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many factors, including the size of the patient population, the proximity of patients to clinical sites, the eligibility criteria for the trial, the
existence of competing clinical trials and the availability of alternative or new treatments. Clinical trials may be suspended by the FDA at any
time if the FDA finds deficiencies in the conduct of these trials or it is believed that these trials expose patients to unacceptable health risks.

In addition, we or the FDA might delay or halt our clinical trials of a product candidate for various reasons, including:
•
the product candidate may have unforeseen adverse side effects;

•
the time required to determine whether the product candidate is effective may be longer than expected;

•
fatalities arising during a clinical trial due to medical problems that may not be related to clinical trial treatments;

•
the product candidate may not appear to be more effective than current therapies;

•

insufficient patient enrollment in the clinical trials; or
•

we may not be able to produce sufficient quantities of the product candidate to complete the trials.

Furthermore, the process of obtaining and maintaining regulatory approvals for new therapeutic products is lengthy, expensive and
uncertain. It can vary substantially, based on the type, complexity and novelty of the product involved. Accordingly, our current product

candidates or any of our other future product candidates could take a significantly longer time to gain regulatory approval than we expect or
may never gain approval, which could reduce our revenue and delay or terminate the potential commercialization of our product candidates.

We currently rely on third-party manufacturers for production of our drug products and our dependence on these
manufacturers may impair the development of our product candidates
We do not currently have the ability to manufacture drug products that we need to conduct our clinical trials. For our two product candidates in
clinical trials, SGN-15 and SGN-10, we rely on drug products that were produced and vialed by Bristol-Myers Squibb and contract
manufacturers retained by Bristol-Myers Squibb. For the foreseeable future, we will continue to rely on contract manufacturers to produce
sufficient quantities of our product candidates for use in our clinical trials. If our contract manufacturers fail to deliver the required quantities of
our product candidates for clinical use on a timely basis, with sufficient quality, and at commercially reasonable prices, and we fail to find
replacement manufacturers or to develop our own manufacturing capabilities, we may be unable to continue development and production of
our product candidates.
Contract manufacturers have a limited number of facilities in which our product candidates can be produced. We currently rely on contract
manufacturers to produce our product candidates under FDA Good Manufacturing Practices to meet acceptable standards for our clinical
trials. Such standards may change, affecting the ability of contract manufacturers to produce our product candidates on the schedule we
require for our clinical trials. Contract manufacturers may not perform or may discontinue their business for the time required by us to
successfully produce and market our product candidates.

In some circumstances we rely on collaborators to assist in the research and development activities necessary for the
commercialization of our product candidates. If our collaborators do not perform as expected, we may not be able to
commercialize our product candidates
We intend to continue to develop alliances with third party collaborators to develop and market our current and future product candidates. We
may not be able to locate third party collaborators to develop and market other product candidates and we may lack the capital and resources
necessary to develop all our product
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candidates alone. If our collaborators do not prioritize and commit substantial resources to programs associated with our product candidates,
we may be unable to commercialize our product candidates, which would limit our ability to generate revenue and become profitable.

We have a license agreement with Genentech pursuant to which they are developing our lead CD40 targeted drug, SGN-14, to treat patients
with hematologic malignancies or other types of cancer. Genentech is also responsible for gaining final approval through the required U.S.
and international regulatory authorities to ultimately market the product. At any time, Genentech may terminate the agreement for any
reason and return the rights to the CD40 program to us. If Genentech decides not to proceed and we fail to locate a substitute partner, we may
not have sufficient capital resources to continue funding the project.

If we are unable to protect our proprietary technology, trade secrets or know-how, we may not be able to operate our business
profitably. Similarly, if we fail to sustain and further build our intellectual property rights, competitors may be able to develop
competing therapies
Our success depends, in part, on our ability to maintain protection for our products and technologies under the patent laws or other
intellectual property laws of the United States, France, Germany, Japan, United Kingdom and Italy, as well as other countries. We have filed
four patent applications with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office for our technologies which are currently pending. We also have exclusive
rights to certain issued U.S. patents, and foreign counterpart patents and patent applications in the countries listed above, relating to our
monoclonal antibody-based technology. Our rights to these patents are derived from worldwide licenses from Bristol-Myers Squibb and
Arizona State University. In addition, we have licensed or optioned rights to pending U.S. patent applications and foreign counterpart patents
and patent applications to third parties. The standards which the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office uses to grant patents are not always
applied predictably or uniformly and can change. Consequently, the pending patent applications may not be allowed; and if allowed, may not
contain the type and extent of patent claims that will be adequate to conduct our business as planned. Additionally, any issued patents may
not contain claims that will permit us to stop competitors from using similar technology. Similarly, the standards that courts use to interpret
patents are not always applied predictably or uniformly and can change, particularly as new technologies develop. As a result, the protection,
if any, given to our patents if we attempt to enforce them or if they are challenged in court is uncertain. In addition, we rely on certain
proprietary trade secrets and know-how. We have taken measures to protect our unpatented trade secrets and know-how, including the use of
confidentiality and assignment of inventions agreements with our employees, consultants and certain contractors. It is possible, however,
that these persons may breach the agreements or that our competitors may independently develop or otherwise discover our trade secrets.

We may incur substantial costs and lose important rights as a result of litigation or other proceedings relating to patent and
other intellectual property rights
The defense and prosecution of intellectual property rights, U.S. Patent and Trademark Office interference proceedings and related legal and
administrative proceedings in the United States and elsewhere involve complex legal and factual questions. These proceedings are costly
and time-consuming.
If we become involved in any litigation, interference or other administrative proceedings, we will incur substantial expense and it will divert
the efforts of our technical and management personnel. An adverse determination may subject us to significant liabilities or require us to

seek licenses that may not be available from third parties on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. We may be restricted or prevented from

developing and commercializing our product candidates, if any, in the event of an adverse determination in a judicial or administrative
proceeding, or if we fail to obtain necessary licenses.
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Because of the specialized nature of our business, the termination of relationships with our key management and scientific
personnel or our inability to recruit and retain additional personnel could prevent us from developing our technologies,
conducting clinical trials and obtaining financing.
Since our formation, Dr. Fell and Dr. Siegall have played a significant role in our research efforts. Dr. Fell is Chief Executive Officer and a
director of our company and Dr. Siegall is President, Chief Scientific Officer and a director of our company. We are highly dependent on these
two individuals, and they have played a critical role in our research and development programs, raising financing and conducting clinical
trials. Currently, we have no employment agreements with Dr. Fell or Dr. Siegall. We have obtained key person insurance for Dr. Fell and
Dr. Siegall in the amount of $1.0 million each. However, the sum recovered under such insurance policies may not fully compensate us for
any loss of their services. Additionally, we have several scientific personnel with significant and unique expertise in monoclonal antibodies
and related technologies, some of whom are irreplaceable. The loss of the services of either of these two key members of our company or
these scientific personnel may prevent us from achieving our business objectives.
The competition for qualified personnel in the biotechnology field is intense, and we rely heavily on our ability to attract and retain qualified
scientific, technical and managerial personnel. Our future success depends upon our ability to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled
employees. In order to commercialize our products successfully, we will be required to expand our workforce, particularly in the areas of
manufacturing, clinical trials management, regulatory affairs, business development and sales and marketing. These activities will require
the addition of new personnel, including management, and the development of additional expertise by existing management personnel. We
face intense competition for qualified individuals from numerous pharmaceutical, biopharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, as well
as academic and other research institutions. To the extent we are not able to attract and retain these individuals on favorable terms, our
business may be harmed.

We face intense competition and rapid technological change, which may result in others discovering, developing or
commercializing competing products before or more successfully than we do
The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries are highly competitive and subject to significant and rapid technological change. We are
aware of several pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies that are actively engaged in research and development in areas related to
antibody therapy. Some of these companies have commenced clinical trials of antibody products or have successfully commercialized
antibody products. Many of these companies are developing products for the same disease indications as we are. Some of these competitors
have received regulatory approval or are developing or testing product candidates that do or may in the future compete directly with our
product candidates. For example, Genentech, IDEC Pharmaceuticals and American Home Products market products that may compete with
ours. Other potential competitors include large, fully integrated pharmaceutical companies and more established biotechnology companies,
which have significant resources and expertise in research and development, manufacturing, testing, obtaining regulatory approvals and
marketing. Also, academic institutions, government agencies and other public and private research organizations conduct research, seek
patent protection and establish collaborative arrangements for research, development, manufacturing and marketing. It is possible that these
competitors will succeed in developing technologies that are more effective than those being developed by us or that would render our
technology obsolete or noncompetitive.

If our competitors develop superior products, manufacturing capability or marketing expertise, our business may fail
Our business may fail because we face intense competition from major pharmaceutical companies and specialized biotechnology companies
engaged in the development of other products directed at cancer. Many
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of our competitors have greater financial and human resources and more experience. Our competitors may, among other things:
•
develop safer or more effective products;

•

implement more effective approaches to sales and marketing;
•
develop less costly products;

•
obtain quicker regulatory approval;

•

have access to more manufacturing capacity;
•

•

form more advantageous strategic alliances; or
•

establish superior proprietary positions.

In addition, if we receive regulatory approvals, we may compete with well-established, FDA approved therapies that have generated
substantial sales over a number of years. We anticipate that we will face increased competition in the future as new companies enter our
market and scientific developments surrounding other cancer therapies continue to accelerate.

We have no experience in commercializing products on our own and to the extent we do not develop this ability or contract with
a third-party to assist us, we may not be able to successfully sell our product candidates. Additionally, if the market does not
accept our products or if reform in the healthcare industry does not provide adequate reimbursement for our products, we may
not be able to generate sufficient revenues to maintain our business
We do not have a sales and marketing force and may not be able to develop this capacity. If we are unable to establish sales and marketing
capabilities, we will need to enter into sales and marketing agreements to market our products in the United States. For sales outside the
United States, we plan to enter into third-party arrangements. In these foreign markets, if we are unable to establish successful distribution
relationships with pharmaceutical companies, we may fail to realize the full sales potential of our product candidates.

Additionally, our product candidates may not gain market acceptance among physicians, patients, healthcare payors and the medical
community. The degree of market acceptance of any approved product candidate will depend on a number of factors, including:
•

establishment and demonstration of clinical efficacy and safety;
•
cost-effectiveness of a product;

•

its potential advantage over alternative treatment methods; and
•

marketing and distribution support for the product.
In addition, government health administrative authorities, private health insurers and other organizations are increasingly challenging both
the need for and the price of new medical products and services. Consequently, uncertainty exists as to the reimbursement status of newly
approved therapeutics and diagnostics. For these and other reasons, physicians, patients, third-party payors and the medical community
may not accept and utilize any product candidates that we develop and even if they do, reimbursement may not be available for our products
to enable us to maintain price levels sufficient to realize an appropriate return on our investment in research and product development.
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We face product liability risks and may not be able to obtain adequate insurance to protect us against losses
We currently have no products that are available for commercial sale. However, the current use of any of our product candidates in clinical
trials, and the sale of any approved products in the future, may expose us to liability claims. These claims might be made directly by
consumers and healthcare providers or indirectly by pharmaceutical companies, our corporate collaborators or others selling such products.
We may experience financial losses in the future due to product liability claims. We have obtained limited product liability insurance coverage
for our clinical trials. We intend to expand our insurance coverage to include the sale of commercial products if marketing approval is obtained
for product candidates in development. However, we may not be able to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or in sufficient
amounts to protect us against losses. If a successful product liability claim or series of claims is brought against us for uninsured liabilities or
in excess of insured liabilities, our assets may not be sufficient to cover such claims and our business operations could be impaired.

Risks Related to this Offering

Our stock price may be volatile and you may be unable to sell your shares at or above the offering price
There previously has been no public market for our common stock. Additionally, an active public market for our common stock may never
develop or be sustained after the offering. The initial public offering price for our shares will be determined by negotiations between us and
representatives of the underwriters and may not be indicative of prices that will prevail in the trading market. The market price of our common
stock could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to many risk factors listed in this section, and others beyond our control, including:
•
changes in financial estimates of our operating results by securities analysts;

•

fluctuations in the valuation of companies perceived by investors to be comparable to us;
•

performance of similar companies; and

•

share price and volume fluctuations attributable to inconsistent trading volume levels of our shares.

Furthermore, the stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the market
prices of equity securities of many companies. In particular, there has been high levels of volatility in the market prices of securities of
biotechnology companies. These fluctuations often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies.
These broad market and industry fluctuations, as well as general economic, political and market conditions such as recessions, interest rate
changes or international currency fluctuations, may cause the market price of our common stock to decline.
Our existing stockholders have significant control of our management and affairs, which they could exercise against your best
interests
Following the closing of this offering, our executive officers and directors and greater than 5% stockholders, together with entities that may be
deemed affiliates of or related to such persons or entities, will beneficially own approximately 70% of our outstanding common stock. As a
result, these stockholders, acting together, may be able to control our management and affairs and matters requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions, such as mergers, consolidations or the sale of
substantially all of our assets. Consequently, this concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a
change in control, including a merger, consolidation, takeover or other business combination involving us or discourage a potential acquiror
from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control, which might affect the market price of our common stock.

13

Because our initial public offering price will be substantially higher than the book value per share of our outstanding common
stock, new investors will incur immediate and substantial dilution in the amount of approximately $8.29 per share
The initial public offering price will be substantially higher than the tangible book value per share based on the total value of our tangible
assets less our total liabilities immediately following this offering. Therefore, if you purchase common stock in this offering, you will
experience immediate and substantial dilution of approximately $8.29 per share in the price you pay for the common stock as compared to its
tangible book value. Furthermore, investors purchasing common stock in this offering will own only 24.0% of our shares outstanding even
though they will have contributed 67.7% of the total consideration received by us in connection with our sales of common stock. To the extent
outstanding options to purchase common stock are exercised, there will be further dilution.

Following this offering, a substantial number of our shares of common stock will become available for sale in the public market
that may cause the market price of our stock to decline
If our stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock (including shares issued upon the exercise of outstanding options and
warrants) in the public market following this offering, the market price of our common stock could fall. These sales also might make it more
difficult for us to sell equity or equity-related securities in the future at a time and price acceptable to us.
Within 180 days after the date of this prospectus, 21,968,149 shares held by existing stockholders and 166,667 shares to be purchased by
Genentech, which will be subject to "lock-up" agreements, will become available for sale and an additional 166,667 shares to be purchased
by Medarex, which will be subject to both a 180 day lock-up and the expiration of a one-year holding period, will periodically thereafter become
available for sale. Please see "Shares Eligible for Future Sale" for a complete description of the number of shares which will become
available for future sale.

We have broad discretion in the use of net proceeds from this offering and may not use them effectively
As of the date of this prospectus, we cannot specify with certainty the amounts we will spend on particular uses from the net proceeds we will
receive from this offering. Our management will have broad discretion in the application of the net proceeds but currently intends to use the
net proceeds as described in the section "Use of Proceeds." The failure by our management to apply these funds effectively could affect our
ability to continue to develop and market new product candidates.
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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This prospectus contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled
"Prospectus Summary," "Risk Factors," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and
"Business." These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about:
•

our product development programs;

•

our clinical development of potential drugs, clinical trials and the regulatory approval process;
•

our estimates for future revenues and profitability;
•

our estimates regarding our capital requirements and our needs for additional financing;
•

our selection and licensing of product candidates;
•

our ability to attract partners with acceptable development, regulatory and commercialization expertise;
•
the benefits to be derived from corporate collaborations, license agreements and other collaborative efforts, including those relating to
the development and commercialization of our product candidates; and

•
sources of revenues and anticipated revenues, including contributions from corporate collaborations, license agreements and other
collaborative efforts for the development and commercialization of products, and the continued viability and duration of those
agreements and efforts.

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as "may," "will," "should," "could," "would," "expects," "plans,"
"anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "projects," "predicts," "potential" and similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking
statements. These statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions and subject to risks and
uncertainties. Given these risks and uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. We discuss
many of these risks in this prospectus in greater detail under the heading "Risk Factors." Also, these forward-looking statements represent
our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this prospectus.
You should read this prospectus and the documents that we reference in this prospectus and have filed as exhibits to the registration
statement, of which this prospectus is a part, completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different
from what we expect. Although Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 do not apply
to initial public offerings such as ours, we qualify all of our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements.

About This Prospectus
You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with information
different from that contained in this prospectus. We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, shares of common stock only in
jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted.
15

Use of Proceeds
We estimate our net proceeds from the sale of 7,000,000 shares of our common stock in this offering to be approximately $77.0 million, or
approximately $88.4 million if the underwriters' over-allotment option is exercised in full, based on an assumed initial public offering price of
$12.00 per share and after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and estimated offering expenses. This amount includes
$2.0 million to be received directly from Genentech for the purchase of 166,667 shares at the assumed initial public offering price but does
not include the $2.0 million to be received from Medarex for the purchase of 166,667 shares at the assumed initial public offering price in a
concurrent private placement. The underwriters will not receive any commissions or discounts for the shares purchased directly by
Genentech or for the shares sold in the concurrent private placement to Medarex.
We currently plan to use the net proceeds from this offering as follows:

•

approximately 20-30% for preclinical research and development activities;
•

approximately 20-30% for contract manufacturing activities;
•

approximately 10-20% for clinical trial activities; and
•

the remainder for general corporate purposes, including capital expenditures and working capital to fund anticipated operating
losses.

Although we have identified certain ranges above, we have broad discretion to use the proceeds, and may also, when and if the opportunity
arises, use a portion of the proceeds to acquire or invest in complimentary businesses, products or technologies. We do not intend to fund
short-term expenditures from sources other than this offering. Pending such uses, we intend to invest such funds in a variety of interestbearing instruments, consisting of U.S. government and agency securities, high-grade U.S. corporate bonds, municipal bonds, mortgagebacked securities, commercial paper and money market accounts.

Dividend Policy
We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings
for use in the operation of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
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Capitalization
The following table summarizes our cash, cash equivalents and short term investments, restricted investments and our capitalization as of
December 31, 2000:
•

on an actual basis;
•

on a pro forma basis reflecting conversion of all outstanding shares of our preferred stock on a one-for-one basis into shares of
common stock upon the closing of this offering; and
•

on a pro forma as adjusted basis reflecting that conversion and the receipt of the net proceeds from the sale of 6,833,333 shares of
common stock in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of $12.00, excluding underwriting discounts and estimated
offering expenses, 166,667 shares of common stock to be purchased directly from us by Genentech at the assumed initial offering
price and 166,667 shares of common stock to be purchased by Medarex in a concurrent private placement at the assumed initial
offering price.
The number of shares in the table below is based on the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2000 and
excludes:
•

an aggregate of 1,313,818 shares subject to outstanding options as of December 31, 2000 at a weighted average exercise price of
$2.07 per share under our 1998 stock option plan; and
•

an additional 2,208,605 shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of options that may be granted subsequent to December 31, 2000
under our 1998 stock option plan.

This table should be read with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our financial
statements and the accompanying notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

December 31, 2000

Actual

Pro Forma
As Adjusted

Pro Forma

In thousands, except share data
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments

$

24,330

$

24,330

$

103,850

Restricted investments

$

3,421

$

3,421

$

3,421

Long-term debt
Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value;
17,450,000 shares authorized, 17,387,072 shares issued and
outstanding, actual; 5,000,000 shares authorized and no shares issued
and outstanding, pro forma and pro forma as adjusted

—

$

37,556

—

$

—

—

$

—

Stockholders' equity (deficit):
Common stock $0.001 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized,
4,581,077 shares issued and outstanding, actual; 30,000,000 shares
authorized, 21,968,149 shares issued and outstanding, pro forma;
and 100,000,000 shares authorized, 29,134,816 shares issued and
outstanding, pro forma as adjusted
Additional paid-in capital
Notes receivable from stockholders
Deferred stock compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Accumulated deficit

4
14,798
(408)
(10,194)
69
(12,762)

22
52,336
(408)
(10,194)
69
(12,762)

29
131,289
(408)
(10,194)
69
(12,762)

(8,493)

29,063

108,023

Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

$

Total capitalization

29,063

$

29,063

$

108,023

See "Management—Stock Plans," "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and the Notes to Financial Statements.
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Dilution
If you invest in our common stock, your interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the public offering price per share of our
common stock and the pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share of our common stock after this offering. Our pro forma net
tangible book value at December 31, 2000 was approximately $28.5 million, or $1.30 per share of common stock. Pro forma net tangible
book value per share represents total tangible assets less total liabilities, divided by the number of shares of common stock outstanding after
giving effect to the conversion of all of our outstanding preferred stock into 17,387,072 shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis.
After giving effect to the issuance and sale of 6,833,333 shares of our common stock in this offering at an assumed initial public offering
price of $12.00 per share, after deducting the underwriting discounts and our estimated offering expenses, after giving effect to the purchase
by Genentech of 166,667 shares of common stock directly from us at the initial offering price and the purchase by Medarex of 166,667
shares of common stock in a concurrent private placement at the initial offering price, our pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value at
December 31, 2000, would have been $108.0 million, or $3.71 per share. This represents an immediate increase in net tangible book value
of $2.41 per share to our existing stockholders and an immediate dilution of $8.29 per share to our new investors purchasing shares of
common stock in this offering. The following table illustrates this dilution on a per share basis:

$

Assumed initial public offering price per share
Pro forma net tangible book value per share at December 31, 2000
Increase per share attributable to private placement with Medarex
Increase per share attributable to new investors
Pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value after the offering

$

12.00

1.30
.06
2.35

3.71

$

Dilution per share to new investors

8.29

The following table summarizes on a pro forma as adjusted basis, as of December 31, 2000, the total number of shares of common stock
outstanding and the total consideration paid to us and the average price per share paid by our existing stockholders and by new investors
purchasing shares of common stock in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of $12.00 per share:

Shares Purchased

Number

Total Consideration
Percent

Amount

Existing stockholders
Medarex private placement
New investors

21,968,149
166,667
7,000,000

75.4% $
0.6 $
24.0 $

38,110,678
2,000,000
84,000,000

Total

29,134,816

100.0% $

124,110,678

Percent

30.7% $
1.6 $
67.7 $

Average Price
Per Share

1.74
12.00
12.00

100.0%

The above computations are based on the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2000, assumes no exercise
of the underwriters' overallotment option and excludes:

•
options to purchase 1,313,818 shares outstanding under our 1998 stock option plan with a weighted average price of $2.07 per share,
and

•

2,208,605 shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of options that may be granted subsequent to December 31, 2000 under our
1998 stock option plan.
The issuance of common stock under this plan will result in further dilution to new investors. See "Management—Stock Option Plans,"
"Transactions With Executive Officers, Directors and Five Percent Stockholders" and the Notes to Financial Statements.
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Selected Financial Data
The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to our financial statements
and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained elsewhere in this prospectus.
The selected balance sheet data as of December 31, 1999 and 2000 and the selected statement of operations data for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1999, 2000 and for the period from inception (January 1, 1998) to December 31, 2000 have been derived from our
audited financial statements appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The selected balance sheet data as of December 31, 1998 has been
derived from our audited financial statements that are not included in this prospectus. The pro forma net loss per share data give effect to the
conversion of our preferred stock from its date of original issuance.

Cumulative from
inception
(January 1, 1998) to

Year Ended December 31,
1998

1999

2000

$ —

$ 1,000

$ 99

Research and development(1)
General and administrative(1)
Noncash stock-based compensation expense
Loss from operations
Investment income, net
Net loss
Preferred stock deemed dividend and accretion

1,331
671
347
(2,349)
243
$(2,106)

In thousands, except share data
Statements of Operations Data:
Revenue
Expenses:

December 31, 2000

$

1,099

4,947
1,872
3,138
(9,858)
2,020
$(7,838) $
(504)

8,747
3,402
4,211
(15,261)
2,499
(12,762)

(5)

2,469
859
726
(3,054)
236
$(2,818)
(6)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

$(2,111)

$(2,824)

$(8,342)

Basic and diluted net loss per share

$ (0.94)

$ (1.03)

$ (2.54)

2,235,997

2,749,212

3,289,731

Weighted-average shares used in computing basic and diluted
net loss per share

$ (0.38)

Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share
Weighted-average shares used in computing pro forma basic
and diluted net loss per share

20,627,995
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December 31,
1998

In thousands
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments
Restricted investments

$

4,865
—

2000

1999

$

30,363
—

$

24,330
3,421

4,800
5,231
6,912
852
(1,764)

Working capital
Total assets
Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock
Additional paid-in capital
Stockholders' equity (deficit)

32,796
33,363
37,036
1,716
(3,860)

24,558
29,874
37,556
14,798
(8,493)

(1)

Operating expenses exclude charges for non cash stock based compensation as follows:

Cumulative from
inception (January 1,

Year Ended December 31,

1998) to December 31,
1998

In thousands
Research and development
General and administrative

2000

1999

2000

$

73
274

$

393
333

$

973
2,165

$

1,439
2,772

$

347

$

726

$

3,138

$

4,211
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
You should read the following discussion and analysis by our management of our financial condition and results of operations in
conjunction with our financial statements and the accompanying notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. This Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and other parts of this prospectus contain forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements of our plans, objectives, expectations and intentions. Our actual
results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such
differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in "Risk Factors."
Overview
We discover and develop monoclonal antibody-based drugs to treat cancer and related diseases. Using our four monoclonal antibody-based
technologies and our expertise in the cancer area, we have assembled a portfolio of drug candidates targeted to many types of human
cancers. We utilize our monoclonal antibody-based technologies to increase the potency and efficacy of monoclonal antibodies with specificity
for cancer. We are currently testing our two most advanced product candidates, SGN-15 and SGN-10, in patients with breast, colon, prostate
or other cancers. SGN-15 is in three phase II clinical trials in combination with the chemotherapy drug Taxotere. SGN-10 is in two phase I
clinical trials, one as a single agent and the other in combination with Taxotere. We have five preclinical product candidates being developed
to treat patients with solid tumors, melanoma or hematologic malignancies. One of our preclinical product candidates, SGN-14, is being
developed by Genentech pursuant to a license agreement. In addition to providing us with the means to discover and develop monoclonal
antibody-based product candidates ourselves, our technologies allow us to partner with other companies also developing monoclonal
antibodies.

We commenced operations in 1998 with technologies, patent rights and material for clinical trials received through a licensing arrangement
with Bristol-Myers Squibb. Since our formation, our operating activities have been primarily devoted to research and development of our
monoclonal antibody-based technologies, preclinical development and clinical trials for SGN-15, a monoclonal antibody chemically linked to
cell-killing drugs, or monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate, and SGN-10, a single protein containing monoclonal antibody and toxin
components, or single-chain immunotoxin.

Since our inception, we have incurred substantial losses. As of December 31, 2000, we had an accumulated deficit of $12.8 million. These
losses and accumulated deficit have resulted primarily from the significant costs incurred in the development of our monoclonal antibodybased technologies and clinical trial costs of SGN-15 and SGN-10 and, to a lesser extent, general and administrative costs. We expect that
our losses will increase for the foreseeable future as we continue to expand our research, development and clinical trial activities and to build
additional infrastructure.
We do not currently have any commercial products for sale. To date, we have generated revenues of $1.0 million from our license agreement
with Genentech and $99,000 from a Small Business Innovative Research grant. In the future, we expect our principal revenues to be from
milestone payments and sponsored research fees under existing and possible future collaborative arrangements. Ultimately, we believe our
revenue will consist chiefly of commercial product sales. Because a substantial portion of our revenues for the foreseeable future will depend
on achieving development and clinical milestones, our results of operations may vary substantially from year to year and even quarter to
quarter.

Our operating costs include research and development and general and administrative costs. To date, our research and development costs
include expenses for drug discovery and research, preclinical development and clinical trial activities. Our general and administrative costs
principally consist of salaries and benefit expenses and facilities related costs. We expect that both our research and development and general
and administrative costs will increase in the foreseeable future as we continue to grow our business.
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The deemed dividend for the year ended December 31, 2000 resulted from the issuance of Series B convertible preferred stock in April 2000
at prices less than the deemed fair market value at the date of issuance. Additionally, the accretion on convertible preferred stock represents
the issuance costs of the Series A and Series B convertible preferred stock which are being amortized by periodic accretion charges. These
preferred stock dividend and the accretion amounts increase the net loss attributable to common shareholders.

Noncash stock-based compensation expenses for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 resulted from stock options granted
at exercise prices less than the deemed fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant to employees and consultants. We
recorded total deferred stock-based compensation of $849,000 in 1998, $829,000 in 1999 and $12.7 million in 2000. Deferred stock-based
compensation is being amortized to expense over the vesting periods of the underlying options, generally four years, by an accelerated
method. Based on deferred stock-based compensation recorded as of December 31, 2000, we expect to record amortization for deferred stockbased compensation expense as follows: $5.5 million in 2001, $2.8 million in 2002, $1.4 million in 2003 and $495,000 in 2004. The
amount of deferred compensation expected to be recorded in future periods may decrease if unvested options for which deferred stock-based
compensation has been recorded are subsequently cancelled or may increase if future option grants are offered at exercise prices less than
the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. In addition, the amount of deferred compensation expense to be recorded
in future periods for stock awards granted to non-employees will fluctuate based on the fair value of our common stock in future periods.

In view of our limited operating history, we believe that period to period comparisons of our operating results are not meaningful and you
should not rely on them as indicative of our future performance.

Results of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999
Revenues. Revenues in 2000 were $99,000, which represents revenue from a Small Business Innovative Research grant awarded to us
for the study of monoclonal antibody-based therapies. Revenues in 1999 were $1.0 million, representing revenue from a license agreement
with Genentech effective June 1999.
Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses, excluding noncash stock-based compensation expense, in
2000 were $4.9 million, an increase of $2.5 million, or 100%, over 1999. This increase was principally due to an increase of $813,000 in
personnel expenses, an increase of $487,000 in clinical trials expenses, an increase of $429,000 in laboratory materials and supplies
expenses and $400,000 in contract manufacturing expenses. The number of research and development personnel increased to 35 at
December 31, 2000 from 16 at December 31, 1999. We anticipate that research and development expenses will continue to grow in the
foreseeable future as we expand our research, development and clinical trial activities.
General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses, excluding noncash stock-based compensation expense, in
2000 were $1.9 million, an increase of $1.0 million, or 118%, over 1999. This increase was primarily due to an increase of $443,000 in
administrative personnel expenses, $208,000 in recruiting expenses and $120,000 in professional services expenses. The number of
general and administrative personnel increased to 11 at December 31, 2000 from 5 at December 31, 1999. We anticipate that general and
administrative expenses will increase in the foreseeable future as we expand our accounting staff and incur additional costs related to
becoming a public company, including an investor relations program, directors' and officers' insurance and external audit fees.
Noncash stock-based compensation expense. Noncash stock-based compensation expense in 2000 was $3.1 million, an increase of
$2.4 million, or 332%, over 1999. The increase is attributable to both
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increasing levels of stock option grants and the difference between the deemed fair value as compared to the related exercise prices.

Investment income, net. Investment income, net in 2000 was $2.0 million, an increase of $1.8 million, or 756%, over 1999. The increase
was due primarily to higher average balances of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and restricted investments in 2000
compared to 1999. This was a result of the investment of the proceeds from the sale of Series B convertible preferred stock in
December 1999.
Net loss. Net loss in 2000 was $7.8 million, an increase of $5.0 million, or 178%, from 1999 as a result of the factors mentioned above.
Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998
Revenues. Revenues in 1999 were $1.0 million and were derived from a license agreement with Genentech effective June 1999. We had
no revenue in 1998.
Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses, excluding noncash stock-based compensation expense, in

1999 were $2.5 million, an increase of $1.1 million, or 85%, over 1998. 1998 expenses included a licensing fee paid to Bristol-Myers
Squibb, with no comparable amount paid in 1999. The increase in 1999 was principally due to a $892,000 increase in personnel expenses,
a $338,000 increase in facilities related costs, a $168,000 increase in laboratory materials and supplies expenses, and a $152,000 increase
in clinical trial expenses, offset by the license fee paid in 1998. The number of research and development personnel increased to 16 at
December 31, 1999 from 10 at December 31, 1998.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses, excluding noncash stock-based compensation expense, in
1999 were $859,000, an increase of $187,000, or 28%, over 1998. The increase was attributable to higher expense levels as we continued
to grow our business. The number of general and administrative personnel increased to 5 at December 31, 1999 from 3 at December 31,
1998.
Noncash stock-based compensation expense. Noncash stock-based compensation expense in 1999 was $726,000, an increase of
$379,000, or 109% over 1998. The increase is attributable to both increasing levels of stock option grants and the difference between the
deemed fair market value as compared to the related exercise prices.

Investment income, net. Investment income, net in 1999 was $236,000, a decrease of $7,000, or 3%, over 1998. The decrease was
attributable to lower average balances of cash and cash equivalents in 1999 compared to 1998.

Net loss. Net loss in 1999 was $2.8 million, an increase of $711,000, or 34%, over 1998 as a result of the factors mentioned above.
Liquidity And Capital Resources
From inception through December 31, 2000, we have funded our operations with $37.5 million from private equity financings, $1.0 million
from a license agreement with Genentech, $2.5 million of investment income, net, and $99,000 from a Small Business Innovative
Research grant. At December 31, 2000, cash, cash equivalents and short term investments totaled $24.3 million and restricted investments
amounted to $3.4 million.
In December 2000 we entered into a ten year lease for a new headquarters and operations facility. In connection with this lease, we have
pledged $3.4 million of our investments as collateral for certain obligations of the lease. The lease terms provide for decreases to the pledge
amounts based upon our net worth, as defined, and decreases commencing in the fourth year of the lease.
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Our cash, cash equivalents, short term investments and restricted investments are held in a variety of interest-bearing instruments,
consisting of U.S. government and agency securities, high-grade U.S. corporate bonds, municipal bonds, mortgage-backed securities,
commercial paper and money market accounts.
Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2000 was $4.5 million and for the year ended December 31, 1999 was
$2.0 million. Our net loss of $7.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 included non-cash charges of $3.3 million primarily related
to amortization of deferred stock compensation and depreciation expense. Cash used in operating activities in 1999 was $2.0 million
compared with $1.7 million in 1998. Our net loss of $2.8 million in 1999 included non-cash charges of $848,000 related primarily to
amortization of deferred stock compensation and depreciation expense. We expect cash used in operating activities to increase in the future as
we fund our preclinical development, clinical trials and commercialization activities of our product candidates.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2000 was $25.7 million which included $25.0 million for purchases of
short-term and restricted investments, net of proceeds from sale and maturities, as well as $729,000 for capital expenditures. Net cash used
in investing activities in 1999 was $127,000 for capital expenditures. We expect that our level of capital expenditures will increase in the
future as we build additional infrastructure.
Net cash provided by financing activities was $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 compared to $27.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 1999. Financing activities in 2000 primarily consisted of $2.5 million from the collection of subscriptions receivable,
$500,000 from the sale of additional Series B convertible preferred stock, offset by prepaid initial public offering issuance costs of $557,000.
Net cash provided by financing activities was $27.6 million in 1999 compared to $6.9 million in 1998. Financing activities included net
proceeds of $6.9 million from the sale of Series A convertible preferred stock in 1998 and $27.6 million from the sale of Series B convertible
preferred stock in 1999.
We currently anticipate that we will use the net proceeds from this offering as follows: approximately 20-30% for preclinical research and
development activities, approximately 20-30% for contract manufacturing activities, approximately 10-20% for clinical trial activities and the
remainder for general corporate purposes, including capital expenditures and working capital to fund anticipated operating losses.
We expect to incur substantial costs as we continue to expand our research, preclinical development and clinical trials. We expect that the net
proceeds from this offering, along with our existing cash and investment securities, milestone payments and research grants, will be
sufficient to fund our operations for the next two years. However, during or after this period, if our capital resources are insufficient to meet our
capital requirements and expenses, we would need to sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain credit arrangements. Additional
financing may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all. The sale of additional equity or convertible debt securities could result in
additional dilution to our stockholders. Our future capital needs will depend on many factors including receipt of payments from our
collaborators, growth in our research and development activities, the progress associated with preclinical trials and the size, duration and
number of clinical trials. Additional costs will be incurred through the expense of preparing, filing, maintaining and enforcing patent claims
and other intellectual property rights, modifications in existing or the establishment of new collaboration and licensing arrangements, and

clinical trial manufacturing costs.

Our plans include the development of selected internal projects to a point where they may be candidates for corporate collaborations. We will
then choose between continuing to develop these projects ourselves or seeking to license them to collaborators. If we choose to develop and
commercialize any internal development projects without the assistance of collaborators, the cost would be substantial and would require
external financing.
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We do not have committed external sources of funding and we cannot assure that we will be able to obtain additional funds on acceptable
terms, if at all. If adequate funds are not available, we may be required to, among other things:

•

delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our programs;
•
obtain funds through arrangements with collaborators or others that may require us to relinquish rights to technologies or product
candidates that we would otherwise seek to develop ourselves; or

•

license rights to technologies or lead agents on terms that are less favorable to us than might otherwise be available.

Disclosure About Market Risk
Our exposure to market risk is limited to interest income sensitivity, which is affected by changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates,
particularly because the majority of our investments are in short-term debt securities. The primary objective of our investment activities is to
preserve principal while at the same time maximizing the income we receive without significantly increasing risk. To minimize risk, we
maintain our portfolio of cash, cash equivalents and short term and restricted investments in a variety of interest-bearing instruments
including U.S. government and agency securities, high-grade U.S. corporate bonds, municipal bonds, mortgage-backed securities,
commercial paper and money market funds. Due to the nature of our short-term and restricted investments, we believe that we are not
subject to any material market risk exposure. We do not have any foreign currency or other derivative financial instruments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Financial Instruments and for Hedging Activities, or SFAS 133, which provides a comprehensive and consistent standard for the
recognition and measurement of derivatives and hedging activities. SFAS 133 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000 and
will not have an impact on our results of operations or financial condition when adopted as we hold no derivative financial instruments and do
not currently engage in hedging activities.

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, or SAB 101, Revenue Recognition,
which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial statements filed with the SEC. SAB 101
outlines the basic criteria that must be met to recognize revenue and provides guidance for disclosures related to revenue recognition policies.
The adoption of SAB 101 did not have a material effect on our financial position or results of operation.
In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 44, or FIN No. 44, "Accounting for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation," an interpretation of the Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25, or APB 25. Among other things, this
interpretation clarifies the definition of "employee" for purposes of applying APB 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," the criteria
for determining whether a plan qualifies as a noncompensatory plan, and the accounting for an exchange of stock compensation awards in a
business combination. This interpretation became effective July 1, 2000, but certain conclusions in this interpretation cover specific events
that occur after either December 15, 1998 or January 12, 2000. The adoption of FIN No. 44 did not have a material impact on the Company's
financial position or results of operations.
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Business
Overview
We discover and develop monoclonal antibody-based drugs to treat cancer and related diseases. We have four monoclonal antibody-based
technologies: monoclonal antibodies; monoclonal antibodies chemically linked to cell-killing drugs, or monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates;
single proteins containing monoclonal antibody and toxin components, or single-chain immunotoxins; and antibody-directed enzyme prodrug
therapy, or ADEPT. Our technologies enable us to increase the potency and efficacy of monoclonal antibodies that have specificity for cancer
or related diseases but are not potent enough on their own. Using our expertise in cancer and monoclonal antibody technologies, we have
constructed a diverse portfolio of drug candidates targeted to many types of human cancer. Our four technologies provide us with the means
to discover and develop monoclonal antibody-based drug candidates internally as well as to partner our technology with other companies also
developing monoclonal antibodies.

We are testing our two most advanced drug candidates, SGN-15 and SGN-10, in patients with breast, colon, prostate or other solid tumor
cancers. SGN-15 is a monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate that binds to cancer cells and kills them by delivering the drug doxorubicin inside
the cell. We are currently testing SGN-15 in three phase II clinical trials in combination with the chemotherapy drug Taxotere. SGN-10 is a
single-chain immunotoxin that binds to cancer cells and kills them by delivering a protein toxin inside the cell. We are testing SGN-10 in two
phase I clinical trials, one as a single agent and the other in combination with Taxotere. Aventis is co-funding two of the SGN-15 clinical trials
and one SGN-10 clinical trial.
We also have five drug candidates in preclinical development for the treatment of patients with solid tumors, melanoma or blood-cell cancers,
commonly known as hematologic malignancies, including multiple myeloma and lymphomas. SGN-14 is our humanized monoclonal
antibody targeted to the receptor identified as CD40, which we have licensed to Genentech for the development of therapies to treat patients
with blood-cell cancers, commonly known as hematologic malignancies, or other types of cancer. SGN-30 is our monoclonal antibody
targeted to the receptor identified as CD30, which we are developing for treatment of patients with hematologic malignancies and other types
of disease. We are developing SGN-17/19, which utilizes our ADEPT technology, for treatment of patients with melanoma. We are
developing two additional drug candidates that utilize our novel monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate technology, specifically our stable linkers
and our proprietary, high-potency cell-killing drugs.

Monoclonal Antibodies as Therapeutics
Numerous monoclonal antibodies have been approved for treatment of autoimmune disease, cancer and infectious disease, and represent
an important area of novel therapeutic product development. Antibodies are protective proteins released by the immune system's B cells, a
type of white blood cell, in response to the presence of a foreign substance in the body, such as a virus. B cells produce millions of different
kinds of antibodies with slightly different shapes that enable them to bind to and thereby affect different targets. Antibodies of identical
molecular structure that bind to the same target are called monoclonal antibodies. Typically, mice have been used to produce monoclonal
antibodies to a wide variety of molecular targets, including targets to which the human body does not normally produce antibodies. In
particular, many mouse monoclonal antibodies have been developed as potential therapeutics to neutralize viruses, destroy cancer cells or
inhibit immune function.

Although mouse monoclonal antibodies are relatively easy to generate, they have significant drawbacks as therapeutics. Mouse monoclonal
antibodies have a relatively short half-life in human patients, requiring them to be administered frequently. Moreover, mouse monoclonal
antibodies are not adapted to work effectively with the human immune system and therefore often have limited ability to destroy the target,
such as cancer cells. Most importantly, when injected into human patients, a mouse monoclonal antibody is usually recognized by the
body's immune system as being foreign. The immune system therefore responds
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by rapidly neutralizing the mouse monoclonal antibody and rendering it ineffective for further therapy. These problems have largely prevented
mouse monoclonal antibodies from becoming therapeutics.
Recognizing the limitations of mouse monoclonal antibodies, researchers have developed a number of approaches to make them appear
more human-like to a patient's immune system. For example, improved forms of mouse monoclonal antibodies, referred to as "chimeric"
and "humanized" antibodies, are genetically engineered and assembled from portions of mouse and human antibody fragments. Chimeric
antibodies contain approximately 35% mouse sequences and humanized antibodies contain approximately 15% mouse sequences.
Additionally, monoclonal antibodies have also been prepared in fully human form. These technologies have enabled scientists to develop
antibody products that can be administered to patients repeatedly over time, or on a chronic basis, with reduced adverse responses by the
human immune system. Similarly, advances in monoclonal antibody production technologies, such as high productivity fermentation and
transgenic plants and animals, have enabled manufacturers to produce monoclonal antibody-based products more cost-effectively. Because of
these advances, a large number of monoclonal antibodies are currently undergoing clinical and preclinical investigation. According to a
survey conducted by the Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America, 72 out of 369, or 20% of all biotechnology medicines in
clinical trials in 1999 were antibodies. The FDA has approved nine therapeutic antibodies, seven of them in the last three years, with total
sales in 1999 in excess of $1.4 billion worldwide.

Monoclonal Antibodies for Cancer Therapy
Cancer is the second leading cause of death in the United States, resulting in over 550,000 deaths annually. The National Cancer Institute
reports that more than 8 million people in the United States have cancer and they estimate that one in three Americans will develop cancer in
their lifetimes. Approximately 1.2 million new cases of cancer were diagnosed in 2000 in the United States. Although there are many
commercially available products to treat various forms of cancer, most are not curative. Even small improvements in therapies represent
precious time for patients dying from cancer, and for many patients, there are no meaningful therapies available.

Monoclonal antibodies have been tested for many years as cancer therapeutics. However, while some monoclonal antibodies have
significant antitumor activity as single agents, many are not potent enough on their own. Based on this limitation, much research has been
done and two additional approaches to using monoclonal antibodies as cancer therapies have emerged. First, it has been found that when
monoclonal antibodies are administered in combination with chemotherapy, the antitumor activity is greater than when either therapy is
administered alone. Second, monoclonal antibodies that are linked to cell-killing payloads such as drugs or toxins can more effectively kill
cancer cells than monoclonal antibodies alone.

Generally speaking, there are four basic methods for using monoclonal antibodies as cancer therapeutics. Each of the approaches described
below capitalizes on a monoclonal antibody's ability to precisely target selected molecules that are displayed in high density on the surface of

cancer cells:

•

Blocking Cell Activity —monoclonal antibodies can be produced that bind to specific molecules on the cell surface known as receptors
to prevent undesirable cell responses, such as proliferation of cancer cells;

•

Activating Cell Activity —monoclonal antibodies can be produced to bind to specific cell surface receptors in order to activate a desired
cellular response which may include induction of cell death;
•

Delivering Therapeutic Agents —monoclonal antibodies can be used to deliver cell-killing payloads, such as drugs, radioactive
isotopes and toxins, specifically to cancer cells and tissues while minimizing effects on normal cells; and
•

Delivering Enzymes —monoclonal antibodies can be used to deliver enzymes to the surface of cancer cells that are able to convert
nontoxic forms of anti-cancer drugs, or prodrugs, into cell-killing drugs within tumor tissue.
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Approved Monoclonal Antibody Cancer Therapeutics
At the end of 1997, the first monoclonal antibody for cancer therapy, Rituxan, was approved for the treatment of patients with relapsed or
refractory, low-grade non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. Rituxan is genetically engineered as a chimeric monoclonal antibody that binds to the CD20
receptor and is jointly marketed in North America by Genentech and IDEC Pharmaceuticals. Worldwide sales of Rituxan were $279 million
in 1999 and $444 million in 2000. Rituxan is also being evaluated for treatment in combination with chemotherapy.

Late in 1998, Herceptin, the second monoclonal antibody for cancer therapy, was approved. Usable in approximately 25-30% of patients with
breast cancer, Herceptin, engineered as a humanized monoclonal antibody and marketed by Genentech, binds to the HER2 receptor.
Although Herceptin is active as a single agent, it is more effective in combination with chemotherapy agents such as Taxol where responses
are considerably better than could be obtained with either agent alone. Worldwide sales of Herceptin were $188 million in 1999 and
$276 million in 2000.

Early in 2000, the antibody-drug conjugate Mylotarg, the third monoclonal antibody for cancer therapy, was approved for the treatment of
relapsed acute myeloid leukemia. Unlike Rituxan and Herceptin that directly attack and kill cancer cells, Mylotarg binds to cell surface
receptor identified as CD33 on cancer cells and delivers a drug payload that enters into and kills the cells. Mylotarg is marketed by the WyethAyerst division of American Home Products.
Our Monoclonal Antibody Technologies
We focus on developing monoclonal antibody-based therapeutics for the treatment of patients with cancer. Four distinct but related
technologies form our core business and provide for the discovery and development of an array of unique monoclonal antibody-based anticancer therapeutics. Most monoclonal antibodies have the ability to bind to distinct molecules found on the surface of cells, making them
desirable as drugs to treat cancer. However, most monoclonal antibodies are not potent enough as single agents to effectively treat cancer.
Our technologies enable us to increase the potency, and the efficacy, of monoclonal antibodies with specificity for cancer or related diseases
that are not potent enough on their own. These four technologies are:

•

monoclonal antibodies;
•

monoclonal antibodies chemically linked to cell-killing drugs, or monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates;
•

single proteins containing monoclonal antibody and toxin components, or single-chain immunotoxins; and
•
antibody-directed enzyme prodrug therapy, or ADEPT.
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Monoclonal Antibodies. Monoclonal antibodies are generally made in mouse form. Our monoclonal antibodies have been genetically
modified to reduce or remove their non-human sequences thereby lowering immune response and extending the potential for chronic use in
therapy. These monoclonal antibodies can be effective in treating both hematologic malignancies and solid tumors on their own or in
combination with chemotherapy. They have lower toxicity than chemotherapy and allow for multiple doses or cycles of therapy. We have
several monoclonal antibody candidates in development for treating patients suffering from hematologic malignancies, including SGN-14
targeted to the CD40 receptor and SGN-30 targeted to the CD30 receptor, both of which are currently in preclinical development.
Monoclonal Antibody-Drug Conjugates. Monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates are composed of monoclonal antibodies that are linked to
potent cell-killing drugs. We generally select monoclonal antibodies that bind to receptors that cause the conjugates to enter cells, or
internalize. The environment inside the cell causes the cell-killing drug to be released from the monoclonal antibody, allowing it to have the
desired cell killing effect. Until released in the cell, the cell-killing drug is inactive, thereby sparing normal cells. In evaluating candidates for
our monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate program, we look for chimeric, humanized or human monoclonal antibodies that bind strongly to
and enter cancer cells and not most normal cells. An important component of these monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates are the linkers that
hold and then release the drugs from the monoclonal antibodies. We have a variety of stable linkers and highly potent cell-killing drugs that
can be used with our own, as well as other companies' monoclonal antibodies. Our lead monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate, SGN-15, uses
our linker technology to attach the cell-killing drug doxorubicin to the BR96 monoclonal antibody. The BR96 monoclonal antibody binds to a
carbohydrate that is found in high density on many different cancer cells including breast, lung, colon, prostate, and ovarian. SGN-15 is
currently in three phase II clinical trials in combination with Taxotere to treat patients with breast, colon or prostate cancer.

Single-Chain Immunotoxins. Our single-chain immunotoxins are comprised of the receptor binding portions of monoclonal antibodies that
internalize, combined with toxin components and genetically assembled into single proteins that kill cells by blocking protein production.
These single-chain immunotoxins are specific for solid tumors and hematologic malignancies. In addition, we have a novel ribosomeinactivating protein, Bryodin 1, that is only toxic upon entry to the inside of cells. SGN-10, our leading single-chain immunotoxin, is
comprised of BR96 and a protein toxin called Pseudomonas exotoxin A. SGN-10 is being evaluated in two phase I clinical trials in patients
with breast, lung, colon, prostate, or ovarian cancers.
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Antibody-Directed Enzyme Prodrug Therapy , or ADEPT. ADEPT represents a novel approach to minimize drug exposure to normal
tissues by using a monoclonal antibody fused to an enzyme. This approach involves the combination of two non-toxic agents to achieve
potent antitumor activity while sparing normal tissue. With ADEPT technology, we select monoclonal antibodies that do not internalize but
remain bound to the cell surface, distinguishing this technology from our monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate or single-chain immunotoxin
technologies. In the first step, a protein containing a monoclonal antibody and enzyme is administered that accumulates on solid tumor
masses. This protein converts subsequently administered inactive forms of anti-cancer drugs into potent cell-killing drugs that can penetrate
into tumor masses and induce antitumor responses. These effects are significantly greater than those achievable by systemic cell-killing drug
administration due to the high drug concentrations that may be achieved within the tumor mass, thereby sparing normal tissue from
chemotherapeutic damage. Our lead drug candidate, SGN-17/19, is in development for patients with metastatic melanoma. SGN-17/19 is
composed of two agents, SGN-17, a protein containing antibody and enzyme components and SGN-19, a prodrug form of the active
compound melphalan. We are conducting ongoing research focused on identifying human enzymes that can activate existing or novel forms
of anti-cancer drugs.

Our four technologies provide us with the ability to develop monoclonal antibody-based drug candidates that show antitumor activity alone
and direct drugs or toxins to the inside of tumor cells while minimizing the effects on normal tissue. In addition, our technologies allow us to
deliver enzymes to tumor cell surfaces that can activate non-toxic forms of inactive anti-cancer drugs into active drugs. These technologies
allow us to rapidly convert a variety of our own monoclonal antibodies, as well as monoclonal antibodies from third parties, into drug
candidates.

Our Strategy
Our objective is to use our expertise in monoclonal antibodies and our novel technologies to develop our product pipeline and discover new
product candidates for the treatment of cancer and related diseases. Our strategy includes initiatives to:
• Continue to Identify and Develop Novel Monoclonal Antibodies. In the post-genomic world, thousands of potential new targets are being
discovered. Monoclonal antibodies that bind to these targets can be generated rapidly. We believe that monoclonal antibodies will be one of the
primary areas for therapeutic development for the foreseeable future, particularly as genomic research identifies new disease targets. We
have focused on the research and development of monoclonal antibodies since our inception and have successfully identified and obtained
patent rights for several novel monoclonal antibodies with potential therapeutic applications. We are collaborating with Medarex to produce
novel fully human monoclonal antibodies to certain breast cancer and melanoma targets. We will continue to apply our expertise in
monoclonal antibodies to identify novel monoclonal antibodies that bind to these new targets.
• Use Our Technologies to Increase Potency of Monoclonal Antibody Therapeutics. Monoclonal antibodies make excellent delivery
vehicles since they bind specifically to cell surface targets. Our expertise and intellectual property rights can be used to make these highly
specific monoclonal antibodies into drug candidates by improving the potency and efficacy of monoclonal antibody-based therapeutics through
our monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates and antibody-directed enzyme prodrug therapy, or ADEPT, programs. We are also actively
developing additional technologies in these programs for which we plan to file patent applications. Our technology provides us with an
opportunity to develop our own product candidates, but also enables us to add significant value to monoclonal antibodies and targets owned
by other companies.
• Develop a Broad Portfolio of Products. We are developing multiple products for many potential indications simultaneously, thereby
increasing our opportunities to identify successful drugs. Our drug candidates utilize multiple mechanisms of action and target a variety of
different receptors expressed in several types of cancer cells.
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• Acquire Attractive Drug Candidates. In addition to our own development efforts, we will continue to identify products and technologies to
in-license. We believe that we are well positioned to continue to attract in-licensing and acquisition candidates as a result of our demonstrated
expertise in monoclonal antibodies. We have successfully in-licensed lead monoclonal antibodies from academic groups as well as from
other companies. While we expect that many new product candidates will arise from our internal research programs, we will continue to seek
in-licensing opportunities to build our product candidate pipeline.
• Establish Strategic Collaborations. We intend to enter into corporate collaborations at various stages in the research and development
process. We may seek a corporate collaborator prior to initiating phase II clinical trials or may choose to partner some products at a later stage
in order to increase our potential downstream participation in product sales. We believe our collaboration strategy provides us with distinct
advantages, including:

•

it builds on our fundamental strength in discovery and development of innovative monoclonal antibody-based products and
technologies;
•

it capitalizes on our corporate partners' strengths in product development, manufacturing and commercialization;
•

it enables us to develop a greater number of lead agents and programs than otherwise would be possible; and
•

it reduces our financing requirements.
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Our Clinical and Preclinical Development Programs
We are developing monoclonal antibody-based therapeutics for the treatment of cancer patients. Our research is focused on identifying and
characterizing monoclonal antibodies that bind to tumors. Our lead monoclonal antibodies are genetically modified to cause minimal adverse
immune system responses. To augment the anti-tumor function of monoclonal antibodies, we link drugs, toxins or enzymes to monoclonal
antibodies using our proprietary technologies. After testing our drug candidates in tumor cell culture systems, they are tested in appropriate
animal models of human tumors and then clinically in cancer patients.
We currently have two product candidates in clinical development, SGN-15 in phase II trials and SGN-10 in phase I trials, and five product
candidates in preclinical development, SGN-14, SGN-30, SGN 17/19, novel BR96 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate and novel SGN-30
monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate. We are collaborating with Genentech for the development and commercialization of SGN-14. We are
also actively engaged in research and discovery of new monoclonal antibodies, targets, linker systems, high-potency drugs and enzymes
that can be incorporated into our development portfolio.

The following table summarizes the status of our product candidates currently in clinical trials:

Product Candidate

Technology

Disease/Indication

Development Stage

Specifics

SGN-15

Monoclonal antibody-drug
conjugate

Breast

Phase II

Colon

Phase II

Prostate

Phase II

Lung

Phase II planned

Ovarian

Phase II planned

Breast, lung, colon,
pancreas, prostate and
ovarian
Breast, lung, colon,
pancreas, prostate and
ovarian

Phase I

In combination
Taxotere
In combination
Taxotere
In combination
Taxotere
In combination
Taxotere
In combination
Taxotere
Single agent

Single-chain immunotoxin

SGN-10

Phase I

Key Relationships

with

Co-funded by Aventis*

with

Co-funded by Aventis*

with

—

with

—

with

—

In combination with
Taxotere

—
Co-funded by Aventis*

*

Aventis, the manufacturer of Taxotere, is co-funding the clinical trials but has no rights to SGN-15 or SGN-10.

In addition, we have the following product candidates currently in preclinical and discovery stages:

Development
Stage

Target(s)

Key Relationships

Hematologic malignancies and
other types of cancer

Preclinical

CD40

Monoclonal antibody

Hematologic malignancies

Preclinical

CD30

SGN 17/19
Novel BR96

ADEPT
Monoclonal antibody-drug
conjugate

Melanoma
Carcinomas

Preclinical
Discovery

p97

Novel SGN-30

Monoclonal antibody-drug
conjugate

Hematologic malignancies

Discovery

CD30

Genentech
development and
commercialization
collaboration
ICOS manufacturing
agreement
—
Technology agreements
with Applied Molecular
Evolution and
Genzyme Transgenics
—

Product Candidate

Technology

Disease/Indication

SGN-14

Monoclonal antibody

SGN-30

Lewisy ,
Lewisy /Lewisx
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Our Product Candidates

SGN-15
SGN-15 is our monoclonal antibody-based drug candidate for treating breast, colon, prostate, lung and ovarian cancers. SGN-15 is a
monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate composed of a monoclonal antibody called BR96, genetically modified as a chimeric antibody and

chemically linked to the cell-killing drug doxorubicin. BR96 binds to a Lewis y-related carbohydrate molecule that is expressed at high levels
on many cancer cells, including those of the breast, lung, pancreas, ovary and prostate and on some normal cells in the gastrointestinal tract.
SGN-15 works by binding to and entering the cell and then releasing its payload of doxorubicin inside the cell. This release is caused by an
acidic environment inside the cell that does not exist outside the cell. Normally, doxorubicin is injected into the body and allowed to circulate
throughout the body thereby affecting both cancer and normal tissues. In contrast, our method of targeted drug delivery to the inside of a cell
allows for relative sparing of normal tissues from the adverse effects of doxorubicin.

Development Status and Clinical Data. SGN-15 has been tested as a single agent in three phase I trials and two phase II trials. Based on
data from these initial phase I and phase II trials that included 153 patients, SGN-15, as a single agent, localized to human tumors and has
antitumor activity. However, the infrequency of this antitumor activity did not support further development as a single agent. Rather, our
strategy with SGN-15 is to utilize it in combination with a chemotherapeutic agent.
In September 1999, we initiated a phase I/II trial to study SGN-15 in combination with Taxotere in patients with breast or colon cancer. The
rationale for the trial is based on the outstanding antitumor activity of the taxane family of cell-killing drugs, their unique mechanism of action
compared to SGN-15, pre-clinical data showing enhanced anti-tumor efficacy of SGN-15 and taxanes, and their non-overlapping toxicity
profiles. In our breast cancer trial, we are enrolling patients that have already failed previous chemotherapy, which possibly may have
included taxane therapy. In our colon cancer trial, we are enrolling patients that have failed front-line therapy, or the best available approved
therapy, and have little or no alternatives for treatment. In September 2000, we completed the phase I component of the phase I/II SGN-15
trial and established a well-tolerated dose of SGN-15 in combination with Taxotere. We safely treated 16 patients and antitumor responses
were observed. We initiated separate phase II trials in breast and colon cancer in October 2000 with 14 patients enrolled in the trial as of
December 31, 2000. This trial is presently accruing patients at the University of Alabama, Birmingham Cancer Center, Georgetown
University Medical Center in Washington, D.C., and the Georgia Cancer Specialists in Atlanta, Georgia. We plan to accrue a total of 30
patients in our phase II colon cancer trial and 45 patients in our phase II breast cancer trial. In order to achieve rapid marketing approval, our
phase III development strategy is focused on designing trials for second-line therapy, or those therapies that are available after the front-line

therapies have failed.

We recently initiated a third phase II trial in patients with hormone-refractory prostate cancer in combination with Taxotere, a commonly used
chemotherapy for this disease. We have observed a synergistic antitumor effect in testing with SGN-15 and taxanes in preclinical prostate
cancer models. Patients entering the trial will be placed into two groups of 100 patients each, those treated with the combination of SGN-15
and Taxotere and those treated with Taxotere alone. We plan to include as many as 15 sites in the U.S., with the Arizona Cancer Center
being the lead site. The primary endpoints for the trial are a decrease in tumor size, or an objective antitumor response, a measurement of
prostate serum antigen and a quality of life assessment. In phase III, we plan to compare SGN-15 and Taxotere to the standard of care for
hormone refractory prostate cancer.

In 2001, we plan to initiate two additional phase II trials using the combination of SGN-15 and Taxotere. In the first trial, we plan to enroll
patients with non-small cell lung cancer, which represents approximately 80% of all lung cancers. Response rates from approved front-line
therapies in these patients are modest and no therapy is curative. In this trial, we plan to treat approximately 40 patients with the combination
of SGN-15 and Taxotere and compare the data to approximately 20 patients that are treated with Taxotere alone. Taxotere is commonly used
as a second-line therapy for lung cancer with a response rate of less than
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10 percent. Our second trial is focused on patients with ovarian cancer. Taxotere is one of several cell-killing drugs used as part of front-line
and second-line therapeutic strategies for treating ovarian cancer. We plan to test the combination of SGN-15 and Taxotere in second-line
treatment and in newly diagnosed patients, who have the most advanced stage of ovarian cancer.

SGN-10
SGN-10 is our single-chain immunotoxin in development for treating breast, colon, lung, pancreatic, ovarian and prostate cancers. Although
therapies exist for all of these diseases, no curative treatment exists when the disease is in an advanced stage. SGN-10 is engineered to
redirect the potent cell killing activity of a protein toxin called Pseudomonas exotoxin A from its normal target to cancer cells by genetically
deleting its natural binding ability and replacing it with the binding capability of our cancer-targeted BR96 monoclonal antibody. BR96 binds to

a Lewisy-related carbohydrate molecule that is expressed at high levels on many cancer cells, including those of the breast, lung, colon,
pancreas, ovary and prostate and on some normal cells in the gastrointestinal tract.

Development Status and Clinical Data. We are currently conducting a single-agent phase I trial in patients with advanced stage solid
tumors. The trial is being conducted at the University of Alabama at Birmingham, the Fox Chase Cancer Center in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, and the University of Chicago Cancer Center. As of December 31, 2000, a total of 52 patients have been enrolled in the trial.
Our development strategy for SGN-10 as a single-agent is to identify appropriate disease targets and conduct disease specific phase II trials.
Since we have observed that the majority of patients receiving SGN-10 develop an immune response three weeks after treatment has
begun, thus limiting the number of effective doses they can receive, we are investigating strategies to limit the adverse immune response
towards SGN-10. These include pre-treating patients with agents that suppress the immune system prior to treating with SGN-10. We plan to
test those agents that may prevent a specific immune response without inducing global immune suppression.

In July 2000, we initiated a second phase I trial of SGN-10 in combination with Taxotere to determine the optimal combination dose in
patients with advanced stage solid tumors. Our strategy for this trial is to identify a safe combination dose of SGN-10 and Taxotere to utilize in
phase II and other advanced trials. Currently, our trials are being conducted at Georgetown University Medical School in Washington, D.C.,
with other sites to be added at a later time.

Our Preclinical Development Program
We have two separate stages of preclinical development; the first stage involves extensive testing of drug candidates and the second stage
involves preparation for clinical development. The initial preclinical stage is focused on the production and testing of drug candidates that we
have identified in discovery. We generate material for preclinical testing using our small-scale production and purification capabilities. We then
subject our drug candidates to a series of experimental tests that include tumor cell culture, antitumor efficacy in animal models of human
cancer and safety trials in animals. Based on our knowledge of the mechanism of drug action and the interactions between drugs, we can
test whether two drugs work well together or whether they inhibit the activity of each other. We are able to measure whether two drugs can
synergize, or if their combined effect is greater than the sum of their individual effects. We can then compare new drug candidates versus
existing therapies in animal models of many different cancer types, including solid tumors, melanomas and hematologic malignancies.
From the collective information gathered from these preclinical trials, we can determine the effectiveness and safety of each drug candidate in
animal models prior to considering trials in humans.

Our second preclinical development stage is focused on preparing drug candidates for clinical trials, including scale-up production for clinicalgrade material and eventual commercialization. Our approach is to develop procedures for large-scale manufacturing and quality control of
drug candidates prior to outsourcing
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or partnering. These standards are compiled in a technology transfer package provided to the selected contract FDA Good Manufacturing
Practice manufacturer or corporate partner.

SGN-14 and Related Products

We are collaborating with Genentech to develop a family of anti-cancer agents that target CD40. CD40 is a cell surface receptor that is
expressed on a variety of hematologic malignancies such as multiple myeloma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma and leukemias, certain solid
tumors, most notably non-small cell lung, ovarian and bladder cancer, and Kaposi's sarcoma. Our lead anti-CD40 agent is humanized
monoclonal antibody SGN-14. Three single-chain immunotoxins, SGN-11, 12 and 18, and an antibody-drug conjugate, SGN-20, are also
included in our alliance with Genentech.

SGN-30 and Novel SGN-30 Drug Conjugate
We are developing SGN-30, a monoclonal antibody that targets CD30, for the treatment of hematologic malignancies. CD30 is a cell surface
receptor expressed on a variety of hematologic malignancies including Hodgkin's disease, certain leukemias and lymphomas, and in certain
immunologic disease indications. We have or are generating chimeric and humanized forms of SGN-30. SGN-30 induces direct anti-cancer
activity as a monoclonal antibody. Preclinical trials show that SGN-30 has potent antitumor activity in animal models of human hematologic
disease. We are also evaluating high potency monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate forms of SGN-30 in preclinical models. The additional
potency of monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates may be useful in treating patients with the most advanced stages of these diseases. The
therapeutic utility of SGN-30 and monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate forms of SGN-30 are also being evaluated for use in treating
immunologic diseases including multiple sclerosis and lupus.

SGN 17/19
SGN 17/19 is based on our ADEPT technology and is being developed for the treatment of melanoma. ADEPT is an approach to cancer
therapy that involves the combination of two non-toxic agents to achieve potent antitumor activity. SGN-17 is a protein containing monoclonal
antibody and enzyme components that incorporates the binding site of the monoclonal antibody, L49, and a specific form of the enzyme ßlactamase. L49 is known to bind to the p97 cell surface molecule, which is non-internalizing and associated with melanoma. p97 is also
expressed on many ovarian, breast, and lung carcinomas, although at a lower level. The prodrug, SGN-19, is a form of the
chemotherapeutic drug melphalan that has been inactivated through the addition of a chemical group that can be removed by the enzyme ßlactamase. When SGN-17 is injected systemically, it accumulates on the tumor tissue and remains bound at the cell surface. Once SGN-17
has cleared from the circulation, SGN-19 is then administered systemically. SGN-19 is then converted to melphalan in the tumor tissue by
the enzyme ß-lactamase bound to the surface of cancer cells, resulting in localized release of melphalan.

Novel BR96 Monoclonal Antibody Drug Conjugate
In preclinical tests, we have demonstrated enhanced efficacy and lower dose requirements for BR96 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates by
improving the linker chemistry, which connects cell-killing drugs to monoclonal antibodies, and by using proprietary or patented drugs that
are more potent than doxorubicin. Thus, as part of our monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate program, we are working to identify second
generation, high potency BR96 monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates that have superior characteristics to that of SGN-15. Through a
collaboration with Applied Molecular Evolution, we have also identified mutations in the antibody binding site that result in increased binding
affinity and an increase in the number of tumors that are recognized. These mutations have been engineered into a humanized version of the
antibody. We are collaborating with Genzyme Transgenics, Inc., to produce monoclonal antibodies in the milk of goats. We believe that large
quantities of the recombinant protein could be produced at a reasonable cost using this approach.
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Our Discovery Programs
We have discovery research programs directed towards identifying and developing new monoclonal antibody-based products and
technologies to treat cancer. Our discovery programs are currently focused on identifying novel targets, monoclonal antibodies, monoclonal
antibody-drug conjugates, monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate technologies and antibody-directed enzyme prodrug therapies.

New Targets and Monoclonal Antibodies
New Targets. We utilize a variety of genomic tools and biologic assays to identify novel human targets for which we can generate specific
new monoclonal antibodies. In the post-genomic era in which vast amounts of DNA sequence information is available, the opportunity to
identify novel target genes is more accessible than ever before. We focus on genes that are highly expressed in cancer and virally-infected
tissue to identify molecules that are located on the surface of cancer cells that may serve as targets for monoclonal antibodies. This may be in
the form of monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates as well as single proteins containing monoclonal antibody and enzyme components that
can provide for selective anti-cancer prodrug activation within the tumor. In addition to internal discovery efforts, we have an active in-licensing
program focused on novel cancer targets to which we generate new monoclonal antibodies.
New Monoclonal Antibodies. We are collaborating with Medarex to use certain breast cancer and melanoma targets to generate novel fully
human monoclonal antibodies. These monoclonal antibodies may represent product candidates on their own or may be suited to kill cancer
cells by utilizing our technologies such as monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates. We have also established a process whereby in-licensed
monoclonal antibodies can be developed into drug candidates. For example, we in-licensed SGN-14 and SGN-30 as
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mouse monoclonal antibodies, and then genetically modified these monoclonal antibodies to be used alone and/or with our payload
technologies. SGN-14 and SGN-30 have been or are in the process of being genetically modified in chimeric and humanized forms. At
present, we are evaluating additional opportunities with academic groups and other companies to in-license mouse and genetically modified
monoclonal antibodies in chimeric, humanized, or fully human forms.

Additionally, we have monoclonal antibodies that bind to cancer cells and are being evaluated as therapeutic agents. These include the
monoclonal antibody BR110 which binds strongly to carcinomas of the lung, colon, breast, and ovary. BR110 binds to the GA-733-1
molecule, a related family member to the target of Panorex, which has shown efficacy in patients with colon carcinoma. Panorex is currently
marketed in Germany, and is in phase III trials sponsored by Glaxo in the U.S. BR110 has the ability to internalize cell-killing drug payloads
into tumor cells and can be utilized with our monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate technology. We are also using the high-affinity forms of the

BR96 monoclonal antibody that react with the Lewis y-related and Lewis x-related molecules that are expressed on most solid tumor types.
Specifically, both new BR96 monoclonal antibodies in humanized form and the chimeric form of BR96 are being linked to high potency cellkilling drugs to form monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates. We have also identified monoclonal antibodies that bind to ovarian cancer cells
and are in early stages of evaluation.

Monoclonal Antibody-Drug Conjugate Program
We are engaged in the discovery and development of novel, high potency monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates. The key elements for
preparing highly effective drug conjugates are monoclonal antibody specificity, drug potency and linker technology.

Monoclonal Antibody-Specificity. We use monoclonal antibodies that strongly bind to cancer cells while minimally binding to normal
tissues. For monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates, we use monoclonal antibodies that enter the cell after binding to its surface.
Drug Potency. We have identified two different cell-killing drug types with unique mechanisms of action that are each approximately 1000fold more potent than doxorubicin, the cell-killing drug component of SGN-15. One of these is a class of drug known as minor groove binders
that bind to DNA and inhibit DNA replication, thereby killing cells. Our minor groove binders can be synthesized and conjugated to
monoclonal antibodies. This class of cell-killing drug is not subject to pathways found in tumors that make them resistant to
chemotherapeutic drugs. We are presently focused on the design and testing of potent minor groove binders that we believe will provide us
with a proprietary position in this area. The monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates formed from minor groove binders are highly active at
clinically relevant doses.
Our second drug type is known as an anti-mitotic agent since it functions by inhibiting tumor cell division. Auristatin E, a highly potent,
synthetic derivative of the natural product Dolostatin 10, has been found to have antitumor activity against human melanoma and lung
carcinomas implanted in mice. The chemical structure of Auristatin E contains a chemical group making it available for conjugation with
monoclonal antibodies. Due to its properties and our ability to synthesize it, we believe Auristatin E represents a promising candidate for
targeted delivery to cancer cells and may also be useful by itself as an antitumor or chemotherapy agent.
Linker Technology. We have obtained rights to a series of proprietary, highly stable, peptide-based linkers with issued worldwide patents.
Many of these peptide-based linkers are cleaved by specific enzymes called proteases that function inside cells. Importantly, once cleaved, the
linkers are self-degrading so that the released drug is chemically unmodified and has full potency. Monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates
using our linkers have been found to be highly effective antitumor agents with long-term stability in human plasma. We have developed
several other linker technologies through internal research efforts. Our new linkers include those that allow drugs to be released when they
enter the acidic environment within tumor cells, and by several different enzymes within cells. Currently, linkers are produced separately
from the cell-
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killing drug and monoclonal antibody components of monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates. To simplify production, we have developed
linkers that are incorporated directly into the cell-killing drug component.

Antibody-Directed Enzyme Prodrug Therapy; ADEPT
ADEPT is an approach to cancer therapy that involves the combination of two non-cell-killing agents to achieve potent antitumor activity. First,
we administer a single protein containing monoclonal antibody and enzyme components that can localize within solid tumor masses. These
proteins remain bound to cell surface molecules, and activate subsequently administered inactive anti-cancer drug derivatives. Upon
activation, potent drugs are released that can penetrate into tumor masses and induce antitumor responses. The effects are significantly
greater than those achievable by systemic cancer drug administration due to the high drug concentrations reached inside the tumor.
We have identified several enzyme and prodrug combinations that lead to high levels of antitumor activity at well tolerated doses. These
include recombinant proteins containing monoclonal antibody and enzyme components that activate prodrug forms of existing drugs,
including melphalan, mitomycin C, paclitaxel and doxorubicin. We have an ongoing effort to develop human enzymes for prodrug activation,
and have identified enzymes capable of activating the clinically approved drug CPT-11, which is used for the treatment of advanced colon
cancer.

Single-Chain Immunotoxins
We have prepared a variety of single-chain immunotoxins targeted to molecules expressed on the surface of cancer cells. We have obtained
rights to Bryodin 1, a patented ribosome-inactivating protein that is a preferred component compared to toxins currently used in the
construction of single-chain immunotoxins. Bryodin 1 is especially useful due to its potency to kill once inside cells and its lack of toxicity to

animals.
Corporate Collaborations
Part of our strategy is to establish corporate collaborations with pharmaceutical, biopharmaceutical and diagnostic companies. We plan to
collaborate with others, both for the development and commercialization of our own drug candidates and for the potential improvement of
collaborators' monoclonal antibodies using our technologies. We focus our efforts on partnering our technologies at various stages in the
research and development process. We target collaborators that have the expertise and capability to develop, manufacture, obtain regulatory
approval for and commercialize our monoclonal antibody-based products. In our corporate collaborations, we seek to cover our research and
deve1opment expenses through research funding, milestone payments and option, technology or license fees. We also seek to retain
significant downstream participation in product sales through either profit-sharing or product royalties paid on annual net sales.

Genentech
In June 1999, we licensed our CD40 agents, including SGN-14, SGN-18 and SGN-20, on an exclusive basis to Genentech and granted
Genentech an option under specific circumstances to license SGN-11 and SGN-12. SGN-14 is currently in preclinical development for the
treatment of patients with hematologic malignancies or other types of cancer. Our agreement with Genentech includes joint oversight of
development. However, costs and tasks may not be assigned to us without the approval of our representative on the joint oversight
committee. We do not anticipate that these costs or tasks will be assigned to us in the future. The business terms of this agreement include
potential royalties on net sales as well as other payments of up to $45.0 million, including $41.0 million in potential milestone payments on

the first product developed. The agreement also provides for milestone payments of up to $20.0 million and future royalties on net sales of
each additional product incorporating our technology. Genentech's obligation to pay us royalties under this agreement terminates on a
country-by-country and product-by-product basis upon the later of a specified number of years after the first commercial sale in each country or
the last to expire of

38
the licensed patents in each country. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination by Genentech at any time upon 90 days notice or by
either party if the other party enters bankruptcy or breaches its material obligations thereunder.

We believe that partnering with Genentech will optimize time to market by utilizing their existing development, manufacturing capabilities,
marketing and sales force. As part of this agreement, we sold Genentech 680,272 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock in
December 1999 and will sell 166,667 registered shares of common stock to Genentech directly in this offering at the initial public offering
price.

Bristol-Myers Squibb
We obtained the rights to some of our technologies and drug candidates through a license agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb, portions of
which are exclusive. Through this license, we secured rights to Bristol- Myers' monoclonal antibody-based cancer targeting program, which
includes rights to 24 different patents, eight monoclonal antibodies, chemical linkers, a ribosome-inactivating protein and enabling
technologies. Our license encompasses four technologies: genetically modified monoclonal antibodies, monoclonal antibody-drug
conjugates, single-chain immunotoxins and antibody-directed enzyme prodrug therapies. Under this license agreement, we received FDA
Good Manufacturing Practices produced and vialed material for two different monoclonal antibody-based therapeutic agents, SGN-15 and
SGN-10, which have entered clinical trials. Under the terms of the license agreement, we are required to pay royalties on net sales of future
products incorporating the licensed technology. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates on a product-by-product and
country-by-country basis upon the later of ten years after the first commercial sale in each country or the last to expire of the licensed patents
in each country. The last of the licensed issued patents will expire in 2018, although our obligation to pay royalties to Bristol-Myers may
continue for a longer period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from pending patent applications or other subsequently
issued patents. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either of the parties breaches its material obligations thereunder.
A portion of the technology we have licensed from Bristol-Myers is derived through sublicenses of technology from the following third parties:

Enzon. We have sublicensed rights to single-chain antigen binding molecules from Enzon, Inc. This technology is used in SGN-10. We
have semi-exclusive rights to the Enzon technology, subject to the rights of several existing Enzon licensees, as well as our obligation to
make biannual payments to maintain this semi-exclusivity through 2003. Under the terms of our sublicense with Enzon, we are also
required to make milestone payments and pay royalties on net sales of products incorporating technology sublicensed from Enzon. Our
obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates on a country-by-country basis upon the last to expire of the licensed patents in
each country. The last of the licensed issued patents will expire in 2007, although our obligation to pay royalties to Enzon may continue for a
longer period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from pending patent applications or other subsequently issued patents. The
agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either party breaches its material obligations thereunder.
Applied Molecular Evolution. We have sublicensed exclusive rights to certain humanized forms of the BR96 monoclonal antibody from
Applied Molecular Evolution. Under the terms of our sublicense, we are required to make milestone payments and royalties on net sales of
products incorporating technology sublicensed from Applied Molecular Evolution. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement
terminates on a product-by-product and country-by-country basis upon the later of ten years after the first commercial sale in each country or
the last to expire of the licensed patents in each country. The last of the licensed issued patents will expire in 2015, although our obligation to
pay royalties to Applied Molecular Evolution may continue for a longer period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from
pending patent applications or other subsequently issued patents. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either of the parties
breaches its material obligations thereunder.
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Medarex. We are collaborating with Medarex to produce fully human monoclonal antibodies to certain breast cancer and melanoma antigen
targets identified by us over the next three years in order to develop and commercialize monoclonal antibody-based products. The agreement
calls for joint development of at least half of our breast cancer antigens and a specific melanoma antigen. There will be a joint steering
committee composed of members of both companies to make development decisions concerning jointly developed monoclonal antibody
product candidates. Under the agreement, all development, manufacturing, and clinical costs of jointly developed products and all net profits
or net losses will be shared by us and Medarex. Each of us has the right to opt out of the joint development of any antigen target and receive
instead certain milestone and royalty payments on net sales. The agreement terminates upon the later of one year after completion of the
research activities thereunder or the date on which neither party is exploiting any jointly developed products. The agreement is also subject to
termination if either party enters bankruptcy or breaches its material obligations thereunder. As part of this agreement, we will sell to Medarex
$2.0 million of our common stock at the initial public offering price in a private placement concurrent with this offering.

We have also licensed and intend to continue to license product and marketing rights from selected commercial, research and academic
institutions in order to capitalize on the capabilities and technology bases of these entities, including the following:

ICOS Corporation. In October 2000, we entered into a license agreement with ICOS Corporation for non-exclusive rights to use the CHEF
expression system, a DNA sequence we may use to manufacture SGN-30. Under the terms of our agreement with ICOS, we are required

to make milestone payments and pay royalties on net sales of products manufactured using the CHEF expression system. Our obligation to
pay royalties under this agreement terminates upon the expiration of the last to expire of the licensed patents, which will occur in 2017,
although our obligation to pay royalties to ICOS may continue for a longer period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from
pending patent applications or other subsequently issued patents. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either party enters
bankruptcy or defaults in the performance of any material provision thereunder.

Mabtech AB. In June 1998, we obtained exclusive worldwide rights to a monoclonal antibody that recognizes CD40 from Mabtech AB.
Under the terms of our license with Mabtech, we are required to make a milestone payment and pay royalties on net sales of products
incorporating technology licensed from Mabtech. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates ten years after the first
commercial sale of a product incorporating Mabtech's technology. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either party breaches
its material obligations thereunder.
University of Miami. In September 1999, we entered into an exclusive license agreement with the University of Miami, Florida, covering an
anti-CD30 monoclonal antibody that is the basis for two new drug candidates targeted to hematologic malignancies and immune system
disease. Under the terms of our license with the University of Miami, we made an up-front payment and are required to make milestone
payments, annual maintenance fee payments and pay royalties on net sales of products incorporating technology licensed from the
University of Miami. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates ten years after the first commercial sale of a product
incorporating the University of Miami's technology. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination by the University of Miami if we enter
bankruptcy or by either party if the other party breaches its material obligations thereunder.
Arizona State University. In February 2000, we entered into a license agreement with the Arizona State University covering the cell-killing
agent Auristatin E, a synthetic derivative of the natural product Dolastatin 10. We intend to use Auristatin E as a component of new
monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates. We are also testing Auristatin E in preclinical models to determine whether it qualifies for single-agent
clinical development. Under the terms of our license with Arizona State University, we are required to make milestone payments, annual
maintenance fee payments and pay royalties on net sales of products incorporating technology sublicensed from Arizona State University.
Our obligation to pay royalties under
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this agreement terminates on a country-by-country basis upon the last to expire of the licensed patents in each country, which will occur in
2014, although our obligation to pay royalties to Arizona State University may continue for a longer period of time to the extent that we use
technology derived from pending patent applications or other subsequently issued patents. The agreement is also subject to earlier
termination if either of the parties enters bankruptcy or breaches its material obligations thereunder.

Aventis Pharmaceuticals. Aventis co-funds three different clinical trials using two of our drug candidates, SGN-15 and SGN-10. In the
SGN-15 program, which is being tested in combination with the widely used chemotherapeutic agent Taxotere, Aventis is funding 50% of the
clinical trial costs directly to the clinical sites and providing Taxotere drug product. The SGN-15 trials that are part of the Aventis co-funding
agreement include a phase I/II trial in breast or colon cancer patients for which the phase I was completed in September 2000 and two
separate phase II trials in breast and colon cancers initiated in October 2000. As part of the SGN-10 program, Aventis is co-funding a phase I
trial in patients including those with breast, colon, lung, prostate, ovarian or pancreatic cancer. In this setting, SGN-10 is being tested in
combination with Taxotere to determine the appropriate dose and disease indication for later stage clinical testing. Aventis is funding 50% of
the clinical trial costs directly to the clinical centers and providing Taxotere drug product. Aventis does not obtain any rights or options to SGN15 or SGN-10 under the co-funding arrangement.

Genzyme Transgenics. We have agreed to collaborate with Genzyme Transgenics to determine clinical and commercial potential for a form
of the humanized monoclonal antibody hBR96-2. Under the terms of the agreement, Genzyme Transgenics will supply us with hBR96-2
and we will perform experiments to evaluate the material. If development is continued by us, we will use good faith efforts to negotiate with
Genzyme Transgenics to enter into a supplier agreement for manufacturing of hBR96-2.
Creative Biomolecules. In September 1998, we entered into a non-exclusive license agreement with Creative Biomolecules, Inc. for the
rights to use single-chain antibody technology. We use this technology in SGN-10. Under the terms of this license agreement, we are
required to make milestone payments, annual maintenance fee payments and pay royalties on net sales of products incorporating
technology licensed from Creative Biomolecules. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates on a country-by-country
basis upon the last to expire of the licensed patents in each country, which will occur in 2015, although our obligation to pay royalties to
Creative Biomolecules may continue for a longer period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from pending patent applications
or other subsequently issued patents, subject to extension if we use technology licensed under subsequently issued divisional patents. The
agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either party breaches its material obligations thereunder.
Brookhaven Science Associates, LLC. In January 1998, we entered into a non-exclusive license agreement with Brookhaven Science
Associates, operator of Brookhaven National Laboratory, to secure the rights to use the T7 promoter, a DNA sequence we use to
manufacture SGN-10. Under the terms of this agreement, we are required to make annual maintenance fee payments and pay royalties on
net sales of products manufactured using the T7 promoter. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates upon the last to
expire of the licensed patents, which will occur in 2017, although our obligation to pay royalties to Brookhaven may continue for a longer
period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from pending patent applications or other subsequently issued patents. The
agreement is also subject to earlier termination by Brookhaven if we breach our material obligations thereunder and by us at any time upon
six months notice.
Public Health Service. In September 1998, we entered into a non-exclusive license agreement with the Public Health Service for the rights

to use truncated forms of a protein toxin called Pseudomonas exotoxin, one of which is a component of SGN-10. Under the terms of this
agreement, we are required to make milestone payments and pay royalties on net sales of products incorporating technology licensed from
the Public Health Service. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates upon the last to
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expire of the licensed patents, which will occur in 2016, although our obligation to pay royalties to the Public Health Service may continue for
a longer period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from pending patent applications or other subsequently issued patents.
The agreement is also subject to earlier termination by the Public Health Service if we enter bankruptcy or by either party if the other party
breaches its material obligations thereunder.

Genentech; Cabilly License. In January 2000, we entered into a co-exclusive license with Genentech for rights to use chimeric monoclonal
antibodies targeted to Lewis y. We are currently using this technology in our product candidate SGN-15. We are performing collaborative
research in lieu of an up-front cash payment, and are required to make milestone payments and must make minimum annual royalty
payments beginning in 2003 under the terms of the license agreement. Our obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates on a
country-by-country basis upon the last to expire of the licensed patents in each country, which will occur in 2006, although our obligation to
pay royalties to Genentech may continue for a longer period of time to the extent that we use technology derived from pending patent
applications or other subsequently issued patents. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either party enters bankruptcy.
Genentech may terminate the agreement if we breach our material obligations thereunder and we may terminate the agreement at any time.

During the next 24 months, we expect to pay up to an aggregate of approximately $600,000 in annual maintenance fees and milestone
payments under all of our license and collaboration agreements combined. We do not expect to pay any royalties on net sales of products
under any of these agreements for at least the next several years. The milestone payments could be substantially higher and the royalties
could be payable earlier if we file or receive regulatory approvals or achieve commercial sales sooner than expected.

Patents and Proprietary Technology
Our success will depend in large part on our and our licensors' abilities to:
•
obtain patent and other proprietary protection for antigens, antibodies, adjuvants and delivery systems;

•
defend patents once obtained;

•
preserve trade secrets; and

•
operate without infringing the patents and proprietary rights of third parties.

We intend to seek appropriate patent protection for our proprietary technologies by filing patent applications in the United States and certain
other countries. As of December 31, 2000, we owned or had licensed 24 issued United States patents, and 7 pending United States patent
applications.

These patents and patent applications are directed to certain monoclonal antibodies, drug candidates, linker technologies, monoclonal
antibody-drug conjugate technologies, immunotoxin technologies, monoclonal antibody-enzyme and prodrug technologies and enabling
technologies. Although we believe our patents and patent applications provide a competitive advantage, the patent positions of pharmaceutical
and biopharmaceutical companies are highly uncertain and involve complex legal and factual questions. For example, there is substantial
uncertainty regarding the potential for patent protection for gene fragments or genes without known function or correlation with specific
diseases. We and our corporate collaborators or licensors may not be able to develop patentable products or processes. We and our corporate
collaborators or licensors may not be able to obtain patents from pending patent applications. Even if patent claims are allowed, the claims
may not issue, or in the event of issuance, may not be sufficient to protect the technology owned by or licensed to us or our corporate
collaborators.

Our or our corporate collaborators' current patents, or patents that issue on pending applications, may be challenged, invalidated, infringed or
circumvented, and the rights granted in those patents may not provide proprietary protection or competitive advantages to us.
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Patent applications in the United States have been maintained in secrecy until patents issue and patent applications in certain foreign
countries generally are not published until many months or years after they are filed. Scientific and patent publication often occurs long after
the date of the scientific developments disclosed in those publications. Accordingly, we cannot be certain that we or one of our corporate
collaborators was the first to invent the subject matter covered by any patent application or that we or one of our corporate collaborators were
the first to file a patent application for any such invention.

Our commercial success depends significantly on our ability to operate without infringing patents and proprietary rights of third parties. A
number of pharmaceutical companies, biotechnology companies, universities and research institutions may have filed patent applications or

number of pharmaceutical companies, biotechnology companies, universities and research institutions may have filed patent applications or
may have been granted patents that cover technologies similar to the technologies owned, optioned by or licensed to us or our corporate
collaborators. We cannot determine with certainty whether patents or patent applications of other parties may materially affect us or our
corporate collaborators' ability to make, use or sell any products.
The existence of third-party patent applications and patents could significantly reduce the coverage of the patents owned, optioned by or
licensed to us or our corporate collaborators and limit our or our corporate collaborators' ability to obtain meaningful patent protection. If
patents containing competitive or conflicting claims are issued to third parties, we or our corporate collaborators may be enjoined from
pursuing research, development or commercialization of products or may be required to obtain licenses, if available, to these patents or to
develop or obtain alternative technology. In addition, other parties may duplicate, design around or independently develop similar or
alternative technologies to ours, our corporate collaborators or our licensors. If another party controls patents or patent applications covering
our products, we and our corporate collaborators may not be able to obtain the rights we need to those patents or patent applications in order to
commercialize our products.

Litigation may be necessary to enforce patents issued or licensed to us or our corporate collaborators or to determine the scope or validity of
another party's proprietary rights. United States Patent Office interference proceedings may be necessary if we and another party both claim
to have invented the same subject matter.
We could incur substantial costs if:

•

litigation is required to defend against patent suits brought by third parties;
•

we participate in patent suits brought against or initiated by our corporate collaborators;
•

we initiate similar suits; or
•

we participate in an interference proceeding.

In addition, we or our corporate collaborators may not prevail in any of these actions or proceedings. An adverse outcome in litigation or an
interference or other proceeding in a court or patent office could:
•
subject us to significant liabilities;

•

require disputed rights to be licensed from other parties; or
•

require us or our corporate collaborators to cease using certain technology.
We also rely on trade secrets and proprietary know-how, especially when we do not believe that patent protection is appropriate or can be
obtained. Our policy is to require each of our employees, consultants and advisors to execute a confidentiality and inventions agreement
before beginning their employment, consulting or advisory relationship with us. These agreements generally provide that the individual
must keep confidential and not disclose to other parties any confidential information developed or learned by the individual during the course
of their relationship with us except in limited circumstances. These agreements also generally provide that we shall own all inventions
conceived by the individual in the course of rendering services to us.
We work with others in our research, development and commercialization activities. Disputes may arise about inventorship and
corresponding rights in know-how and inventions resulting from the joint creation or
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use of intellectual property by us and our corporate partners, licensors, scientific collaborators and consultants. In addition, other parties may
circumvent any proprietary protection we do have. As a result, we may not be able to maintain our proprietary position.

Government Regulation
Our products are subject to extensive regulation by numerous governmental authorities, principally the FDA, as well as numerous state and
foreign agencies. We need to obtain clearance of our potential products by the FDA before we can begin marketing the products in the United
States. Similar approvals are also required in other countries.
Product development and approval within this regulatory framework is uncertain, can take a number of years and requires the expenditure of
substantial resources. The nature and extent of the governmental premarket review process for our potential products will vary, depending on
the regulatory categorization of particular products. We believe that the FDA and comparable regulatory bodies in other countries will regulate
monoclonal antibody products and related pharmaceutical products as biologics. The necessary steps before a new biological product may be
marketed in the United States ordinarily include:

•

preclinical laboratory and animal tests;
•

submission to the FDA of an investigational new drug application which must become effective before clinical trials may commence;
•

completion of adequate and well controlled human clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the proposed drug for its intended
use;
•
the submission to the FDA of a biologics license application; and

•

FDA review and approval of the biologics license application prior to any commercial sale or shipment of the product.
Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluation of the product, as well as animal trials to assess the potential safety and efficacy of the product.
Preclinical tests must be conducted by laboratories that comply with FDA regulations regarding good laboratory practices. The results of
preclinical tests, together with manufacturing information, analytical data and proposed clinical trial protocols, are submitted to the FDA as
part of an investigational new drug application, which must become effective before the commencement of clinical trials. The investigational
new drug application will automatically become effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA unless the FDA indicates prior to the end of such
30-day period that the proposed protocol raises concerns that must be resolved to the satisfaction of the FDA before the trials may proceed. In
such case, we cannot assure you that this resolution will be achieved in a timely fashion, if at all. In addition, the FDA may impose a clinical
hold on an ongoing clinical trial if, for example, safety concerns arise, in which case the trial cannot recommence without FDA authorization
under terms sanctioned by the agency.

Clinical trials involve the administration of the product to healthy volunteers or to patients under the supervision of a qualified principal
investigator. Clinical trials are conducted in accordance with good clinical practices under protocols that detail the objectives of the trial,
inclusion and exclusion criteria, the parameters to be used to monitor safety and the efficacy criteria to be evaluated. Each protocol must be
submitted to the FDA as part of the investigational new drug application. Further, each clinical trial must be reviewed and approved by an
independent institutional review board at the institutions at which the trial will be conducted. The institutional review board will consider,
among other things, ethical factors and the safety of human subjects. The institutional review board may require changes in a protocol, and
there can be no assurance that the submission of an investigational new drug application will enable a trial to be initiated or completed.
Clinical trials generally are conducted in three sequential phases that may overlap. In phase I, the initial introduction of the product into
healthy human subjects or patients, the product is tested to assess safety,
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metabolism, pharmacokinetics and pharmacological actions associated with increasing doses. Phase II usually involves trials in a limited
patient population to:
•

determine the efficacy of the potential product for specific, targeted indications;
•

determine dosage tolerance and optimum dosage; and
•

further identify possible adverse reactions and safety risks.
If a compound is found to be effective and to have an acceptable safety profile in phase II evaluations, phase III trials are undertaken to

evaluate further clinical efficacy in comparison to standard therapies, within a broader patient population, generally, at geographically
dispersed clinical sites. Phase I, phase II or phase III testing may not be completed successfully within any specific period of time, if at all,
with respect to any of our potential products. Furthermore, the FDA or an institutional review board or we may suspend a clinical trial at any
time for various reasons, including a finding that the subjects or patients are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.
The results of pharmaceutical development, preclinical trials and clinical trials are submitted to the FDA in the form of a biologics license
application for approval of the manufacture, marketing and commercial shipment of the biological product. The testing and approval process is
likely to require substantial time, effort and resources, and there can be no assurance that any approval will be granted on a timely basis, if at
all. The FDA may deny a biologics license application if applicable regulatory criteria are not satisfied, require additional testing or
information, or require postmarket testing and surveillance to monitor the safety or efficacy of the product. In addition, after marketing
approval is granted, the FDA may require post-marketing clinical trials, which typically entail extensive patient monitoring and may result in
restricted marketing of an approved product for an extended period of time.
Please see the table in "Our Clinical and Preclinical Programs" on page 32 for a complete description of the status of our FDA applications
for our product candidates.

Competition

The biotechnology and biopharmaceutical industries are characterized by rapidly advancing technologies, intense competition and a strong
emphasis on proprietary products. Many third parties compete with us in developing therapies to treat a variety of cancers including
hematologic malignancies, carcinomas and melanoma. They include:

•

pharmaceutical companies,
•
biotechnology companies;

•
academic institutions; and

•
other research organizations.

Many of these competitors have significantly greater financial resources and expertise in research and development, manufacturing,
preclinical testing, conducting clinical trials, obtaining regulatory approval and marketing than us. In addition, many of these competitors
have become more active in seeking patent protection and licensing arrangements in anticipation of collecting royalties for use of technology
that they have developed. Smaller or early-stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through collaborative
arrangements with large and established companies. These third parties compete with us in recruiting and retaining qualified scientific and
management personnel, as well as in acquiring technologies complementary to our programs.
We are aware of specific companies that have competitive technology. These companies include the Wyeth-Ayerst division of American
Home Products and Immunogen, both of which have monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate technology. Wyeth-Ayerst markets the
monoclonal antibody drug conjugate Mylotarg, for which they received approval in early 2000, for patients with acute myelogenous leukemia.
While we are not
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developing lead agents for that exact disease, Wyeth may apply their technology to other monoclonal antibodies that may compete with our
lead agents. Immunogen has certain monoclonal antibody-drug conjugates in development that compete with our lead agents in clinical trials
and in preclinical development. Immunogen also has established partnerships with outside companies to allow them to utilize Immunogen's
monoclonal antibody-drug conjugate technology. These outside companies may compete with our lead agents in development. We believe
that our technology in the monoclonal-antibody drug conjugate area, specifically our stable linkers and highly potent, synthetically accessible
cell-killing drugs, compete favorably with the technologies that are in use at Wyeth and Immunogen.
We expect that competition among products approved for sale will be based, among other things, on efficacy, reliability, product safety, price
and patent position. Our ability to compete effectively and develop products that can be manufactured cost-effectively and marketed
successfully will depend on our ability to:

•
advance our technology platforms;

•

license additional technology;
•

maintain a proprietary position in our technologies and products;
•
obtain required government and other public and private approvals on a timely basis;

•
attract and retain key personnel; and

•
enter into corporate partnerships.

Manufacturing
We received pharmaceutical-grade SGN-15 and SGN-10 from Bristol-Myers Squibb for our previous and ongoing clinical trials. In addition,
we have contracted with ICOS Corporation to develop cell lines expressing the SGN-30 product candidate and to manufacture preclinical and
clinical supplies of SGN-30 that we believe will be sufficient through phase II clinical trials. We believe that our contract manufacturing
relationship with ICOS, together with the existing product we received from Bristol-Myers Squibb, will be sufficient to accommodate clinical
trials through phase II of our most advanced product candidates. However, we may need to obtain additional manufacturing arrangements, if

available on commercially reasonable terms, or increase our own manufacturing capability to meet our future needs, both of which would
require significant capital investment.

Facilities
Our headquarters are in Bothell, Washington, where we lease approximately 15,000 square feet of laboratory, discovery, research and
development and general administration space, with monthly payments of $44,764. The lease for this facility expires in December 2001. We
recently entered into a lease for 63,900 square feet of space, with monthly payments of $161,028 for the first 12 months, to be developed
into mixed laboratory and office space in Bothell, Washington. We expect to complete a build-out of this space in the summer of 2001 and
intend to relocate our headquarters to this new facility when it is available.

Legal Proceedings
We are not a party to any material legal proceedings.

Employees
As of December 31, 2000, we had 46 employees, 15 of whom hold degrees at the doctoral level. Of these employees, 35 are engaged in or
directly support research, development and clinical activities and 11 are in administration and business development positions. Each of our
employees has signed a confidentiality agreement and none are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We have never experienced
employment-related work stoppages and consider our employee relations to be good.
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Management
Executive Officers and Other Key Employees, Directors and Scientific Advisors
The names and ages of our executive officers and other key employees, directors and scientific advisors as of December 31, 2000 are as
follows:

Name
Age

Executive Officers and Other Key Employees and
Directors
H. Perry Fell
Clay B. Siegall
Tim J. Carroll
Amy P. Sing
Peter S. Senter
Alan F. Wahl
Charles P. Waite, Jr. (1)(2)
Michael F. Powell (2)
Karl Erik Hellström (1)
Louis C. Bock (1)(2)
Marc E. Lippman
Scientific Advisors
Albert F. LoBuglio
Oliver Press

Position(s)

43
40
49
42
49
45
45
46
66
35
56

Chief Executive Officer and Director
President, Chief Scientific Officer and Director
Chief Financial Officer
Senior Director, Medical Affairs
Senior Director, Chemistry
Senior Director, Biochemistry
Director, Chairman of the Board
Director
Director
Director
Director and Scientific Advisor

62
48

Scientific Advisor
Scientific Advisor

(1)

Member of Compensation Committee
(2)

Member of Audit Committee

H. Perry Fell co-founded Seattle Genetics. Dr. Fell has served as our Chief Executive Officer and as one of our directors since our inception.
Dr. Fell also served as our President from inception to June 2000. Prior to co-founding Seattle Genetics, Dr. Fell was with the Bristol-Myers
Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute as a Research Scientist from June 1986 to April 1989 and Director of the Molecular Immunology
Department from April 1989 to December 1997. Dr. Fell received an M.B.A. from the University of Washington, a Ph.D. in Immunology
from the University of Texas Health Science Center at Dallas, Southwestern Medical School and a B.S. in Microbiology from the University
of Texas at Arlington. Dr. Fell has authored 30 scientific papers and holds six patents.
Clay B. Siegall co-founded Seattle Genetics. Dr. Siegall has served as our Chief Scientific Officer and as one of our directors since our
inception and as our President since June 2000. Dr. Siegall also served as our Executive Vice President from inception to June 2000. Prior to
co-founding Seattle Genetics, Dr. Siegall was with the Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute as a Senior Research

co-founding Seattle Genetics, Dr. Siegall was with the Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute as a Senior Research
Investigator from February 1991 to January 1995 and as a Principal Scientist from January 1995 to December 1997. From February 1988 to
February 1991, Dr. Siegall was a Staff Fellow/Biotechnology Fellow at the National Cancer Institute, National Institutes of Health. Dr. Siegall
received a Ph.D. in Genetics from George Washington University and a B.S. in Zoology from the University of Maryland. Dr. Siegall has
authored 63 scientific papers and holds seven patents. He serves on the Editorial Board of three scientific journals and is a member of the
Scientific Board of Counselors for the Cancer Treatment Research Foundation. Dr. Siegall was given the Pierce Award in 1995 for his efforts
in the field of targeted toxins.

Tim J. Carroll has served as our Chief Financial Officer since July 2000. Prior to joining us, Mr. Carroll was Chief Financial Officer of ARIS
Corporation, a technology firm, from August 1999 to July 2000 and with its predecessor company, fine.com, an internet development
company, from June 1998 to August 1999.
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Mr. Carroll served as Vice President of Strategic Planning and Investor Relations for Multiple Zones International, a direct marketer of
technology products, from April 1996 to May 1998. Mr. Carroll was Vice President of Financial Reporting and Investor Relations for the
Hillhaven Corporation, now Vencor, Inc., a health care service firm, from January 1989 to April 1996. Mr. Carroll was a Senior Auditor with
Deloitte & Touche, a national accounting firm, from December 1975 to January 1980. Mr. Carroll received his B.S. in Accounting from the
University of Washington and is a certified public accountant.

Amy P. Sing has served as our Senior Director for Medical Affairs since June 2000. Previously, Dr. Sing served as our Medical Director from
January 1999 to June 2000. Prior to joining Seattle Genetics, Dr. Sing served as Medical Director of Medical Affairs and Clinical Research at
CellPro, Inc., a biotechnology firm, from May 1997 to December 1998. Before joining CellPro, she was a faculty member at the University
of Washington and the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center in Pediatrics and Pediatric Hematology/Oncology from July 1994 to
February 1997. Dr. Sing trained in Pediatric Hematology/Oncology at the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center and the University of
Washington from July 1990 to June 1994, and in Pediatrics at the Children's Hospital in Boston, MA from July 1987 to June 1990. She
received an M.D. from Stanford University School of Medicine and a B.A. in Anthropology from Amherst College.

Peter S. Senter has served as our Senior Director of Chemistry since November 2000. Previously, Dr. Senter served as our Director of
Chemistry from August 1998 to November 2000. Dr. Senter was Director of Chemistry at Cytokine Networks, Inc., a biotechnology
company, from November 1997 to August 1998 and Senior Principal Scientist at Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute
from July 1985 to November 1997. Dr. Senter received a Ph.D. in Chemistry from the University of Illinois and an A.B. in Biochemistry from
the University of California. He is the Associate Editor of Bioconjugate Chemistry and serves on the editorial board of four scientific journals.
Dr. Senter has authorized 65 scientific publications and holds twelve patents.

Alan F. Wahl has served as our Senior Director of Biochemistry since November 2000. Previously, he served as our Director of Biochemistry
from May 1998 to November 2000. Dr. Wahl was a Principal Scientist with Zymogenetics, Inc., a biotechnology company, from
December 1997 to May 1998 and a Principal Scientist Group Leader at the Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute from
July 1989 to November 1997. He received his post-doctoral training at Stanford University School of Medicine from January 1986 to
June 1989. Dr. Wahl received a Ph.D. and M.S. in Biochemistry from the University of Rochester and a B.S. in Biology from the Rochester
Institute of Technology.
Charles P. Waite, Jr. has served as a director and our Chairman of the Board since April 1998. Mr. Waite has been a General Partner of
OVP Venture Partners, formerly Olympic Venture Partners, since 1987. In addition to Seattle Genetics, Mr. Waite serves on the boards of
Rosetta Inpharmatics, a bioinformatics software company; SignalSoft Corporation, a wireless location services provider; Verity, a software
solution provider; Watchguard Technologies, an internet security service provider; and Loudeye Technologies, an internet media
infrastructure service provider. Mr. Waite received his A.B. in History from Kenyon College and his M.B.A. from Harvard University.
Michael F. Powell has served as one of our directors since April 1998. Dr. Powell has served as Managing Director of Sofinnova Venture
Partners IV since 1998. Previously, he was a Group Leader at Genentech from December 1990 to June 1997 and Director of Product
Development for Cytel Corporation, a biotechnology firm, from September 1987 to December 1990. He is an Adjunct Professor at the
University of Kansas and an editorial board member of several pharmaceutical journals. Dr. Powell received his Ph.D. in Chemistry from the
University of Toronto in 1981 and was a postdoctoral fellow in Bio-Organic Chemistry at the University of California. In 1993, Dr. Powell was
honored as a Fellow by the American Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists. Dr. Powell is the author of nearly 100 publications and books,
including a treatise on vaccine design.
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Karl Erik Hellström has served as one of our directors since April 1998. Dr. Hellström has been a principal investigator at the Pacific
Northwest Research Institute since 1998. Dr. Hellström previously served as Vice President of Oncology Drug Discovery and Vice President
of Immunotherapeutics at the Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute from October 1983 to September 1997. From
August 1975 to September 1983, he was Head of the Tumor Immunology Program at the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center after
serving as Professor of Pathology at the University of Washington Medical School starting in September 1966 and where he continues to
retain an Affiliate Professorship. Dr. Hellström received his M.D. and Ph.D. degrees in tumor biology/immunogenetics from the Karolinska
Institute in Stockholm, Sweden. He has published over 450 scientific papers and has received several awards, including the Yearly Award
from the American Cancer Society.
Louis C. Bock has served as one of our directors since January 2000. Mr. Bock is a Managing Director of BA Venture Partners VI, LLC,

which is the general partner of BAVP, LP and an affiliate of Banc of America Securities LLC. Mr. Bock joined BA Venture Partners in
September 1997 from Gilead Sciences, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company, where he held positions in research, project management,
business development and sales from September 1989 to September 1997. Prior to Gilead, Mr. Bock was a research associate at
Genentech from November 1987 to September 1989. He received his B.S. in Biology from California State University, Chico and an M.B.A.
from California State University, San Francisco.

Marc E. Lippman has served as one of our directors since June 2000 and a member of our Scientific Advisory Board since June 1998.
Effective February 2001 Dr. Lippman will become the John G. Searle Professor and Chairman of the Department of Internal Medicine at the
University of Michigan School of Medicine. Presently, Dr. Lippman is the Director of the Lombardi Cancer Research Center since July 1988,
and Professor and Chairman of the Department of Oncology since July 1999 and Professor of Medicine at Georgetown University Medical
School in Washington, D.C. since July 1988. Since July 1995, he has served as Chief of the Division of Hematology-Oncology at
Georgetown University Medical School. He was previously Head of the Medical Breast Cancer Section of the Medicine Branch of the National
Cancer Institute from July 1976 to July 1988. Dr. Lippman has authored over 500 publications and one of the standard texts on breast cancer.
He serves as chair of the Scientific Advisory Board for the Perseus-Soros Fund and is a director of Raven Biotechnology. Dr. Lippman
received his B.A., magna cum laude, from Cornell in 1964 and his M.D. from Yale where he was elected to Alpha Omega Alpha in 1968.
Scientific Advisors
We have consulting arrangements with scientists who serve as our advisors. We chose our advisors for their expertise in fields that are
important to the research and development of our products. We generally compensate our scientific advisors for their services with a
combination of cash payments and stock options. We are supporting research projects in the laboratories of some of our scientific advisors
and we intend to continue to support these and similar projects. We also provide additional compensation to some of our scientific advisors for
their participation in these collaborations.

In addition to Marc E. Lippman, our scientific advisors presently include the following persons:

Albert F. LoBuglio, M.D. has served as a member of our Scientific Advisory Board since June 1998. Dr. LoBuglio, a medical oncologist, has
been the Director of the Comprehensive Cancer Center at the University of Alabama, Birmingham since 1983. From July 1990 to
June 1994 and July 1996 to June 2000, he served as a member of the Board of Scientific Councilors at the National Cancer Institute. He
also serves as a scientific advisory board member for BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; Eos Biotechnology; Abgenix, Inc.; IDEC
Pharmaceuticals, Corp.; Enzon, Inc.; Glaxo-Wellcome, Inc.; and Serologicals Corporation. Dr. LoBuglio attended Canisius College from
September 1955 to June 1962 and received his M.D. from Georgetown University School of Medicine in June 1962. He received his training
in Internal Medicine at the University of Pittsburgh from July 1962 to June 1965 and Hematology/Oncology training at the HarvardThorndike Memorial Laboratories from July 1965 to June 1967.
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Oliver Press, M.D. has served as a member of our Scientific Advisory Board since June 1998. Dr. Press is a Professor of Medicine in the
Division of Medical Oncology at the University of Washington, an Adjunct Professor in Biological Structure at the University of Washington
and a Member of the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center. He is the Acting Program Director for the High Dose Chemotherapy Service
at the University of Washington Medical Center and an Associate Director of the Medical Scientist Training Program. He has published over
120 scientific articles and currently is the principal investigator on several national protocols for treatment of B cell lymphomas and Hodgkin's
disease. Dr. Press received a B.S. in Biology from Stanford University in 1973, a Ph.D. in Biological Structure from the University of
Washington in 1977 and an M.D. from the University of Washington in 1979. Dr. Press performed an internship and residency in Internal
Medicine at Massachusetts General Hospital from June 1979 to June 1982 and served as an instructor at Harvard Medical School from
June 1979 to June 1982. Dr. Press subsequently served as the Medical Chief Resident at the University of Washington from June 1982 to
June 1983 and as an oncology fellow at the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center and the University of Washington from July 1983 to
July 1985.
Board Composition
Our bylaws currently provide for a board of directors consisting of eight members. Pursuant to the terms of a stockholders' voting agreement
that we entered with certain of our stockholders in connection with the sale of our shares of preferred stock, Messrs. Waite, Powell,
Hellström, Bock, Fell and Siegall were elected to our board of directors. This agreement will terminate by its terms upon the closing of this
offering and the terms of office of the board of directors will be divided into three classes upon the closing of this offering. As a result, a portion
of our board of directors will be elected each year. The division of the three classes, the initial directors and their respective election dates are
as follows:
•
the class 1 directors will be Messrs. Powell, Bock and Hellström, and their term will expire at the annual meeting of stockholders to be
held in 2002;

•
the class 2 directors will be Messrs. Siegall and Waite, and their term will expire at the annual meeting of the stockholders to be held
in 2003; and

•
the class 3 directors will be Messrs. Fell and Lippman, and their term will expire at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in

2004.
At each annual meeting of stockholders after the initial classification, the successors to directors whose terms are to expire will be elected to
serve from the time of election and qualification until the third annual meeting following their election. The authorized number of directors
may be changed only by resolution of the board of directors. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors
will be distributed among the three classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of one-third of the directors. This
classification of the board of directors may have the effect of delaying or preventing changes in control or management of our company.

Board Compensation
Except for reimbursement for reasonable travel expenses relating to attendance at board of directors meetings, directors are not compensated
for their services as directors. Under our 1998 stock option plan, nonemployee directors are eligible to receive stock option grants at the
discretion of the board of directors or any other administrator of the plan. In addition, following the closing of this offering, directors will be
participating in the 2000 director's stock option plan. See "Benefit Plans."

Board Committees

In April 2000, the board of directors established the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee recommends compensation
for personnel to the Board and administers our stock plans. The
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Compensation Committee currently consists of Messrs. Waite, our Chairman of the Board, Bock and Hellström.

In June 2000, the board of directors established the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews the results and scope of the audit and
other services provided by our independent auditors. The Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs. Waite, our Chairman of the Board,
Bock and Powell.
Executive Compensation
The following table provides summary information concerning the compensation received for services rendered during the fiscal years ended
December 31, 1999 and December 31, 2000 by our Chief Executive Officer and our next most highly compensated executive officers and
our next most highly compensated employee who would have been included if he or she had been an executive officer, each of whose
aggregate compensation during our last fiscal year exceeded $100,000.

Summary Compensation Table
Annual Compensation

Name and Principal Position

Long-Term Compensation

All Other

Securities
Underlying Options(#)

Year

Salary($)

Bonus($)

Other

H. Perry Fell
Chief Executive Officer

1999

155,000
200,000

25,000
40,000

—

Clay B. Siegall
President and Chief Scientific
Officer

1999

155,000
200,000

25,000
40,000

—

Tim J. Carroll(1)
Chief Financial Officer

1999

—
73,333

—
8,000

—
—

Amy P. Sing
Senior Director, Medical Affairs

1999

150,000

125,000
75,000

—

161,933

3,979
15,816

—

2000

Peter S. Senter
Senior Director, Chemistry

1999

106,925
114,383

1,248
8,691

—

75,000
45,000

—

2000

2000

2000

2000

Compensation($)

—

—

300,000

—

—

300,000

—
400,000

(1)

Mr. Carroll commenced employment with us in July 2000. Mr. Carroll's salary on an annualized basis is $160,000.

Option Grants in Fiscal 2000
The following table outlines information regarding stock options granted to our named officers in 2000. Amounts in the following table under
potential realizable value represent hypothetical gains that could be achieved for the respective options if exercised at the end of the option
term. For purposes of this analysis, the SEC mandates the use of 5% and 10% assumed annual rates of compounded stock price
appreciation and these rates do not represent an estimate or projection of our future common stock prices. The amounts under potential

—
—

realizable value represent assumed rates of appreciation in the value of our common stock from the assumed initial public offering price of
$12.00 per share. Actual gains, if any, of stock options
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exercises will depend on future performance of our common stock and overall stock market conditions. We may not achieve the amounts
reflected in the following table.

Individual Grants
Number of
Shares of
Common Stock
Underlying
Options
Granted

Name

H. Perry Fell
Clay B. Siegall
Tim J. Carroll
Amy P. Sing
Peter S. Senter

Potential Realizable Value at Assumed Annual
Rates of Stock Price Appreciation for Option Term

Percent of
Total Options
Granted
to Employees in

Exercise

2000

Price Per
Share($)

Expiration

3.00
3.00
0.29
0.29
0.29
3.00
0.29
3.00

11/2/10
11/2/10
8/31/10
2/3/10
8/31/10
11/2/10
8/31/10
11/2/10

18.4% $
18.4
24.5
1.2
1.2
2.1
*
1.8

300,000
300,000
400,000
20,000
20,000
35,000
15,000
30,000

Date

10%($)

5%($)

$

4,964,021
4,964,021
7,702,694
385,135
385,135
579,136
288,851
496,402

$

8,437,473
8,437,473
12,333,964
616,698
616,698
984,372
462,524
843,747

*
Less than one percent of total options granted to employees in 2000.
In 2000, we granted options to purchase an aggregate of 1,630,500 shares to employees and directors under our 1998 stock option plan at an
exercise price determined in good faith by our board of directors based on our board's estimate of fair value on the date of grant.

Option Values at December 31, 2000
The following table presents the number and value of securities underlying unexercised options that are held by each of our named officers
as of December 31, 2000.

Amounts shown under the column "Value of Unexercised In-the-Money Options at December 31, 2000" are based on the assumed initial
public offering price of $12.00 per share, without taking into account any taxes that may be payable in connection with the transaction,
multiplied by the number of shares underlying the option, less the exercise price payable for these shares.

Shares
Acquired
on Exercise

Name

H. Perry Fell
Clay B. Siegall
Tim S. Carroll
Amy P. Sing
Peter S. Senter

72,187

Value of Unexercised
In-the-Money Options at

December 31, 2000

December 31, 2000(2)

Value
Realized(1)

—
—
400,000
200,000

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised
Options at

$
$

Exercisable

Unexercisable

Exercisable

—
—
—
—
1,563

300,000
300,000

—
—
—
—
18,600

—
—
—
23,750
8,015

—
—
46,250

$

Unexercisable

$
$

2,700,000
2,700,000
—
—
547,525

(1)

Equal to the deemed fair market value of the purchased shares on option exercise date as determined in good faith by our board of
directors, less the exercise price paid for such shares.
(2)

Value is determined by subtracting the exercise price from the proposed initial public offering price of $12.00 for the common stock,
and multiplying by the number of shares underlying the option.
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Benefit Plans
1998 Stock Option Plan

Our 1998 stock option plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options to employees (including employee directors) and nonstatutory
stock options to employees, directors and consultants. The purposes of the 1998 stock option plan are to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentives to our employees and consultants and to promote the success of our business. Our board of
directors originally adopted and our stockholders approved the 1998 stock option plan in December 1997. The 1998 stock option plan was
amended in December 1999 by our board of directors and stockholders to increase the number of reserved shares to 2,130,000 shares. The
1998 stock option plan, as amended, reserved 2,130,000 shares. The 1998 stock option plan was further amended by the board of directors
in November 2000 to increase the number of reserved shares to a total of 4,400,000 shares and to provide for, among other things, an
automatic annual increase on the first day of each of our fiscal years beginning in 2002 and ending in 2008 equal to the lesser of:
•
1,200,000 shares;

•

4% of our outstanding common stock as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year; or
•

such lesser number as the board of directors determines.

This amendment to the 1998 stock option plan will be submitted to our stockholders for approval prior to the completion of this offering.
Unless terminated earlier by the board of directors, the 1998 stock option plan shall terminate in December 2008.
As of December 31, 2000, options to purchase 1,313,818 shares of common stock were outstanding at a weighted average exercise price of
$2.07 per share, 627,605 shares had been issued upon early exercise subject to our right to repurchase pursuant to restricted stock purchase
agreements, 249,972 shares had been issued upon exercise of outstanding vested options and 2,208,605 shares remained available for
future grant.
The 1998 stock option plan may be administered by the board of directors or a committee appointed by the board of directors. The
administrator determines the terms of options granted under the 1998 stock option plan, including the number of shares subject to the
option, exercise price, term and exercisability. In no event, however, may an employee receive awards for more than 1,000,000 shares under
the 1998 stock option plan in any fiscal year. Incentive stock options granted under the 1998 stock option plan must have an exercise price of
at least 100% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant and at least 110% of such fair market value in the case of an
optionee who holds more than 10% of the total voting power of all classes of our stock. Prior to this offering, nonstatutory stock options
granted under the 1998 stock option plan were required to have an exercise price of at least 85% of the fair market value of the common stock
on the date of grant and at least 110% of such fair market value in the case of an optionee who holds more than 10% of the total voting power
of all classes of our stock. After the date of this offering, the exercise price of nonstatutory stock options will no longer be subject to these
restrictions, although nonstatutory stock options granted to our Chief Executive Officer and our four other most highly compensated officers
will generally equal at least 100% of the grant date fair market value if we intend to have options to those individuals will qualify as
performance-based compensation under applicable tax law. Payment of the exercise price may be made in cash or such other consideration
as determined by the administrator.

The administrator determines the term of options, which may not exceed ten years or five years in the case of an incentive stock option
granted to a holder of more than 10% of the total voting power of all classes of our stock. Generally, an option granted under the 1998 stock
option plan is non-transferable other than by will or the laws of descent or distribution and may be exercised during the lifetime of the
optionee only by such optionee. However, the administrator may, in its discretion, provide for the limited transferability of
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nonstatutory stock options granted under the 1998 stock option plan under certain circumstances. The administrator determines when
options become exercisable. Options granted under the 1998 stock option plan generally must be exercised within three months after
termination of the optionee's status as an employee, director or consultant of Seattle Genetics, within six months if such termination is due
to the death of the optionee, or within twelve months if such termination is due to the disability of the optionee, but in no event later than the
expiration of the option's term. Options granted under the 1998 stock option plan generally vest over a four year period at a rate of 25% of the
total number of shares subject to the option twelve months after the date of grant with the remaining shares vesting in equal monthly
installments thereafter.
If we are acquired by another corporation in a transaction in which options outstanding under the 1998 stock option plan are not assumed or

replaced with substitute options by our acquiror, then our outstanding options shall terminate upon consummation of the acquisition.
Outstanding awards, as well as the number of shares remaining available for issuance under the plan, the automatic annual increase in
shares and the annual employee grant limitation, will adjust in the event of a stock split, stock dividend or other similar change in our capital
stock. The board of directors has the authority to amend or terminate the 1998 stock option plan provided that no action that impairs the rights
of any holder of an outstanding option may be taken without the holder's consent. In addition, we will obtain stockholder approval for any plan
amendments to the extent required by applicable law.

2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Our 2000 employee stock purchase plan was adopted by the board of directors in November 2000 and will be submitted for approval by our
stockholders prior to completion of this offering. A total of 300,000 shares of common stock has been reserved for issuance under the 2000
purchase plan, none of which have been issued as of the date of this offering. The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2000

purchase plan will be subject to an automatic annual increase on the first day of each of our fiscal years beginning in 2002 and ending in
2010 that is equal to the lesser of:
•
300,000 shares;

•

1% of our outstanding common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year;
•
or such lesser number of shares as the board of directors determines.

The 2000 purchase plan becomes effective upon the date of this offering. Unless terminated earlier by the board of directors, the 2000
purchase plan shall terminate in 2010.
The 2000 purchase plan, which is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, will be implemented by a series of
offering periods of approximately 24 months' duration, with new offering periods (other than the first offering period) commencing generally
on February 1 and August 1 of each year. Each offering period will consist of consecutive purchase periods of approximately six months'
duration. At the end of each purchase period an automatic purchase will be made for participants. The initial offering period is expected to
commence on the date of this offering and end on January 31, 2003; the initial purchase period is expected to begin on the date of this
offering and end on July 31, 2001. Each eligible employee will be granted an option on the effective date of this offering to purchase shares in
the initial offering period in an amount equal to the maximum number of shares that an individual can purchase under the terms of the 2000
purchase plan.
The 2000 purchase plan will be administered by the board of directors or by a committee appointed by the board. Our employees (including
officers and employee directors), or employees of any majority-owned subsidiary designated by the board, are eligible to participate in the
2000 purchase plan if they are employed by us or any such subsidiary for at least 20 hours per week and more than five months per year.
The 2000 purchase plan permits eligible employees to purchase common stock through payroll deductions, which in any event may not
exceed 20% of an employee's eligible cash compensation. The purchase price
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is equal to the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the common stock at the beginning of each offering period or at the end of each
purchase period. Employees may end their participation in the 2000 purchase plan at any time during an offering period, and participation
ends automatically on termination of employment.

An employee cannot be granted an option under the 2000 purchase plan if immediately after the grant such employee would own stock
and/or hold outstanding options to purchase stock equaling 5% or more of the total voting power or value of all classes of our stock or stock of
our subsidiaries, or if such option would permit an employee's rights to purchase stock under the 2000 purchase plan at a rate that exceeds
$25,000 of fair market value of such stock for each calendar year in which the option is outstanding. In addition, no employee may purchase
more than 2,000 shares of common stock under the 2000 purchase plan in any one purchase period.
If we merge or consolidate with or into another corporation or sell all or substantially all of our assets, each right to purchase stock under the

2000 purchase plan will be assumed or an equivalent right substituted by the successor corporation, However, the board of directors will
shorten any ongoing offering period so that employees' rights to purchase stock under the 2000 purchase plan are exercised prior to the
transaction in the event that the successor corporation refuses to assume each purchase right or to substitute an equivalent right.
Outstanding options will be adjusted if we effect a stock split, stock dividend or similar change in our capital structure. The board of directors
has the power to amend or terminate the 2000 purchase plan and to change or terminate an offering period as long a such action does not
adversely affect any outstanding rights to purchase stock thereunder. However, the board of directors may amend or terminate the 2000
purchase plan or an offering period even if it would adversely affect outstanding options in order to avoid our incurring adverse accounting
charges.

2000 Directors' Stock Option Plan
The 2000 directors' stock option plan was adopted by the board of directors in November 2000 and will be submitted for approval by our
stockholders prior to completion of this offering. It will become effective upon the date of this offering. A total of 400,000 shares of common
stock have been reserved for issuance under the 2000 directors' plan, all of which remain available for future grants. The directors' plan is
designed to work automatically without administration; however, to the extent administration is necessary, it will be performed by the board of
directors. To the extend they arise, it is expected that conflicts of interest will be addressed by abstention of any interested director from both
deliberations and voting regarding matters in which such director has a personal interest. Unless terminated earlier by the board of directors,
the directors' plan will terminate in 2010.

The directors' plan provides that each person who is a non-employee director on the date of this offering and who has not previously been
granted a stock option by the Company, will be granted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock on the date of
this offering. The plan further provides that each person who becomes a non-employee director after the completion of this offering will be
granted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock on the date on which such individual first becomes a
member of our board of directors. Each initial option shall vest at the rate of 25% of the total number of shares subject to such option twelve
months after the date of grant with the remaining shares vesting thereafter in equal monthly installments. Thereafter, on the dates of each
annual stockholder meeting, each non-employee director who has been a member of the board of directors for at least six months will be

annual stockholder meeting, each non-employee director who has been a member of the board of directors for at least six months will be
granted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase 5,000 shares of common stock. Each annual option shall vest at the rate of 100% of the total
number of shares subject to such option on the day before the one-year anniversary of the grant date.

All options granted under the directors' plan will have a term of 10 years and an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of
grant. If a non-employee director ceases to serve as a director for any reason other than death or disability, he or she may, but only within
90 days after the date he or she ceases
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to be a director, exercise options granted under the directors' plan. If he or she does not exercise the option within such 90-day period, the
option shall terminate. If a directors' service terminates as a result of his or her disability or death, or if a director dies within three months
following termination for any reason, the director or his or her estate will have twelve months after the date of termination or death, as
applicable, to exercise options that were vested as of the date of termination. Options granted under the directors' plan are generally nontransferable by the option holder other than by will or the laws of descent or distribution and each option is exercisable, during the lifetime of
the option holder, only by that option holder.
If we are acquired by another corporation, each option outstanding under the directors' plan will be assumed or equivalent options substituted

by our acquiror, unless our acquiror does not agree to such assumption or substitution, in which case the options will terminate upon
consummation of the transaction to the extent not previously exercised. In connection with an acquisition, each director holding options under
the directors' plan will have the right to exercise his or her options immediately before the consummation of the merger as to all shares
underlying the options. Outstanding options will be adjusted if we effect a stock split, stock dividend, or other similar change in our capital
structure. Our board of directors may amend or terminate the directors' plan as long as such action does not adversely affect any outstanding
option and we obtain stockholder approval for any amendment to the extend required by applicable law.

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification Matters
Our certificate of incorporation limits the liability of our directors to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware law. Delaware law provides
that directors of a corporation will not be personally liable for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as directors, except liability
for:
•

any breach of their duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders;
•
acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

•

unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions; or
•

any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

This limitation of liability does not apply to liabilities arising under the federal securities laws and does not affect the availability of equitable
remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that we shall indemnify our directors and executive officers and may indemnify our other
officers and employees and other agents to the fullest extent permitted by law. We believe that indemnification under our bylaws covers at
least negligence and gross negligence on the part of indemnified parties. Our bylaws also permit us to secure insurance on behalf of any
officer, director, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of his or her actions in such capacity, regardless of whether the bylaws
would permit indemnification.
We have entered into agreements to indemnify our directors and officers, in addition to indemnification provided for in our bylaws. These
agreements, among other things, provide for indemnification of our directors and officers for expenses specified in the agreements, including
attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by any such person in any action or proceeding arising out of such
person's services as our director or officer, any of our subsidiaries or any other company or enterprise to which the person provides services
at our request. We believe that these provisions and agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and officers.
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Transactions with Executive Officers,
Directors and Five Percent Stockholders
Since our incorporation in July 1997, we have engaged in certain transactions with our executive officers, directors and holders of more than
five percent of our voting securities and their respective affiliates. The following table summarizes the shares of preferred stock purchased by
our executive officers, directors and 5% stockholders and persons and entities associated with them in private placement transactions. Each
share of each series of preferred stock converts automatically upon closing of the offering into one share of common stock.

Entities Affiliated with Directors

Common Stock

Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock

Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock

—
—
—

2,000,000
2,000,000
—

850,340
680,272
2,040,816

—
—
—
1,720,000
1,720,000

1,750,000
—
—
—
—

510,204
2,721,088
2,721,088
—
—

Entities affiliated with OVP Venture Partners (1)
Entities affiliated with Sofinnova Venture Partners (2)
Entities affiliated with BAVP, LP (3)
Other 5% Stockholders

Indosuez Ventures
Cascade Investment, LLC
Vulcan Ventures, Inc
H. Perry Fell (4)
Clay B. Siegall (4)
(1)

Charles P. Waite, our Chairman of the Board, is a general partner of OVP Venture Partners.
(2)

Michael F. Powell, a director, is the Managing Director of Sofinnova Management IV, LLC, a general partner of Sofinnova Venture
Partners IV, LP.
(3)

Louis C. Bock, a director, is the Managing Director of BA Ventures VI, LLC, which is the general partner of BAVP, LP and an affiliate
of Banc of America Securities LLC.
(4)

Issued in December 1997 at $0.001 per share.
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Principal Stockholders
The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of December 31, 2000 and as adjusted
to reflect the sale of the common stock offered by this prospectus, as to:
•
each person who is known to us to own beneficially more than 5% of its common stock.

•
each of our directors and named executive officers;

•
each of the individuals listed in the "Summary Compensation Table" above; and

•

all current directors and named executive officers as a group.
Except as otherwise noted, the address of each person listed in the table is c/o Seattle Genetics, 22215 26 th Avenue SE, Suite 3000, Bothell,
WA 98021, and the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as
beneficially owned by them, subject to community property laws where applicable. The table includes all shares of common stock issuable
within 60 days of December 31, 2000 upon the exercise of options and other rights beneficially owned by the indicated stockholders on that
date. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and includes voting and
investment power with respect to shares. To our knowledge, except under applicable community property laws or as otherwise indicated, the
persons named in the table have sole voting and sole investment control with respect to all shares beneficially owned. The applicable
percentage of ownership for each stockholder is based on 21,968,149 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2000 and
29,134,816 shares of common stock outstanding after completion of this offering, together with applicable options for that stockholder.
Shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options and other rights beneficially owned are deemed outstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of the person holding these options and other rights, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the
percentage ownership of any other person.

Percentage of Shares Beneficially Owned

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Number of Shares
Beneficially Owned

Prior to this Offering

After this Offering(1)

5% Shareholders
OVP Venture Partners (2)
2420 Carillon Point
Kirkland, WA 98033
Cascade Investment, LLC (3)
2365 Carillon Point
Kirkland, WA 98033
Vulcan Ventures, Inc. (4)

2,850,340

13.0%

9.8%

2,721,088

12.4%

9.3%

2,721,088

12.4%

9.3%

2,680,272

12.2%

9.2%

2,260,204

10.3%

7.8%

2,040,816

9.3%

7.0%

110 110th Avenue, Suite 550

Bellevue, WA 98044
Sofinnova Venture Partners (5)
140 Geary Street, 10 th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108
Indosuez Ventures (6)
2180 Sand Hill Road, Suite 450
Menlo Park, CA 94025
BAVP, LP (7)
950 Tower Lane, Suite 700
Foster City, CA 94404
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Percentage of Shares Beneficially Owned

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Directors and Named Executive Officers
H. Perry Fell
Clay B. Siegall
Tim J. Carroll (8)
Amy P. Sing (9)
Peter S. Senter (10)
Charles P. Waite (2)
Louis C. Bock (7)
Karl Erik Hellström (11)
Michael F. Powell (5)
Marc E. Lippman (12)
All directors and named executive officers as a
group (11 persons) (13)

Number of Shares
Beneficially Owned

Prior to this Offering

After this Offering(1)

1,720,000
1,720,000
400,000
201,000
79,936
2,850,340
2,040,816
937,500
2,680,272
51,666

7.8%
7.8%
1.8%
*
*
13.0%
9.3%
4.3%
12.2%
*

5.9%
5.9%
1.4%
*
*
9.8%
7.0%
3.2%
9.2%
*

12,737,621

57.7%

43.7%

*
Less than one percent of the outstanding shares of common stock.
(1)

Assumes Genentech purchases 166,667 shares of our common stock, Medarex purchases 166,667 shares of our common stock
and that the underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment option.
(2)

Includes 1,900,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock and 850,340 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock held by
Olympic Venture Partners IV, LP, and 100,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock held by Olympic Venture Partners IV
Entrepreneurs Fund, LP. Charles P. Waite, one of our directors, is a general partner of each of these partnerships, shares voting and
dispositive power with respect to the shares held by each such entity and disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares in which he
has no pecuniary interest.
(3)

Includes 2,721,088 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock held by Cascade Investment, LLC, of which the beneficial owner is
William H. Gates, III.
(4)

Includes 2,721,088 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock held by Vulcan Ventures, Inc., of which the beneficial owner is
Paul G. Allen.
(5)

Includes 1,945,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock and 661,565 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock held by
Sofinnova Venture Partners IV, LP, and 55,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock and 18,707 shares of Series B

convertible preferred stock held by Sofinnova Venture Affiliates IV, LP. Michael F. Powell, one of our directors, is a Managing Director
of each of these partnerships, shares voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares held by each such entity and disclaims
beneficial ownership of such shares in which he has no pecuniary interest.
(6)

Includes 1,750,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock and 510,204 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock held by
STF III, LP, an affiliate of Indosuez Ventures. Nancy D. Burrus, a partner of Indosuez Ventures, shares voting and dispositive power
with respect to the shares held by such entity and disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares in which she has no pecuniary
interest.
(7)

Includes 2,040,816 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock held by BA Ventures Partners VI, LLC. Louis C. Bock, one of our
directors, is the Managing Director of BA Venture Partners VI, LLC, which is the general partner of BAVP, LP, shares voting and
dispositive power with respect to the shares held by such entity and disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares in which he has no
pecuniary interest. BAVP, LP is an affiliate of Banc of America Securities LLC.
(8)

Includes 400,000 shares issued upon exercise of an option held by Mr. Carroll, all of which are subject to a repurchase right that
lapses over the vesting schedule of Mr. Carroll's option.
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(9)

Includes 200,000 shares issued upon exercise of options held by Dr. Sing, 140,104 of which are subject to a repurchase right that
lapses over the vesting schedule of Dr. Sing's options.
(10)

Includes 72,187 shares issued upon exercise of options held by Dr. Senter, 30,000 of which are subject to a repurchase right that
lapses over the vesting schedule of Dr. Senter's options and 6,250 shares issuable upon exercise of options held by Dr. Senter that
are exercisable within 60 days of December 31, 2000.
(11)

Includes 37,500 shares issuable upon exercise of an immediately exercisable option held by Dr. Hellström.
(12)

Includes 37,500 shares issued upon exercise of an option held by Dr. Lippman, all of which are subject to a repurchase right that
lapses over the vesting schedule of Dr. Lippman's options and 14,166 shares issuable upon exercise of an option held by
Dr. Lippman that is exercisable within 60 days of December 31, 2000.
(13)

Includes 62,288 shares issuable upon exercise of options that are immediately exercisable or are exercisable within 60 days of
December 31, 2000.
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Description of Capital Stock
The following summary of our capital stock and some of the provisions of our certificate of incorporation and other agreements to which we
and our stockholders are parties, is not intended to be complete and is qualified by reference to our certificate of incorporation and any other
agreements included as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. See "Where You Can Find More
Information."
Common Stock

As of December 31, 2000, there were 21,968,149 shares of common stock outstanding, as adjusted to reflect the conversion of all
outstanding shares of Series A convertible preferred stock and Series B convertible preferred stock, held of record by 60 stockholders. Options
to purchase 1,313,818 shares of common stock were also outstanding. Upon the closing of this offering, there will be 29,134,816 shares of
common stock outstanding, including the 166,667 shares to be purchased directly by Genentech and the 166,667 shares to be purchased
by Medarex in a concurrent private placement, and assuming no exercise of the underwriter's overallotment option and excluding exercise of
outstanding options under our stock option plans.
The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.
Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any outstanding preferred stock, holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such
dividends as may be declared by the board of directors out of funds legally available for that purpose. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, the holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities, subject to the prior
distribution rights of any outstanding preferred stock. The common stock has no preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights.

The outstanding shares of common stock are, and the shares of common stock to be issued upon completion of this offering will be, fully
paid and non-assessable.

Preferred Stock
Upon the closing of the offering, all outstanding shares of preferred stock will be converted into 17,387,072 shares of common stock and
automatically retired. Thereafter, the board of directors will have the authority, without further action by the stockholders, to issue up to
5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, in one or more series. The board of directors will also have the authority to designate the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of each such series, including dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rights, terms
of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any series.
The issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of us without further action by the
stockholders. The issuance of preferred stock with voting and conversion rights may also adversely affect the voting power of the holders of
common stock. In certain circumstances, an issuance of preferred stock could have the effect of decreasing the market price of the common
stock. As of the closing of the offering, no shares of preferred stock will be outstanding. We currently have no plans to issue any shares of
preferred stock.

Registration Rights
The holders of 20,993,739 shares of common stock, assuming the conversion of all outstanding preferred stock upon the closing of this
offering, are entitled to certain rights with respect to the registration of such shares under the Securities Act. These rights are provided under
the terms of an agreement between us and the holders of these securities. Subject to limitations in the agreement, the holders of at least
40% of these securities then outstanding may require, on two occasions beginning six months after the date of this prospectus, that we use
our best efforts to register these securities for public resale if Form S-3 is not
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available. If we register any of our common stock either for our own account or for the account of other security holders, the holders of these
securities are entitled to include their shares of common stock in that registration, subject to the ability of the underwriters to limit the number
of shares included in the offering. The holders of these securities then outstanding may also require us, not more than twice in any twelve
month period, to register all or a portion of these securities on Form S-3 when the use of that form becomes available to us, provided, among
other limitations, that the proposed aggregate selling price, net of any underwriters' discounts or commissions, is at least $1,000,000 We will
be responsible for paying all registration expenses, and the holders selling their shares will be responsible for paying all selling expenses.

Washington and Delaware Anti-Takeover Law and Charter and Bylaw Provisions
Provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law and our charter documents could make our acquisition and the removal of incumbent
officers and directors more difficult. These provisions are expected to discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and inadequate
takeover bids and to encourage persons seeking to acquire control to negotiate with us first. We believe that the benefits of increased
protection of its potential ability to negotiate with the proponent of an unfriendly or unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure outweigh the
disadvantages of discouraging such proposals because, among other things, negotiation of such proposals could result in an improvement of
their terms.
We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of Delaware General Corporation Law. In general, the statute prohibits a publicly-held
Delaware corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" for a period of three years after the date
that the person became an interested stockholder unless, subject to exceptions, the business combination or the transaction in which the
person became an interested stockholder is approved in a prescribed manner. Generally, a "business combination" includes a merger, asset
or stock sale, or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the stockholder. Generally, an "interested stockholder" is a person who,
together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years prior, did own, 15% or more of the corporation's voting stock. These
provisions may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control without further action by our stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that stockholder action can be taken only at an annual or special meeting of stockholders and may not
be taken by written consent. Our bylaws provide that special meetings of stockholders can be called only by the board of directors, the
chairman of the board, if any, the president and holders of 50% of the votes entitled to be cast at a meeting. Moreover, the business permitted
to be conducted at any special meeting of stockholders is limited to the business brought before the meeting by the board of directors, the
chairman of the board, if any, the president or any such 50% holder. Our bylaws set forth an advance notice procedure with regard to the
nomination, other than by or at the direction of the board of directors, of candidates for election as directors and with regard to business to be
brought before a meeting of stockholders.

Furthermore, the laws of the State of Washington, where our principal executive offices are located, impose restrictions on certain
transactions between certain foreign corporations and significant stockholders. Chapter 23B.19 of the Washington Business Corporation Act
prohibits a "target corporation," with certain exceptions, from engaging in certain "significant business transactions" with a person or group of
persons who beneficially own 10% or more of the voting securities of the target corporation, or an "acquiring person," for a period of five years
after such acquisition, unless the transaction or acquisition of such shares is approved by a majority of the members of the target
corporation's board of directors prior to the time of acquisition. Such prohibited transactions include, among other things, a merger or
consolidation with, disposition of assets to, or issuance or redemption of stock to or from, the acquiring person, termination of 5% or more of
the employees of the target corporation as a result of the acquiring person's acquisition of 10% or more of the shares or allowing the acquiring
person to receive disproportionate benefit as a stockholder. After the five-year period, a significant business transaction may take place as long
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as it complies with certain fair price provisions of the statute. A target corporation includes a foreign corporation if:

•
the corporation has a class of voting stock registered pursuant to Section 12 or 15 of the Exchange Act,

•
the corporation's principal executive office is located in Washington, and

•

any of (a) more than 10% of the corporation's stockholders of record are Washington residents, (b) more than 10% of its shares are
owned of record by Washington residents, (c) 1,000 or more of its stockholders of record are Washington residents, (d) a majority of
the corporation's employees are Washington residents or more than 1,000 Washington residents are employees of the corporation, or
(e) a majority of the corporation's tangible assets are located in Washington or the corporation has more than $50.0 million of tangible
assets located in Washington.
A corporation may not opt out of this statute and, therefore, we anticipate this statute will apply to us. Depending upon whether we meet the
definition of a target corporation, Chapter 23B.19 of the Washington Business Corporation Act may have the effect of delaying, deferring or
preventing a change in control of Seattle Genetics.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is ChaseMellon Shareholder Services LLC. The Transfer Agent's address is 520 Pike
Street, Suite 1220, Seattle, WA 98101, and telephone number is (206) 674-3030.

Nasdaq National Market Listing
Our common stock has been approved for listing on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "SGEN."
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Shares Eligible for Future Sale
Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. Future sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the
public market could adversely affect prevailing market prices. Upon completion of this offering, we will have outstanding an aggregate of
29,134,816 shares of common stock. Of these shares, all of the shares sold through the underwriters in this offering will be freely tradable
without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act, unless these shares are purchased by affiliates. The 166,667 shares sold
directly to Genentech will not require further registration under the Securities Act. The remaining 21,968,149 shares of common stock held
by existing stockholders and the 166,667 shares acquired by Medarex are restricted securities. Restricted securities may be sold in the public
market only if registered or if they qualify for an exemption from registration under the Securities Act.
Our executive officers, directors and certain stockholders, including Medarex and Genentech, have agreed pursuant to lock-up agreements
that, with limited exceptions, for a period of 180 days from the date of this prospectus, they will not sell any shares of common stock without
the prior written consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. Transfers that are permitted under the lock-up agreement include transfers: of bona
fide gifts; to immediate family members or a trust for the benefit of immediate family members; or to the constituent or affiliated entities of a
corporation, limited liability company or partnership. When considering whether to release a stockholder from the lock-up agreement, J.P.
Morgan Securities Inc. will take into account many factors, including: the size and price of the proposed transaction; the daily trading volume
of our common stock; the identity of the prospective seller and such entities' relationship to us; and the current market price of our common
stock.

As a result of these lock-up agreements and the rules under the Securities Act, the restricted shares will be available for sale in the public
market, subject to certain volume and other restrictions, as follows:

Days after the
Effective Date

On Effectiveness
180 days
Periodically thereafter

Number of Shares
Eligible for Sale

0

21,968,149
166,667

Comment

Shares not locked-up and eligible for sale under Rule 144
Lock-up released; shares eligible for sale under Rules 144 and 701
Shares eligible after expiration of one year holding period

Additionally, of the 1,313,818 shares that may be issued upon the exercise of options outstanding as of December 31, 2000, approximately
shares are subject to options that are exercisable 180 days after the date of this prospectus. In addition, the 166,667 shares sold
directly to Genentech will be available for sale in the public market after the 180 day lock-up is released.

Registration Rights
On the date 180 days after the completion of this offering, the holders of 20,993,739 shares of our common stock will have rights to require
us to register their shares under the Securities Act. Upon the effectiveness of a registration statement covering these shares, the shares
would become freely tradable.

Stock Options
Immediately after this offering, we intend to file a registration statement under the Securities Act covering approximately 11,622,423 shares
of common stock under our stock option and employee stock purchase plans. We expect the registration statement to be filed and become
effective as soon as practicable after the closing of this offering. Accordingly, shares registered under such registration statement will be
available for sale in the open market after the effectiveness of the registration statement, unless they are held by persons that have signed a
lock-up agreement described in the "Underwriting" section below.
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Underwriting
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. is acting as sole book running lead manager for this offering. J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and CIBC World Markets
Corp. are acting as joint lead managers for this offering.

We and the underwriters named below have entered into an underwriting agreement covering the common stock to be offered in this offering.
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., CIBC World Markets Corp. and Banc of America Securities LLC are acting as representatives of the underwriters.
Each underwriter has agreed to purchase the number of shares of common stock set forth opposite its name in the following table.

Number of Shares

Underwriters
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
CIBC World Markets Corp.
Banc of America Securities LLC
Total

The underwriting agreement provides that if the underwriters take any of the shares presented in the table above, then they must take all of
these shares. No underwriter is obligated to take any shares allocated to a defaulting underwriter except under limited circumstances.
The underwriters are offering the shares of common stock, excluding the shares of common stock that we are offering directly to
Genentech, Inc. and Medarex, Inc., subject to the prior sale of shares, and when, as and if such shares are delivered to and accepted by
them. The underwriters will initially offer to sell shares to the public at the initial public offering price shown on the cover page of this
prospectus. The underwriters may sell shares to securities dealers at a discount of up to $
per share from the initial public offering price.
Any such securities dealers may resell shares to certain other brokers or dealers at a discount of up to $
per share from the initial public
offering price. After the initial public offering, the underwriters may vary the public offering price and other selling terms.

If the underwriters sell more shares than the total number shown in the table above, the underwriters have the option to buy up to an
additional 1,025,000 shares of common stock from us to cover such sales. They may exercise this option during the 30-day period from the
date of this prospectus. If any shares are purchased with this option, the underwriters will purchase shares in approximately the same
proportion as shown in the table above.

The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions that we will pay to the underwriters. These
amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters' option to purchase additional shares. We will not pay
any underwriting discount or commission to the underwriters for the 166,667 shares that may be issued to Genentech, Inc. directly by us
pursuant to an agreement we have with them.

Full Exercise

No Exercise

Per share
Total

$
$

$
$

The representatives have advised us that, on behalf of the underwriters, they may make short sales of our common stock in connection with
this offering, resulting in the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to purchase pursuant to the
underwriting agreement. The short position resulting from those short sales will be deemed a "covered" short position to the extent that it
does not exceed the 1,025,000 shares subject to the underwriters' over-allotment option and will be deemed a "naked" short position to the
extent that it exceeds that number. A naked short position is more likely to be
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created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the trading price of the common stock in the open market
that could adversely affect investors who purchase shares in this offering. The underwriters may reduce or close out their covered short
position either by exercising the over-allotment option or by purchasing shares in the open market. In determining which of these alternatives
to pursue, the underwriters will consider the price at which shares are available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at
which they may purchase shares through the over-allotment option. Any "naked" short position will be closed out by purchasing shares in
the open market. Similar to the other stabilizing transactions described below, open market purchases made by the underwriters to cover all
or a portion of their short position may have the effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of our common stock following
this offering. As a result, our common stock may trade at a price that is higher than the price that otherwise might prevail in the open market.

The representatives have advised us that, pursuant to Regulation M under the Securities Act of 1933, they may engage in transactions,
including stabilizing bids or the imposition of penalty bids, that may have the effect of stabilizing or maintaining the market price of the shares
of common stock at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market. A "stabilizing bid" is a bid for or the purchase of
shares of common stock on behalf of the underwriters for the purpose of fixing or maintaining the price of the common stock. A "penalty bid"
is an arrangement permitting the representatives to claim the selling concession otherwise accruing to an underwriter or syndicate member
in connection with the offering if the common stock originally sold by that underwriter or syndicate member is purchased by the
representatives in the open market pursuant to a stabilizing bid or to cover all or part of a syndicate short position. The representatives have
advised us that stabilizing bids and open market purchases may be effected on the Nasdaq National Market, in the over-the-counter market or
otherwise and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

One or more of the underwriters may facilitate the marketing of this offering online directly or through one of its affiliates. In those cases,
prospective investors may view offering terms and a prospectus online and, depending upon the particular underwriter, place orders online or
through their financial advisors.
We estimate that the total expenses of this offering, excluding underwriting discounts, will be approximately $1,300,000.
We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933.

We and our executive officers, directors and certain stockholders have agreed that, with limited exceptions, during the period beginning from
the date of this prospectus and continuing to and including the date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, none of us will, directly or
indirectly, offer, sell, offer to sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of common stock or any of our securities which are
substantially similar to the common stock, including but not limited to any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that
represent the right to receive, common stock or any such substantially similar securities or enter into any swap, option, future, forward or
other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, the economic consequence of ownership of common stock or any securities substantially
similar to the common stock, other than pursuant to employee stock option plans existing on the date of this prospectus, without the prior
written consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
At our request, the underwriters have reserved shares of common stock for sale to our directors, officers, employees, consultants and family
members of the foregoing. We expect these persons to purchase no more than five percent of the common stock offered in this offering. The
number of shares available for sale to the general public will be reduced to the extent such persons purchase such reserved shares.
It is expected that delivery of the shares will be made to investors on or about

, 2001.
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There has been no public market for the common stock prior to this offering. We and the underwriters will negotiate the initial offering price.
In determining the price, we and the underwriters expect to consider a number of factors in addition to prevailing market conditions,
including:
•
the history of and prospects for our industry and for biotechnology

•

companies generally;
•

an assessment of our management;
•

our present operations;
•

our historical results of operations;
•
the trend of our revenues and earnings; and

•

our earnings prospects.
We and the underwriters will consider these and other relevant factors in relation to the price of similar securities of generally comparable
companies. Neither we nor the underwriters can assure investors that an active trading market will develop for the common stock, or that the

common stock will trade in the public market at or above the initial offering price.

From time to time in the ordinary course of their respective businesses, some of the underwriters and their affiliates may in the future
engage in commercial banking and/or investment banking transactions with us and our affiliates. An affiliate of Banc of America Securities
LLC owns shares of our convertible preferred stock that will convert into 2,040,816 shares of common stock upon the closing of this offering,
which will represent approximately 7.0% of our outstanding common stock upon completion of this offering, assuming no exercise of the
underwriters' overallotment option and excluding exercise of outstanding options under our stock option plans.
In view of the fact that persons affiliated or associated with the Banc of America Securities LLC beneficially own more than 10% of our
convertible preferred stock, the offering is being conducted in accordance with Rule 2720 of the National Association of Securities Dealers,
Inc. Conduct Rules which provides that the offering price to the public may not be higher than that recommended by a qualified independent
underwriter who has participated in the preparation of the registration statement and prospectus and has exercised the usual standards of due
diligence. J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. has agreed to serve as qualified independent underwriter and the offering price to the public will not be
higher than the price recommended by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.

Plan Of Distribution
Genentech has agreed to purchase directly from us, pursuant to a license agreement, $2.0 million of common stock at a price per share
equal to the initial public offering price per share. The purchase price for such shares will be paid directly to us at or prior to the closing of the
sale of the other shares offered hereby. In the event and to the extent that Genentech does not purchase such shares, the underwriters will
purchase those shares on the same terms and conditions as the other shares being offered by this prospectus, and those shares will be
offered to the public at the initial public offering price per share and otherwise on the same basis as the other shares offered hereby. The
underwriters will not receive any fees or commissions with respect to any shares sold to Genentech pursuant to the license agreement. The
number of shares available for sale to the general public in the offering will be reduced by the number of shares sold to Genentech.

Concurrent Private Placement
In February 2001, we entered into a common stock purchase agreement with Medarex, Inc., under which we agreed to sell to Medarex
shares of our common stock in a private placement concurrent with and conditioned upon the sale of shares in this offering. The price of the
shares in the concurrent private

67
placement will be the initial public offering price per share. The number of shares we will sell to Medarex is equal to $2.0 million worth of
common stock priced at the initial public offering price per share.

Transfer Restrictions. The shares of common stock acquired in the concurrent private placement by Medarex are restricted securities that
may only be sold in the public market if registered or after the expiration of a one year holding period. In addition, Medarex has agreed not to
sell, transfer, encumber or otherwise dispose of any of the shares of common stock acquired in the concurrent private placement in a public
or private sale for a period of 180 days following the closing of the offering without the consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.

Registration Rights. We have committed to grant Medarex registration rights relating to the shares of common stock they will purchase in
the concurrent private placement. Medarex has agreed not to make any demand for, or exercise any right to, the registration of its common
stock for 180 days without the consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. See "Description of Capital Stock, Registration Rights."

Legal Matters
The validity of the common stock offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Venture Law Group, a Professional Corporation, Kirkland,
Washington. Sonya F. Erickson, a director of Venture Law Group, is the Assistant Secretary of Seattle Genetics. As of the date of this
prospectus, a director of Venture Law Group and an investment partnership affiliated with Venture Law Group own an aggregate of 204,000
shares of our common stock and 15,306 shares of our Series B convertible preferred stock, which shares of Series B convertible preferred
stock will convert into 15,306 shares of our common stock upon completion of this offering. Certain legal matters in connection with this
offering will be passed upon for the underwriters by Cahill Gordon & Reindel, New York, New York.

Experts
The financial statements as of December 31, 1999 and 2000, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000 and for the
period from inception (January 1, 1998) to December 31, 2000 included in this prospectus have been so included in reliance on the report of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

Where You Can Find More Information
We have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a Registration Statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to

the common stock offered hereby. This prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in the Registration Statement and the
exhibits and schedules. For further information with respect to us and the common stock offered hereby, reference is made to the
Registration Statement and to the exhibits and schedules. Statements made in this prospectus concerning the contents of any document
referred to herein are not necessarily complete. With respect to each such document filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement,
reference is made to the exhibit for a more complete description of the matter involved. The Registration Statement and the exhibits and
schedules may be inspected without charge at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington,
D.C. 20549, and at the regional offices of the Commission located at Seven World Trade Center, 13th Floor, New York, NY 10048, and the
Northwestern Atrium Center, 500 West Madison Street, Suite 1400, Chicago, Illinois 60661. Copies of all or any part of the Registration
Statement may be obtained from the SEC's offices upon payment of fees prescribed by the SEC. The SEC maintains a World Wide Web site
that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC. The
address of the site is http://www.sec.gov.
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Seattle Genetics, Inc.

Report of Independent Accountants
To the Board of Directors
and Stockholders of
Seattle Genetics, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of operations, of stockholders' (deficit) equity and of cash flows
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Seattle Genetics, Inc. (a development stage company) at December 31, 1999
and 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000 and the
period from inception (January 1, 1998) to December 31, 2000 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Seattle, Washington
January 19, 2001, except
for Note 13, as to
which the date is
February 2, 2001

February 2, 2001
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Seattle Genetics, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Balance Sheets
Pro forma
December 31,

stockholders'

equity at
December 31,
2000

1999

2000

(unaudited)
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Short-term investments

30,362,568

$

—

Subscription notes receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Restricted investments
Total assets

2,618,986

21,711,460

2,545,001

—

—

279,070

74,389

759,339

32,981,958
352,255
28,391

25,368,855

—

3,421,247

894,304

189,419

$

33,362,604

$

$

29,516

$

29,873,825

Liabilities, Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, and Stockholders' (Deficit)
Equity
Current liabilities

Book overdraft

—

Accounts payable

90,844

141,992

Accrued liabilities

65,910

668,698

186,270

810,690

6,918,187

6,924,550

30,117,936

30,631,457

Total current liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 17,450,000 shares
authorized:
Series A convertible preferred stock, 7,000,000 designated, 6,950,000 (1999 and 2000) and 0
(pro forma) shares issued and outstanding (liquidation preference of $6,950,000 for 1999
and 2000)

Series B convertible preferred stock, 10,500,000 designated, 10,265,304 (1999) and
10,437,072 (2000), and 0 (pro forma) shares issued and outstanding (liquidation preference
of $30,179,995 and $30,684,992, for 1999 and 2000 respectively)
Stockholders' (deficit) equity
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 30,000,000 (1999) and 100,000,000 (2000) shares
authorized, 3,723,708, 4,581,077 and 21,968,149 issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Notes receivable from stockholders
Deferred stock compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive income

3,723

4,581

1,715,663

14,798,044

Total stockholders' (deficit) equity
Total liabilities, mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock, and stockholders'
(deficit) equity

$

(3,096)

(408,384)

(408,384)

(10,193,778 )

(10,193,778 )

69,196

(4,924,158 )

(12,762,531 )

(3,859,789 )

(8,492,872 )

33,362,604

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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21,968
52,336,664

(651,921)
—

Deficit accumulated during the development stage

$

29,873,825

69,196

(12,762,531 )

$

29,063,135

Seattle Genetics, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Statements of Operations
Cumulative
from inception
(January 1, 1998)

Years ended December 31,

to December 31,
1998

2000

1999

2000

Revenues
License agreements

—

$

$

1,000,000

—

$

1,000,000

$

Government grants

—

—

98,632

98,632

Total revenues

—

1,000,000

98,632

1,098,632

1,331,175

2,469,191

4,947,087

8,747,453

671,448

858,699

1,872,164

3,402,311

347,067

725,832

3,137,940

4,210,839

2,349,690

4,053,722

9,957,191

16,360,603

Loss from operations
Investment income, net

(2,349,690 )
243,212

(3,053,722 )

(9,858,559 )

Net loss
Deemed dividend upon issuance of Series B mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock in April 2000
Accretion on mandatorily redeemable preferred stock

(2,106,478 )

(2,817,680 )

Expenses
Research and development (excludes noncash stock-based
compensation expense of $73,555, $392,533, $972,841 and $1,438,929,
respectively)
General and administrative (excludes noncash stock-based
compensation expense of $273,512, $333,299, $2,165,099 and $2,771,910,
respectively)
Noncash stock-based compensation expense
Total operating expenses

—

(6,363)

(19,520)

$

(2,111,250)

$

(2,824,043 )

$

(8,342,279 )

Basic and diluted net loss per share

$

(0.94)

$

(1.03)

$

(2.54)

2,749,212

2,235,997

Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share

(12,762,531 )

(484,386)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Weighted-average shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per
share

2,499,440

(7,838,373 )

—

(4,772)

(15,261,971)

2,020,186

236,042

3,289,731

(0.38)

$

Weighted-average shares used in computing pro forma basic and diluted
net loss per share

20,627,995

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Seattle Genetics, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Statements of Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity
Common stock

Shares

Issuance of common stock in
December 1997 at $0.001 per share in
exchange for notes receivable
Issuance of common stock in
December 1997 at $0.001 per share for
cash
Issuance of common stock for employee
bonus in October 1998 at $0.001 per
share

3,096,000 $

Amount

3,096 $

Additional
paid-in
capital

—

from

Deferred
stock

Accumulated
other
comprehensive

Deficit
accumulated
during the
development

stockholders'
(deficit)

stockholders

compensation

gain (loss)

stage

equity

Notes
receivable

$

(3,096) $

—

$

—

$

—

Total

$

—

584,000

584

—

—

—

—

—

584

5,500

5

8,135

—

—

—

—

8,140

Deferred stock compensation related to
grants of stock options
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation
Accretion on mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock
Net loss and comprehensive loss

—

—

848,525

—

(848,525)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

338,927

—

—

338,927

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

(2,106,478 )

(4,772)
(2,106,478 )

Balances at December 31, 1998
Issuance of common stock for employee
bonus in May 1999 at $0.001 per share
Stock option exercises
Deferred stock compensation related to
grants of stock options
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation
Accretion on mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock
Net loss and comprehensive loss

3,685,500

3,685

851,888

—

(2,106,478 )

(1,763,599 )

18,000

18

38,862

20,208

20

2,001

—
—

—

—

829,275

—

—

—

—

—
—

—
—

Balances at December 31, 1999
Deemed dividend upon issuance of
Series B mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock
Deemed dividend upon issuance of
Series B mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock
Stock option exercises
Deferred stock compensation related to
grants of stock options
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation
Accretion on mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock
Unrealized gain on short-term
investments
Net loss

3,723,708

3,723

—

(3,096)

(6,363)

—

(509,598)

—
—

—
—

—
—

38,880

(829,275)

—

—

—

—

686,952

—

—

686,952

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

(2,817,680 )

(6,363)
(2,817,680 )

—

(4,924,158 )

(3,859,789 )

(3,096)

1,715,663

—

(651,921)

2,021

484,386

484,386

(484,386)
422,104

(405,288)

—

(12,679,797 )

—

—

—

—

3,137,940

—

—

3,137,940

—
—

—
—

—
—

69,196

—

69,196
(7,838,373 )

—

—

—

—

—

(7,769,177 )

858

—

—

12,679,797

—

—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—

—

—

(484,386)
17,674

—

857,369

(19,520)

Comprehensive loss
Balances at December 31, 2000

(4,772)

4,581,077 $

(19,520)

(408,384) $

4,581 $ 14,798,044 $

—

(10,193,778 ) $

(7,838,373 )

69,196 $

(12,762,531 ) $

(8,492,872 )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Seattle Genetics, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Statements of Cash Flows
Cumulative
from inception
(January 1, 1998)

Years Ended December 31,

to December 31,
1998

2000

1999

2000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities

Amortization of deferred compensation
Depreciation

$

(2,106,478 )

$

(2,817,680 )

(7,838,373 )

$

(12,762,531 )

338,927

686,952

3,137,940

4,163,819

36,600

122,560

186,548

345,708

Realized loss on sale of securities

6,747

Amortization/accretion on securities available for sale
Common stock bonus provided to employees

$

(49,714)
8,140

38,880

—

6,747

(49,714)
47,020

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Interest receivable

(279,070)

(279,070)

(18,071)

(84,709)

(289,214)

(391,994)

Accounts payable

43,325

47,519

51,148

141,992

Accrued liabilities

39,275

26,635

602,788

668,698

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

(1,658,282 )

(1,979,843 )

(4,471,200 )

(8,109,325 )

Purchases of investments

(30,108,959 )

Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments

(30,108,959 )

5,088,414

Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

5,088,414

(384,803)

(126,612)

(728,597)

(1,240,012 )

(384,803)

(126,612)

(25,749,142 )

(26,260,557 )

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock

2,021

584

Net proceeds from issuance of Series A preferred stock

17,674

20,279

6,907,052

6,907,052

Proceeds from subscription receivable
Net proceeds from issuance of Series B preferred stock

27,572,935

Prepaid public offering costs

2,545,001

2,545,001

500,364

28,073,299

(556,763)

Book overdraft

Net cash provided by financing activities

6,907,636

27,604,472

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year

4,864,551

25,498,017
4,864,551

—

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year

Non-cash investing and financing activities

$

4,864,551

$

(556,763)

(29,516)

29,516

2,476,760

36,988,868

(27,743,582 )
30,362,568

2,618,986

30,362,568

$

2,618,986

$

2,618,986

Supplemental disclosure of cash information

Issuance of common stock in exchange for notes receivable

$

3,096

$

—

$

405,288

$

408,384

Issuance of Series B preferred stock for subscription notes receivable

$

—

$

2,545,001

$

—

$

2,545,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Seattle Genetics, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Organization and summary of significant accounting policies
Nature of business
Seattle Genetics, Inc., the Company, was incorporated in the State of Delaware on July 15, 1997 for the purpose of discovering and
developing monoclonal antibody-based drugs to treat cancer and related diseases. The Company's four monoclonal antibody-based
technologies include: monoclonal antibodies, antibody drug conjugates, single chain immunotoxins and antibody-directed enzyme pro-drug
therapy. The Company is considered to be a development stage company because the Company is engaged primarily in research, recruiting
personnel and raising capital.

Although the Company was incorporated in July 1997, virtually no costs were incurred prior to 1998. Accordingly, for purposes of these
financial statements, January 1, 1998 was utilized as the date of inception.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company generally considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original or remaining maturities of three months or less at
the date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Investments
Investments in securities with maturities of less than one year or where management's intent is to use the investments to fund current
operations are classified as short-term investments. Management classifies, at the date of acquisition, its marketable securities into
categories in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities." Currently, the Company classifies its securities as available-for-sale which are reported at fair market value with
the related unrealized gains and losses included as a separate component in stockholders' (deficit) equity. Realized gains and losses and
declines in value of securities judged to be other than temporary are included in other income (expense). Cost of investments for purposes of
computing realized and unrealized gains and losses are based on the specific identification method.
The amortized cost of debt securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization is

included in interest income. Interest and dividends on all securities are included in interest income.
The Company's short-term investments are diversified among high-credit quality securities in accordance with the Company's investment
policy.

Restricted investments
Restricted investments consist of money market accounts backed by U.S. government securities and U.S. government agencies. These
investments are carried at fair value, and are restricted as to withdrawal in accordance with the lease of the Company's facility to be occupied
in 2001. Restricted investments are held in the Company's name with a major financial institution.
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Prepaid public offering costs
In connection with its proposed public offering of common stock, the Company has capitalized $556,763 of related costs as of December 31,
2000. These costs are included in prepaid and other current assets in the accompanying balance sheets and will be charged to common stock
upon completion of the offering or, if the offering is not completed, to operations.

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, and that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made in prior years' financial statements to conform to classifications used in the current year.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Laboratory equipment
Computer equipment
Furniture and fixtures

5 years
3 years
5 years

Tenant improvements are amortized over the shorter of the applicable lease or useful life of the asset. Gains and losses from the disposal of
property and equipment will be reflected in the statement of operations in the year of disposition. Expenditures for additions and
improvements are capitalized and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Impairment of long-lived assets
In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of" ("SFAS No. 121"), the Company reviews long-lived assets, including intangible assets
and property and equipment, for impairment whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
the assets may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to
result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. While the Company's current operating and
cash flow losses are indicators of impairment, the Company believes the future cash flows to be received from the long-lived assets exceed
the assets' carrying value, and accordingly, the Company has not recognized any impairment losses through December 31, 2000.
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Revenue recognition
Revenues from license fees and milestone payments, which are received for the delivery of rights or services, that represent the culmination
of a separate earnings process are recognized when due and amounts are considered collectible. Revenues from license fees and milestones
which are received in connection with other rights or services which represent continuing obligations of the Company will be deferred and
recognized systematically over the period that the fees or payments are earned.
Effective June 30, 1999 the Company and Genentech, Inc. ("Genentech") entered into a development and license agreement (the
"Agreement"). The Agreement provides for payments to the Company by Genentech, the transfer of information by the Company to
Genentech, the license of developed products to Genentech, certain milestone payments by Genentech to the Company, the payment of
royalties by Genentech to the Company and an investment in the Company's preferred stock by Genentech. The Agreement provides that
the development of the acquired technology is solely the responsibility of Genentech. In addition, the Agreement provides that no tasks or
costs may be assigned to the Company without the approval of the Company's representative. The Company does not anticipate that the
costs or tasks will be assigned to it in the future.

Revenues to date consist primarily of amounts recognized in connection with the Company's Agreement with Genentech. Upon the granting
of the rights and licenses representing the culmination of the earnings process, the Company recognized revenue in the amount of
payments received. The Company has no further service obligations in connection with the delivery of rights and licenses. Future payments
to be received under the Genentech Agreement will be recognized as revenue when contingencies related to those amounts have been
resolved.

Research and development expenses
Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred for company sponsored as well as collaborative research and development
activities. These costs include direct and overhead expenses for drug discovery and research, pre-clinical trials and, more recently, for costs
associated with clinical trial activities. Costs to acquire technologies which are utilized in research and development and which have no
alternative future use are expensed when incurred. Research and development expenses under government grants approximate the revenue
recognized under such agreements.

Patent costs
Costs related to filing and pursuing patent applications are expensed as incurred, as recoverability of such expenditures is uncertain.

Fair value of financial instruments
Recorded amounts for cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term
nature of these instruments.
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Concentration of credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents are invested in deposits with a major brokerage firm. The Company has not experienced any losses on its
deposits of cash and cash equivalents. Management believes that the brokerage firm is financially sound and, accordingly, minimal credit
risk exists. The Company invests its excess cash in accordance with its investment policy, which is approved by the Board of Directors and
reviewed periodically to minimize credit risk.

Income taxes
The Company provides for deferred income taxes under the liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not
that the net deferred tax asset will not be recovered.

Stock-based compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25 ("APB No. 25"), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and complies with the disclosure provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 ("SFAS No. 123"), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation . Under APB No. 25,
compensation expense is based on the excess, if any, of the estimated fair value of the Company's stock at the date of grant over the exercise
price of the option. Deferred compensation is being amortized in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 28
on an accelerated basis over the vesting period of the individual options. The Company accounts for equity instruments issued to
nonemployees in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 and consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force number 96-18.

Comprehensive income/loss
The Company has adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income"
(SFAS No. 130) effective January 1, 1998. SFAS No. 130, requires the disclosure of comprehensive income and its components in the
financial statements. Comprehensive income is the change in stockholders' (deficit) equity from transactions and other events and
circumstances other than those resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners.

Segment reporting
Effective January 1998, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, "Disclosure about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information" ("SFAS No. 131"). SFAS No. 131 establishes annual and interim reporting standards for an enterprise's
operating segments and related disclosures about its products, services, geographic areas, and major customers. The Company has
determined that it operates in only one segment.
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Recent accounting pronouncements
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (SFAS No. 133),

Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments and for Hedging Activities , which provides a standard for the recognition and
measurement of derivatives and hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000 and will not have
an impact on the Company's results of operations or financial condition when adopted because the Company holds no derivative financial
instruments and does not currently engage in hedging activities.
In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (SAB 101), Revenue
Recognition , which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial statements filed with the SEC.
SAB 101 outlines the basic criteria that must be met to recognize revenue and provides guidance for disclosures related to revenue
recognition policies. Management believes that the Company's revenue recognition policies are in accordance with the provisions of SAB
101.

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 44 (FIN No. 44), "Accounting for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation," an interpretation of the Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 (APB 25). Among other things, this
interpretation clarifies the definition of "employee" for purposes of applying APB 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," the criteria
for determining whether a plan qualifies as a noncompensatory plan, and the accounting for an exchange of stock compensation awards in a
business combination. This interpretation is effective July 1, 2000, but certain conclusions in this interpretation cover specific events that
occur after either December 15, 1998 or January 12, 2000. The adoption of FIN No. 44 did not have a material impact on the Company's
financial position or results of operations.

Unaudited pro forma stockholders' equity
Upon the closing of the Company's initial public offering, all of the mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock outstanding will
automatically be converted into common stock on a one-to-one basis. The unaudited pro forma stockholders' equity presented on the balance
sheet reflects the effect of such conversion.

Net loss per share
Basic and diluted net loss per share has been computed using the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during
the period, less the weighted-average number of unvested shares of common stock issued that are subject to repurchase. The Company has
excluded all convertible preferred stock, outstanding options to purchase common stock and common stock subject to repurchase from the
calculation of diluted net loss per share, as such securities are antidilutive for all periods presented. Basic and diluted pro forma net loss per
share, as presented in the statements of operations, has been computed as described above and also gives effect to the conversion of the
convertible preferred stock (using the if-converted method) from the original date of issuance.
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The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted and pro forma basic and diluted (unaudited) net loss per share:

Years ended December 31,
1998

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

$

Basic and diluted
Weighted-average shares used in computing basic and diluted net
loss per share

Basic and diluted net loss per share

Pro forma (unaudited)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders as above
Pro forma adjustment for deemed dividend
Pro forma adjustment for accretion on mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock
Pro forma net loss attributable to common stockholders

(2,111,250) $

2,235,997
$

(0.94) $

2000

1999

(2,824,043 ) $

2,749,212

(8,342,279 )

3,289,731

(1.03) $

(2.54)

$

(8,342,279 )
484,386
19,520

$

(7,838,373 )
3,289,731

Shares used above
Pro forma adjustment to reflect weighted-average effect of assumed
conversion of convertible preferred stock

17,338,264

Weighted-average shares used in computing pro forma basic and
diluted net loss per common share

20,627,995

$

Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per common share

Antidilutive securities not included in net loss per share calculation
Convertible preferred stock
Options to purchase common stock
Unvested shares of common stock subject to repurchase

(0.38)

6,950,000
367,500
1,192,917

17,215,304
618,000
717,917

17,387,072
1,313,818
870,522

8,510,417

18,551,221

19,571,412
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2. Investments
The following table summarize the Company's investments in securities at December 31, 2000:

Amortized
Cost

Mortgage-backed securities
U.S. corporate obligations
U.S. government securities and agencies

Total

Gross

Gross

Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized

Fair
Value

Losses

$

8,641,351
7,897,028
8,525,132

$

25,364
34,499
23,386

$

(13,297) $
—
(756)

8,653,418
7,931,527
8,547,762

$

25,063,511

$

83,249

$

(14,053) $

25,132,707

$

21,711,460
3,421,247

$

25,132,707

Reported as:

Short-term investments
Restricted investments
Total

At December 31, 2000, investments, excluding mortgage backed securities, had scheduled maturities within one to two years.

3. Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consists of the following at December 31:

2000

1999

Prepaid public offering costs
Prepaid rent
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid license agreements
Prepaid service contracts
Prepaid employee benefits

$

—
—
11,667
41,250
12,063
8,222
1,187

$

556,763
44,764
11,656
35,417
43,947
26,093
40,699

$

74,389

$

759,339

Other
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4. Property and equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31:

2000

1999

Laboratory equipment
Computer equipment and purchased sofware

$

352,076
106,870

$

799,486
355,190

52,469
—

64,650
20,686

511,415
(159,160)

1,240,012
(345,708)

Furniture and fixtures
Tenant Improvements

Less: Accumulated depreciation

$

352,255

$

894,304

5. Accrued liabilities
Accrued liabilities consists of the following at December 31:

2000

1999

$

Professional services
License agreement
Clinical trial costs
Compensation and benefits
Use tax
Other

$

—
—
41,742
16,795
7,373
—

$

65,910

$

258,394
200,000

125,746
53,038
19,128
12,392
668,698

6. Income taxes
The difference between the income tax benefit and the amount calculated based on the statutory federal tax rate of 34% is primarily due to the
tax benefits of net operating losses being offset by a valuation allowance.

At December 31, 2000, for income tax reporting purposes, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$8,177,000, which will begin to expire, if not previously utilized, in 2019. A valuation allowance has been recorded for the entire net deferred
tax asset as a result of uncertainties regarding realization of the asset, including the limited operating history of the Company, the lack of
profitability to date and the uncertainty over future operating profitability. The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions which may limit the
net operating loss carryforwards available to be used in any given year if certain changes in ownership interest occur.
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The effects of temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 are as follows:

2000

1999

Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss carryforwards
License fees

$

Other

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation

Less: Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax asset

$

1,143,000
188,000
2,000

$

2,780,000
172,000
385,000

1,333,000

3,337,000

(16,000)

(40,000)

1,317,000

3,297,000

(1,317,000 )

(3,297,000 )

—

$

—

7. Commitments and contingencies
During 1998, the Company was leasing its office space on a month-to-month basis.
During 1999, the Company entered into an operating lease for 15,000 square feet of office and laboratory space. The lease has an initial term

to February 2002 with two, one-year renewal periods at the Company's option.
In December 2000 the Company entered into an operating lease for 63,900 square feet of office and laboratory space. The lease provides for
monthly lease payments to commence in June 2001. The initial lease term is ten years with two, seven year renewal options, subject to
certain conditions. The lessor has committed to fund up to $6.4 million of improvements to the building.

As part of this lease transaction, the Company has restricted $3.4 million of its investments as collateral for certain obligations of the lease.
These investment securities are restricted as to withdrawal and are managed by a third party. The lease terms provide for decreases in the
amounts pledged based upon the Company's net worth, as defined, and decreases commencing in the fourth year of the lease.
Additionally, the Company has entered into lease obligations through 2005 for office equipment.
F-15

Future annual minimum lease payments under all noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

Years ending December 31,

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
Thereafter

$

1,672,625
2,007,900
2,002,234
2,042,113
2,081,409
11,974,000

$

21,780,281

Rent expense totaled $47,233, $542,139, $544,190 and $1,133,562 for years ended 1998, 1999, 2000 and for the period from inception
(January 1, 1998) to December 31, 2000, respectively.

In March 1998, the Company entered into a license agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb Company for the use of certain patented and
proprietary licensed technology including rights to 24 different patents, eight monoclonal antibodies, chemical linkers, a ribosomeinactivating protein and enabling technologies. Unless otherwise terminated, as provided for in the agreement, the agreement will continue
on a country by country basis until the later of a specified number of years after the first commercial sale in such country, depending on the
particular patent or the expiration of the last to expire patent right in the country in question. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company
was required to make an initial payment for the licensed technology, which has been recorded as a research and development expense
because the technologies are utilized in the Company's research and development activities and do not have alternative future uses. In
addition, the Company will be required to make royalty payments based on the net sales of each product, depending upon the technology
used in the product. In addition, the Company has sublicensed rights to single-chain antigen binding molecules from Enzon, Inc. on a semiexclusive basis subject to the rights of several existing Enzon licensees, as well as the Company's obligation to make biannual payments to
maintain this semi-exclusivity through 2003. Under the terms of the Company's sublicense with Enzon, the Company is also required to
make milestone payments and pay royalties on net sales of products incorporating technology sublicensed from Enzon. The Company's
obligation to pay royalties under this agreement terminates on a country-by-country basis upon the last to expire of the licensed patents in
such country. The agreement is also subject to earlier termination if either party breaches its material obligations thereunder.
The Company has also entered into licensing or contract manufacturing arrangements with Creative BioMolecules, Inc., Mabtech AB,
University of Miami, Brookhaven Science Associates LLC, the Public Health Service, Arizona State University and ICOS Corporation. The
Company's obligation to pay royalties to Mabtech AB and University of Miami terminate upon a specified number of years after the first
commercial sale of a product incorporating their respective technologies. The Company's obligation to pay royalties to Creative BioMolecules,
Inc., Brookhaven Science Associates LLC, the Public Health Service and Arizona State University terminate upon the last to expire of their
respective licensed patents. The Company may terminate the ICOS agreement upon sixty days' notice and by the payment of reasonable
expenses incurred. These arrangements are subject to early termination if either party breaches its material
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obligations thereunder. License and contract manufacturing payments will aggregate to approximately $4,000,000 in 2001 and will range
from $5,000 to $100,000, individually, over the following four years depending on dates of FDA approvals and performance under the
agreements. Furthermore, the agreements also provide for payments upon the achievement of certain milestones and the payment of
royalties based on commercial product sales.

8. Stockholders' (deficit) equity
Restricted common stock
In December 1997, the Company issued 3,440,000 shares of common stock to its founders, in exchange for cash and full recourse notes

receivable, subject to a repurchase option. The notes bear interest at an annual rate of 5.6% and matured on December 17, 1999. The notes
were extended for another year and were paid in January 2001.

Also in December 1997, the Company issued 240,000 shares of common stock to certain of its employees and consultants, subject to a
repurchase option. In the event of a termination of employment or consulting relationship with the Company for any reason, the Company
has the exclusive option, for a period of 60 days following the termination of the relationship, to repurchase all or any portion of the shares
held by the founders or certain employees and consultants which have not been released from the repurchase option, at the original
purchase price. The number of shares subject to the repurchase option, and the related vesting, is detailed in each stock purchase
agreement, with the vesting generally over a four-year period.
In addition, in the event of a proposed sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or the merger of the Company with or into
another company, in which there is an involuntary termination of the stockholders' employment or consulting relationship within one year of
the change in control, the repurchase option will be removed from all remaining shares of common stock. At December 31, 1999 and 2000,
there were 717,917 and 870,522 shares of common stock outstanding subject to the Company's repurchase option, respectively.

In December 1999, the Company also amended its articles of incorporation to increase the authorized amount of common stock to
30,000,000 shares and to increase the authorized amount of preferred stock to 17,450,000 shares, whereby Series A convertible preferred
stock shall consist of 6,950,000 shares authorized and Series B convertible preferred stock of 10,500,000 shares authorized.
On November 16, 2000, the Company's Board of Directors passed resolutions as follows:
•

Authorizing the officers of the Company to undertake a firm committment underwritten public offering of shares of the
Company's common stock.
•

Amending and restating the Company's certificate of incorporation to authorize 100,000,000 shares of Common Stock and
undesignated Preferred Stock consisting of 5,000,000 shares, subject to shareholder approval.
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Stock bonus plan
In December 1997, the Company's Board of Directors approved the 1998 Employee Stock Bonus Plan (the Bonus Plan) to provide
incentives to employees of the Company, to encourage such employees to remain employed by the Company and to encourage employee
stock ownership in the Company. The Bonus Plan was amended as of May 28, 1999 to the extent that 23,500 shares have now been
reserved for issuance, which, when granted, are subject to the Company's right of first refusal upon later sale of the stock. During 1998 and
1999, the Company granted 5,500 and 18,000 shares of stock to its employees, respectively, which was recorded as compensation expense
based on the estimated fair value of the stock on the date of grant.

2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The Company's 2000 employee stock purchase plan was adopted by the board of directors in November 2000 and will be submitted for
approval by the Company's stockholders prior to completion of the Company's initial public offering and will terminate in 2010. A total of
300,000 shares of common stock has been reserved for issuance under the 2000 purchase plan, none of which have been issued as of
December 31, 2000. The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2000 purchase plan will be subject to an automatic annual
increase on the first day of each of the fiscal years beginning in 2002 and ending in 2010 that is equal to the lesser of:

•
300,000 shares;

•

1% of the Company's outstanding common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year;
•
or such lesser number of shares as the board of directors determines.

The 2000 employee stock purchase plan, which is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, will be implemented
by a series of offering periods of approximately 24 months' duration, with new offering periods (other than the first offering period)
commencing generally on February 1 and August 1 of each year. Each offering period will consist of consecutive purchase periods of
approximately six months' duration. At the end of each purchase period an automatic purchase will be made for participants. The initial
offering period is expected to commence on the date of this offering and end on January 31, 2003; the initial purchase period is expected to
begin on the date of this offering and end on July 31, 2001. Each eligible employee will be granted an option on the effective date of this
offering to purchase shares in the initial offering period in an amount equal to the maximum number of shares that an individual can
purchase under the terms of the 2000 purchase plan.
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9. Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock
Convertible preferred stock at December 31, 2000 consists of the following:

Amount, net
of unamortized

Shares

issuance

Series

A
B

Liquidation amount

Designated

Outstanding

6,950,000
10,500,000

6,950,000
10,437,072

$

6,950,000
30,684,992

$

6,924,550
30,631,457

17,450,000

17,387,072

$

37,634,992

$

37,556,007

cost

The holders of Series A and Series B convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive noncumulative dividends when, as and if declared by
the Board of Directors, at the rate of 8% per share per annum of the original issue price and in preference to any dividends declared and paid
on common stock. The original issue price of Series A and Series B convertible preferred stock is $1.00 and $2.94, respectively. As of
December 31, 1999 and 2000, no dividends have been declared or paid.

In the event of liquidation or dissolution of the Company, the holders of Series A and Series B preferred stock are entitled to receive a
distribution amount prior to and in preference to holders of common stock equal to the sum of $1.00 and $2.94 per share, respectively, plus
declared but unpaid dividends. The remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed pro-rata among the holders of Series A and Series
B convertible preferred stock and the holders of common stock based upon the number of common shares held by each, assuming
conversion of all Series A and Series B preferred stock into common stock, until the holders of Series A and Series B preferred stock shall
have received an aggregate of $2.00 and $5.88 per share including amounts paid above, respectively, and, thereafter, the remaining assets
will be distributed pro rata among the holders of common stock.
Each share of Series A and Series B preferred stock is convertible into common stock at the option of the holder on a one-for-one basis,
subject to adjustment in certain instances. Such conversion is automatic upon the closing of a public offering of the Company's common
stock having aggregate gross proceeds of at least $20,000,000 and at a purchase price of not less than $7.35 per share (as adjusted to reflect
stock splits, stock dividends, or other recapitalizations). Each share of Series A and Series B convertible preferred stock will also automatically
convert upon the election or written consent of a majority of the holders of Series A and Series B convertible preferred stock, voting together
as a single class, provided that such majority vote must include the consent of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding Series B
convertible preferred stock.

The holder of each share of Series A or Series B convertible preferred stock is entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of shares of
common stock, into which each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, except for certain conditions as discussed in the Third Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation. The holders of Series A and Series B preferred stock have certain registration rights.
At any time after December 22, 2004, the Series A or Series B preferred stock will be redeemable at the election of the holders of not less
than a majority of the then outstanding Series A and Series B preferred stock, voting as a single class. The preferred shares will be
redeemable at a price equal to the original
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purchase price of each Series plus all declared and accumulated but unpaid dividends on such shares, payable in three equal annual
installments beginning on the redemption date.
The Company recorded a deemed dividend of $484,000 in April 2000 upon the issuance of Series B convertible preferred stock. At the date of
issuance, the Company believed the per share price of $2.94 represented the fair value of the preferred stock and was in excess of the fair
value of its common stock. Subsequent to the commencement of the initial public offering process, the Company re-evaluated the fair value
of its common stock as of April 2000 and determined that the estimated fair value was greater than $2.94 per share. The deemed dividend
increased the loss allocable to common stockholders, in the calculation of basic net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2000.

The issuance costs of the Series A and Series B convertible preferred stock is being amortized by periodic charges for accretion. These
accretion amounts increase net loss attributable to common shareholders.

10. Stock option plan
In December 1997, the Company authorized the 1998 Stock Option Plan, the Plan, whereby 1,500,000 shares of the Company's common
stock have been reserved for issuance to employees, officers, consultants and advisors of the Company. During 1999, the Company
amended the Plan by increasing the total number of shares reserved under the Plan to 2,130,000. During 2000, the Company amended the
Plan by increasing the total number of shares reserved under the Plan to 4,400,000 and to provide for, among other things, an annual
increase in the number of reserved shares on the first day of each of the Company's fiscal years beginning in 2002 and ending in 2008.
Options granted under the Plan may be either incentive stock options or nonstatutory stock options as determined by the Board of Directors.
The term of the Plan is ten years.

Incentive stock options may be issued only to employees of the Company and have a maximum term of ten years from the date of grant. The
exercise price for incentive stock options may not be less than 100% of the estimated fair market value of the common stock at the time of the
grant. In the case of options granted to holders of more than 10% of the voting power of the Company, the exercise price may not be less than
110% of the estimated fair market value of the common stock at the time of grant, and the term of the option may not exceed five years.
Options become exercisable in whole or in part from time to time as determined by the Board of Directors, which will administer the Plan.

Generally, options granted under the Plan vest 25% one year after the beginning of the vesting period and thereafter, ratably over three years.
Had the Company recorded compensation expense based on the estimated grant-date fair value consistent with the provisions of SFAS No.
123 for awards granted under the Plan during 1998, 1999 and 2000, there would have been an increase of $1,840, $4,540 and $96,750 on
the Company's net loss reported in 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively. The effects on loss per share would have been increases of $0.00,
$0.00 and $0.03 in 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.
For purposes of the computation of the pro forma effects on the net loss above, the fair value of each employee option is estimated using the
Black-Scholes method and using the following weighted-average assumptions: dividend yield of 0%, volatility of 70%, risk-free interest rate of
5.56% at the date of grant,
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and an expected life of four years. For purposes of estimating the fair value of options granted to non-employees, the same assumptions were
used and the contractual lives of the options were used for expected lives.

The weighted-average fair values of options granted were as follows:

Period from
January 1, 1998
(inception) to
December 31, 1998
Weightedaverage
exercise price

Exercise price less than market
value of stock

$

0.10

Year ended
December 31, 1999

Weightedaverage

Weightedaverage
exercise price

fair value

$

1.15

$

0.10

Year ended
December 31, 2000

Weightedaverage

Weighted
average

fair value

exercise price

$

2.09

$

Weighted
average
fair value

$

1.90

8.21

Activity under the Plan is as follows:

Options outstanding

Shares
available
for grant

Weightedaverage

Number

exercise
price

of shares

Shares reserved at Plan inception
Options granted

1,500,000

(367,500)

—
367,500

Balances, December 31, 1998
Additional shares reserved
Options granted
Options exercised
Options forfeited

1,132,500
630,000
(323,000)
—
52,292

Balances, December 31, 1999

1,491,792

Additional shares reserved
Options granted
Options exercised
Options forfeited

Balances, December 31, 2000

—
$

0.10

367,500
—
323,000
(20,208)
(52,292)

$

0.10

$
$
$

0.10
0.10
0.10

618,000

$

0.10

2,270,000
(1,630,500 )
—
77,313

1,630,500 $
(857,369 ) $
(77,313) $

1.90
0.49
0.19

2,208,605

1,313,818

2.07
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The following table summarizes information about all stock options outstanding at December 31, 2000:

—

$

Options outstanding
Options exercisable

Weightedaverage
Exercise
price

$
$
$
$

Number
of shares

0.29
3.00

272,818
269,500
620,500

5.00

151,000

0.10

1,313,818

Weightedaverage

remaining
contractual
life

Weightedaverage

Number

exercise
price

exercisable

7.80 years
9.55
9.84
9.98

$
$
$
$

0.10

86,976

0.29
3.00
5.00

0
0
0

9.37

$

2.07

86,976

exercise
price

$

0.10
0
0
0

$

0.10

2000 Directors' Stock Option Plan
The 2000 directors' stock option plan was adopted by the board of directors in November 2000 and has been submitted for approval by the
Company's stockholders. It will become effective upon the date of the Company's initial public offering. A total of 400,000 shares of common
stock have been reserved for issuance under the 2000 directors' plan, all of which remain available for future grants.

The directors' plan provides that each person who is a non-employee director on the date of the Company's initial public offering and who has
not previously been granted a stock option by the Company, will be granted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase 25,000 shares of
common stock on the date of this offering. The plan further provides that each person who becomes a non-employee director after the
completion of the Company's initial public offering will be granted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock on
the date on which such individual first becomes a member of the board of directors. Each initial option shall vest at the rate of 25% of the total
number of shares subject to such option twelve months after the date of grant with the remaining shares vesting thereafter in equal monthly
installments. Thereafter, on the dates of each annual stockholder meeting, each non-employee director who has been a member of the board
of directors for at least six months will be granted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase 5,000 shares of common stock. Each annual option
shall vest at the rate of 100% of the total number of shares subject to such option on the day before the one-year anniversary of the grant date.
All options granted under the directors' plan will have a term of 10 years and an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of
grant.

11. Related party transactions
In June 1999, the Company entered into a development and license agreement with Genentech and received $1,000,000 for sale of the right
to use certain of the Company's proprietary antibodies. The development and licensing agreement provides for additional payments of up to
$61.0 million to the Company upon the achievement of milestones, includes a right of first refusal and noncompetition provisions with
respect to certain of the Company's technology, and provides for royalties on the eventual sale of covered products. Genentech has the option
under certain circumstances to license certain of the Company's proprietary
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antibodies. This agreement is subject to termination by Genentech upon 90 days notice or by either party if the other party enters bankruptcy
or breaches its material obligations. Genentech became a related party in December 1999 due to its investment in the Company's Series B
convertible preferred stock.

12. Employee benefit plan
In July 1998, the Company's Board of Directors approved the adoption of a 401(k) Plan for all of its employees. The Plan will allow eligible
employees to defer up to 15%, but no greater than $10,000, of their pretax compensation at the discretion of the employee. The Plan does not
provide for Company matching of employee contributions.

13. Subsequent event
In February 2001, the Company entered into a collaboration agreement with Medarex, Inc. to produce fully human monoclonal anitbodies to
certain breast cancer and melanoma antigen targets in order to develop and commercialize monoclonal antibody-based products. The
agreement calls for joint development of at least half of Seattle Genetics' breast cancer antigens and a specific melanoma antigen which are
identified by Seattle Genetics over the next three years. Under the terms of the agreement there will be sharing of all development,
manufacturing, and clinical costs of jointly developed products and of net profits and losses. Each party has the right to opt out of the joint
development of any antigen target and receive instead certain milestone and royalty payments. The agreement is subject to termination if
either side breaches its material obligations thereunder.
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Part II
Information Not Required in Prospectus
Item 13. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution
The following table sets forth the costs and expenses, other than underwriting discounts and commissions, payable by us in connection with
the sale of common stock being registered. All amounts are estimates except the SEC registration fee and the NASD filing fee and the
Nasdaq National Market listing fee.
Amount
to be Paid

SEC registration fee
NASD filing fee
Nasdaq National Market listing fee
Printing and engraving expenses
Legal fees and expenses
Accounting fees and expenses
Blue Sky qualification fees and expenses
Transfer Agent and Registrar fees
Miscellaneous fees and expenses
Total

$
$

25,200
10,160
94,000
175,000
575,000
350,000
15,000
4,000
51,640

$

1,300,000

*
to be filed by amendment

Item 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers
Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law authorizes a court to award, or a corporation's board of directors to grant, indemnity to
directors and officers in terms sufficiently broad to permit such indemnification under certain circumstances for liabilities (including
reimbursement for expenses incurred) arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Article VII of our Certificate of Incorporation
(Exhibit 3.1 hereto) and Article VI of our Bylaws (Exhibit 3.4 hereto) provide for indemnification of our directors, officers, employees and other
agents to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware General Corporation Law. In addition, we have entered into Indemnification
Agreements (Exhibit 10.29 hereto) with its officers and directors. The Underwriting Agreement (Exhibit 1.1) also provides for crossindemnification among us, and the Underwriters with respect to certain matters, including matters arising under the Securities Act.

Item 15. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
(a)

Since our inception, we have issued and sold the following unregistered securities (as adjusted to reflect the automatic conversion of
our outstanding preferred stock into common stock upon completion of this offering):
(1)

In December 1997, March 1998, April 1998 and June 1998, we issued and sold shares of our Series A convertible preferred
stock convertible into an aggregate of 6,950,000 shares of common stock to 12 investors for aggregate consideration of
$6,950,000.
(2)

In December 1999 and April 2000, we issued and sold shares of our Series B convertible preferred stock convertible into an
aggregate of 10,437,072 shares of common stock to 29 investors for aggregate consideration of approximately $30,684,992.
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(3)

As of December 31, 2000, we have issued 2,191,395 options to purchase shares of our common stock with a weighted
average price of $2.07 per share to a number of employees, consultants and directors pursuant to the 1998 stock option plan.
The issuances of securities described in Items 15(a)(1) and (a)(2) were deemed to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act in
reliance on Section 4(2) of such Securities Act as transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering. The recipients of securities in
each such transaction represented their intentions to acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view to or for sale in connection
with any distribution thereof and appropriate legends were affixed to the share certificates and warrants issued in such transactions. All
recipients had adequate access, through their relationships, to information about us. In addition, certain issuances described in Item 15(a)(3)
were deemed exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon Rule 701 promulgated thereunder in that they were offered
and sold either pursuant to written compensatory benefit plans or pursuant to a written contract relating to compensation, as provided by
Rule 701. In addition, such issuances were deemed to be exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act as transactions by
issuer not involving a public offering.
Item 16. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Exhibits
Number

1.1

3.1*
3.2*
3.3*
3.4*
3.5*
4.1
4.2*
5.1

9.1*
10.1†*

10.2†*
10.3†*
10.4†*
10.5†*

10.6†*
10.7*

10.8†*

Description

Form of Underwriting Agreement.
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Seattle Genetics, Inc.
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Seattle Genetics, Inc. (proposed).
Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Seattle Genetics, Inc.
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Seattle Genetics, Inc.
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Seattle Genetics, Inc. (proposed).
Specimen Stock Certificate.
Amended and Restated Investors' Rights Agreement dated December 22, 1999 between Seattle
Genetics, Inc. and certain of its stockholders.
Opinion of Venture Law Group regarding the legality of the common stock being registered.
Amended and Restated Voting Agreement dated December 22, 1999 between Seattle Genetics,
Inc. and certain of its stockholders.
Research Agreement dated June 8, 1993 between Ixsys, Inc. and Bristol-Myers Squibb
Company.
License Agreement dated June 8, 1993 between Ixsys, Inc. and Bristol-Myers Squibb Company.
Semi-Exclusive License Agreement dated September 30, 1993 between Bristol-Myers Squibb
Company and Enzon, Inc.
License Agreement dated January 1, 1998 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and Brookhaven
Science Associates, LLC.
License Agreement dated March 30, 1998 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and Bristol-Myers
Squibb Company.
Amendment Letter to the Bristol-Myers Squibb Company License Agreement dated August 10,
1999 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and Bristol-Myers Squibb Company.
Amendment Agreement to the Bristol-Myers Squibb Company License Agreement dated
July 26, 2000 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and Bristol-Myers Squibb Company.
License Agreement dated June 14, 1998 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and MabTech AB.
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10.9†* First Amendment to the MabTech License Agreement dated January 31, 2000 between Seattle
Genetics, Inc. and MabTech AB.
10.10†* Non-Exclusive Public Health Service Patent Agreement dated September 15, 1998 among
Seattle Genetics, Inc. and agencies within the United States Public Health Service.
10.11†* Amendment No. 1 to Public Health Service Patent Agreement dated July 14, 2000 among
Seattle Genetics, Inc. and agencies within the United States Public Health Service.
10.12†* Non-Exclusive License Agreement dated September 29, 1998 between Seattle Genetics, Inc.
and Creative BioMolecules, Inc.
10.13†* Sublease Agreement dated February 5, 1999 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and ICOS
Corporation.
10.14†* Development Agreement dated July 20, 1999 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and Genzyme
Transgenic Corporation.
10.15†* License Agreement dated September 20, 1999 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and the University
of Miami.
10.16†* Amendment No. 1 to the University of Miami License Agreement dated August 4, 2000 between
Seattle Genetics, Inc. and the University of Miami.
10.17†* Development and License Agreement dated June 30, 1999 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and

10.17†* Development and License Agreement dated June 30, 1999 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and
Genentech, Inc.
10.18†* License Agreement dated January 24, 2000 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and Genentech, Inc.
10.19†* License Agreement dated February 3, 2000 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and the Arizona Board
of Regents.
10.20†* Manufacturing Agreement dated October 16, 2000 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and ICOS
Corporation.
10.21*† Lease Agreement dated December 1, 2000 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and WCM132-302,
LLC.
10.22† Collaboration Agreement dated February 2, 2001 between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and Medarex,
Inc.
10.23 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated February 2, 2001 between Seattle Genetics, Inc.,
and Medarex, Inc.
10.25* Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan.
10.26* 1998 Employee Stock Bonus Plan.
10.27* 2000 Directors' Stock Option Plan
10.28* 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
10.29*† Form of Indemnification Agreement between Seattle Genetics, Inc. and each of its officers and
directors.
23.1 Consent of Independent Accountants
23.2 Consent of Venture Law Group (included in Exhibit 5.1).
24.1* Power of Attorney (included in signature page to Registration Statement).
27.1* Financial Data Schedule

*
Previously filed.

†
Confidential treatment requested as to certain portions of this Exhibit.
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(b) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedules not listed above have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the
financial statements or notes thereto.

Item 17. Undertakings
The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to provide to the underwriters at the closing specified in the underwriting agreements
certificates in such denominations and registered in such names as required by the underwriters to permit prompt delivery to each purchaser.
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons
of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and
Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act, and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event
that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director,
officer, or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has
been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against
public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:
(1)

For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as
part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to
Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was
declared effective.

(2)
For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of
prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such
securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant has duly caused this amendment to Registration Statement to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Kirkland, State of Washington on February 8, 2001.

SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
/s/ H. PERRY FELL

By:

H. Perry Fell
Chief Executive Officer
/s/ CLAY B. SIEGALL

By:

Clay B. Siegall
President and Chief Scientific Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this amendment to Registration Statement has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:
Signature

/s/ H. PERRY FELL

Title

Date

Chief Executive Officer

February 8, 2001

President, Chief Scientific Officer

February 8, 2001

Chief Financial Officer

February 8, 2001

Director

February 8, 2001

Director

February 8, 2001

Director

February 8, 2001

H. Perry Fell
/s/ CLAY B. SIEGALL

Clay B. Siegall

*
Tim J. Carroll
*
Charles P. Waite, Jr.

*
Louis C. Bock

*
Karl Erik Hellström
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*

Director

February 8, 2001

Director

February 8, 2001

Michael F. Powell

*
Marc E. Lippman

*By:

/s/ H. PERRY FELL

H. Perry Fell
Attorney-in-Fact

*By:

/s/ CLAY B. SIEGALL

Clay B. Siegall

Attorney-in-Fact
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SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
[

] Shares of Common Stock

Underwriting Agreement
February [ ], 2001
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
CIBC World Markets Corp.
Banc of America Securities LLC
As Representatives of the several Underwriters
listed in Schedule I hereto
c/o J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
60 Wall Street
New York, New York 10260

Ladies and Gentlemen:
Seattle Genetics, Inc. a Delaware corporation (the " Company "), proposes to issue and sell to the several Underwriters listed in Schedule I
hereto (the "Underwriters "), for whom you are acting as representatives (the "Representatives "), an aggregate of [
] shares (the
"Underwritten Shares") of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company (the " Common Stock "). In addition, for the sole
purpose of covering over-allotments in connection with the sale of the Underwritten Shares, the Company proposes to issue and sell to the
Underwriters, at the option of the Underwriters, up to an additional [
] shares (the " Option Shares ") of Common Stock. The Underwritten
Shares and the Option Shares are herein referred to as the " Shares."

As part of the offering contemplated by this Agreement, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (in such capacity, the " Designated Underwriter ") has
agreed to reserve out of the Underwritten Shares purchased by them under this Agreement, up to five percent or [
] shares, for sale to the
Company's directors, officers, employees and other parties associated with the Company (collectively, " Participants "), as set forth in the
Prospectus (as defined herein) under the heading "Underwriting" (the " Directed Share Program "). The Underwritten Shares to be sold by
the Designated Underwriter pursuant to the Directed Share Program (the " Directed Shares ") will be sold by the Designated Underwriter
pursuant to this Agreement at the public offering price. Any Directed Shares not orally confirmed for purchase by a Participant by the end of
the business day on which this Agreement is executed will be offered to the public by the Underwriters as set forth in the Prospectus.

The Company has prepared and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the " Commission "), in accordance with the
provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder (collectively, the
"Securities Act"), a registration statement, including a prospectus, relating to the Shares and to [ ] shares of Common Stock to be sold to
Genentech, Inc. ("Genentech ") pursuant to an agreement between the Company and Genentech (the " Genentech Shares "). The
registration statement as amended at the time when it became or shall become effective, including information (if any) deemed to be part of
the registration statement at the time of effectiveness pursuant to Rule 430A under the Securities Act, is referred to in this Agreement as the
"Registration Statement ," and the prospectus in the form first used to confirm sales of Shares is referred to in this Agreement as the
"Prospectus ." If the Company has filed an abbreviated registration statement pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act (the
"Rule 462 Registration Statement "), then any reference herein to the term "Registration Statement " shall be deemed to include such
Rule 462 Registration Statement. The term "preliminary prospectus" means any preliminary prospectus filed as part of the Registration
Statement as originally filed or as part of any amendment thereto, or filed pursuant to Rule 424 under the Securities Act.

The Company hereby agrees with the Underwriters as follows:
1. The Company agrees to issue and sell the Underwritten Shares to the several Underwriters as hereinafter provided, and each
Underwriter, upon the basis of the representations and warranties herein contained, but subject to the conditions hereinafter stated, agrees to
purchase, severally and not jointly, from the Company at a purchase price per share of $[ ] (the "Purchase Price ") the number of
Underwritten Shares to be purchased by such Underwriter as set forth opposite the name of such Underwriter in Schedule I hereto. Each
Underwriter, upon the basis of the representations and warranties herein contained, but subject to the conditions hereinafter stated, also
agrees to purchase, severally and not jointly, the Genentech Shares at the Purchase Price on the terms and conditions set forth in Section 9.
If the Underwriters purchase any Genentech Shares, the term "Shares" used herein shall be deemed to include the Genentech Shares.

In addition, the Company agrees to issue and sell the Option Shares to the several Underwriters as hereinafter provided, and each
Underwriter, upon the basis of the representations and warranties herein contained, but subject to the conditions hereinafter stated, shall
have the option to purchase, severally and not jointly, from the Company at the Purchase Price that portion of the number of Option Shares
as to which such election shall have been exercised (to be adjusted by you so as to eliminate fractional shares) determined by multiplying
such number of Option Shares by a fraction, the numerator of which is the maximum number of Underwritten Shares which such
Underwriter is entitled to purchase as set forth opposite the name of such Underwriter in Schedule I hereto and the denominator of which is
the maximum number of Underwritten Shares which all of the Underwriters are entitled to purchase hereunder, for the sole purpose of
covering over-allotments (if any) in the sale of Underwritten Shares by the several Underwriters.

The Underwriters may exercise the option to purchase the Option Shares at any time (but not more than once) on or before the thirtieth
day following the date of this Agreement, by written notice from the Representatives to the Company. Such notice shall set forth the
aggregate number of Option Shares as to which the option is being exercised and the date and time when the Option Shares are to be
delivered and paid for, which may be the same date and time as the Closing Date (as hereinafter defined) but shall not be earlier than the
Closing Date nor later than the tenth full Business Day (as hereinafter defined) after the date of such notice (unless such time and date are
postponed in accordance with the provisions of Section 9 hereof). Any such notice shall be given at least two Business Days prior to the date
and time of delivery specified therein.

2. The Company understands that the Underwriters intend (i) to make a public offering of the Shares as soon after (A) the Registration
Statement has become effective and (B) the parties hereto have executed and delivered this Agreement as in the judgment of the
Representatives is advisable and (ii) initially to offer the Shares upon the terms set forth in the Prospectus.

3. Payment for the Shares shall be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds to the account specified by the Company to the
Representatives, in the case of the Underwritten Shares, on [
], 2001, or at such other time on the same or such other date, not later than
the fifth Business Day thereafter, as the Representatives and the Company may agree upon in writing, or, in the case of the Option Shares,
on the date and time specified by the Representatives in the written notice of the Underwriters' election to purchase such Option Shares. The
time and date of such payment for the Underwritten Shares is referred to herein as the " Closing Date ," and the time and date for such
payment for the Option Shares, if other than the Closing Date, is herein referred to as the " Additional Closing Date ." As used herein, the
term "Business Day " means any day other than a day on which banks are permitted or required to be closed in New York City or Seattle,
Washington.

Payment for the Shares to be purchased on the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, shall be made against
delivery to the Representatives for the respective accounts of the several Underwriters of the Shares to be purchased on such date registered
in such names and in

2
such denominations as the Representatives shall request in writing not later than two full Business Days prior to the Closing Date or the
Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, with any transfer taxes payable in connection with the transfer to the Underwriters of the
Shares duly paid by the Company. The certificates for the Shares will be made available for inspection and packaging by the Representatives
at the office of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. set forth above not later than 1:00 P.M., New York City time, on the Business Day prior to the
Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be.
4. The Company hereby represents and warrants to each of the several Underwriters that:
(a) no order preventing or suspending the use of any preliminary prospectus has been issued by the Commission, and each
preliminary prospectus filed as part of the Registration Statement as originally filed or as part of any amendment thereto, or filed
pursuant to Rule 424 under the Securities Act, complied when so filed in all material respects with the Securities Act, and did not
contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided that the foregoing
representations and warranties shall not apply to any statements or omissions made in reliance upon and in conformity with
information relating to any Underwriter furnished to the Company in writing by such Underwriter through the Representatives
expressly for use therein;
(b) no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement has been issued and no proceeding for that purpose
has been instituted or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened by the Commission; the Registration Statement and the
Prospectus (as amended or supplemented if the Company shall have furnished any amendments or supplements thereto) comply, or
will comply, as the case may be, in all material respects with the Securities Act and do not and will not, as of the applicable effective
date as to the Registration Statement and any amendment thereto and as of the date of the Prospectus and any amendment or
supplement thereto, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and the Prospectus, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, at the
Closing Date or Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading,
except that the foregoing representations and warranties shall not apply to any statements or omissions in the Registration Statement
or the Prospectus made in reliance upon and in conformity with information relating to any Underwriter furnished to the Company in
writing by such Underwriter through the Representatives expressly for use therein;
(c) the financial statements, and the related notes thereto, included in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus present fairly
the financial position of the Company as of the dates indicated and the results of their operations and changes in their cash flows for
the periods specified; said financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applied
on a consistent basis, and the supporting schedules included in the Registration Statement present fairly the information required to
be stated therein; and the pro forma financial information, and the related notes thereto, included in the Registration Statement and
the Prospectus has been prepared in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the " Exchange Act"), as applicable, and is based upon good faith estimates and assumptions believed by the Company
to be reasonable;

(d) since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, there has not been
any change in the capital stock (except for the exercise of stock options or the issuance of shares pursuant to the Company's

employee stock plan) or long-term debt of the Company, or any material adverse change, or any development that would
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reasonably be expected to cause a prospective material adverse change, in or affecting the general affairs, business, prospects,
management, financial position, stockholders' equity or results of operations of the Company, (a " Material Adverse Change"),
otherwise than as set forth or contemplated in the Prospectus; and except as set forth or contemplated in the Registration Statement
and the Prospectus, the Company has not entered into any transaction or agreement (whether or not in the ordinary course of
business) material to the Company;
(e) the Company has been duly incorporated and is validly existing as a corporation in good standing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, with power and authority (corporate and other) to own its properties and conduct its business as described in the
Registration Statement and the Prospectus, and has been duly qualified as a foreign corporation for the transaction of business and is
in good standing under the laws of each other jurisdiction in which it owns or leases properties, or conducts any business, so as to
require such qualification, other than where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a material adverse effect
on the general affairs, business, prospects, management, financial position, stockholders' equity or results of operations of the
Company, (a "Material Adverse Effect ");

(f) this Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Company;
(g) the Company has an authorized capitalization as set forth in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus and such authorized
capital stock conforms as to legal matters to the description thereof set forth in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, and all
of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company have been duly authorized and validly issued, are fully paid and nonassessable and are not subject to any pre-emptive or similar rights; and, except as described in or expressly contemplated by the
Registration Statement and the Prospectus, there are no outstanding rights (including, without limitation, pre-emptive rights),
warrants or options to acquire, or instruments convertible into or exchangeable for, any shares of capital stock or other equity interest
in the Company, or any contract, commitment, agreement, understanding or arrangement of any kind relating to the issuance of any
capital stock of the Company, any such convertible or exchangeable securities or any such rights, warrants or options; the Company
has no subsidiaries and does not own any shares of capital stock or other equity interests or any instruments convertible into or
exchangeable for, any shares of capital stock or other equity interest, or any contract, commitment, agreement, understanding or
arrangement of any kind relating to the issuance of any capital stock, any such convertible or exchangeable securities or any such
rights, warrants or options of any third party, except for such shares of capital stock purchased pursuant to the Company's routine
investment program.

(h) the Shares have been duly authorized, and, when issued and delivered to and paid for by the Underwriters in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement, will be duly issued and will be fully paid and non-assessable and will conform to the description thereof
set forth in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus; and the issuance of the Shares is not subject to any preemptive or similar
rights;
(i) the Company is not, or with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both would not be, in violation of or in default under its
certificate of incorporation or by-laws or any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan agreement or other agreement or instrument to
which the Company is a party or by which it or any of its properties is bound, except for violations and defaults which would not,
individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect;
(j) the issuance and sale of the Shares and the performance by the Company of its obligations under this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and in the Prospectus will not conflict with, result in a breach of or violate any
of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan agreement or other agreement
or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which the Company is
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bound or to which any of the property or assets of the Company is subject, nor will any such action result in any violation of the
provisions of the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of the Company or any applicable law or statute or any order, rule or regulation
of any court or governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over the Company or any of its respective properties; and no consent,
approval, authorization, order, license, registration or qualification of or with any such court or governmental agency or body is
required for the issuance and sale of the Shares or the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and the Prospectus, except such consents, approvals, authorizations, orders, licenses, registrations or qualifications as
have been obtained or made under the Securities Act and as may be required under state securities or blue sky laws in connection
with the purchase and distribution of the Shares by the Underwriters;
(k) other than as set forth in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, there are no legal or governmental investigations,
actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened against or affecting the Company or any of its
properties or to which the Company is or may be a party or to which any property of the Company is or may be the subject which, if
determined adversely to the Company, could, individually or in the aggregate, have, or reasonably be expected to have, a Material
Adverse Effect, and, to the Company's knowledge, no such proceedings are threatened or contemplated by governmental authorities
or threatened by others;
(l) there are no statutes, regulations, contracts or other documents or legal or governmental investigations, actions, suits or

proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened that are required to be described in the Registration Statement
or Prospectus or to be filed as exhibits to the Registration Statement, as the case may be, that are not described or filed as required;

(m) the Company has good and marketable title in fee simple to all items of real property and good and marketable title to all
personal property owned by it, in each case free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects except such as are described or
referred to in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus or such as do not materially affect the value of such property and do not
interfere with the use made or proposed to be made of such property by the Company; and any real property and buildings held under
lease by the Company are held by them under valid, existing and enforceable leases with such exceptions as are not material and do
not interfere with the use made or proposed to be made of such property and buildings by the Company;
(n) no relationship, direct or indirect, exists between or among the Company, on the one hand, and the directors, officers,
stockholders, customers or suppliers of the Company, on the other hand, which is required by the Securities Act to be described in the
Registration Statement and the Prospectus which is not so described;
(o) no person has the right to require the Company to register any securities for offering and sale under the Securities Act by reason
of the filing of the Registration Statement with the Commission or by reason of the issuance and sale of the Shares, except for rights
which have been waived;
(p) the Company is not and, after giving effect to the offering and the sale of the Shares, will not be an "investment company" or an
entity "controlled" by and "investment company" as such terms are defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended
(the "Investment Company Act ");

(q) PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PWC"), who have certified certain financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries,
are independent public accountants as required by the Securities Act;
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(r) the Company has filed all federal, state, local and foreign tax returns which have been required to be filed and have paid all taxes
shown thereon and all assessments received by it to the extent that such taxes have become due and are not being contested in good
faith; and, except as disclosed in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, no tax deficiency has been determined adversely to
the Company which has had, nor does the Company have any knowledge of any tax deficiency, which if determined adversely to the
Company would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;
(s) the Company has not taken nor will it take, directly or indirectly, any action designed to, or that would be reasonably expected to,
cause or result in stabilization or manipulation of the price of the Common Stock;
(t) the statistical and market-related data included in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus are based on or derived from
sources which are believed by the Company to be reliable;
(u) except as described in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, the Company owns, possesses or has obtained all
licenses, permits, certificates, consents, orders, approvals and other authorizations from, and has made all declarations and filings
with, all federal, state, local and other governmental authorities (including foreign regulatory agencies), all self-regulatory
organizations and all courts and other tribunals, domestic or foreign, necessary to own or lease, as the case may be, and to operate its
properties and to carry on its business as conducted as of the date hereof, except where the failure to own, possess, obtain or make
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect, and the Company has not received any actual notice of any
proceeding relating to revocation or modification of any such license, permit, certificate, consent, order, approval or other authorization,
except as described in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, and the Company is in compliance with all laws and
regulations relating to the conduct of its business as conducted as of the date hereof, and all of the descriptions in the Registration
Statement and the Prospectus of the legal and governmental procedures and requirements of the United States Food and Drug
Administration (the "FDA") or any foreign, state or local governmental body exercising comparable authority are accurate in all
material respects;
(v) except as described in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, the Company owns, is licensed to use or otherwise
possesses adequate rights to use the patents, patent rights, licenses, inventions, trademarks, service marks, trade names,
copyrights and know-how, including trade secrets and other unpatented and/or unpatentable proprietary or confidential information,
systems, processes or procedures (collectively, the " Intellectual Property "), reasonably necessary to carry on the business conducted
by it, except to the extent that the failure to own, be licensed to use or otherwise possess adequate rights to use such Intellectual
Property would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; the Company has not
received any notice of infringement of or conflict with, and the Company has no knowledge of any infringement of or conflict with,
asserted rights of others with respect to its Intellectual Property which would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected
to result in a Material Adverse Effect; the discoveries, inventions, products or processes of the Company referred to in the Registration
Statement and the Prospectus do not, to the knowledge of the Company, infringe or conflict with any right or patent of any third party,
or any discovery, invention, product or process which is the subject of a patent application filed by any third party which patent
application has been published or is otherwise known to the Company which could, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect; except as set forth in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, the Company is
not obligated to pay a royalty, grant a license or provide other consideration to any third party in connection with its patents, patent
rights, licenses, inventions, trademarks, service marks, trade names, copyrights and
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know-how which could, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and no third party,
including any academic or governmental organization, possesses rights to the Intellectual Property which, if exercised, could
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;
(w) since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, the studies, tests
and preclinical and clinical trials conducted by or on behalf of the Company that are described in the Registration Statement and the
Prospectus were and, if still pending, are being conducted in accordance with experimental protocols, procedures and controls
pursuant to, where applicable, accepted professional scientific standards; the descriptions of the results of such studies, tests and trials
contained in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus are accurate and complete in all material respects; and the Company has
not received any notices or correspondence from the FDA or any foreign, state or local governmental body exercising comparable
authority requiring the termination, suspension or material modification of any studies, tests or preclinical or clinical trials conducted
by or on behalf of the Company which termination, suspension or material modification would reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect;
(x) there are no existing or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened labor disputes with the employees of the Company which
would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;
(y) the Company carries, or is covered by, insurance in such amounts and covering such risks as is adequate for the conduct of its
business and the value of its properties and as is customary for companies engaged in similar businesses in similar industries;
(z) the Company (i) is in compliance with any and all applicable foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the
protection of human health and safety, the environment or hazardous or toxic substances or wastes, pollutants or contaminants
(collectively, "Environmental Laws"), (ii) has received all permits, licenses or other approvals required of it under applicable
Environmental Laws to conduct its businesses and (iii) is in compliance with all terms and conditions of any such permit, license or
approval, except where such noncompliance with Environmental Laws, failure to receive required permits, licenses or other
approvals or failure to comply with the terms and conditions of such permits, licenses or approvals would not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;
(aa) each employee benefit plan, within the meaning of Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended ("ERISA"), that is maintained, administered or contributed to by the Company or any of its affiliates for employees or former
employees of the Company and its affiliates has been maintained in material compliance with its terms and the requirements of any
applicable statutes, orders, rules and regulations, including but not limited to ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (" Code"); no prohibited transaction, within the meaning of Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code, has occurred
with respect to any such plan excluding transactions effected pursuant to a statutory or administrative exemption; for each such plan
which is subject to the funding rules of Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, no "accumulated funding deficiency," as
defined in Section 412 of the Code, has been incurred, whether or not waived, and the fair market value of the assets of each such
plan (excluding for these purposes accrued but unpaid contributions) exceed the present value of all benefits accrued under such plan
determined using reasonable actuarial assumptions;

(bb) (i) the Registration Statement, the Prospectus and any preliminary prospectus comply, and any further amendments or
supplements thereto will comply, with any applicable laws or regulations of foreign jurisdictions in which the Prospectus or any
preliminary prospectus, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, are distributed in connection with the Directed Share
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Program, and (ii) no authorization, approval, consent, license, order, registration or qualification of or with any government,
governmental instrumentality or court, other than such as have been obtained, is necessary under the securities laws and regulations
of foreign jurisdictions in which the Directed Shares are offered outside the United States; and
(cc) the Company has not offered, or caused the Underwriters to offer, any Shares to any person pursuant to the Directed Share
Program with the specific intent to unlawfully influence (i) a customer or supplier of the Company to alter the customer's or supplier's
level or type of business with the Company or (ii) a trade journalist or publication to write or publish favorable information about the
Company or its products.

5. The Company covenants and agrees with each of the several Underwriters as follows:
(a) if the Registration Statement is not already effective, to use its best efforts to cause the Registration Statement to become
effective at the earliest possible time and, if required, to file the final Prospectus with the Commission within the time periods
specified by Rule 424(b) and Rule 430A under the Securities Act and to furnish copies of the Prospectus to the Underwriters in New
York City prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the Business Day next succeeding the date of this Agreement in such quantities
as the Representatives may reasonably request;
(b) to deliver, at the expense of the Company, to the Representatives five signed copies of the Registration Statement (as originally
filed) and each amendment thereto, in each case including exhibits, and to each other Underwriter a conformed copy of the
Registration Statement (as originally filed) and each amendment thereto, in each case without exhibits and, during the period
mentioned in paragraph (e) below, to each of the Underwriters as many copies of the Prospectus (including all amendments and
supplements thereto) as the Representatives may reasonably request;

(c) before filing any amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement or the Prospectus, whether before or after the time the
Registration Statement becomes effective, to furnish to the Representatives a copy of the proposed amendment or supplement for
review and not to file any such proposed amendment or supplement to which the Representatives reasonably object;
(d) to advise the Representatives promptly, and, upon request, to confirm such advice in writing, (i) when the Registration
Statement has become effective, (ii) when any amendment to the Registration Statement has been filed or becomes effective,
(iii) when any supplement to the Prospectus or any amended prospectus has been filed and to furnish the Representatives with
copies thereof, (iv) of any request by the Commission for any amendment to the Registration Statement or any amendment or
supplement to the Prospectus or for any additional information, (v) of the issuance by the Commission of any stop order suspending
the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or of any order preventing or suspending the use of any preliminary prospectus or the
Prospectus or the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for that purpose, (vi) of the occurrence of any event, during the period
mentioned in paragraph (e) below, as a result of which the Prospectus as then amended or supplemented would include an untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances when the Prospectus is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading, and (vii) of the receipt by the Company of any
notification with respect to any suspension of the qualification of the Shares for offer and sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or
threatening of any proceeding for such purpose; and to use its best efforts to prevent the issuance of any such stop order, or of any
order preventing or suspending the use of any preliminary prospectus or the Prospectus, or of any order suspending any such
qualification of the Shares, or notification of any such order thereof, and, if issued, to obtain as soon as possible the withdrawal
thereof;
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(e) if, during such period of time after the first date of the public offering of the Shares as in the opinion of counsel for the
Underwriters a prospectus relating to the Shares is required by law to be delivered in connection with sales by the Underwriters or any
dealer, any event shall occur as a result of which it is necessary to amend or supplement the Prospectus in order to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances when the Prospectus is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading, or if it is necessary
to amend or supplement the Prospectus to comply with law, forthwith to prepare and furnish, at the expense of the Company, to the
Underwriters and to the dealers (whose names and addresses the Representatives will furnish to the Company) to which Shares
may have been sold by the Representatives on behalf of the Underwriters and to any other dealers upon request, such amendments
or supplements to the Prospectus as may be necessary so that the statements in the Prospectus as so amended or supplemented will
not, in the light of the circumstances when the Prospectus is delivered to a purchaser, be misleading or so that the Prospectus will
comply with law;
(f) prior to any public offering of the Shares by the Underwriters, the Company will cooperate with the Representatives and counsel
to the Underwriters in connection with the registration and qualification of the Shares for offer and sale under the securities or blue sky
laws of such jurisdictions as the Representatives shall reasonably request and to continue such qualification in effect so long as
reasonably required for distribution of the Shares; provided that the Company shall not be required to file a general consent to service
of process in any jurisdiction;
(g) to make generally available to its security holders and to the Representatives as soon as practicable an earnings statement
covering a period of at least twelve months beginning with the first fiscal quarter of the Company occurring after the effective date of
the Registration Statement, which shall satisfy the provisions of Section 11(a) of the Securities Act and Rule 158 of the Commission
promulgated thereunder;

(h) so long as the Shares are outstanding, to furnish to the Representatives copies of all reports or other communications (financial
or other) furnished to holders of the Shares, and copies of any reports and financial statements furnished to or filed with the
Commission or any national securities exchange;
(i) for a period of 180 days after the date of the initial public offering of the Shares not to, without the prior written consent of J.P.
Morgan Securities Inc. on behalf of the Underwriters (i) directly or indirectly, offer, pledge, announce the intention to sell, sell, contract
to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase or
otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock or any securities of the Company which are
substantially similar to the Common Stock, including but not limited to any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable
for, or that represent the right to receive, Common Stock or any such substantially similar securities (including, but not limited to, any
securities which may be issued upon exercise of a stock option or warrant) or (ii) enter into any swap, option, future, forward or other
agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Common Stock or any such
substantially similar securities, whether any such transaction described in clause (i) or (ii) above is to be settled by delivery of
Common Stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise without the prior written consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., other
than any options granted or shares of Common Stock of the Company issued upon the exercise of options granted or to be granted
under the Company's employee or director stock option plans existing on the date of the Prospectus or shares of Common Stock
issued upon exercise of warrants existing on the date of the Prospectus, the Shares to be sold by the Company hereunder (including
the sale of the Shares to Genentech), any capital stock or securities exercisable or convertible into shares of capital stock of the
Company sold to Medarex, Inc. pursuant to private placement arrangements
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with the Company and the shares of common stock issued upon conversion of the preferred stock of the Company outstanding on the

date of the Prospectus;
(j) to use its best efforts to enforce the Section 1.14 of the Amended & Restated Investors' Rights Agreement, dated as of
December 22, 1999 (the "Lock-up Provision"), against all security holders of the Company party thereto and to not grant a release or
waiver from the Lock-up Provision to any such stockholder without the prior written consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. on behalf of
the Underwriters;
(k) to use the net proceeds received by the Company from the sale of the Shares pursuant to this agreement in the manner
specified in the Prospectus under the caption "Use of Proceeds";
(l) to file with the Commission such reports as may be required by Rule 463 under the Securities Act;

(m) whether or not the transactions contemplated in this Agreement are consummated or this Agreement is terminated, to pay or
cause to be paid all costs and expenses incident to the performance of its obligations hereunder, including without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, all costs and expenses (i) incident to the preparation, registration, transfer, execution and delivery of the
Shares, (ii) incident to the preparation, printing and filing under the Securities Act of the Registration Statement, the Prospectus and
any preliminary prospectus, including in each case all exhibits, amendments and supplements thereto, (iii) incurred in connection
with the listing of the Shares on the Nasdaq National Market, (iv) related to the filing with, and clearance of the offering by, the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., (v) in connection with the printing (including word processing and duplication costs)
and delivery of this Agreement and the furnishing to the Underwriters and dealers of copies of the Registration Statement and the
Prospectus, including mailing and shipping, as herein provided, (vi) any expenses incurred by the Company in connection with a
"road show" presentation to potential investors, (vii) the cost of preparing stock certificates, (viii) the cost and charges of the
Company's transfer agent and registrar, and (ix) costs and expenses (including all filing fees) incurred in connection with the
registration or qualification of the Shares under the laws of such jurisdictions as the Representatives may designate (including fees of
counsel for the Underwriters and its disbursements). It is understood, however, that, except as otherwise agreed by the Company and
the Underwriters and except as provided in this Section 5, Section 7 and Section 10 hereof, the Underwriters will pay all of their own
costs and expenses, including the fees of their counsel;
(n) in connection with the Directed Share Program, to ensure that the Directed Shares will be restricted to the extent required by the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (the " NASD") or the NASD rules from sale, transfer, assignment, pledge or
hypothecation for a period of three months following the date of the effectiveness of the Registration Statement. The Designated
Underwriters will notify the Company as to which Participants will need to be so restricted. The Company will direct the transfer agent
to place stop transfer restrictions upon such securities for such period of time; and
(o) to pay all reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel incurred by the Underwriters in connection with the Directed Shares
Program and stamp duties, similar taxes or duties or other taxes, if any, incurred by the Underwriters in connection with the Directed
Share Program.

Furthermore, the Company covenants with the Underwriters that the Company will comply with all applicable securities and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations in each foreign jurisdiction in which the Directed Shares are offered in connection with the Directed
Share Program.
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6. The several obligations of the Underwriters hereunder to purchase the Shares on the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as
the case may be, are subject to the performance by the Company of its obligations hereunder and to the following additional conditions:
(a) the Registration Statement shall have become effective (or if a post-effective amendment is required to be filed under the
Securities Act, such post-effective amendment shall have become effective) not later than 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date
hereof; and no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or any post-effective amendment shall be in
effect, and no proceedings for such purpose shall be pending before or threatened by the Commission; the Prospectus shall have
been filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) within the applicable time period prescribed for such filing by the rules and
regulations under the Securities Act and in accordance with Section 5(a) hereof; and all requests for additional information shall have
been complied with to the satisfaction of the Representatives;
(b) the representations and warranties of the Company contained herein are true and correct in all material respects (except for
representations and warranties which are qualified by materiality) on and as of the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the
case may be, as if made on and as of the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, and the Company shall
have complied with all agreements and all conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied hereunder at or prior to the Closing Date
or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be;

(c) since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Prospectus, there shall not have been any change in the capital
stock or long-term debt of the Company, or any Material Adverse Change, otherwise than as set forth or contemplated in the
Prospectus, the effect of which in the judgment of the Representatives makes it impracticable or inadvisable to proceed with the public
offering or the delivery of the Shares on the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, on the terms and in the
manner contemplated in the Prospectus; and the Company has not sustained since the date of the latest audited financial statements
included in the Prospectus any material loss or interference with its business from fire, explosion, flood or other calamity, whether or
not covered by insurance, or from any labor dispute or court or governmental action, order or decree, otherwise than as set forth or
contemplated in the Prospectus;

(d) the Representatives shall have received on and as of the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, a
certificate of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, satisfactory to the Representatives, to the effect
set forth in subsections (a) through (c) (with respect to the respective representations, warranties, agreements and conditions of the
Company) of this Section 6 and to the further effect that there has not occurred any Material Adverse Change from that set forth or
contemplated in the Registration Statement;

(e) Venture Law Group, a Professional Corporation (" VLG"), counsel for the Company, shall have furnished to the Representatives
their written opinion, dated the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, in substantially the form of Annex A
attached hereto.

The opinion of VLG described above shall be rendered to the Underwriters at the request of the Company and shall so state therein;
(f) Seed Law Group and Pennie & Edmonds LLP, each IP Counsel for the Company (" IP Counsel") shall have furnished to the
Representatives their written opinion, dated the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, in substantially the
form of Annex B and Annex C attached hereto.

The opinion of IP Counsel described above shall be rendered to the Underwriters at the request of the Company and shall so state
therein;
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(g) on the date hereof and the effective date of the most recently filed post-effective amendment filed on or subsequent to the date
hereof to the Registration Statement and also on the Closing Date or Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, PWC shall have
furnished to you letters, dated the respective dates of delivery thereof, in form and substance satisfactory to you, containing
statements and information of the type customarily included in accountants' "comfort letters" to underwriters with respect to the
financial statements and certain financial information contained or incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement and the
Prospectus;
(h) the Representatives shall have received on and as of the Closing Date or Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, an
opinion of Cahill Gordon & Reindel, counsel to the Underwriters, with respect to the Registration Statement, the Prospectus and other
related matters as the Representatives may reasonably request, and such counsel shall have received such papers and information
as they may reasonably request to enable them to pass upon such matters;
(i) the Shares to be delivered on the Closing Date or Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, shall have been approved for
quotation on the Nasdaq National Market, subject to official notice of issuance;

(j) on or prior to the Closing Date or Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, the Company shall have furnished to the
Representatives such further certificates and documents as the Representatives shall reasonably request; and
(k) the "lock-up" agreements, each substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto, among you and the directors, officers and certain
shareholders (as listed on Exhibit B, which list includes all holders of Common Stock of the Company) of the Company relating to
sales and certain other dispositions of shares of Common Stock or certain other securities, delivered to you on or before the date
hereof, shall be in full force and effect on the Closing Date or Additional Closing Date, as the case may be.

7. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each Underwriter, each affiliate of any Underwriter which assists such
Underwriter in the distribution of Shares and each person, if any, who controls any Underwriter within the meaning of either Section 15 of
the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, from and against any and all losses, claims, damages and liabilities (including, without
limitation, the legal fees and other expenses incurred in connection with any suit, action or proceeding or any claim asserted) caused by any
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Registration Statement or the Prospectus (as amended or
supplemented if the Company shall have furnished any amendments or supplements thereto) or any preliminary prospectus, or caused by
any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein
not misleading, except insofar as such losses, claims, damages or liabilities are caused by any untrue statement or omission or alleged
untrue statement or omission made in reliance upon and in conformity with information relating to any Underwriter furnished to the
Company in writing by such Underwriter through the Representatives expressly for use therein; provided, however, that the foregoing
indemnity agreement with respect to any preliminary prospectus shall not inure to the benefit of any Underwriter (or affiliate of such
Underwriter which assists such Underwriter in the distribution of Shares) from whom the persons asserting any such losses, claims,
damages, or liabilities purchased Shares, or any person controlling such Underwriter, if a copy of the Prospectus (as then amended or
supplemented if the Company shall have furnished any amendments or supplements thereto) was not sent or given by or on behalf of such
Underwriter to such person, if required by law so to have been delivered, at or prior to the written confirmation of the sale of the Shares to
such person, and if the Prospectus (as so amended or supplemented) would have cured the defect giving rise to such loss, claim, damage or
liability, unless such failure to send or give a copy of the Prospectus is the result of noncompliance by the Company with Section 5(a) or
(b) hereof.
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The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each of the Designated Underwriters and each person, if any, who controls either
Designated Underwriter within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act (the " Designated

Entities"), from and against any and all losses, claims, damages and liabilities (including, without limitation, any legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred in connection with defending or investigating any such action or claim) (i) caused by any untrue statement or alleged
untrue statement of a material fact contained in any material prepared by or with the consent of the Company for distribution to Participants in
connection with the Directed Share Program or caused by any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading; (ii) caused by the failure of any Participant to pay for and accept
delivery of Directed Shares that the Participant agreed to purchase; or (iii) related to, arising out of, or in connection with the Directed Share
Program, other than losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or expenses relating thereto) that are finally judicially determined to have resulted
from the bad faith or gross negligence of the Designated Entities.
The Company also agrees to indemnify and hold harmless, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (" J.P. Morgan") and each person, if any, who
controls J.P. Morgan within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, from and against any
and all losses, claims, damages and liabilities incurred as a result of J.P. Morgan's participation as a "qualified independent underwriter"
within the meaning of the Rules of Conduct of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. in connection with the offering of the
Shares.
Each Underwriter agrees, severally and not jointly, to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, its directors, its officers who sign the
Registration Statement and each person who controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act and Section 20 of
the Exchange Act to the same extent as the foregoing indemnity from the Company to each Underwriter, but only with reference to
information relating to such Underwriter furnished to the Company in writing by such Underwriter through the Representatives expressly for
use in the Registration Statement, the Prospectus, any amendment or supplement thereto, or any preliminary prospectus.
If any suit, action, proceeding (including any governmental or regulatory investigation), claim or demand shall be brought or asserted
against any person in respect of which indemnity may be sought pursuant to the preceding paragraphs of this Section 7, such person (the
"Indemnified Person ") shall promptly notify the person or persons against whom such indemnity may be sought (each, an " Indemnifying
Person") in writing, and such Indemnifying Persons, upon request of the Indemnified Person, shall retain counsel reasonably satisfactory to
the Indemnified Person to represent the Indemnified Person and any others the Indemnifying Persons may designate in such proceeding
and shall pay the fees and expenses of such counsel related to such proceeding. In any such proceeding, any Indemnified Person shall have
the right to retain its own counsel, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Indemnified Person and not the
Indemnifying Persons unless (i) the Indemnifying Persons and the Indemnified Person shall have mutually agreed to the contrary, (ii) the
Indemnifying Person has failed within a reasonable time to retain counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Person or (iii) the
named parties in any such proceeding (including any impleaded parties) include both an Indemnifying Person and the Indemnified Person
and representation of both parties by the same counsel would be inappropriate due to actual or potential differing interests between them. It is
understood that no Indemnifying Person shall, in connection with any proceeding or related proceeding in the same jurisdiction, be liable for
the fees and expenses of more than one separate firm (in addition to any local counsel) for all Indemnified Persons, and that all such fees
and expenses shall be reimbursed as they are incurred; provided , however that if indemnity may be sought pursuant to the third paragraph
of this Section 7 in respect of such proceeding, then in addition to such separate firm of the Underwriters and such control persons of the
Underwriters, the indemnifying party shall be liable for the fees and expenses of not more than one separate firm (in
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addition to any local counsel) for J.P. Morgan in its capacity as a "qualified independent underwriter" and all persons, if any, who control J.P.
Morgan within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act. Any such separate firm for the
Underwriters, each affiliate of any Underwriter which assists such Underwriter in the distribution of the Shares and such control persons of
Underwriters shall be designated in writing by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and any such separate firm for the Company, its directors, its
officers who sign the Registration Statement and such control persons of the Company shall be designated in writing by the Company.
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, if indemnity may be sought pursuant to the second paragraph of this Section 7 in
respect of such action or proceeding, then in addition to such separate firm for the Indemnified Persons, the Indemnifying Person shall be
liable for the reasonable fees and expenses of not more than one separate firm (in addition to any local counsel) for the Designated
Underwriters for the defense of any losses, claims, damages and liabilities arising out of the Directed Share Program, and all other persons,
if any, who control either of the Designated Underwriters within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the
Exchange Act. No Indemnifying Person shall be liable for any settlement of any proceeding effected without its written consent, but if settled
with such consent or if there be a final judgment for the plaintiff, each Indemnifying Person agrees to indemnify any Indemnified Person
from and against any loss or liability by reason of such settlement or judgment. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, if at any time an
Indemnified Person shall have requested an Indemnifying Person to reimburse the Indemnified Person for fees and expenses of counsel as
contemplated by the second and third sentences of this paragraph, such Indemnifying Person agrees that it shall be liable for any settlement
of any proceeding effected without its written consent if (i) such settlement is entered into more than 90 days after receipt by such
Indemnifying Person of the aforesaid request and (ii) such Indemnifying Person shall not have reimbursed the Indemnified Person in
accordance with such request prior to the date of such settlement. No Indemnifying Person shall, without the prior written consent of the
Indemnified Person, effect any settlement of any pending or threatened proceeding in respect of which any Indemnified Person is or could
have been a party and indemnity could have been sought hereunder by such Indemnified Person, unless such settlement includes an
unconditional release of such Indemnified Person from all liability on claims that are the subject matter of such proceeding.
If the indemnification provided for in the first five paragraphs of this Section 7 is unavailable to an Indemnified Person or insufficient in
respect of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities referred to therein, then each Indemnifying Person under such paragraph, in lieu of
indemnifying such Indemnified Person thereunder, shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such Indemnified Person as a result of
such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (i) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative benefits received by the Company on
the one hand and the Underwriters or J.P. Morgan in its capacity as a "qualified independent underwriter", as the case may be, on the other
hand from the offering of the Shares or (ii) if the allocation provided by clause (i) above is not permitted by applicable law, in such proportion

as is appropriate to reflect not only the relative benefits referred to in clause (i) above but also the relative fault of the Company on the one
hand and the Underwriters or J.P. Morgan in its capacity as a "qualified independent underwriter", as the case may be, on the other hand in
connection with the statements or omissions that resulted in such losses, claims, damages or liabilities, as well as any other relevant
equitable considerations. The relative benefits received by the Company on the one hand and the Underwriters or J.P. Morgan in its capacity
as a "qualified independent underwriter", as the case may be, on the other hand shall be deemed to be in the same respective proportions as
the net proceeds from the offering (before deducting expenses) received by the Company and the total underwriting discounts received by the
Underwriters, in each case as set forth in the table on the cover of the Prospectus, bear to the aggregate public offering price of the Shares.
The relative fault of the Company on the one hand and the Underwriters or J.P. Morgan in its capacity as a "qualified independent
underwriter", as the case may be, on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged
untrue statement of a
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material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to information supplied by the Company or by the
Underwriters or J.P. Morgan in its capacity as a "qualified independent underwriter", as the case may be, and the parties' relative intent,
knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission.
The Company and the Underwriters agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section 7 were determined
by pro rata allocation (even if the Underwriters were treated as one entity for such purposes) or by any other method of allocation that does
not take account of the equitable considerations referred to in the immediately preceding paragraph. The amount paid or payable by an
Indemnified Person as a result of the losses, claims, damages and liabilities referred to in the immediately preceding paragraph shall be
deemed to include, subject to the limitations set forth above, any legal or other expenses incurred by such Indemnified Person in connection
with investigating or defending any such action or claim. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 7, in no event shall an Underwriter
be required to contribute any amount in excess of the amount by which the total price at which the Shares underwritten by it and distributed
to the public were offered to the public exceeds the amount of any damages that such Underwriter has otherwise been required to pay by
reason of such untrue or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission. No person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within
the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent
misrepresentation. The Underwriters' obligations to contribute pursuant to this Section 7 are several in proportion to the respective number of
Shares set forth opposite their names in Schedule I hereto, and not joint.
The remedies provided for in this Section 7 are not exclusive and shall not limit any rights or remedies which may otherwise be available
to any indemnified party at law or in equity.
The indemnity and contribution agreements contained in this Section 7 and the representations and warranties of the Company set forth
in this Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and effect regardless of (i) any termination of this Agreement, (ii) any investigation
made by or on behalf of any Underwriter or any person controlling any Underwriter or by or on behalf of the Company, its officers or directors
or any person controlling the Company and (iii) acceptance of and payment for any of the Shares.

8. Notwithstanding anything herein contained, this Agreement (or the obligations of the several Underwriters with respect to the Option
Shares) may be terminated in the absolute discretion of the Representatives, by notice given to the Company, if after the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and prior to the Closing Date (or, in the case of the Option Shares, prior to the Additional Closing Date) (i) trading
generally shall have been suspended or materially limited on or by, as the case may be, any of the New York Stock Exchange, the American
Stock Exchange, the Nasdaq National Market, the Chicago Board Options Exchange, the Chicago Mercantile Exchange or the Chicago
Board of Trade, (ii) trading of any securities of or guaranteed by the Company shall have been suspended on any exchange or in any overthe-counter market, (iii) a general moratorium on commercial banking activities in New York shall have been declared by either federal or
New York State authorities, or (iv) there shall have occurred any outbreak or escalation of hostilities or any change in financial markets or any
calamity or crisis that, in the judgment of the Representatives, is material and adverse and which, in the judgment of the Representatives,
makes it impracticable to market the Shares being delivered at the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, on the
terms and in the manner contemplated in the Prospectus.
9. This Agreement shall become effective upon the later of (x) execution and delivery hereof by the parties hereto and (y) release of
notification of the effectiveness of the Registration Statement (or, if applicable, any post-effective amendment) by the Commission.
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If on the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case may be, (1) any one or more of the Underwriters shall fail or refuse to
purchase Shares which it or they have agreed to purchase hereunder on such date, and the aggregate number of Shares which such
defaulting Underwriter or Underwriters agreed but failed or refused to purchase is not more than one-tenth of the aggregate number of Shares
to be purchased on such date, or (2) if for any reason Genentech shall fail or refuse to purchase and pay for the Genentech Shares, the other
Underwriters shall be obligated severally in the proportions that the number of Shares set forth opposite their respective names in Schedule I
bears to the aggregate number of Underwritten Shares set forth opposite the names of all such non-defaulting Underwriters, or in such other
proportions as the Representatives may specify, to purchase the Shares which such defaulting Underwriter or Underwriters or Genentech,
as the case may be, agreed but failed or refused to purchase on such date; provided that in no event shall the number of Shares that any
Underwriter has agreed to purchase pursuant to Section 1 be increased pursuant to this Section 9 by an amount in excess of one-tenth of
such number of Shares without the written consent of such Underwriter. If on the Closing Date or the Additional Closing Date, as the case
may be, any Underwriter or Underwriters shall fail or refuse to purchase Shares which it or they have agreed to purchase hereunder on such
date, and the aggregate number of Shares with respect to which such default occurs is more than one-tenth of the aggregate number of

Shares to be purchased on such date, and arrangements satisfactory to the Representatives for the purchase of such Shares are not made
within 36 hours after such default, this Agreement (or the obligations of the several Underwriters to purchase the Option Shares, as the case
may be) shall terminate without liability on the part of any non-defaulting Underwriter. In any such case the Representatives shall have the
right to postpone the Closing Date (or, in the case of the Option Shares, the Additional Closing Date), but in no event for longer than seven
days, in order that the required changes, if any, in the Registration Statement and in the Prospectus or in any other documents or
arrangements may be effected. Any action taken under this paragraph shall not relieve any defaulting Underwriter from liability in respect of
any default of such Underwriter under this Agreement.
10. If this Agreement shall be terminated by the Underwriters, or any of them, because of any failure or refusal on the part of the Company
to comply with the terms or to fulfill any of the conditions of this Agreement, or if for any reason the Company shall be unable to perform its
obligations under this Agreement or any condition of the Underwriters' obligations cannot be fulfilled, the Company agrees to reimburse the
Underwriters or such Underwriters as have so terminated this Agreement with respect to themselves, severally, for all out-of-pocket
expenses (including the fees and expenses of its counsel) reasonably incurred by the Underwriter in connection with this Agreement or the
offering contemplated herein.

11. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company, the Underwriters, any controlling persons referred to
herein and their respective successors and assigns. Nothing expressed or mentioned in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to
give any other person, firm or corporation any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Agreement or any provision
herein contained. No purchaser of Shares from any Underwriter shall be deemed to be a successor by reason merely of such purchase.

12. Any action by the Underwriters hereunder may be taken by the Representatives jointly or by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. alone on behalf
of the Underwriters, and any such action taken by the Representatives jointly or by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. alone shall be binding upon
the Underwriters. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed
or transmitted by any standard form of telecommunication. Notices to the Underwriters shall be given to the Representatives, c/o J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc., 60 Wall Street, New York, New York 10260 (telefax: (212-648-5705), Attention: Syndicate Department, copy to Cahill
Gordon & Reindel, 80 Pine Street, New York, New York 10005 (telefax: 212-269-5420), Attention: Gerald S. Tanenbaum, Esq. Notices to the
Company shall be given to it at its office, 22215 26th
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Avenue SE, Suite 3000, Bothell, Washington 98021 (telefax: 425-489-4798), Attention: H. Perry Fell. Copies of notices to the Company
should be given to Venture Law Group, a Professional Corporation, 4750 Carillon Point, Kirkland, Washington 98033-7355 (telefax:
(425)739-8750), Attention: Sonya Erickson, Esq.
13. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.
14. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE CONFLICTS OF LAWS PROVISIONS THEREOF.
If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please sign and return five counterparts hereof.

Very truly yours,

SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
By:

Name:
Title:
17
Accepted: February [ ], 2001
J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

CIBC WORLD MARKETS CORP.
BANC OF AMERICA SECURITIES LLC
Acting severally on behalf of themselves
and the several Underwriters listed in
Schedule I hereto.

By:

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

By:

Name:

Title:
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SCHEDULE I
Number of
Underwritten
Shares To Be
Purchased

Underwriter

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
CIBC World Markets Corp.
Banc of America Securities LLC
Total
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EXHIBIT B
[List of stockholders]
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EXHIBIT 4.1
NUMBER

SHARES

SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
CUSIP 812578 10 2
SEE REVERSE FOR CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE

THIS CERTIFIES THAT

is the record holder of

FULLY PAID AND NONASSESSABLE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK, $0.001 PAR VALUE, OF
SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
transferable on the books of the Corporation by the holder hereof in person or by holder's duly authorized attorney or legal representative,
upon the surrender of this certificate properly endorsed. This certificate is not valid until countersigned by the Corporation's transfer agent and
registrar.

WITNESS the facsimile seal of the Corporation and the facsimile signatures of its duly authorized officers.
Dated:

/s/ CLAY B. SIEGALL

/s/ H. PERRY FELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND SECRETARY

[SEATTLE GENETICS, INC. SEAL]

PRESIDENT

SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
The Corporation will furnish to any stockholder at the office of the Corporation upon request and without charge, a full statement of the
powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights.
The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this certificate, shall be construed as though they were written out
in full according to applicable laws or regulations:
TEN COM
TEN ENT
JT TEN

—
—
—

as tenants in common
as tenants by the entireties
as joint tenants with right of
survivorship and not as tenants
in common

UNIF GIFT MIN ACT—

UNIF TRF MIN ACT—

......................... Custodian
..............................
(Cust)
(Minor)
under Uniform Gifts to Minors
Act...........................................................................
(State)
...................... Custodian (until age ......................)
(Cust)
................................ under Uniform Transfers
(Minor)
to Minors Act .....................................................
(State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.
For value received, ________________________________________ hereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR
OTHER
IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE

________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE, OF ASSIGNEE(S)

___________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________ Shares
of the Capital Stock represented by the within Certificate, and do(es) hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

__________________________________________________________________________________________ Attorney
to transfer the said Shares on the books of the within named Corporation with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated ________________________________________________

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as written upon the face of
the certificate in every particular, without alteration or
enlargement or any change whatever.
Signature must be guaranteed.
Signature(s) Guaranteed:

By ______________________________________
THE SIGNATURE(S) SHOULD BE GUARANTEED
BY AN ELIGIBLE GUARANTOR INSTITUTION
(BANKS, STOCKBROKERS, SAVINGS AND LOAN
ASSOCIATIONS AND CREDIT UNIONS WITH
MEMBERSHIP IN AN APPROVED SIGNATURE
GUARANTEE MEDALLION PROGRAM),
PURSUANT TO S.E.C. RULE 17Ad-15.
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SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.

EXHIBIT 5.1
[VLG LETTERHEAD]
February 7, 2001
Seattle Genetics, Inc.

22215 26th Avenue SE, Suite 3000
Bothell, Washington 98021
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-50266)
Ladies and Gentlemen:
We have examined the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-50266) (the " Registration Statement ") to be filed by you with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 20, 2000, as subsequently amended, in connection with the registration under the
Securities Act of 1933 of shares of your Common Stock (the " Shares"). As your legal counsel in connection with this transaction, we have
examined the proceedings taken and we are familiar with the proceedings proposed to be taken by you in connection with the sale and
issuance of the Shares.
It is our opinion that the Shares, when issued and sold in the manner described in the Registration Statement, will be legally and validly
issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

We consent to the use of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement and further consent to the use of our name wherever it
appears in the Registration Statement and in any amendment to it.

Sincerely,

VENTURE LAW GROUP
A Professional Corporation
/s/ Venture Law Group
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EXHIBIT 10.22
Confidential treatment requested
COLLABORATION AGREEMENT
THIS COLLABORATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement ") is made and entered into effective as of February 2, 2001 (the " Effective
Date"), by and between SEATTLE GENETICS, INC., having principal offices at 22215 26th Avenue S.E., Suite 3000, Bothell, WA 98021
("Seattle Genetics ") and MEDAREX, INC., having principal offices at 707 State Road, Suite 206, Princeton, New Jersey 08540-1437, on
behalf of itself and its wholly owned subsidiary, GENPHARM INTERNATIONAL, INC., with principal offices at 2350 Qume Drive, San
Jose, California 95131 (collectively, "Medarex "). Seattle Genetics and Medarex each may be referred to herein individually as a "Party," or
collectively as the " Parties."
WHEREAS , Medarex and Seattle Genetics desire to enter into a definitive agreement to collaborate to produce fully human monoclonal
antibodies to antigen targets in order to develop and commercialize antibody-based products on the terms set forth below;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, do
hereby agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1—
SCOPE OF COLLABORATION; COLLABORATION ACTIVITIES
Section 1.1 Scope of Collaboration. The Parties have entered into this collaboration (such collective enterprise, the " Collaboration ")
to jointly research, develop and commercialize Collaboration Products with respect to Collaboration Targets throughout the Territory as set
forth in this Agreement. Any capitalized term used in this Agreement not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth on

Appendix A.
Section 1.2 Research Activities.

1.2.1 General. Under the direction and supervision of the Steering Committee, the Parties shall use Commercially Reasonable
Efforts to conduct their respective research activities in accordance with this Agreement, each Project Plan and each Project Budget.
1.2.2 Identification of Collaboration Targets. Seattle Genetics shall use its Commercially Reasonable Efforts to identify and
provide Collaboration Targets to the Collaboration. The list of Antigens attached hereto as Appendix C sets forth the initial list of
Collaboration Targets. Such list may be amended pursuant to Section 1.8 or 5.1.2, by the express written agreement of Medarex and
Seattle Genetics or as follows:
(a) If, at any time prior to or during the Target Entry Period (as defined in Section 1.2.2(f)), Seattle Genetics or any of its
Affiliates identify, or otherwise obtain rights with respect to, Antigens (in addition to the Collaboration Targets listed on
Appendix C ) that (x) Seattle Genetics [*] for the development of antibody-based products (each, an "Antibodiable Antigen" )
for use in the field of breast cancer, and (z) are Controlled by Seattle Genetics or its Affiliates, then, for at least every [*] (e.g.,
[*], etc.) Antigen identified by Seattle Genetics pursuant to clauses (x) and (y) of this sentence (the "Antigen Commitment" ),
Seattle Genetics shall promptly develop Antigen Evaluation Materials for such Antigen and furnish such Antigen Evaluation
Materials to Medarex. Any Antigen identified or discovered by Seattle Genetics under [*] unless the Parties mutually agree
otherwise. Seattle Genetics shall have the right, but shall be under no obligation to, [*] to the Collaboration pursuant to this
Section 1.2.2(a) that do not fall under clause (x) of the first sentence of this Section 1.2.2(a). Seattle Genetics shall have the
right, but shall be under no obligation to, offer the [*] molecule to the Collaboration pursuant to this Section 1.2.2(a). In the
event that
a Third Party acquires Seattle Genetics by merger, consolidation or transfer of all or substantially all of Seattle Genetics'
assets, any [*] shall not be subject to the [*]. The "Antigen Evaluation Materials " shall include:

( i ) a written description of the applicable Antigen, including [*], when available;
(ii) the [*] and/or [*] for such Antigen;
(iii) all data reasonably necessary for determining whether such [*];
(iv) [*] data in the possession of Seattle Genetics or its Affiliates relating to such Antigen that is reasonably relevant
for [*];
(v) all information regarding the [*] of such Antigen, the [*] by Seattle Genetics and its Affiliates with respect to such
Antigen, and any [*] ([*] or otherwise) that would [*] the Parties' [*] any Collaboration Products with respect thereto;
(vi) existing and available [*] for [*];

(vii) a list of [*] for Antibody Products against such Antigen, to the extent known by Seattle Genetics;
(viii) [*] applicable to Antibody Products against such Antigen, to the extent known by Seattle Genetics;
(ix) any [*] undertaken by or on behalf of Seattle Genetics or its Affiliates with respect to the [*] of [*] against such
Antigen;
(x) the [*] for [*] such Antigen is a [*] for the development of antibody-based products; and
(xi) all other [*] in Seattle Genetics' or its Affiliates' possession with respect to such Antigen.
(b) Each Antigen described in Section 1.2.2(a), including any portion thereof, shall automatically become a Collaboration
Target under this Agreement, and Appendix C shall be deemed to be amended accordingly, unless Medarex provides Seattle
Genetics with written notice within thirty (30) days following receipt of all Antigen Evaluation Material with respect to such
Antigen, that it [*] on the basis described below, whereupon such [*] to be a Collaboration Target and Medarex shall [*] with
respect thereto under this Agreement and Seattle Genetics shall [*] with respect thereto under this Agreement and shall be [*].
Medarex shall have the right to [*] identified by Seattle Genetics pursuant to Section 1.2.2(a) if (i) as of the date of Medarex's
receipt of the Antigen Evaluation Materials for such Antigen, (A) Medarex is [*], either [*] or [*] with a Third Party, [*],
(B) Medarex is [*] with respect to such Antigen or Antibodies relating thereto, or (C) Medarex has [*] relating thereto, or
(ii) Medarex makes a good faith determination that there is a [*] of Antibodies against such Antigen. In the event Medarex
receives Antigen Evaluation Materials for a given Antigen pursuant to Section 1.2.2(a), but does not believe the materials
provided pursuant to clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (v) or (x) of Section 1.2.2(a) are sufficiently complete to enable Medarex to reasonably
determine whether to [*], Medarex shall provide written notice to Seattle Genetics with respect thereto. If, within thirty
(30) days of such notice, Seattle Genetics [*] specified in such notice, Medarex shall have [*], provided that such [*]. Once an
Antigen becomes a Collaboration Target pursuant to this Section, the Collaboration shall have the right, in accordance with this
Agreement, to Exploit Collaboration Products with respect to such Collaboration Target for all purposes, whether inside or
outside of the field of breast cancer.
2
(c) Seattle Genetics shall have the right to enter into agreements with Third Parties with respect to the research,
development or commercialization of antibody-based products outside the field of breast cancer and, to the extent any product
initially developed thereunder for one or more bona fide uses outside the field of breast cancer is later discovered to have
efficacy inside such field, Seattle Genetics may develop and commercialize such product for use in the field of breast cancer.
Seattle Genetics represents and warrants to Medarex that, as of the Effective Date, neither it nor any of its Affiliates has entered
into any agreement granting rights to any Third Party to research, develop or commercialize any Antibody Products in the field
of breast cancer.
(d) Upon designation of an Antigen as a Collaboration Target pursuant to Section 1.2.2(b), the Parties shall use good faith
efforts to agree on a written description of such Antigen, which descriptions shall be included on Appendix C .
(e) As the Parties gain greater understanding of each Collaboration Target and the potential utility of Antibody Products
thereto, they shall update the description of such Collaboration Target on Appendix C to more accurately reflect what Antigens,
or portions thereof, are included in the Collaboration.
(f) The "Target Entry Period" shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue until the third (3 r d) anniversary
thereof unless (i) earlier terminated by (A) the unanimous agreement of the Parties, or (B) either Party pursuant to Article 8; or
(ii) extended by unanimous agreement of the Parties. The termination or expiration of the Target Entry Period shall not
constitute a termination of this Agreement.
(g) Seattle Genetics and Medarex agree to negotiate in good faith a separate agreement pursuant to which Medarex will
grant Seattle Genetics a license to Medarex's HuMAb technology to develop Antigens (other than Collaboration Targets) on its
own (a "Direct License Agreement "). If the Parties enter into a Direct License Agreement within ninety (90) days following
the Effective Date, then Seattle Genetics agrees that during the Target Entry Period, it shall [*] Controlled by Seattle Genetics
that it [*] for use in the field of breast cancer either under this Agreement or the Direct License Agreement. If the Parties do not
enter into a Direct License Agreement within ninety (90) days following the Effective Date, then Seattle Genetics shall [*],
those Antibodiable Antigens Controlled by Seattle Genetics that it [*] for use in the field of breast cancer that are (i) [*], or (ii) are
declined as Collaboration Targets by Medarex under Section 1.2.2(b) of this Agreement.
1.2.3 Identification of Applicable Assays and Success Criteria. As part of the Project Plan for a given Collaboration Target,
the Steering Committee will:
(a) identify the immunogen(s) (each, an " Immunogen ") to be used to enable Medarex to perform its activities pursuant to
Section 1.2.5;
(b) determine which Party will be responsible for delivering the Immunogen(s) to Medarex;
(c) identify a set of assays (each, an " Assay") for screening Assay Candidates against such Collaboration Target;

(d) determine which Party will be responsible for delivering the Assays to the Collaboration; and
(e) establish criteria (the " Assay Success Criteria ") for determining, subject to Section 1.2.6, whether an Assay
Candidate should become a Collaboration Antibody.
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The Steering Committee may elect to use a Third Party to provide one or more Immunogen(s) to the Collaboration. In addition, the Steering
Committee may elect to have a [*].

1.2.4 Allocation of Costs. [*] associated with identifying Collaboration Targets, preparing and furnishing to Medarex complete
Antigen Evaluation Materials with respect thereto, and creating and delivering the Immunogen(s) to Medarex (the " Seattle Genetics
Research Activities ") shall be borne [*]% by [*]. [*] associated with immunizing the HuMAb Mice and raising a panel of different
Antibodies to the applicable Collaboration Target pursuant to the last sentence of Section 1.2.5 (the "Medarex Research Activities" )
shall be borne [*]% by [*]. [*] associated with developing and performing the Assays shall be borne [*]% by [*] and [*]% by [*]. The
Parties acknowledge and agree that the Seattle Genetics Research Activities and the Medarex Research Activities are deemed to be
and are [*] and neither Party shall have any right to [*] for the cost and expenses associated with such research activities.
1.2.5 Raising of Antibodies by Medarex. The Party designated under Section 1.2.3(b) shall provide to Medarex sufficient
Immunogen for each Collaboration Target to enable Medarex to perform its activities pursuant to this Section 1.2.5. Upon the delivery
of such Immunogen, Medarex shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to immunize the HuMAb Mice and raise a panel of
different Antibodies to the applicable Collaboration Target.
1.2.6 Selection of Assay Candidates; Assay Screening; Selection of Collaboration Antibodies.
(a) Medarex shall [*] of the [*] to Section 1.2.5 to become "Assay Candidates ". As set forth under the applicable Project
Plan, the Parties shall [*] the [*]. Upon [*] for a given Assay Candidate, each Party will be provided with the results of such [*]
(including [*] underlying such results). The Steering Committee will then determine [*] has [*] the applicable [*]. Subject to
Section 1.2.6(b), each Assay Candidate that [*] the applicable [*] shall be deemed to be a " Collaboration Antibody ";
provided, however , the Steering Committee may, [*] (i) decide that an [*] that [*] the [*] shall nonetheless not be deemed to
be a [*], or (ii) decide that an [*] that does not meet the [*] shall nonetheless be deemed to be a [*].
(b) Notwithstanding Section 1.2.6(a), if Medarex (i) is [*] or has [*] with a Third Party, such [*], or (ii) has [*] a [*] with
respect to such [*], then such [*] shall [*] a [*], and all amounts of such [*] pursuant to this Agreement will be [*].
1.2.7 Effect of Designation of Collaboration Antibodies. Any Antibody that is designated a Collaboration Antibody in
accordance with Section 1.2.6 shall be exclusive to the Collaboration. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, once an
Antibody is designated a Collaboration Antibody, [*] associated with the research, development and commercialization of such
Antibody shall be [*], as more fully described in Section 4.1.
1.2.8 Lead Collaboration Antibodies. Out of the pool of Collaboration Antibodies against a given Collaboration Target, the
Steering Committee will select the Collaboration Antibody that [*] and it will then move such Collaboration Antibody into [*]. Each
Collaboration Antibody that is put into [*] shall be deemed to be a " Lead Collaboration Antibody" . It is understood that the Steering
Committee may, over time, select more than one Lead Collaboration Antibody against a given Collaboration Target, or substitute one
Lead Collaboration Antibody for another. Upon designation of each Lead Collaboration Antibody, [*] shall commit to support [*] percent
([*]%) of the cost of [*] for such Lead Collaboration Antibody. If the Steering Committee [*], then such [*] shall be performed at [*].
1.2.9 Identification of Restrictions on Exploitation of Collaboration Products. Upon the designation of the first Collaboration
Antibody with respect to a Collaboration Target, the Collaboration shall solicit a formal patent review and opinion regarding such
Collaboration Target
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from an outside law firm selected by the Steering Committee. The costs of such formal opinion shall be [*].

Section 1.3 Project Plan and Project Budget. Upon designation of a given Antigen as a Collaboration Target pursuant to
Section 1.2.2, Medarex and Seattle Genetics shall jointly develop and implement a Project Plan (each a " Project Plan") and Project Budget
(each a " Project Budget ") for the research, development, manufacture and commercialization of Collaboration Antibodies against such
Collaboration Target. It is understood that the components of each Project Plan and Project Budget will evolve as the applicable Collaboration
Antibodies move through the research, development, manufacture and commercialization life cycle.
Section 1.4 Performance Standards. Each Party shall perform, or cause to be performed, its respective activities hereunder in good
scientific manner, and in compliance in all material respects with all Applicable Law and shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to
(a) research, develop, file for Regulatory Approval and commercialize one or more Collaboration Products with respect to each Lead
Collaboration Antibody, and (b) achieve the objectives of each Project Plan in accordance with each Project Budget, in each case, efficiently
and expeditiously by allocating sufficient time, effort, equipment and skilled personnel to complete such activities successfully and promptly.
Section 1.5 Product Trademarks. The Parties shall develop Product Trademarks for each Collaboration Product that will be

commercialized. Such Product Trademarks shall not be confusingly similar to, misleading or deceptive with respect to, or dilute any of the
Trademarks owned or Controlled by either of the Parties, or any part of such Trademarks. No Party or any of its Affiliates or sublicensees
shall commercialize a Collaboration Product under any Trademark other than the Product Trademarks. No Party or any of its Affiliates or
sublicensees shall use in its business any Trademark that is confusingly similar to, misleading or deceptive with respect to, or dilutes any of
the Product Trademarks or any other Trademarks used to identify or distinguish a Collaboration Product, or any part of the foregoing. The
Steering Committee shall oversee the filing, prosecution and maintenance of all Product Trademark registrations. The Parties shall [*] ([*]%)
in the costs and expenses of such filing, prosecution and maintenance. Subject to Applicable Law, the label of any Collaboration Products
shall include, at Seattle Genetics' sole discretion, the name of Seattle Genetics and, at Medarex's sole discretion, the name of Medarex.

Section 1.6 Supply of Collaboration Products. With respect to clinical and commercial supplies of Collaboration Products, the
Steering Committee shall solicit bids from suppliers to supply the Parties' requirements thereof. Each Party shall have the right to submit a
bid on such terms as it desires. The Steering Committee shall use its best efforts to enter into a supply agreement with the supplier that is
best able to meet the Parties' requirements, taking into consideration such factors as price, quality, capacity, quantity, reliability and
reputation. In the event the Steering Committee selects a Party to produce clinical and/or commercial supplies pursuant to this Section 1.6,
the price and other terms and conditions of such supply shall be based on arm's length negotiations with the Steering Committee.
Section 1.7 Additional Technologies. After the Effective Date at the Steering Committee's request, the Parties shall negotiate in good
faith a license agreement on reasonable terms based on [*] in [*] to provide for the grant of rights to the Collaboration with respect to Seattle
Genetics' single-chain immunotoxin, drug conjugate and ADEPT technologies.
Section 1.8 Reversion of Collaboration Targets. If no Collaboration Antibodies have been designated with respect to a Collaboration
Target pursuant to Section 1.2.6(a) within [*] ([*]) [*], or such other period as the Parties may agree, after the immunization of the HuMAb
Mice with respect to such Collaboration Target pursuant to Section 1.2.5, then (a) such Antigen shall cease to be a Collaboration Target (such
Antigen, a " Reversion Target"), and Appendix C shall be amended accordingly, (b) any Antibodies with respect thereto shall not become
Collaboration Antibodies, (c) any
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Antibody Products with respect thereto shall not become Collaboration Products, and (d) any licenses granted pursuant to Article 3, with
respect to such Antigen, Antibody or Antibody Product shall terminate. Promptly upon such designation, the Parties shall destroy all Antibody
Products and other biological materials created under this Agreement with respect to such a Reversion Target.

ARTICLE 2—
OPERATION OF THE COLLABORATION
Section 2.1 Steering Committee.

2.1.1 Formation of Steering Committee. The Parties shall establish a joint committee (the " Steering Committee "), which shall
oversee the research, development and commercialization activities hereunder. [*] shall appoint an [*] representatives with the
requisite experience and seniority to enable them to make decisions on behalf of the Parties with respect to the Collaboration. From
time to time, Seattle Genetics and Medarex each may substitute any of its representatives to the Steering Committee.
2.1.2 Responsibilities. The Steering Committee shall, in addition to its other responsibilities described in this Agreement:
(a) prioritize the research, development, manufacturing and commercialization activities with respect to Collaboration Targets,
Collaboration Antibodies and Collaboration Products; (b) subject to Section 1.3, allocate responsibility for such activities between
Seattle Genetics and Medarex taking into consideration their relevant expertise and available resources; (c) develop and implement a
strategy for researching, developing, manufacturing, obtaining and maintaining Regulatory Approvals for, and commercializing the
Collaboration Products; (d) establish such subcommittees as deemed appropriate by the Steering Committee; and (e) take such other
actions as are set forth in this Article 2 or as the Parties may unanimously agree. The Steering Committee may evaluate additional
technologies that may be necessary or beneficial to the Collaboration and may recommend the acquisition or in-licensing of these
technologies to the Parties.
2.1.3 Procedural Rules for the Steering Committee.
(a) Generally. Except as explicitly set forth in this Section 2.1.3, the Steering Committee shall establish its own
procedural rules for its operation.
(b) Voting. The Steering Committee shall take action by [*], with each such Party having a [*] of representatives actually
in attendance at a meeting, or by a written resolution signed by the designated representatives of each of Seattle Genetics and
Medarex.
Section 2.2 Progress Reports. Within thirty (30) days after the end of each calendar quarter during which research, development or
commercialization activities with respect to Collaboration Products are performed by or on behalf of the Parties, each Party shall provide to the
other Party a written progress report, which shall (a) describe such activities and any other work relating to the Collaboration Products that it
has performed, or caused to be performed, to date, (b) evaluate the work performed in relation to the goals of the applicable Project Plan, and
(c) provide such other information as may be required by the applicable Project Plan or reasonably requested by the other Party relating to
such activities.

Section 2.3 Disputes; Dispute Resolution.

2.3.1 Disputes. Any dispute that may arise relating to the terms of this Agreement or the activities of the Parties hereunder shall
be brought to the attention of the Steering Committee, which shall attempt in good faith to achieve a resolution. Either Party may
convene a special meeting of the Steering Committee for the purpose of resolving disputes. If the Steering Committee is unable to
resolve such a dispute within twenty (20) days of the first presentation of
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such dispute to the Steering Committee, and with respect to all other disputes, such dispute shall be referred to the Chief Executive
Officers of each of the Parties (or their respective designees) who shall use their good faith efforts to mutually agree upon the proper
course of action to resolve the dispute. If any dispute is not resolved by the Chief Executive Officers of the Parties (or their designees)
within ten (10) days after such dispute is referred to them, then either Party shall have the right (x) if such dispute relates to the
substance of a Project Plan or Project Budget or the scope of the Parties' activities pursuant to Section 1.2, to refer such dispute to an
Expert for expedited arbitration as set forth in subparagraphs (a) through (c) below, or (y) with respect to any other dispute, including
with respect to a Party's interpretation of, or performance under, this Agreement, to litigate such dispute in accordance with
Section 11.5 or to pursue such other dispute resolution mechanism as the Parties may agree.

(a) With respect to disputes under subparagraph (x) above that are not resolved by the Chief Executive Officers of the Parties
(or their designees) pursuant to Section 2.3.1, upon written request by either Party to the other Party, the Parties shall promptly
negotiate in good faith to appoint a mutually acceptable disinterested, conflict-free individual not affiliated with either Party, with
scientific, technical and regulatory experience with respect to the development of antibody-based products necessary to resolve
such dispute (an "Expert" ). If the Parties are not able to agree within five (5) days after the receipt by a Party of the written
request in the immediately preceding sentence, the CPR Institute for Dispute Resolution shall be responsible for selecting an
Expert within seven (7) days of being approached by a Party. The fees and costs of the Expert and the CPR Institute for Dispute
Resolution shall be [*].
(b) Within fifteen (15) days after the designation of the Expert, the Parties shall each simultaneously submit to the Expert
and one another a written statement of their respective positions on such disagreement. Each Party shall have five (5) days
from receipt of the other Party's submission to submit a written response thereto, which shall include any scientific and
technical information in support thereof. The Expert shall have the right to meet with the Parties, either alone or together, as
necessary to make a determination.
(c) No later than thirty (30) days after the designation of the Expert, the Expert shall make a determination by [*] of the [*]
that [*] is the most [*] to the Parties in light of the [*] and shall provide the Parties with a written statement setting forth the
basis of the determination in connection therewith. The decision of the Expert shall be final and conclusive, absent manifest
error.

ARTICLE 3—
GRANT OF RIGHTS
Section 3.1 License Grants for Collaboration Activities.

3.1.1 Medarex Grant. Subject to Section 3.3 and the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, Medarex hereby grants to
Seattle Genetics and its Affiliates a co-exclusive (with Medarex and its Affiliates), fully-paid, royalty-free license, with the right to
sublicense solely as provided in Sections 3.3.5 and 3.4, under the Medarex Technology and the Joint Technology, in each case to
(a) perform Seattle Genetics' activities under Section 1.2, and (b) jointly Exploit the Collaboration Products in accordance with this
Agreement.
3.1.2 Seattle Genetics Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Seattle Genetics hereby grants to Medarex
and its Affiliates a co-exclusive (with Seattle Genetics and its Affiliates), fully-paid, royalty-free license, with the right to sublicense
solely as provided in Section 3.4, under the Seattle Genetics Technology and the Joint Technology, in each case to (a) perform
Medarex's activities under Section 1.2, and (b) jointly Exploit the Collaboration Products in accordance with this Agreement.
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Section 3.2 Product Trademarks for Collaboration Products.

3.2.1 Medarex Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Medarex hereby grants to Seattle Genetics and its
Affiliates a co-exclusive (with Medarex and its Affiliates), fully-paid, royalty-free license, with the right to sublicense solely as provided
in Section 3.4, to use the Product Trademarks to Exploit the Collaboration Products in accordance with this Agreement.
3.2.2 Seattle Genetics Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Seattle Genetics hereby grants to Medarex
and its Affiliates a co-exclusive (with Seattle Genetics and its Affiliates), fully-paid, royalty-free license, with the right to sublicense
solely as provided in Section 3.4, to use the Product Trademarks to Exploit the Collaboration Products in accordance with this
Agreement.
Section 3.3 Exclusivity, Reserved Rights and Pre-Existing Grants.

3.3.1 Antigen Exclusivity. Subject to Sections 3.3.2, 3.3.3 and 3.3.4, the Parties acknowledge and agree that this Collaboration
shall be exclusive with respect to the Collaboration Targets and that no Party shall engage, directly or indirectly, on behalf of itself or
any other party, in the research, development, commercialization or other Exploitation of antibody-based products with respect to any
Collaboration Target other than the Collaboration Products and Unilateral Products as provided in this Agreement and any related
agreements between the Parties.
3.3.2 Research and Commercialization Agreements. Medarex shall have the right to (a) grant licenses and other rights to
other parties, under the Medarex Technology for such parties to Exploit Antibody Products (but not Collaboration Products) with respect
to Antigens, including [*], provided that such Antigens are [*] and [*] of or [*] to any [*], (b) [*] to such parties in connection therewith,
including [*] with respect to the [*] and [*] with respect to the [*], (c) develop [*], such Antibody Products, and (d) receive license fees,
milestone payments, royalties and other remuneration in connection therewith, but, in connection with clause (a), (b), (c) or (d) above,
[*] (each agreement with respect to the foregoing, a " Research and Commercialization Agreement ").
3.3.3 Retained Rights.
(a) Other Antigens. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, but subject to Section 1.2.2, each Party
does hereby retain the right to (i) enter into collaborations with, and to grant licenses and other rights under its respective
Technology (other than Joint Technology, which shall be governed by Section 7.1.5) to, Third Parties to Exploit Antibody
Products with respect to Antigens other than Collaboration Targets, and/or (ii) independently Exploit Antibody Products with
respect to Antigens other than Collaboration Targets.
(b) Non-Antibody Products. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, each Party does hereby retain
the right to (i) enter into collaborations with, and to grant licenses and other rights under its respective Technology (other than
Joint Technology, which shall be governed by Section 7.1.5) to, Third Parties to Exploit products other than [*] with respect to
Collaboration Targets, and/or (ii) independently Exploit products other than [*] with respect to Collaboration Targets (without the
use of or reference to the other Party's Technology).
3.3.4 Existing Grants. The Parties further acknowledge and agree that pursuant to the Cross-License Agreement, Medarex has
granted a non-exclusive license under certain Medarex Patents to Exploit Antibody Products, including Collaboration Products, with
respect to Antigens, including the Collaboration Targets, in the Territory.
3.3.5 Cross License Agreement. The Cross-License Agreement prohibits Medarex from [*], whether by [*], under certain
Medarex Technology to [*]. The Parties shall structure their
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respective commercialization rights in each country in the Territory, in accordance with this Section 3.3.5, so as to comply with the
requirements of the Cross-License Agreement and shall use good faith efforts to ensure that any such structure preserves the
intended economic benefits of the Collaboration to the Parties.

(a) So long as the Cross-License Agreement is in effect, if the Steering Committee desires to [*] with respect to
commercialization of a Collaboration Product pursuant to Section 3.4, then the Steering Committee shall provide Medarex with
written notice thereof, which shall set forth in reasonable detail the [*], the Medarex Technology and Collaboration Product
involved, and the [*]. Upon receipt of such notice, Medarex shall make a good faith determination as to whether such Medarex
Technology is subject to the [*] contained in the Cross-License Agreement.
(b) To the extent that Medarex determines that such Medarex Technology is not subject [*] contained in the Cross-License
Agreement, Medarex shall so notify the Steering Committee in writing and the Collaboration thereafter shall have the right [*],
subject to Section 3.4.
(c) To the extent that Medarex determines that all or part of such Medarex Technology is subject to the [*] contained in the
Cross-License Agreement, Medarex shall so notify the Steering Committee in writing. The Parties shall then meet to discuss
in good faith how to proceed in order to optimize the commercialization of the applicable Collaboration Product hereunder while
complying with the requirements of the Cross-License Agreement.
Section 3.4 Sublicenses. Subject to Section 3.3.5, each Party shall have the right to grant to Third Parties sublicenses under the
licenses granted in Sections 3.1 and 3.2 only with the prior written consent of the Steering Committee, not to be unreasonably withheld or
delayed; provided, however , that the grant of any such sublicense shall not relieve the sublicensing Party of its obligations under this
Agreement. With respect to any proposed sublicense, the sublicensing Party shall provide the Steering Committee with written notice setting
forth in reasonable detail the nature of such sublicense and the identity of the sublicensee.
Section 3.5 License Limitations. Each Party hereby covenants to the other Party that neither such first Party nor any of its Affiliates,
licensees or sublicensees shall use or practice the Technology of such other Party (other than the Joint Technology), directly or indirectly, on
behalf of itself or any other party, for any purpose other than as permitted under Section 3.1 and in particular, but without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, for any research, development, commercialization or other Exploitation of an Antibody Product or any other
product or method, other than a Collaboration Product or a Unilateral Product as provided hereunder.
Section 3.6 No Other Rights. For the avoidance of doubt, Medarex and its Affiliates shall have no right, express or implied, with respect
to the Seattle Genetics Technology and Seattle Genetics and its Affiliates shall have no right, express or implied, with respect to the Medarex

Technology, in each case except as expressly provided in Section 3.1.

ARTICLE 4—
FINANCIAL PROVISIONS
Section 4.1 Profit and Expense Allocation with Respect To Collaboration Products.

4.1.1 Net Profits and Net Losses. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the [*] ([*]%) in the Net Profits and Net
Losses, as applicable, with respect to the Collaboration Products, as set forth in this Section. Within thirty (30) days after the end of
each calendar quarter in which Net Profits or Net Losses are recognized with respect to a Collaboration Product, each Party shall
provide the other Party with a statement detailing its Net Profits or Net Losses for such
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Collaboration Product for such calendar quarter on a country-by-country basis, which statement shall set forth in reasonable detail any
Net Sales by such Party or its Affiliates, any Commercialization Expenses and any Other Operating (Income)/Expense, including a
detailed breakdown of the components of the foregoing, with respect to such Collaboration Product, provided that such
Commercialization Expenses (including the components thereof) [*] set forth in the applicable Project Budget with respect to the
commercialization activities set forth in the applicable Project Plan by more than [*] percent ([*]%) without the approval of the Steering
Committee ("Authorized Commercialization Expenses "). Within forty-five (45) days after the end of each calendar quarter, the
Parties shall [*] to [*] so that [*] ([*]%) in the Net Profits or Net Losses, as applicable, for such calendar quarter for each Collaboration
Product.

4.1.2 Research and Development Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, [*] and [*] shall [*] ([*]%) [*]
the cost and expense of all Authorized R&D Expenses (as defined below) incurred by or on behalf of the Parties in connection with
their activities other than the Seattle Genetics Research Activities and the Medarex Research Activities. Within thirty (30) days after
the end of each calendar quarter, each Party shall furnish the Steering Committee with a statement (a) detailing the costs and
expenses actually incurred in connection with the research and development activities (including Phase IV and any other postRegulatory Approval research and development activities) performed by or on behalf of such Party during such calendar quarter,
provided that such costs or expenses [*] set forth in the relevant Project Budget with respect to such research and development
activities by more than [*] ([*]%) without the approval of the Steering Committee (the " Authorized R&D Expenses ") and
(b) comparing such expenses to date with the projections set forth in the Project Budget. Within forty-five (45) days after the end of
each calendar quarter, Medarex and Seattle Genetics shall [*] to [*] so that [*] ([*]%) of the total Authorized R&D Expenses for such
calendar quarter.
Section 4.2 Payment Method. All amounts due by one Party hereunder shall be paid in U.S. dollars by wire transfer in immediately
available funds to an account designated by the receiving Party. Any payments or portions thereof due hereunder which are not paid on the
date such payments are due under this Agreement shall bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of the prime rate as published in The Wall
Street Journal, Eastern Edition, on the first day of each calendar quarter in which such payments are overdue, plus two percent (2%), or the
maximum rate permitted by law, calculated on the number of days such payment is delinquent, compounded monthly.
Section 4.3 Currency; Foreign Payments. If any currency conversion shall be required in connection with any payment hereunder,
such conversion shall be made by using the exchange rate for the purchase of U.S. dollars as published in The Wall Street Journal, Eastern
Edition, on the last business day of the calendar quarter to which such payments relate. If at any time legal restrictions prevent the prompt
remittance of any Net Profits with respect to Net Sales in any jurisdiction, the applicable Party may notify the other and make such payments
by depositing the amount thereof in local currency in a bank account or other depository in such country in the name of the receiving Party or
its designee, and such Party shall have no further obligations under this Agreement with respect thereto.
Section 4.4 Taxes. A Party may deduct from any amounts it is required to pay pursuant to this Agreement an amount equal to that
withheld for or due on account of any taxes (other than taxes imposed on or measured by net income) or similar governmental charge
imposed by a jurisdiction other than the United States (" Withholding Taxes"). At the receiving Party's request, the paying Party shall
provide the receiving Party a certificate evidencing payment of any Withholding Taxes hereunder and shall reasonably assist the receiving
Party, at the receiving Party's expense, to obtain the benefit of any applicable tax treaty.
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Section 4.5 Records Retention; Audit.

4.5.1 Record Retention. Each Party shall maintain (and shall ensure that its Affiliates and sublicensees shall maintain) complete
and accurate books, records and accounts that fairly reflect their respective (a) Authorized R&D Expenses, Authorized
Commercialization Expenses, Other Operating (Income)/Expenses, any costs and expenses reimbursable under Article 7, and any
other costs and expenses reimbursable or otherwise shared by the Parties hereunder (collectively, the " Collaboration Expenses "),
and (b) Net Sales of Collaboration Products and Net Profits and Net Losses with respect to Collaboration Products, in each case in
sufficient detail to confirm the accuracy of any payments required hereunder and in accordance with GAAP, which books, records and
accounts shall be retained by such party until the later of (i) three (3) years after the end of the period to which such books, records and
accounts pertain, and (ii) the expiration of the applicable tax statute of limitations (or any extensions thereof), or for such longer period
as may be required by Applicable Law.

4.5.2 Audit. Each Party shall have the right to have an independent certified public accounting firm of nationally recognized
standing, reasonably acceptable to the audited Party, to have access during normal business hours, and upon reasonable prior written
notice, to such of the records of the other Party (and its Affiliates and sublicensees) as may be reasonably necessary to verify the
accuracy of such Collaboration Expenses, Net Sales, or Net Profits or Net Losses, as applicable, for any calendar quarter ending not
more than thirty-six (36) months prior to the date of such request; provided, however , that neither Party shall have the right to
conduct more than one such audit in any twelve (12)-month period. The accounting firm shall disclose to each Party whether such
Collaboration Expenses, Net Sales, or Net Profits or Net Losses, as applicable, are correct or incorrect and the specific details
concerning any discrepancies. No other information shall be provided to the requesting Party. The requesting Party shall bear the cost
of such audit unless the audit reveals a variance of more than [*] percent ([*]%) from the reported results, in which case the audited
Party shall bear the cost of the audit. The results of such accounting firm shall be final, absent manifest error.
4.5.3 Payment of Additional Amounts. If, based on the results of such audit, additional payments are owed by a Party under
this Agreement, such Party shall make such additional payments, with interest from the date originally due at the rate of [*] percent
([*]%) per month, within sixty (60) days after the date on which such accounting firm's written report is delivered to such Party.
4.5.4 Confidentiality. The auditing Party shall treat all information subject to review under this Section 4.5 in accordance with the
confidentiality provisions of Article 6 and shall cause its accounting firm to enter into a reasonably acceptable confidentiality agreement
with the audited Party obligating such firm to maintain all such financial information in confidence pursuant to such confidentiality
agreement.
ARTICLE 5—
UNILATERAL AND THIRD PARTY DEVELOPMENT
AND COMMERCIALIZATION
Section 5.1 Unilateral Development and Commercialization.

5.1.1 Opting-Out by a Party. Each Party (i.e., Medarex, on the one hand, and Seattle Genetics, on the other hand) (the
" Opting-Out Party ") shall have the right, on [*] ([*]) [*]' written notice to the other (an " Opt-Out Notice "), to elect not to proceed with
the research, development and commercialization (" Opt-Out ") of all Collaboration Products with respect to a given Collaboration
Target at any time up until [*] ([*]) [*] after [*] with respect to the first Collaboration Product with respect to such Collaboration Target,
provided that such Party shall be
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responsible for [*] associated with the research and development activities with respect to such Collaboration Product(s) that such
Party has committed to in the applicable Project Budget as necessary to [*] that was [*] such Party Opted-Out. By way of clarification,
if a Party Opts-Out of a Collaboration Product with respect to a Collaboration Target, such Party will be deemed to have Opted-Out
with respect to all Antibody Products with respect to the same Collaboration Target.

5.1.2 Rights and Obligations of Parties with Respect To Unilateral Products. Upon receipt by a Party of an Opt-Out Notice,
the receiving Party shall have the right, on written notice to the Opting-Out Party within [*] following receipt of the Opt-Out Notice (an
"Election Notice" ), to proceed unilaterally with the research, development and commercialization of all Collaboration Antibodies to
the applicable Collaboration Target (each, a "Unilateral Product ") pursuant to a separate agreement with the Opting-Out Party
embodying the terms and conditions attached hereto as Appendix D (and other terms as may be appropriate), which agreement shall
be entered into by the Parties and attached hereto as Appendix D-1 or Appendix D-2 , as applicable, within [*] ([*]) [*] of the Effective
Date (each, a "Unilateral Development and Commercialization Agreement" ). Upon receipt by Medarex of an Election Notice from
Seattle Genetics with respect to a Collaboration Target, the Unilateral Development and Commercialization Agreement set forth in
Appendix D-1 shall be automatically amended to include such Collaboration Target and any Antibody Products with respect thereto.
Upon receipt by Seattle Genetics of an Election Notice from Medarex with respect to a Collaboration Target, the Unilateral
Development and Commercialization Agreement set forth in Appendix D-2 shall be automatically amended to include such
Collaboration Target and any Antibody Products with respect thereto. Upon such amendment of a Unilateral Development and
Commercialization Agreement pursuant to this Section 5.1.2, the applicable Antigen shall cease to be a Collaboration Target and
Appendix C shall be amended accordingly, and any licenses granted pursuant to Article 3, with respect to such Antigen and any
Antibodies and Antibody Products with respect thereto, shall terminate. Except for the payment obligations provided for in
Section 5.1.1, the Opting-Out Party shall have (x) [*] in respect of such Unilateral Product, and (y) [*], or [*] regarding such [*] in
respect of such Unilateral Product. In the event that neither Party elects to proceed with the research, development or
commercialization of any Collaboration Product with respect to a Collaboration Target, the rights and obligations of the Parties with
respect to such Collaboration Target shall be governed by Sections 5.2 and 5.3.
Section 5.2 Third-Party Research, Development and Commercialization of Collaboration Products. The Parties shall have the
right, at any time with respect to a Collaboration Product, to license to Third Parties rights with respect to the research, development,
manufacture or commercialization of such Collaboration Product on such terms and conditions as the Parties may mutually agree; provided
that (a) any such sublicense with respect to the Medarex Technology shall be governed by the procedures set forth in Sections 3.3.5 and 3.4;
and (b) any disputes between the Parties as to whether or not to grant such a license shall not be subject to any Third Party dispute resolution
mechanism.
Section 5.3 Dormant Products. If the Parties do not elect to proceed with the research, development or commercialization of a particular
Collaboration Product with respect to a Collaboration Target, and the Parties have not licensed rights to such Collaboration Product to a Third

Party pursuant to Section 5.2 that would be inconsistent therewith, (each, a " Dormant Product ") either Party shall have the right at any
time, subject to Section 3.3, to bring such Collaboration Product to the Steering Committee to discuss whether to initiate or reinitiate the
research, development or commercialization of such Dormant Product. The initiating Party shall specify the reasons for proposing to initiate
or reinitiate such research, development or commercialization. If, within [*] ([*]) [*] after the receipt of such notice, the other Party fails to
notify the interested Party in writing that it wishes to participate in the research, development or commercialization of such Dormant Product,
then the interested Party shall have the right to pursue research, development or commercialization of such Dormant Product as
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a Unilateral Product pursuant to Section 5.1, provided that no Collaboration Product with respect to the same Collaboration Target as such
Dormant Product is being Exploited hereunder.

ARTICLE 6—
CONFIDENTIALITY
Section 6.1 Definition. "Confidential Information" of a Party shall mean all information and know-how and any tangible embodiments
thereof provided by or on behalf of such Party to the other Party either in connection with the discussions and negotiations pertaining to this
Agreement or in the course of performing this Agreement, including data; knowledge; practices; processes; ideas; research plans;
engineering designs and drawings; research data; manufacturing processes and techniques; scientific, manufacturing, marketing and
business plans; and financial and personnel matters relating to the disclosing Party or to its present or future products, sales, suppliers,
customers, employees, investors or business. For purposes of this Agreement, notwithstanding the Party that disclosed such information or
know-how, all Seattle Genetics Know-How, and all information or know-how with respect thereto, shall be Confidential Information of Seattle
Genetics and all Medarex Know-How, including all Mice-Related Know-How, and all information and know-how with respect thereto, shall be
Confidential Information of Medarex.
Section 6.2 Exclusions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, information or know-how of a Party shall not be deemed Confidential
Information with respect to a receiving Party for purposes of this Agreement if such information or know-how:

(a) was already known to the receiving Party or its Affiliates, other than under an obligation of confidentiality or non-use, at
the time of disclosure to, or, with respect to Know-How, discovery or development by, such receiving Party;
(b) was generally available or known to parties reasonably skilled in the field to which such information or know-how
pertains, or was otherwise part of the public domain, at the time of its disclosure to, or, with respect to Know-How, discovery or
development by, such receiving Party;
(c) became generally available or known to parties reasonably skilled in the field to which such information or know-how
pertains, or otherwise became part of the public domain, after its disclosure to, or, with respect to Know-How, discovery or
development by, such receiving Party through no fault of a Party other than the Party that Controls such information and knowhow;
(d) was disclosed to such receiving Party or its Affiliates, other than under an obligation of confidentiality or non-use, by a
third party who had no obligation to the Party that Controls such information and know-how not to disclose such information or
know-how to others; or
(e) was independently discovered or developed by such receiving Party or its Affiliates, as evidenced by their written records,
without the use of Confidential Information belonging to the Party that Controls such information and know-how, except with
respect to the Mice-Related Know-How, which shall be and remain Confidential Information of Medarex.
Specific aspects or details of Confidential Information shall not be deemed to be within the public domain or in the possession of a Party
merely because the Confidential Information is embraced by more general information in the public domain or in the possession of such
Party. Further, any combination of Confidential Information shall not be considered in the public domain or in the possession of a Party
merely because individual elements of such Confidential Information are in the public domain or in the possession of such Party unless the
combination and its principles are in the public domain or in the possession of such Party.
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Disclosure and Use Restriction. Except as expressly provided herein, the Parties agree that, for the Term and for five (5) years
thereafter, each Party and its Affiliates and sublicensees shall keep completely confidential and shall not publish or otherwise disclose and
shall not use for any purpose except for the purposes contemplated by this Agreement any Confidential Information of the other Party, its
Affiliates or sublicensees.

Section 6.3 Authorized Disclosure. Each Party may disclose Confidential Information of the other Party to the extent that such
disclosure is:

6.3.1 Required by Governmental Order. Made in response to a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or other supranational, federal, national, regional, state, provincial or local governmental or regulatory body of competent jurisdiction; provided,
however, that such Party shall first have given notice to such other Party and given such other Party a reasonable opportunity to
quash such order and to obtain a protective order requiring that the Confidential Information and documents that are the subject of

such order be held in confidence by such court or agency or, if disclosed, be used only for the purposes for which the order was issued;
and provided further that if a disclosure order is not quashed or a protective order is not obtained, the Confidential Information
disclosed in response to such court or governmental order shall be limited to that information which is legally required to be disclosed
in response to such court or governmental order;

6.3.2 Required by Law. Otherwise required by law; provided, however, that the disclosing Party shall provide such other Party
with notice of such disclosure in advance thereof to the extent practicable;
6.3.3 Required by Regulatory Authority. Made by such Party to the Regulatory Authorities as required in connection with any
filing, application or request for Regulatory Approval; provided, however , that reasonable measures shall be taken to assure
confidential treatment of such information;
6.3.4 Required by Agreement. Made by such Party, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, to Affiliates,
permitted sublicensees, research Parties, employees, consultants, representatives or agents, each of whom prior to disclosure must
be bound by obligations of confidentiality and non-use at least equivalent in scope to those set forth in this Article 6; or
6.3.5 Required by Certain Third Parties. Made by such Party to existing or potential acquirers; existing or potential
pharmaceutical collaborators (to the extent contemplated hereunder); investment bankers; existing or potential investors, merger
candidates, partners, venture capital firms or other financial institutions or investors for purposes of obtaining financing; bona fide
strategic potential partners; or Affiliates, each of whom prior to disclosure must be bound by obligations of confidentiality and non-use
at least equivalent in scope to those set forth in this Article 6.
Section 6.4 Use of Name. Each Party may use the name, insignia, symbol, trademark, trade name or logotype of the other Party (a) in
connection with announcements and other permitted disclosures relating to this Agreement and the activities contemplated hereby, (b) as
required by Applicable Law, and (c) otherwise as agreed in writing by such other Party.
Section 6.5 Press Releases. Press releases or other similar public communication by either Party relating to this Agreement, shall be
approved in advance by the other Party, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, except for those communications
required by Applicable Law, disclosures of information for which consent has previously been obtained, and information of a similar nature to
that which has been previously disclosed publicly with respect to this Agreement, each of which shall not require advance approval, but shall
be provided to the other Party as soon as practicable after the release or communication thereof.
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Section 6.6 Publications. The Parties acknowledge that scientific lead-time is a key element of the value of the research and
development activities under the Collaboration and further agree that scientific publications must be strictly monitored to prevent any adverse
effect from premature publication of results of the research or development activities hereunder. At least sixty (60) days prior to submission of
any material related to the research or development activities hereunder for publication or presentation, the submitting Party shall provide to
the other Party a draft of such material for its review and comment. The receiving Party shall provide any comments to the submitting Party
within sixty (60) days of receipt of such materials. No publication or presentation with respect to the research or development activities
hereunder shall be made unless and until the other Party's comments on the proposed publication or presentation have been addressed and
changes have been agreed upon and any information determined by the other Party to be Confidential Information has been removed. If
requested in writing by the other Party, the submitting Party shall withhold material from submission for publication or presentation for an
additional sixty (60) days to allow for the filing of a patent application or the taking of such measures to establish and preserve proprietary
rights in the information in the material being submitted for publication or presentation.

ARTICLE 7—
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Section 7.1 Intellectual Property Ownership.

7.1.1 Ownership of Medarex Technology. Subject to the license grants to Seattle Genetics under Article 3, as between the
Parties, Medarex shall own and retain all right, title and interest in and to any and all: (a) Information and Inventions that are
conceived, discovered, developed or otherwise made, as necessary to establish authorship, inventorship or ownership under
Applicable Law, by or on behalf of Medarex (or its Affiliates or, to the extent permitted, its licensees or sublicensees (other than Seattle
Genetics and its Affiliates)), whether or not patented or patentable, and any and all Patent and other intellectual property rights with
respect thereto, except to the extent that any such Information and Inventions, or any Patent or other intellectual property rights with
respect thereto, are Joint Technology or Collaboration Target Technology; (b) other Information and Inventions, and Patent and other
intellectual property rights that are Controlled (other than pursuant to the license grants set forth in Article 3) by Medarex, its Affiliates
or, to the extent permitted, its licensees or sublicensees (other than Seattle Genetics); and (c) other Medarex Technology.
7.1.2 Ownership of Seattle Genetics Technology. Subject to Section 7.1.3 and the license grants to Medarex under Article 3,
as between the Parties, Seattle Genetics shall own and retain all right, title and interest in and to any and all: (a) Information and
Inventions that are conceived, discovered, developed or otherwise made, as necessary to establish authorship, inventorship or
ownership under Applicable Law, by or on behalf of Seattle Genetics (or its Affiliates or, to the extent permitted, its licensees or
sublicensees (other than Medarex and its Affiliates)), whether or not patented or patentable, and any and all Patent and other
intellectual property rights with respect thereto, except to the extent that any such Information and Inventions, or any Patent or other
intellectual property rights with respect thereto, are Joint Technology or Mice Materials or Mice-Related Technology; (b) other
Information and Inventions, and Patent and other intellectual property rights that are Controlled (other than pursuant to the license

grants set forth in Article 3) by Seattle Genetics, its Affiliates or, to the extent permitted, its licensees or sublicensees (other than
Medarex); and (c) other Seattle Genetics Technology.

7.1.3 Ownership of Mice-Related Technology. Subject to the license grants to Seattle Genetics under Article 3, as between the
Parties, Medarex shall own and retain all right, title and interest in and to all Mice Materials and Mice-Related Technology, including
any and all Information and Inventions with respect to the Mice Materials or the Mice-Related Technology
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(including any Improvements thereto) that are conceived, discovered, developed or otherwise made, as necessary to establish
authorship, inventorship or ownership under Applicable Law, by or on behalf of Seattle Genetics, its Affiliates or, to the extent
permitted, its licensees or sublicensees (other than Medarex and its Affiliates), whether or not patented or patentable, and any and all
Patent and other intellectual property rights with respect thereto. Seattle Genetics acknowledges and agrees that (a) the licenses
granted to it pursuant to Article 3 permit Seattle Genetics to use Mice Materials and Mice-Related Technology solely for the Exploitation
of Collaboration Products as provided in this Agreement, (b) Seattle Genetics has no right to use the HuMAb Mice or to discover,
develop or otherwise make Improvements with respect to Mice Materials and Mice-Related Technology under such grants, and
(c) neither it, nor any of its Affiliates, licensees or sublicensees, will engage, directly or indirectly, in activities designed to, or
otherwise undertake or attempt, either on behalf of itself or another, to discover, develop or make any Information and Inventions that
relate to the Mice Materials or the Mice-Related Technology. Accordingly, Seattle Genetics shall promptly disclose to Medarex in
writing, the conception or reduction to practice, or the discovery, development or making of any Mice Material or Mice-Related
Technology and shall, and does hereby, assign, and shall cause its Affiliates, licensees and sublicensees to so assign, to Medarex,
without additional compensation, all of their respective rights, titles and interests in and to any Mice Material or Mice-Related
Technology.

7.1.4 Ownership of Production Technology. Each Party shall own and retain all right, title and interest in and to such Party's
Production Technology, including any and all Information and Inventions with respect to such Production Technology (including any
Improvements thereto) that are conceived, discovered, developed or otherwise made, as necessary to establish authorship,
inventorship or ownership under Applicable Law, by or on behalf of such Party, its Affiliates or, to the extent permitted, its
sublicensees, whether or not patented or patentable, and any and all Patent and other intellectual property rights with respect thereto.
Except as the Parties may otherwise expressly agree, neither Party shall have any rights, express or implied, under this Agreement
with respect to the other Party's Production Technology and nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall be interpreted as granting
a Party any license to any Production Technology of the other Party, whether subordinate or dominant to any other Technology of such
other Party. Each Party shall have the right to submit any of its Production Know-How with respect to a Collaboration Product directly
to the Regulatory Authorities using a drug master file, or any foreign equivalent that is designed to protect a Party's Confidential
Information, which Know-How and filing shall, notwithstanding Section 7.1.7 or any other provision of this Agreement, be and
remain the sole and exclusive property of such Party.
7.1.5 Ownership of Joint Technology. Subject to Sections 7.1.3 and 7.1.4 and the license grants under Article 3, the Parties
shall each own [*] in any Joint Technology; provided, however, that, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement,
neither a Party nor any of its Affiliates, licensees or sublicensees shall, directly or indirectly, Exploit any Joint Technology, or any
intellectual property rights with respect thereto, without the consent of the other Party, not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed,
except that each Party shall have the right to Exploit such Joint Technology for research and discovery purposes (as opposed to the
development, commercialization or other Exploitation of products or technology resulting therefrom), and to license others to do so,
without the consent of the other Party. Each Party shall promptly disclose to the other Party in writing, and shall cause its Affiliates,
licensees and sublicensees to so disclose, the development, making, conception or reduction to practice of any Joint Technology.
7.1.6 Ownership of Product Trademarks. Subject to the license grants in Article 3, the Parties shall [*] in each Product
Trademark with respect to a Collaboration Product. In the event that a Party Opts-Out with respect to a Collaboration Product, it shall,
without any additional consideration, assign all of its right, title and interest in and to any Product Trademark with respect
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to such Collaboration Product or Unilateral Product to the non-Opting-Out Party; provided, however , that each Party shall retain all of
its right, title and interest in and to any Product Trademarks with respect to Dormant Products.

7.1.7 Ownership of Regulatory Documentation. Subject to the license grants in Article 3, all Regulatory Approvals with respect
to a Collaboration Product shall be owned by [*] , with [*] on a [*] with respect to [*]. With respect to [*] and any other Collaboration
Products with respect to the same Collaboration Target, the Regulatory Approvals shall [*]. Subject to the license grants in Article 3,
[*], to the extent permitted by law, [*] other Regulatory Documentation, provided that Regulatory Documentation containing or
comprising Production Know-How of a Party shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of such Party. With respect to [*] to
[*], and any other Collaboration Products with respect to the same Collaboration Target, [*] shall be [*]. Each non-Opting-Out Party
shall have the right to own all right, title and interest in and to all Regulatory Approvals with respect to its Unilateral Products. In the
event that a Party Opts-Out with respect to a Collaboration Product, it shall assign all of its right, title and interest in and to all
Regulatory Documentation with respect to such Collaboration Product, including any Regulatory Approvals and applications therefor,
to the non-Opting Out Party (or its designee); provided, however , that each Party shall retain any of its right, title and interest in and
to any Regulatory Documentation with respect to a Dormant Product. Notwithstanding the ownership of any Regulatory Approval or
any other Regulatory Documentation, each Party shall have the right to use and reference any of the Regulatory Documentation in

connection with the Exploitation of Collaboration Products as provided in this Agreement.

Section 7.2 Prosecution of Patents and Trademarks.

7.2.1 Medarex Rights. As between the Parties, Medarex shall, subject to Section 7.2.5, have the sole right, at its cost and
expense, to obtain, prosecute and maintain throughout the world the Medarex Patents, including the Mice-Related Patents and its
Production Patents.
7.2.2 Seattle Genetics Rights. As between the Parties, Seattle Genetics shall, subject to Section 7.2.5, have the sole right, at
its cost and expense, to obtain, prosecute and maintain throughout the world the Seattle Genetics Patents, including its Production
Patents.
7.2.3 Joint Technology and Product Trademarks.
(a) Filings of Patents. Subject to Section 7.2.6, the Parties shall, and shall cause their respective Affiliates, licensees
and sublicensees, as applicable, to, cooperate with one another with respect to the filing, prosecution and maintenance of all
Joint Patents, including by selecting outside counsel, reasonably acceptable to the Parties, to handle such filing, prosecution
and maintenance. The Parties shall [*] associated with the filing, prosecution (including any interferences, reissue
proceedings and reexaminations) and maintenance of all Joint Patents.
(b) Filings of Collaboration Product Trademarks. The Steering Committee, with respect to a Collaboration Product,
shall supervise and direct the filing, prosecution and maintenance of the registrations of the Product Trademarks for such
Collaboration Product. The Steering Committee shall provide each Party with (i) drafts of any new application to register a
Product Trademark prior to filing that application, allowing adequate time for review and comment by the Parties if possible;
provided, however , the Steering Committee shall not be obligated to delay the filing of any application; and (ii) copies of all
correspondence from any and all Trademark offices concerning Product Trademark registrations and an opportunity to
comment on any proposed responses, voluntary amendments and submissions of any kind to be made to any and all such
Trademark offices. Subject to Section 7.2.6, the
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Parties shall [*] associated with the filing, prosecution and maintenance of such Product Trademark registrations.

7.2.4 Cooperation. Each Party shall, and shall cause its Affiliates, licensees and sublicensees, as applicable, to, cooperate fully
in the preparation, filing, prosecution, and maintenance of the other Party's Patents and the Product Trademarks. Such cooperation
includes (a) promptly executing all papers and instruments and requiring employees to execute such papers and instruments as
reasonable and appropriate so as to enable such other Party or the Steering Committee, as applicable, to file, prosecute, and maintain
its Patents in any country; and (b) promptly informing such other Party of matters that may affect the preparation, filing, prosecution,
or maintenance of any such Patents.
7.2.5 Patent Filings. Seattle Genetics covenants not to, and to cause its Affiliates, licensees and sublicensees, as applicable,
not to, file any patent application disclosing or claiming any Information and Inventions comprising any Medarex Technology or the
Exploitation thereof, without Medarex's prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Medarex
covenants not to, and to cause its Affiliates, licensees and sublicensees, as applicable, not to, file any patent application disclosing or
claiming any Information and Inventions comprising any Seattle Genetics Technology or the Exploitation thereof, without Seattle
Genetics' prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
7.2.6 Election not to Prosecute. If a Party elects not (a) to pursue the filing, prosecution or maintenance of a Joint Patent in a
particular country, (b) to pursue the registration, prosecution or maintenance of a Product Trademark in a particular country, or (c) to
take any other action with respect to Joint Technology or a Product Trademark in a particular country that is necessary or reasonably
useful to establish or preserve rights thereto, then in each such case such Party shall so notify the other Party promptly in writing and
in good time to enable such other Party to meet any deadlines by which an action must be taken to establish or preserve any such
rights in such Joint Technology or Product Trademark, as applicable, in such country. Upon receipt of each such notice by such other
Party or if, at any time, such Party fails to initiate any such action within thirty (30) days after a request by such other Party that it do
so (and thereafter diligently pursue such action), such other Party shall have the right, but not the obligation, to pursue the filing or
registration, or support the continued prosecution or maintenance, of such Patent or Product Trademark, as applicable, at its expense
in such country. If such other Party elects to pursue such filing or registration, as the case may be, or continue such support, then
such other Party shall notify such Party of such election and such Party shall, and shall cause its Affiliates, licensees and
sublicensees, as applicable, to, (x) reasonably cooperate with such other Party in this regard, and (y) subject to Article 3, promptly
release or assign to such other Party, without compensation, all right, title and interest in and to such Patent or Product Trademark,
as applicable, in such country.
Section 7.3 Enforcement of Patents and Trademarks.

7.3.1 Rights and Procedures. If Medarex or Seattle Genetics determines that any Technology or Product Trademark is being
infringed by a Third Party's activities and that such infringement could affect the exercise by the Parties of their respective rights and
obligations under this Agreement, it shall promptly notify the other Party in writing and provide such other Party with any evidence of
such infringement that is reasonably available.

(a) Joint Technology and Product Trademarks. With respect to Joint Technology and Product Trademarks, the Steering
Committee shall [*] including the filing of an infringement suit or taking other similar action. [*]. In the event [*] of any such
Joint Technology or Product Trademark within ninety (90) days following notice of such infringement, or earlier notifies the
Parties in writing of its intent not to take such steps, [*] shall have the right to do so at its expense; provided, however, that if
[*] has commenced negotiations with an alleged
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infringer for discontinuance of such infringement within such ninety (90) day period, [*] shall have an additional ninety
(90) days to conclude its negotiations before [*] may bring suit for such infringement.

(b) Medarex and Seattle Genetics Technology. With respect to Medarex Technology or Seattle Genetics Technology that
is not Mice-Related Technology or Production Technology, the owner of such Technology shall have the sole right, but not the
obligation, to remove such infringement; provided, however , that the other Party shall reimburse the owner of such
Technology for [*] percent ([*]%) of the [*] incurred by such owner with respect to the removal of any such infringement with
respect to any Collaboration Product.
(c) Mice-Related Technology. With respect to Mice-Related Technology, Medarex shall have the sole right, but not the
obligation, to remove such infringement at its sole cost and expense; provided, however, that Seattle Genetics shall
reimburse Medarex for [*] percent ([*]%) of the [*] incurred by Medarex with respect to the removal of any such infringement
with respect to any Collaboration Product (as distinguished from the general Exploitation of the HuMAb Mice).
(d) Production Technology. With respect to Production Technology of a Party, such Party shall have the sole right, but
not the obligation, to remove such infringement at its sole cost and expense; provided, however, that the [*] for [*] percent
([*]%) of the reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred by such prosecuting Party with respect to the removal of any such
infringement with respect to any Collaboration Product.
7.3.2 Cooperation. The Party not enforcing the applicable Technology or Product Trademark shall provide reasonable assistance
to the other Party, including providing access to relevant documents and other evidence, making its employees available at reasonable
business hours, and joining the action to the extent necessary to allow the enforcing Party to maintain the action.
7.3.3 Recovery. Any amounts recovered by a Party pursuant to Section 7.3.1, whether by settlement or judgment, shall be used
to reimburse the Parties for their reasonable costs and expenses in making such recovery (which amounts shall be allocated pro rata
if insufficient to cover the totality of such expenses), with any remainder being retained by the Party that has exercised its right to bring
the enforcement action; provided, however, that to the [*] that [*] is [*] to [*] of a [*], the Parties shall negotiate in good faith [*] of
such [*] to [*] the [*] of the Parties under this Agreement with respect to such Collaboration Product.
Section 7.4 Potential Third Party Rights.

7.4.1 Third Party Licenses. If (a) in the Collective Opinion of Counsel, a Party, or any of its Affiliates, licensees or permitted
sublicensees, cannot Exploit a Collaboration Product in a country in the Territory without infringing one or more Patents that have
issued to a Third Party in such country, or (b) as a result of any claim made against a Party, or any of its Affiliates, licensees or
permitted sublicensees, alleging that the Exploitation of a Collaboration Product infringes or misappropriates any Patent or any other
intellectual property right of a Third Party in a country in the Territory, a judgment is entered by a court of competent jurisdiction from
which no appeal is taken within the time permitted for appeal, such that a Party cannot Exploit such Collaboration Product in such
country without infringing the Patent or other proprietary rights of such Third Party, then, in either case, the Parties shall use
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain a license in the names of the Parties from such Third Party as necessary for the
Exploitation of any Collaboration Products hereunder in such country; provided, however , that Medarex shall have the sole right to
seek any such license with respect to Mice-Related Technology or any of its Production Technology, and shall use Commercially
Reasonable Efforts to obtain such a license in
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its own name from such Third Party in such country, under which Medarex shall, to the extent permissible under such license, grant
a sublicense to Seattle Genetics as necessary for Seattle Genetics, and any of its Affiliates and permitted sublicensees, to Exploit the
Collaboration Products as provided hereunder in such country; and provided further that Seattle Genetics shall have the sole right to
seek any such license with respect to any of its Production Technology, and shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain
such a license in its own name from such Third Party in such country, under which Seattle Genetics shall, to the extent permissible
under such license, grant a sublicense to Medarex as necessary for Medarex, and any of its Affiliates and permitted sublicensees, to
Exploit the Collaboration Products as provided hereunder in such country. The Parties shall [*] percent ([*]%) of any [*] under such
[*], except with respect to the Medarex Technology or the Seattle Genetics Technology, where Seattle Genetics and Medarex,
respectively, shall only be responsible for [*] percent ([*]%) of those [*] and other [*] with respect to the [*] and the other activities of
the Parties hereunder. For purposes of this Section 7.4.1, " Collective Opinion of Counsel " shall mean the final joint opinion of
patent counsel selected by Seattle Genetics and patent counsel selected by Medarex, after review of all data and information
reasonably available at the time such opinion is rendered. If patent counsel for the Parties cannot agree on a final joint opinion within
twenty (20) days after submission of the matter to such counsel, the patent counsel of the Parties shall agree on a third patent counsel
who shall offer an independent opinion on the subject matter, which independent opinion shall be deemed the Collective Opinion of
Counsel.

Counsel.

7.4.2 Third Party Litigation. In the event that a Third Party institutes a Patent, Trademark or other infringement suit (including
any suit alleging the invalidity or unenforceability of the Patents of a Party or its Affiliates, or claiming confusion, deception or dilution
of a Trademark by a Product Trademark) against either Party or its respective Affiliates, licensees or permitted sublicensees during the
Term, alleging that the Exploitation of the Collaboration Products in the Territory or any other activities hereunder, infringes one or
more Patent, Trademark or other intellectual property rights held by such Third Party (an "Infringement Suit "), the Parties shall
cooperate with one another in defending such suit. Except with respect to the Medarex Technology or the Seattle Genetics Technology,
the Parties shall jointly direct and control any Infringement Suit with respect to Collaboration Products or any Joint Patents; provided,
however, that no Party shall cease to defend, settle or otherwise dispose of a suit with respect to any intellectual property of the other
Party without the prior written consent of such other Party. Each Party shall have the sole right to direct and control (including the right
to cease to defend, settle or compromise) any Infringement Suit with respect to its Technology. The Parties shall [*] percent ([*]%) of
any costs and expenses of such defense, except with respect to the Medarex Technology or the Seattle Genetics Technology, where
Seattle Genetics and Medarex, respectively, shall only [*] percent ([*]%) of those costs and expenses with respect to the Exploitation
of Collaboration Products and the other activities of the Parties hereunder.
7.4.3 Retained Rights. Nothing in this Section 7.4 shall prevent either Party, at its own expense, from obtaining any license or
other rights from Third Parties it deems appropriate in order to permit the full and unhindered exercise of its rights under this
Agreement.
Section 7.5 Exchange of Know-How.

7.5.1 Information Disclosure. Each Party shall, and shall cause its Affiliates, licensees and sublicensees, as applicable, to,
without additional compensation and at such Party's sole expense, disclose and make available to the other Party, in whatever form
each such other Party may reasonably request, all Regulatory Documentation, all of its other Know-How, all Information and
Inventions included in the Joint Technology and any other Information and Inventions relating, directly or indirectly, to the Exploitation
of any Collaboration Products immediately after the Effective Date and thereafter immediately upon the earlier of the conception or
reduction to
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practice, discovery, development or making of each such Regulatory Documentation, Know-How, or other Information and Inventions.

7.5.2 Cooperation. With respect to the research, development, commercialization or other Exploitation of the Collaboration
Products, each Party, shall cooperate with any and all reasonable requests for assistance from the other Party, including by making its
employees, consultants and other scientific staff available upon reasonable notice during normal business hours at their respective
places of employment to consult with such other Party, as applicable, on issues arising during such research, development,
commercialization or Exploitation.
7.5.3 Biological Materials. For purposes of facilitating the conduct of the research and development activities under this
Agreement, Medarex and Seattle Genetics shall each provide to the other tissues, cells, cell lines, organisms, blood samples, genetic
material, and other biological substances and materials, including the Mice Materials, the Collaboration Targets and other Antigens
(collectively, "Biological Materials ") specified from time to time in this Agreement or the applicable Project Plan. Each Party agrees
to provide all such Biological Materials to the other in accordance with the applicable Project Plan, and under the supervision of the
Steering Committee. The Parties agree that: (a) all Biological Materials provided by one Party to the other Party and any Biological
Material (including Collaboration Products and other Mice Materials) produced against or with, or derived from, such Biological
Materials shall be used solely for the research and development activities as provided in the Project Plan, and in material compliance
with all Applicable Law; (b) all such Biological Materials shall be provided without any warranties, express or implied; (c) the Party
providing such Biological Materials shall obtain (or cause its Third Party collaborators to obtain or certify that they have obtained) all
appropriate and required consents from the source of such Biological Materials; (d) Biological Materials provided by one Party to the
other Party (other than Collaboration Products) shall not be made available by such other Party to any Third Party except as expressly
provided in the Project Plan, unless the prior written consent of the Party providing such Biological Materials is first obtained; and
(e) subject to the license grants in Article 3 and other provisions in this Agreement, all right, title and interest in and to (i) the Mice
Materials and the Mice-Related Technology shall be, and remain, vested in Medarex, and (ii) the Collaboration Targets shall be, and
remain, vested in Seattle Genetics.
7.5.4 Regulatory Records. With respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, each Party shall maintain, or cause to be
maintained, records of its respective research, development, manufacturing and commercialization activities, including all Regulatory
Documentation, in sufficient detail and in good scientific manner appropriate for patent and regulatory purposes, which shall be
complete and accurate and shall fully and properly reflect all work done and results achieved in the performance of such activities, and
which shall be retained during the term of this Agreement and for a period of five (5) years thereafter, or for such longer period as may
be required by Applicable Law. Each Party shall have the right, during normal business hours and upon reasonable notice, to inspect
and copy any such records, except to the extent that such records contain proprietary information with respect to the other Party's
Production Technology or, with respect to Medarex's records, the HuMAb Mice.
7.5.5 Production Technology. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 7.5 or elsewhere in this Agreement,
neither Party shall be obligated to disclose or provide any of its Production Technology, including Biological Materials, to the other
Party or any Third Party; provided, however , that each Party shall provide such Production Know-How to the Regulatory Authorities
as is necessary to obtain and maintain Regulatory Approval for Collaboration Products supplied by it pursuant to Section 1.6. Each

Party shall have the right to provide such Know-How to the Regulatory Authorities in a drug master file, or any foreign equivalent that
is designed to protect a Party's Confidential Information.
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ARTICLE 8—
TERM AND TERMINATION
Section 8.1 Term. The term of this Agreement (the " Term") shall commence upon the Effective Date and shall continue in effect until the
later of (a) the [*] anniversary of the completion of all of the activities in Section 1.2, or (b) such time as there is no longer any Collaboration
Product being Exploited hereunder, unless terminated at an earlier date in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Article 8.
Section 8.2 Termination of Agreement for Material Breach. Failure by a Party to comply with any of its material obligations contained
herein shall entitle the Party not in default to give to the Party in default notice specifying the nature of the default, requiring the defaulting
Party to make good or otherwise cure such default, and stating its intention to terminate if such default is not cured. If such default is not
cured within thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice (or, if such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30)-day period, if the Party in
default does not commence actions to cure such default within such period and thereafter diligently continue such actions or if such default is
not otherwise cured within ninety (90) days after the receipt of such notice), the Party not in default shall be entitled, without prejudice to any
of its other rights conferred on it by this Agreement, and in addition to any other remedies available to it by law or in equity, to terminate this
Agreement in its entirety.
Section 8.3 Termination of Rights with Respect to Collaboration Products Upon Material Breach. Failure by a Party to comply
with any of its material obligations contained herein with respect to a Collaboration Product shall entitle the Party not in default to give to the
Party in default notice specifying the nature of the default, requiring the defaulting Party to make good or otherwise cure such default, and
stating its intention to convert such Collaboration Product to a Unilateral Product pursuant to Section 5.1 if such default is not cured. If such
default is not cured within thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice (or, if such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30)-day period,
if the Party in default does not commence actions to cure such default within such period and thereafter diligently continue such actions or if
such default is not otherwise cured within ninety (90) days after the receipt of such notice), the Party not in default shall be entitled, on written
notice to the other Party, to convert such Collaboration Product to a Unilateral Product pursuant to Section 5.1, whereupon the defaulting
Party shall be deemed the Opting-Out Party with respect to such Unilateral Product for all purposes hereunder and the notice provided under
this provision shall be deemed equivalent to an Election Notice as provided in Section 5.1.
Section 8.4 Termination Upon Insolvency. Either Party may terminate this Agreement if, at any time, the other Party shall file in any
court or agency pursuant to any statute or regulation of any state, country or jurisdiction, a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for
reorganization or for an arrangement or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of that Party or of its assets, or if such other Party
proposes a written agreement of composition or extension of its debts, or if such other Party shall be served with an involuntary petition
against it, filed in any insolvency proceeding, and such petition shall not be dismissed within sixty (60) days after the filing thereof, or if such
other Party shall propose or be a party to any dissolution or liquidation, or if such other Party shall make an assignment for the benefit of its
creditors.
Section 8.5 Rights in Bankruptcy. All rights and licenses granted under or pursuant to this Agreement by Medarex or Seattle Genetics
are, and shall otherwise be deemed to be, for purposes of Section 365(n) of the United States Bankruptcy Code, licenses of rights to
"intellectual property" as defined under Section 101 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. The Parties agree that the Parties, as licensees of
such rights under this Agreement, shall retain and may fully exercise all of their rights and elections under the United States Bankruptcy
Code. The Parties further agree that, in the event of the commencement of a bankruptcy proceeding by or against a Party under the United
States Bankruptcy
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Code, the Party hereto that is not a Party to such proceeding shall be entitled to a complete duplicate of (or complete access to, as appropriate)
any such intellectual property and all embodiments of such intellectual property, which, if not already in the non-subject Party's possession,
shall be promptly delivered to it (a) upon any such commencement of a bankruptcy proceeding upon the non-subject Party's written request
therefor, unless the Party subject to such proceeding elects to continue to perform all of its obligations under this Agreement or (b) if not
delivered under clause (a) above, following the rejection of this Agreement by or on behalf of the Party subject to such proceeding upon
written request therefor by the non-subject Party.

Section 8.6 Consequences of Expiration or Termination.

8.6.1 Licenses. Upon expiration of the full term of this Agreement in accordance with Section 8.1 and payment of all amounts
owed pursuant to Section 4.1, the licenses granted by Medarex to Seattle Genetics, and by Seattle Genetics to Medarex, hereunder
shall be deemed fully-paid up.
8.6.2 Return of Information and Materials. Upon expiration of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1 or upon termination of
this Agreement in its entirety by either Party pursuant to this Article 8, each Party, at the request of the other Party, shall return
Biological Materials of such other Party and all data, files, records and other materials in its possession or control relating to such
other Party's Technology, or containing or comprising such other Party's Information and Inventions or other Confidential Information
(as defined in Article 6) and, in each case, to which the returning Party does not retain rights hereunder (except one copy of which
may be retained solely for archival purposes).

Section 8.7 Accrued Rights; Surviving Obligations.

8.7.1 Accrued Rights. Termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason shall be without prejudice to any rights that
shall have accrued to the benefit of a Party prior to such termination or expiration. Such termination or expiration shall not relieve a
Party from obligations that are expressly indicated to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.
8.7.2 Survival. Articles 4, 6, 7 and 9, and Sections 2.3, 8.6, 11.5 and 11.6 of this Agreement and this Section 8.7 shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason.
ARTICLE 9—
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
Section 9.1 Indemnification of Medarex. Seattle Genetics shall indemnify Medarex and its Affiliates, directors, officers, employees
and agents, and defend and save each of them harmless, from and against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses
(including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) in connection with any and all liability suits, investigations, claims or demands
(collectively, " Losses") arising from or occurring as a result of or in connection with (a) any breach by Seattle Genetics of this Agreement, or
(b) the gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of Seattle Genetics or its Affiliates, licensees or sublicensees in performing any
activity contemplated by this Agreement, except for those Losses for which Medarex has an obligation to indemnify Seattle Genetics
pursuant to Section 9.2, as to which Losses each Party shall indemnify the other to the extent of their respective liability for the Losses.
Section 9.2 Indemnification of Seattle Genetics. Medarex shall indemnify Seattle Genetics, its Affiliates and their respective
directors, officers, employees and agents, and defend and save each of them harmless, from and against any and all Losses arising from or
occurring as a result of or in connection with (a) any breach by Medarex of this Agreement, or (b) the gross negligence or willful misconduct
on the part of Medarex or its Affiliates, licensees or sublicensees in performing any activity contemplated by this Agreement, except for those
Losses for which Seattle Genetics has an obligation to indemnify Medarex and its Affiliates pursuant to Section 9.1, as to which Losses each
Party shall indemnify the other to the extent of their respective liability for the Losses.
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Section 9.3 Indemnification Procedure.

9.3.1 Notice of Claim. The indemnified Party shall give the indemnifying Party prompt written notice (an " Indemnification
Claim Notice ") of any Losses or discovery of fact upon which such indemnified Party intends to base a request for indemnification
under Section 9.1 or Section 9.2, but in no event shall the indemnifying Party be liable for any Losses that result from any delay in
providing such notice. Each Indemnification Claim Notice must contain a description of the claim and the nature and amount of such
Loss (to the extent that the nature and amount of such Loss are known at such time). The indemnified Party shall furnish promptly to
the indemnifying Party copies of all papers and official documents received in respect of any Losses. All indemnification claims in
respect of a Party, its Affiliates or their respective directors, officers, employees and agents (collectively, the " Indemnitees " and each
an " Indemnitee ") shall be made solely by such Party to this Agreement (the " Indemnified Party ").
9.3.2 Third Party Claims. The obligations of an indemnifying Party under this Article 9 with respect to Losses arising from
claims of any Third Party that are subject to indemnification as provided for in Section 9.1 or 9.2 (a "Third Party Claim ") shall be
governed by and be contingent upon the following additional terms and conditions:
(a) Control of Defense. At its option, the indemnifying Party may assume the defense of any Third Party Claim by giving
written notice to the Indemnified Party within thirty (30) days after the indemnifying Party's receipt of an Indemnification Claim
Notice. The assumption of the defense of a Third Party Claim by the indemnifying Party shall not be construed as an
acknowledgment that the indemnifying Party is liable to indemnify any Indemnitee in respect of the Third Party Claim, nor
shall it constitute a waiver by the indemnifying Party of any defenses it may assert against any Indemnitee's claim for
indemnification. Upon assuming the defense of a Third Party Claim, the indemnifying Party may appoint as lead counsel in
the defense of the Third Party Claim any legal counsel selected by the indemnifying Party. In the event the indemnifying Party
assumes the defense of a Third Party Claim, the Indemnified Party shall immediately deliver to the indemnifying Party all
original notices and documents (including court papers) received by any Indemnitee in connection with the Third Party Claim.
Should the indemnifying Party assume the defense of a Third Party Claim, the indemnifying Party shall not be liable to the
Indemnified Party or any other Indemnitee for any legal expenses subsequently incurred by such Indemnified Party or other
Indemnitee in connection with the analysis, defense or settlement of the Third Party Claim. In the event that it is ultimately
determined that the indemnifying Party is not obligated to indemnify, defend or hold harmless an Indemnitee from and against
the Third Party Claim, the Indemnified Party shall reimburse the indemnifying Party for any and all costs and expenses
(including attorneys' fees and costs of suit) and any Losses incurred by the indemnifying Party in its defense of the Third Party
Claim with respect to such Indemnitee.
(b) Right to Participate in Defense. Without limiting Section 9.3.2(a), any Indemnitee shall be entitled to participate in,
but not control, the defense of such Third Party Claim and to employ counsel of its choice for such purpose; provided,
however, that such employment shall be at the Indemnitee's own expense unless (i) the employment thereof has been
specifically authorized by the indemnifying Party in writing, or (ii) the indemnifying Party has failed to assume the defense and
employ counsel in accordance with Section 9.3.2(a) (in which case the Indemnified Party shall control the defense).
(c) Settlement. With respect to any Losses relating solely to the payment of money damages in connection with a Third

Party Claim and that will not result in the Indemnitee's becoming subject to injunctive or other relief or otherwise adversely
affect the business of the Indemnitee in any manner, and as to which the indemnifying Party shall have acknowledged in
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writing the obligation to indemnify the Indemnitee hereunder, the indemnifying Party shall have the sole right to consent to the
entry of any judgment, enter into any settlement or otherwise dispose of such Loss, on such terms as the indemnifying Party,
in its sole discretion, shall deem appropriate. With respect to all other Losses in connection with Third Party Claims, where the
indemnifying Party has assumed the defense of the Third Party Claim in accordance with Section 9.3.2(a), the indemnifying
Party shall have authority to consent to the entry of any judgment, enter into any settlement or otherwise dispose of such Loss
provided it obtains the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed). The indemnifying Party shall not be liable for any settlement or other disposition of a Loss by an Indemnitee that is
reached without the written consent of the indemnifying Party. Regardless of whether the indemnifying Party chooses to
defend or prosecute any Third Party Claim, no Indemnitee shall admit any liability with respect to, or settle, compromise or
discharge, any Third Party Claim without the prior written consent of the indemnifying Party.

(d) Cooperation. Regardless of whether the indemnifying Party chooses to defend or prosecute any Third Party Claim,
the Indemnified Party shall, and shall cause each other Indemnitee to, cooperate in the defense or prosecution thereof and
shall furnish such records, information and testimony, provide such witnesses and attend such conferences, discovery
proceedings, hearings, trials and appeals as may be reasonably requested in connection therewith. Such cooperation shall
include access during normal business hours afforded to the indemnifying Party to, and reasonable retention by the
Indemnified Party of, records and information that are reasonably relevant to such Third Party Claim, and making Indemnitees
and other employees and agents available on a mutually convenient basis to provide additional information and explanation of
any material provided hereunder, and the indemnifying Party shall reimburse the Indemnified Party for all its reasonable outof-pocket expenses in connection therewith.
(e) Expenses. Except as provided above, the reasonable and verifiable costs and expenses, including fees and
disbursements of counsel, incurred by the Indemnified Party in connection with any claim shall be reimbursed on a calendar
quarter basis by the indemnifying Party, without prejudice to the indemnifying Party's right to contest the Indemnified Party's
right to indemnification and subject to refund in the event the indemnifying Party is ultimately held not to be obligated to
indemnify the Indemnified Party.
Section 9.4 Insurance. Each Party shall have and maintain such types and amounts of liability insurance as is normal and customary
in the industry generally for parties similarly situated, and shall upon request provide the other Party with a copy of its policies of insurance in
that regard, along with any amendments and revisions thereto.

ARTICLE 10—
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
Section 10.1 Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Each Party hereby represents, warrants and covenants to the other
Party as of the Effective Date as follows:

10.1.1 Corporate Authority. Such Party (a) has the power and authority and the legal right to enter into this Agreement and
perform its obligations hereunder, and (b) has taken all necessary action on its part required to authorize the execution and delivery of
this Agreement and the performance of its obligations hereunder. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of
such Party and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Party and is enforceable against it in accordance with its terms
subject to the effects of bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws of general application affecting the enforcement of creditor rights and
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judicial principles affecting the availability of specific performance and general principles of equity, whether enforceability is considered
a proceeding at law or equity.

10.1.2 Litigation. Such Party is not aware of any pending or threatened litigation (and has not received any communication) that
alleges that such Party's activities related to this Agreement have violated, or that by conducting the activities as contemplated herein
such Party would violate, any of the intellectual property rights of any other party.
10.1.3 Consents, Approvals, etc. All necessary consents, approvals and authorizations of all Regulatory Authorities and other
parties required to be obtained by such Party in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of
its obligations hereunder have been obtained.
10.1.4 Conflicts. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of such Party's obligations hereunder (a) do
not conflict with or violate any requirement of Applicable Law or any provision of the articles of incorporation, bylaws or any similar
instrument of such Party, as applicable, in any material way, and (b) do not conflict with, violate, or breach or constitute a default or
require any consent under, any contractual obligation or court or administrative order by which such Party is bound.
10.1.5 Debarment. No such Party nor any of its Affiliates has been debarred or is subject to debarment and neither such Party
nor any of its Affiliates will use in any capacity, in connection with the services to be performed under this Agreement, any party who

has been debarred pursuant to Section 306 of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, as amended, or who is the subject of a
conviction described in such section. Each Party will inform the other Party in writing immediately if it or any party who is performing
services hereunder is debarred or is the subject of a conviction described in Section 306, or if any action, suit, claim, investigation or
legal or administrative proceeding is pending or, to such Party's knowledge, is threatened, relating to the debarment or conviction of
such Party or any party performing services hereunder.

Section 10.2 Additional Representations and Warranties of Medarex. Medarex represents and warrants to Seattle Genetics that
Medarex is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of New Jersey, and has full
corporate power and authority and the legal right to own and operate its property and assets and to carry on its business as it is now being
conducted and as it is contemplated to be conducted by this Agreement.
Section 10.3 Additional Representations and Warranties of Seattle Genetics. Seattle Genetics represents and warrants to
Medarex that Seattle Genetics is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of Delaware, and has full
corporate power and authority and the legal right to own and operate its property and assets and to carry on its business as it is now being
conducted and as it is contemplated to be conducted by this Agreement.
Section 10.4 DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN SECTIONS 10.1,
10.2 AND 10.3, SEATTLE GENETICS AND MEDAREX MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS AND GRANT NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, BY STATUTE OR OTHERWISE, AND SEATTLE GENETICS AND
MEDAREX EACH SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ANY OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER WRITTEN OR ORAL, OR EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF QUALITY, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE
OR ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE VALIDITY OF ANY PATENTS OR THE NON-INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES.
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ARTICLE 11—
MISCELLANEOUS
Section 11.1 Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be held liable or responsible to the other Party or be deemed to have defaulted under or
breached this Agreement for failure or delay in fulfilling or performing any term of this Agreement when such failure or delay is caused by or
results from events beyond the reasonable control of the non-performing Party, including fires, floods, embargoes, shortages, epidemics,
quarantines, war, acts of war (whether war be declared or not), insurrections, riots, civil commotion, strikes, lockouts or other labor
disturbances, acts of God or acts, omissions or delays in acting by any governmental authority. The non-performing Party shall notify the
other Party of such force majeure within ten (10) days after such occurrence by giving written notice to the other Party stating the nature of the
event, its anticipated duration, and any action being taken to avoid or minimize its effect. The suspension of performance shall be of no
greater scope and no longer duration than is necessary and the non-performing Party shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remedy
its inability to perform; provided, however , that in the event the suspension of performance continues for one-hundred and eighty (180) days
after the date of the occurrence, the Parties shall meet to discuss in good faith how to proceed in order to accomplish the goals of the
Collaboration outlined in this Agreement.
Section 11.2 Subcontractors. Each Party shall have the right, subject to the prior written consent of the Steering Committee, such
consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed, to subcontract any of its research, development, manufacture and/or commercialization
activities to a Third Party, provided that it furnishes the other Party with advanced written notice thereof, which notice shall specify the work to
be subcontracted, and obtains a written undertaking from the subcontractor that it shall be subject to the applicable terms and conditions of
this Agreement, including the provisions of Article 6. If a Party wishes to subcontract any of its research, development, manufacturing or
commercialization activities to a Third Party and the Steering Committee consents, the other Party may submit a bid to the subcontracting
Party to perform such work. The subcontracting Party shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to enter into an agreement with the bidder
that is best able to meet the Collaboration's requirements, taking into consideration such factors as price, quality, capacity, quantity, reliability
and reputation, provided that such bidder is reasonably acceptable to the Steering Committee. Unless the Project Plan provides, or the
Steering Committee agrees otherwise, the Parties shall share equally (50%) in the costs and expenses associated with the use of a
subcontractor to conduct research, development, manufacture and commercialization activities, but, unless the Parties agree otherwise, the
subcontracting Party shall remain solely liable for the performance of its research, development, manufacture or commercialization activities
by its subcontractor; provided, however, that Seattle Genetics and Medarex each shall remain solely responsible for all costs and expenses
associated with its use of subcontractor(s) with respect to the Seattle Genetics Research Activities and the Medarex Research Activities,
respectively.
Section 11.3 Assignment. Without the prior written consent of the other Party hereto, neither Party shall sell, transfer, assign,
delegate, pledge or otherwise dispose of, whether voluntarily, involuntarily, by operation of law or otherwise, this Agreement or any of its
rights or duties hereunder; provided, however , that either Party hereto may assign or transfer this Agreement or any of its rights or
obligations hereunder without the consent of the other Party (a) to any Affiliate of such Party; or (b) to any Third Party with which it may
merge or consolidate, or to which it may transfer all or substantially all of its assets to which this Agreement relates if in any such event
(i) the assigning Party (provided that it is not the surviving entity) remains jointly and severally liable with the relevant Seattle Genetics
Affiliate, Medarex Affiliate or Third Party assignee under this Agreement, and (ii) the relevant Seattle Genetics Affiliate or Medarex Affiliate
assignee, Third Party assignee or surviving entity assumes in writing all of the assigning Party's obligations under this Agreement. Any
purported assignment or transfer in violation of this Section shall be void ab initio and of no force or effect.
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Section 11.4 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable under any present or future
law, and if the rights or obligations of either Party under this Agreement will not be materially and adversely affected thereby, (a) such
provision shall be fully severable, (b) this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision
had never comprised a part, (c) the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by
the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance herefrom, and (d) in lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision,
there shall be added automatically as a part of this Agreement a legal, valid and enforceable provision as similar in terms to such illegal,
invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and reasonably acceptable to the Parties herein. To the fullest extent permitted by
applicable law, each Party hereby waives any provision of law that would render any provision prohibited or unenforceable in any respect.
Section 11.5 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue and Service. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of New York, applicable to contracts made and wholly performed within such jurisdiction by residents of such
jurisdiction.
Section 11.6 Notices. All notices or other communications that are required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and delivered
personally, sent by facsimile (and promptly confirmed by personal delivery, registered or certified mail or overnight courier as provided
herein), sent by nationally-recognized overnight courier or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested,
addressed as follows:
If to Seattle Genetics, to:

Seattle Genetics, Inc.
22215 26th Avenue S.E., Suite 3000

Bothell, WA 98021
Attention: Chief Executive Officer
Facsimile: (425) 489-4798

with a copy to:
Venture Law Group
4750 Carillon Point
Kirkland, WA 98033
Attention: Sonya F. Erickson, Esq.
Facsimile: (425) 739-8750
If to Medarex, to:

Medarex, Inc.
707 State Road, Suite 206
Princeton, New Jersey 08540-1437
Attention: President
Facsimile: (609) 430-2850

with copies to:
Medarex, Inc.
707 State Road, Suite 206
Princeton, New Jersey 08540-1437
Attention: General Counsel
Facsimile: (609) 430-2850

28
Covington & Burling
1201 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20004
Attention: John A. Hurvitz, Esq.
Facsimile: (202) 778-5319
or to such other address as the Party to whom notice is to be given may have furnished to the other Party in writing in accordance herewith.
Any such communication shall be deemed to have been given (i) when delivered, if personally delivered or sent by facsimile on a business
day, (ii) on the business day after dispatch, if sent by nationally-recognized overnight courier, and (iii) on the third business day following the
date of mailing, if sent by mail. It is understood and agreed that this Section 11.6 is not intended to govern the day-to-day business
communications necessary between the Parties in performing their duties, in due course, under the terms of this Agreement.

Section 11.7 Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement sets forth and constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and all prior agreements, understanding, promises and representations,
whether written or oral, with respect thereto are superseded hereby. Each Party confirms that it is not relying on any representations or
warranties of the other Party except as specifically set forth herein. No amendment, modification, release or discharge shall be binding upon

the Parties unless in writing and duly executed by authorized representatives of both Parties.

Section 11.8 Relationship of the Parties. It is expressly agreed that the Parties shall be independent contractors of one another and
that the relationship between the Parties shall not constitute a partnership, joint venture or agency. Neither Party shall have the authority to
make any statements, representations or commitments of any kind, or to take any action, which shall be binding on the other, without the
prior written consent of the other to do so. All persons employed by a Party shall be employees of such Party and not of the other Party and all
costs and obligations incurred by reason of any such employment shall be for the account and expense of such Party.
Section 11.9 Waiver. Any term or condition of this Agreement may be waived at any time by the Party that is entitled to the benefit
thereof, but no such waiver shall be effective unless set forth in a written instrument duly executed by or on behalf of the Party waiving such
term or condition. The waiver by either Party hereto of any right hereunder or of the failure to perform or of a breach by the other Party shall
not be deemed a waiver of any other right hereunder or of any other breach or failure by said other Party whether of a similar nature or
otherwise.

Section 11.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Section 11.11 No Benefit to Third Parties. The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement are
for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their successors and permitted assigns, and they shall not be construed as conferring any rights
on any other parties.
Section 11.12 Further Assurance. Each Party shall duly execute and deliver, or cause to be duly executed and delivered, such further
instruments and do and cause to be done such further acts and things, including the filing of such assignments, agreements, documents
and instruments, as may be necessary or as the other Party may reasonably request in connection with this Agreement or to carry out more
effectively the provisions and purposes, or to better assure and confirm unto such other Party its rights and remedies under this Agreement.
Section 11.13 English Language. This Agreement has been written and executed in the English language. Any translation into any
other language shall not be an official version thereof, and in the
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event of any conflict in interpretation between the English version and such translation, the English version shall control.

Section 11.14 References. Unless otherwise specified, (a) references in this Agreement to any Article, Section, Schedule or Exhibit
shall mean references to such Article, Section, Schedule or Exhibit of this Agreement, (b) references in any section to any clause are
references to such clause of such section, and (c) references to any agreement, instrument or other document in this Agreement refer to such
agreement, instrument or other document as originally executed or, if subsequently varied, replaced or supplemented from time to time, as
so varied, replaced or supplemented and in effect at the relevant time of reference thereto.
Section 11.15 Construction. Except where the context otherwise requires, wherever used, the singular shall include the plural, the
plural the singular, the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders and the word "or" is used in the inclusive sense (and/or). The
captions of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and in no way define, describe, extend or limit the scope or intent of this
Agreement or the intent of any provision contained in this Agreement. The term "including" as used herein shall mean including, without
limiting the generality of any description preceding such term. The language of this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language mutually
chosen by the Parties and no rule of strict construction shall be applied against either Party hereto.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of
the date first above written.

MEDAREX, INC.

SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.

By: /s/ RONALD A. PEPIN

By: /s/ H. PERRY FELL

Name: Ronald A. Pepin

Name: H. Perry Fell

Title: Vice President, Business Development

Title: Chief Executive Officer
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APPENDIX A
Definitions
This Appendix to the COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement ") effective as of February 2, 2001, by and between SEATTLE
GENETICS, INC. (" Seattle Genetics ") and MEDAREX, INC., on behalf of itself and its wholly owned subsidiary, GENPHARM
INTERNATIONAL, INC., (collectively, "Medarex ") provides agreed upon definitions applicable to the Parties for purposes of the Agreement.

All capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Agreement, unless otherwise expressly
provided herein.
The contents of this Appendix A are hereby incorporated into the Agreement and are governed by the terms and conditions of the
Agreement, including the confidentiality provisions set forth therein.

"Affiliate" of a party shall mean any other party that, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with such first party. For purposes of this definition only, "control" and, with correlative meanings, the terms
"controlled by" and "under common control with" shall mean (a) the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct the management
or policies of a party, whether through the ownership of voting securities or by contract relating to voting rights or corporate governance, or
(b) the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting securities or other ownership interest of a party; provided
that, if local law restricts foreign ownership, control will be established by direct or indirect ownership of the maximum ownership percentage
that may, under such local law, be owned by foreign interests.
"Antibody" shall mean any fully human monoclonal antibody, or fragment thereof, with a unique amino acid sequence that has a
therapeutically meaningful binding affinity for an Antigen. References in the Agreement to an "Antibody" shall include (a) [*] or [*] such
Antibody or [*] (whether [*] or [*]) with respect to the [*] of such Antibody, and (b) [*] (whether [*] or [*]) with respect to the [*] of such
Antibody (or a [*] of such [*] containing that [*] of such [*] for an [*]). By way of clarification, Antibodies with [*] shall be deemed to be
different Antibodies, irrespective of whether they bind to the same Antigen.
"Antibody Product" shall mean any composition or formulation containing or comprising one or more Antibodies, including, by way of
clarification, (a) [*] or [*] one or more of such Antibodies or [*] (whether [*] or [*]) with respect to the [*] of such Antibodies, and (b) [*]
(whether [*] or [*]) with respect to the [*] of such Antibodies (or a [*] of such [*] containing that [*] of such [*] for an [*]), for the diagnosis,
prophylaxis or treatment of human diseases or conditions.

"Antigen" shall mean any protein (including any glyco- or lipo-protein), carbohydrate, compound or other composition, and any fragment,
peptide or epitope thereof, that stimulates the production of antibodies.
"Applicable Law" shall mean the applicable laws, rules, and regulations, including any rules, regulations, guidelines, or other
requirements of the Regulatory Authorities, that may be in effect from time to time in the Territory.
"Biosite Agreement" shall mean that certain Collaboration Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000, between Medarex and Biosite
Diagnostics Incorporated, a Delaware corporation.

"BLA" or "Biologics License Application" shall mean a Biologics License Application, as defined in the U.S. Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetics Act, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and any corresponding foreign or domestic marketing
authorization application, registration or certification, necessary or reasonably useful to market a Collaboration Product in the Territory, but not
including pricing and reimbursement approvals.
"Collaboration Product" shall mean any Antibody Product that contains a Collaboration Antibody.
"Collaboration Target" shall mean any Antigen listed on Appendix C , as such appendix may be amended pursuant to this Agreement.
"Collaboration Target Technology" shall mean the Collaboration Targets and any Patents that claim or cover any Collaboration Target or
any method for the discovery, identification or characterization of Collaboration Targets, but excluding any claims with respect to Collaboration
Products or any Information and Inventions with respect to the Exploitation of the Collaboration Products.

"Commercially Reasonable Efforts" shall mean, with respect to the research, development, manufacture or commercialization of a
Collaboration Target or a resulting Collaboration Product, efforts and resources commonly used in the biotechnology industry for an antibody
of similar commercial potential at a similar stage in its lifecycle, taking into consideration its safety and efficacy, its cost to develop, the
competitiveness of alternative products, its proprietary position, the likelihood of regulatory approval, its profitability, and all other relevant
factors. Commercially Reasonable Efforts shall be determined on a market-by-market basis for each Collaboration Target and Collaboration
Product, as applicable.
"Control" shall mean, with respect to any Information and Invention, Patent or other intellectual property right, possession of the right,
whether directly or indirectly, and whether by ownership, license or otherwise, to assign, or grant a license, sublicense or other right to or
under, such Information and Invention, Patent or right as provided for herein without violating the terms of any agreement or other
arrangement with any Third Party.

"Cross-License Agreement" shall mean that certain Cross-License Agreement entered into by and among Abgenix, Inc., Cell
Genesys, Inc., Japan Tobacco Inc., Xenotech L.P., and GenPharm International, Inc., effective as of March 26, 1997, as amended from time
to time.

"Exploit" or "Exploitation" shall mean to make, have made, import, use, sell, offer for sale, or otherwise dispose of, including all
discovery, research, development, registration, modification, enhancement, improvement, manufacture, storage, formulation, exportation,
transportation, distribution, promotion and marketing activities related thereto.

"FDA" shall mean the United States Food and Drug Administration and any successor agency thereto.

"GAAP" shall mean United States generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.
"HuMAb Mice" shall mean any [*] containing [*] into [*], but not containing any [*] or [*] thereof, that are Controlled by Medarex or its
Affiliates as of the Effective Date or at any time during the term of this Agreement, but excluding [*] of producing [*] that are [*] or otherwise
[*] by Medarex or its Affiliates after the Effective Date.
"Improvement" shall mean any modification to an antibody, compound, product or technology or any discovery, device, process or
formulation related to such antibody, compound, product or technology, whether or not patented or patentable, including any enhancement in
the efficiency, operation, manufacture, ingredients, preparation, presentation, formulation, means of delivery, packaging or dosage of an
antibody, compound, product or technology, any discovery or development of any new or expanded indications or applications for an antibody,
compound, product or technology, or any discovery or development that improves the stability, safety or efficacy of an antibody, compound,
product or technology.

"IND" shall mean an investigational new drug application filed with the FDA for authorization to commence human clinical trials, and its
equivalent in other countries or regulatory jurisdictions.
"Information and Inventions" shall mean all technical, scientific and other know-how and information, trade secrets, knowledge,
technology, means, methods, processes, practices, formulas, instructions, skills, techniques, procedures, experiences, ideas, technical
assistance, designs, drawings, assembly procedures, computer programs, apparatuses, specifications, data, results and other material,
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including high-throughput screening, gene expression, genomics, proteomics and other drug discovery and development technology, preclinical and clinical trial results, manufacturing procedures, test procedures and purification and isolation techniques, (whether or not
confidential, proprietary, patented or patentable) in written, electronic or any other form now known or hereafter developed, and all
Improvements, whether to the foregoing or otherwise, and other discoveries, developments, inventions and other intellectual property
(whether or not confidential, proprietary, patented or patentable).

"Joint Technology" shall mean any and all (a) Information and Inventions, conceived, discovered, developed or otherwise made, as
necessary to establish authorship, inventorship or ownership under Applicable Law, by or on behalf of a Party or its Affiliates or, to the extent
permitted, its sublicensees (whether alone or jointly), in connection with the work conducted under this Agreement, whether or not patented
or patentable, but excluding any Mice Materials, Mice-Related Technology, Production Technology and any Collaboration Target Technology;
and (b) any Patents and other intellectual property rights with respect thereto (collectively, "Joint Patents" ).

"Kirin Agreement" shall mean that certain Agreement on Essential Terms for Collaboration between Kirin Brewery Co, Ltd. ("Kirin")
and Medarex dated as of December 27, 1999, and any further agreement between Kirin and Medarex entered into pursuant thereto.
"Know-How" shall mean the Medarex Know-How (including the Mice-Related Know-How), the Seattle Genetics Know-How and/or the
Joint Know-How, as applicable.

"Lead Collaboration Antibody" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.2.8. For the avoidance of doubt, a Collaboration Antibody
that has been designated a Lead Collaboration Antibody shall continue to be a Collaboration Antibody for purposes of this Agreement.
"Medarex Know-How" shall mean all Information and Inventions in the Control of Medarex or its Affiliates as of the Effective Date or at
any time during the Term that are necessary or reasonably useful for the Exploitation of the Collaboration Products or for the exercise of the
Medarex Patents, in each case that are not generally known, but excluding (w) any Third Party Know-How, (x) any Information and
Inventions included in the Joint Technology, (y) any Production Know-How, and (z) any Information and Inventions to the extent covered or
claimed by the Medarex Patents. Medarex Know-How shall include all: (a) biological, chemical, pharmacological, toxicological,
pharmaceutical, physical and analytical, clinical and safety data and information related to the Collaboration Targets and the Collaboration
Products, and (b) data and information with respect to, and resulting from, assays and biological methodologies necessary or reasonably
useful for the Exploitation of the Collaboration Targets and the Collaboration Products. By way of clarification, Seattle Genetics shall not have
any rights with respect to Third-Party Know-How under this Agreement unless the Parties enter into a separate written agreement with
respect thereto.

"Medarex Patents" shall mean all of the Patents that Medarex or its Affiliates Control as of the Effective Date and at any time during the
Term, that cover or claim any invention necessary or reasonably useful for the Exploitation of the Collaboration Products, but excluding any
Third Party Patents, any Joint Patents, and any Production Patents. By way of clarification, Seattle Genetics shall not have any rights with
respect to any Third-Party Patents under this Agreement unless the Parties enter into a separate written agreement with respect thereto.
"Medarex Technology" shall mean the Medarex Know-How and Medarex Patents, including all Mice-Related Technology.

"Mice Materials" shall mean the HuMAb Mice, any [*] of the [*], including [*] (including [*] (e.g ., [*], and [*] and [*] thereto, whether [*]
or [*]) with respect to the [*] of an [*] or [*] thereof, and any [*] or [*] thereof or [*] thereto (e.g., [*] or [*] of [*] therein)) or other [*] derived
directly or indirectly from the [*], but excluding any [*].
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"Mice-Related Know-How" shall mean (a) any Information and Inventions with respect to any Mice Materials or other biological materials

derived directly or indirectly from the HuMAb Mice, but excluding any Collaboration Products and any Information and Inventions with
respect to Exploitation of Collaboration Products, and (b) any Information and Inventions with respect to the HuMAb Mice and the Exploitation
thereof, but in each case excluding any Information and Inventions to the extent covered or claimed by the Mice-Related Patents.

"Mice-Related Patents" shall mean any Patents that claim or cover (a) Mice Materials or other biological materials derived directly or
indirectly from the HuMAb Mice, and any Information and Inventions with respect to the foregoing, but excluding any claims with respect to
Collaboration Products or any Information and Inventions with respect to the Exploitation of the Collaboration Products, and (b) the HuMAb
Mice and the Exploitation thereof.
"Mice-Related Technology" shall mean the Mice-Related Know-How and the Mice-Related Patents.

"MRC Agreement" shall mean that certain License Agreement entered into by the Medical Research Council Institute of Animal
Physiology and Genetics Research of Babraham Hall and Marianne Bruggëmann and GenPharm International, Inc., effective October 1,
1993, as amended on August 12, 1994.

"Patents" shall mean (x) all patents and patent applications, (y) any substitutions, divisions, continuations, continuations-in-part,
reissues, renewals, registrations, confirmations, re-examinations, extensions, supplementary protection certificates and the like, and any
provisional applications, of any such patents or patent applications, and (z) any foreign or international equivalent of any of the foregoing.
"Phase III" shall mean a human clinical trial, the principal purpose of which is to establish safety and efficacy in patients with the disease
target being studied as required in 21 C.F.R. §312, or a similar clinical study prescribed by the Regulatory Authorities in a country other than
the United States. A Phase III study shall also include any other human clinical trial intended as a pivotal study, whether or not such study is
a traditional Phase III study.
"Phase III Completion" shall mean the completion of a data package for a Phase III study with respect to a Collaboration Product, which
data package is sufficient to support the filing of an approvable BLA for such Collaboration Product in Japan, the United States, the United
Kingdom, France, Germany or the European Union as a whole.
"Pre-Existing Agreement" shall mean, with respect to an Antigen, any agreement with a Third Party that would preclude such Antigen
from becoming a Collaboration Target hereunder that was entered into by Seattle Genetics or any of its Affiliates, as applicable, prior to the
Effective Date.
"Product Trademarks" shall mean the trademarks developed for the Collaboration Products by the Steering Committee, all packaging
designs and other trade dress used in connection with the Collaboration Products and such other Trademarks relating thereto and any
registrations thereof or any pending applications relating thereto.
"Production Know-How" shall mean any Information and Inventions with respect to the Production Process Development or the
production of Antibody Products, but excluding any Information and Inventions to the extent covered or claimed by the Production Patents.

"Production Patents" shall mean any Patents of a Party that claim or cover the Production Process Development or the production of
Antibody Products.
"Production Process Development" shall mean the development of processes and technology to facilitate [production, purification,
evaluation, characterization, stability assessment, vialing and distribution, and release] of a Collaboration Antibody.
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"Production Technology" shall mean any Production Know-How and Production Patents.

"Regulatory Approval " shall mean any and all approvals (including pricing and reimbursement approvals), licenses, registrations or
authorizations of any Regulatory Authority, necessary for the Exploitation of a Collaboration Product in a country, including any (a) approval
for a Collaboration Product (including any INDs, BLAs and supplements and amendments thereto); (b) pre- and post-approval marketing
authorizations (including any prerequisite manufacturing approval or authorization related thereto); (c) labeling approval; and (d) technical,
medical and scientific licenses.

"Regulatory Authority" shall mean any applicable government entities regulating or otherwise exercising authority with respect to the
Exploitation of the Collaboration Targets or the Collaboration Products in the Territory.
"Regulatory Documentation " shall mean all applications, registrations, licenses, authorizations and approvals (including all Regulatory
Approvals), all correspondence submitted to or received from Regulatory Authorities (including minutes and official contact reports relating to
any communications with any Regulatory Authority), all supporting documents and all clinical studies and tests, relating to any Collaboration
Antibody, Collaboration Target or any Collaboration Products, and all data contained in any of the foregoing, including all regulatory drug lists,
advertising and promotion documents, adverse event files and complaint files.

"Seattle Genetics Know-How" shall mean all Information and Inventions in the Control of Seattle Genetics or its Affiliates as of the
Effective Date or at any time during the Term that are necessary or reasonably useful for the Exploitation of the Collaboration Products,
including the discovery, identification or characterization of Collaboration Targets, or for the exercise of the Seattle Genetics Patents, in each
case that are not generally known, but excluding (w) any Information and Inventions included in the Joint Technology, (x) any Information
and Inventions to the extent covered or claimed by the Seattle Genetics Patents, (y) any Production Know-How, and (z) any Information and

Inventions solely related to Seattle Genetics single-chain immunotoxin, drug conjugate and ADEPT technologies. Seattle Genetics KnowHow shall include all: (a) biological, chemical, pharmacological, toxicological, pharmaceutical, physical and analytical, clinical and safety data
and information related to the Collaboration Targets and the Collaboration Products, and (b) data and information with respect to, and
resulting from, assays and biological methodologies necessary or reasonably useful for the Exploitation of the Collaboration Targets and the
Collaboration Products.

"Seattle Genetics Patents" shall mean all of the Patents that Seattle Genetics and its Affiliates Control as of the Effective Date and at
any time during the Term, that claim or cover any invention necessary or reasonably useful for the Exploitation of the Collaboration Products
and any Collaboration Target Technology, but excluding (x) any Joint Patents, (y) any Production Patents, and (z) any Patents insofar as they
relate to the single-chain immunotoxin, drug conjugate and ADEPT technologies owned by Seattle Genetics.
"Seattle Genetics Technology" shall mean the Seattle Genetics Know-How and Seattle Genetics Patents.

"Technology" shall mean Medarex Technology, the Seattle Genetics Technology and/or the Joint Technology, as applicable.

"Territory" shall mean the entire world.

"Third Party" shall mean any party other than Medarex, Seattle Genetics or their respective Affiliates.
"Third-Party Know-How" shall mean any and all Information and Inventions that Medarex or any of its Affiliates Control pursuant to the
Biosite Agreement, the Kirin Agreement or any other
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agreement with a Third Party that is entered into after the Effective Date, but excluding any Information and Inventions that are claimed or
covered by the Third-Party Patents.

"Third-Party Patent" shall mean any Patents that Medarex or any of its Affiliates Control pursuant to the Biosite Agreement, the Kirin
Agreement or any other agreement with a Third Party that is entered into after the Effective Date.
"Trademark" shall include any word, name, symbol, color, designation or device or any combination thereof, including any trademark,
trade dress, service mark, service name, brand mark, trade name, brand name, logo or business symbol.
Terms Defined Elsewhere in this Agreement. The following terms are defined in the applicable Sections of this Agreement:
Defined Term

Antibodiable Antigen
Antigen Evaluation Material
Antigen Commitment
Assay
Assay Candidate
Assay Success Criteria
Authorized Commercialization Expenses
Authorized R&D Expenses
Biological Materials
Collaboration
Collaboration Antibody
Collaboration Expenses
Collective Opinion of Counsel
Commercialization Expenses
Confidential Information
Direct License Agreement
Dormant Product
Effective Date
Election Notice
Expert
Fully-Burdened Production Process Development Cost
Immunogen
Indemnification Claim Notice
Indemnified Party
Indemnitee
Infringement Suit
Losses
Medarex Research Activities
Net Profits, Net Losses
Net Sales
Opt-Out
Opt-Out Notice

Section

Section 1.2.2(a)
Section 1.2.2(a)
Section 1.2.2(a)
Section 1.2.3(c)
Section 1.2.6(a)
Section 1.2.3(e)
Section 4.1.1
Section 4.1.2
Section 7.5.3
Section 1.1
Section 1.2.6(a)
Section 4.5.1
Section 7.4.1
Appendix B
Section 6.1
Section 1.2.2(g)
Section 5.3
Preamble
Section 5.1.2
Section 2.3.1(a)
Appendix B
Section 1.2.3(a)
Section 9.3.1
Section 9.3.1
Section 9.3.1
Section 7.4.2
Section 9.1
Section 1.2.4
Appendix B
Appendix B
Section 5.1.1
Section 5.1.1

Opting-Out Party
Other Operating (Income)/Expense
Party
Project Budget
Project Plan

Section 5.1.1
Appendix B
Preamble
Section 1.3
Section 1.3
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Section 3.3.2
Section 1.8
Section 1.2.4
Section 2.1.1
Section 1.2.2(f)
Section 8.1
Section 9.3.2
Appendix B
Section 5.1.2
Section 5.1.2
Section 4.4

Research and Commercializationv Agreement
Reversion Target
Seattle Genetics Research Activities
Steering Committee
Target Entry Period
Term
Third Party Claim
Third Party Payments
Unilateral Development and Commercialization Agreement
Unilateral Product
Withholding Taxes
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APPENDIX B
Financial Definitions
This Appendix to the COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement ") effective as of February 2, 2001, by and between SEATTLE
GENETICS, INC. (" Seattle Genetics ") and MEDAREX, INC., on behalf of itself and its wholly owned subsidiary, GENPHARM
INTERNATIONAL, INC., (collectively, "Medarex ") provides agreed upon definitions of financial terms applicable to the Parties for purposes
of the Agreement. All capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Agreement, unless
otherwise expressly provided herein.
The contents of this Appendix B are hereby incorporated into the Agreement and are governed by the terms and conditions of the
Agreement, including the confidentiality provisions set forth therein.
It is the intention of the Parties that the interpretation of these definitions will be in accordance with GAAP.

1. "Net Sales" shall mean, for any period, the gross amount invoiced by the Parties and their Affiliates and sublicensees for the
sale of Collaboration Product(s) to Third Parties, less deductions for: (a) normal and customary trade, quantity and cash discounts and
sales returns and allowances (other than allowances for doubtful accounts), including (i) those granted on account of price
adjustments, billing errors, rejected goods, damaged goods, returns and rebates, (ii) administrative and other fees and
reimbursements and similar payments directly related to the sale or delivery of Collaboration Product(s) paid to wholesalers and other
distributors, buying groups, pharmacy benefit management organizations, health care insurance carriers and other institutions,
(iii) allowances, rebates and fees directly related to the sale or delivery of Collaboration Product(s) paid to distributors and
(iv) chargebacks; (b) freight, postage, shipping and insurance costs to the extent that such items are included in the gross amount
invoiced; (c) customs and excise duties and other duties related to the sales to the extent that such items are included in the gross
amount invoiced; (d) rebates and similar payments made with respect to sales paid for or reimbursed by any governmental or
regulatory authority such as, by way of illustration and not in limitation of the Parties' rights hereunder, Federal or state Medicaid,
Medicare or similar state program or equivalent foreign governmental program; (e) sales and other taxes and duties directly related to
the sale or delivery of Collaboration Product(s) (but not including taxes assessed against the income derived from such sale);
(f) distribution costs and expenses to the extent that such items are included in the gross amount invoiced; and (g) any such invoiced
amounts that are not collected by the Parties or their Affiliates or sublicensees; provided, however , that an amount shall be deducted
only once regardless of how many categories may apply to it. Any of the deductions listed above that involves a payment by a Party or
its Affiliates or sublicensees shall be taken as a deduction in the calendar quarter in which the payment is accrued by such entity.
Deductions pursuant to subsection (g) above shall be taken in the calendar quarter in which such sales are no longer recorded as a
receivable. For purposes of determining Net Sales, the Collaboration Product(s) shall be deemed to be sold when invoiced and a
"sale" shall not include transfers or dispositions for charitable, promotional, pre-clinical, clinical, regulatory or governmental purposes.
For purposes of calculating Net Sales of Collaboration Products, sales between or among the Parties or their Affiliates shall be excluded
from the computation of Net Sales, but sales by a Party or its Affiliates to sublicensees or Third Parties shall be included in the computation
of Net Sales.

2. "Net Profits" and, with correlative meaning, "Net Losses" , shall mean, with respect to a Collaboration Product, Net Sales of
such Collaboration Product less Authorized Commercialization Expenses (to the extent not already deducted from Net Sales) and
Other Operating (Income)/Expense with respect to such Collaboration Product, all for a given period.
3. "Commercialization Expenses" shall mean all Cost of Sales, Distribution Costs, Marketing Costs, Sales Costs, General
and Administrative Costs (in each case, to the extent not

deducted from Net Sales under Section 1 hereof) of the Parties and their Affiliates with respect to the Collaboration Products.

3.1 "Cost of Sales" shall mean (a) the supply price, and any other direct costs and expense of acquiring, including costs
of transport, customs, clearance and storage of product (if necessary), freight, customs, duty, and insurance borne by the
Parties (to the extent not included in such supply price), with respect to Net Sales of a Collaboration Product, and (b) any Third
Party Payments with respect to such Net Sales, to the extent not included in such supply price or reimbursed by a Third Party.

3.1.1 "Third Party Payments" shall mean intellectual property and technology acquisition and license costs and
expenses (including royalties, license fees, milestone payments and other payment obligations) paid to Third Parties
with respect to a Collaboration Product, including any payments made pursuant to the MRC Agreement.
3.2 "Distribution Costs" shall mean the costs and expenses specifically identifiable to the distribution of a Collaboration
Product by a Party including customer services, collection of data about sales to hospitals and other end users, order entry,
billing, shipping, credit and collection and other such activities, but in any case, not including any costs or expenses which are
reimbursed by any Third Party.
3.3 "Marketing Costs" shall mean, with respect to a Collaboration Product, the direct costs and expenses of marketing,
promotion, advertising, promotional materials, professional education, product-related public relations, relationships with
opinion leaders and professional societies, market research (before and after Regulatory Approval of a Collaboration Product),
healthcare economics studies, post-marketing studies required to maintain or expand Regulatory Approvals of such
Collaboration Product (to the extent not included in Authorized R&D Expenses) and other similar activities related to such
Collaboration Product and approved by the Steering Committee. Such costs and expenses will include both internal costs (e.g.,
salaries, benefits, supplies and materials, etc.) and costs of outside services and expenses (e.g., consultants, agency fees,
meeting costs, etc.). Marketing Costs shall also include costs and expenses directly related to obtaining reimbursement from
payers and the cost of obtaining sales and marketing data (to the extent not included in the Distribution Costs).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, Marketing Costs shall specifically exclude the cost and expense of
activities that promote a Party's business as a whole without being specific to a Collaboration Product (e.g., corporate image
advertising).

3.4 "Sales Costs" shall mean, with respect to a Collaboration Product, costs and expenses approved by the Steering
Committee in the annual budget for the commercialization of such Collaboration Product, incurred by either Party or for its
account and specifically identifiable to the sales efforts for such Collaboration Product in all markets in the Territory including
the managed care market. Sales Costs shall include costs and expenses associated with sales representatives for a
Collaboration Product, including the cost of compensation, benefits, travel, supervision, training, sales meetings, and other
sales expenses for such sales representatives. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, Sales Costs shall
exclude costs and expenses associated with the start-up of a Party's sales force, including recruiting, relocation and other
similar costs and expenses.

3.5 "General and Administrative Costs" shall mean, with respect to a Collaboration Product, costs equal to [*] percent
([*]%) of the sum of the Distribution Costs, Marketing Costs and Sales Costs related to such Collaboration Product in any
country, of the Parties, in the aggregate, but only to the extent these costs are chargeable under the Agreement. Each Party
shall have the right to charge General and Administrative Costs with respect to its Distribution Costs, Marketing Costs and
Sales Costs chargeable under the Agreement.
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4. "Other Operating (Income)/Expense" shall mean (a) payments and other consideration received from Third Parties with
respect to the commercialization of a Collaboration Product, including any license fees, milestone payments, royalties or other
payments (including the fair market value of any consideration received) in connection with the license, sublicense, assignment or
transfer of rights with respect to such Collaboration Product (to the extent not included in Net Sales), and (b) any other operating
income received from or expense owed to Third Parties in connection with an activity that is not part of the primary business activity of
a Party under the Agreement but is considered and approved by the Parties as income or expense for purposes of the Agreement,
which may include: (i) actual inventory write-offs of any Collaboration Product; (ii) the cost and expense of prosecuting, maintaining
and enforcing patent, trademark and other intellectual property rights and defending against claims of infringement; and (iii) product
liability insurance to the extent the Parties obtain a joint policy.
5. "Fully-Burdened Production Process Development Cost" shall mean, with respect to each Collaboration Antibody, One
Hundred Percent (100%) of the consolidated fully burdened cost of Production Process Development of such Collaboration Antibody,
which shall include (a) direct labor and material costs, (b) substrate and product quality assurance/control costs, (c) costs of any
stability studies, (d) costs of losses or wastage in process development, to the extent not the result of negligence or the use of nonstandard operating procedures, (e) facility and equipment depreciation costs, (f) facility and equipment validation and control costs,
(g) costs associated with evaluation of safety profile, activity and quality of material in in vitro and in vivo uses, (g) costs required for
manufacturing material for in vitro and in vivouses, (h) costs associated with submission and maintenance of regulatory
documentation, (i) shipping costs, (j) costs related to subcontracted work, (k) expenses with respect to each of the foregoing, and
(l) applicable allocable overhead, as determined in accordance with GAAP as applied by Medarex; (m) [*] percent ([*]%) of the sum of
the components (a) through (l); (n) all of the manufacturer's allocable intellectual property and technology acquisition and license costs
and expenses (including royalties, license fees, milestone payments and other payment obligations) paid to Third Parties with respect
to Production Process Development of a Collaboration Antibody.

B-3

APPENDIX C
Collaboration Targets
This Appendix to the COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement ") effective as of February 2, 2001, by and between SEATTLE
GENETICS, INC. (" Seattle Genetics ") and MEDAREX, INC., on behalf of itself and its wholly owned subsidiary, GENPHARM
INTERNATIONAL, INC., (collectively, "Medarex ") sets forth the Collaboration Targets.
The contents of this Appendix C are hereby incorporated into the Agreement and are governed by the terms and conditions of the
Agreement, including the confidentiality provisions set forth therein.

[*]
APPENDIX D
Unilateral Development and Commercialization Agreement
This Appendix to the COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement ") effective as of February 2, 2001, by and between SEATTLE
GENETICS, INC. (" Seattle Genetics ") and MEDAREX, INC., on behalf of itself and its wholly owned subsidiary, GENPHARM
INTERNATIONAL, INC., (collectively, "Medarex ") sets forth certain terms for the Unilateral Development and Commercialization
Agreements between the Parties. All capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the
Agreement, unless otherwise expressly provided herein
The contents of this Appendix D are hereby incorporated into the Agreement and are governed by the terms and conditions of the
Agreement, including the confidentiality provisions set forth therein.

License Payments for Each Unilateral Product
Milestones

IND Filing
Commencement of Phase II
Commencement of Phase III
BLA Filing or equivalent
Upon approval of first BLA or equivalent
Upon approval of BLA or equivalent in a second
jurisdiction
Royalties

Annual Worldwide Sales of all Unilateral Products
$[*]million [*]%
[*]million [*]%
Over [*] million [*]%
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SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
COMMON STOCK
PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Dated as of February 2, 2001

SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
Common Stock Purchase Agreement
This Common Stock Purchase Agreement (this " Agreement ") is made as of February 2, 2001 between Seattle Genetics, Inc., a Delaware
corporation with an office at 22215 26 th Avenue SE, Suite 3000, Bothell, WA 98021(the " Company "), and Medarex, Inc., a Delaware
corporation with an office at 707 State Road, Suite 206, Princeton, NJ 08540-1437 (the " Purchaser ").

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Purchaser desires to purchase from the Company shares of Common Stock, $0.001 par value per share (" Common
Stock"), of the Company in a private placement concurrently with the Company's initial public offering upon the terms and conditions set
forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Company and the Purchaser wish to set forth the terms and conditions upon which the Company will issue and sell
such shares to the Purchaser;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the Company and the
Purchaser hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
PURCHASE AND SALE OF SHARES
1.01 Purchase Price and Closing. The Company will issue and sell to the Purchaser and, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the Purchaser will purchase from the Company, an aggregate number of shares of Common Stock (the " Shares") determined
by dividing $2,000,000 by the per-share price to the public of shares of Common Stock in the Company's first underwritten, firm
commitment public offering pursuant to an effective registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in which the Company
receives gross proceeds of not less than $20,000,000 (" IPO"); provided, however, the Purchaser, in its sole discretion, can determine
whether to purchase the Shares in an offering in which the Company receives gross proceeds of less than $20,000,000. The purchase and
sale will take place at a closing (the " Closing") to be held on the date, at the location and at the time of closing of the IPO, subject to the
satisfaction of all of the conditions to the Closing specified in Article II herein. At the Closing the Company will issue and deliver a certificate
evidencing the Shares to the Purchaser against payment of the full purchase price therefor by wire transfer of immediately available funds to
an account designated by the Company.

1.02 Restrictions on Transfer. The Purchaser shall execute and deliver to J.P. Morgan & Co. a lock-up agreement in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the Purchaser further represents that it understands and agrees that all certificates evidencing any of
the Shares, whether upon initial issuance or upon any transfer thereof, shall bear a legend until the expiration of such lock-up agreement,
prominently stamped or printed thereon, reading substantially as follows:

"THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE TRANSFERRED ONLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
TERMS OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN J.P. MORGAN & CO. AND THE STOCKHOLDER, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE
WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE COMPANY."
1.03 Representations and Warranties by the Purchaser. The Purchaser represents and warrants to the Company that (a) it is an
"accredited investor" as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended; (b) it will acquire the Shares for its own
account, for the purpose of investment and not with a view to distribution or resale thereof; (c) the execution of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Purchaser, and
this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered, and constitutes a valid, legal, binding and enforceable agreement of the Purchaser,
except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting
enforcement of creditors' rights generally and (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability

of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies; (d) it has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by any
other person for any brokerage commissions, finders' fees or the like relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby;

(e) it has had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from representatives of the Company concerning the terms of the
offering of the Shares and to obtain additional information concerning the Company and its business; and (f) it has received and reviewed the
registration statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-50266) filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission
("Commission ") on November 20, 2000, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the " Registration Statement "), which shall also include
the prospectus related to such public offering (the " Prospectus "), and has all of the information necessary for it to evaluate the merits and
risks of an investment in the Shares and can bear the economic risks of such investment. The acquisition by the Purchaser of the Shares
shall constitute a confirmation of the representations and warranties made by the Purchaser as at the date of such acquisition. The Purchaser
further represents that it understands and agrees that, until registered under the Securities Act or transferred pursuant to the provisions of
Rule 144 as promulgated by the Commission, all certificates evidencing any of the Shares, whether upon initial issuance or upon any
transfer thereof, shall bear a legend, prominently stamped or printed thereon, reading substantially as follows:

"THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD,
MORTGAGED, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR SUCH SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, OR THE AVAILABILITY OF AN EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION
PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS."
ARTICLE II
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING
2.01 Conditions of the Purchaser's Obligation. The obligation of the Purchaser to purchase and pay for the Shares at the Closing is
subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:
(a) Documentation at Closing. The Purchaser shall have received prior to or at the Closing all of the following documents or
instruments, or evidence of completion thereof, each in form and substance satisfactory to the Purchaser:

(i) A copy of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, certified by the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, a
copy of the resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Company evidencing the approval of this Agreement, the issuance of the
Shares and the other matters contemplated hereby, and a copy of the Bylaws of the Company, all of which shall have been
certified by the Secretary of the Company to be true, complete and correct in every particular, and certified copies of all
documents evidencing other necessary corporate or other action and governmental approvals, if any, with respect to this
Agreement and the Shares.

(ii) A certificate of the Secretary of the Company which shall certify the names of the officers of the Company authorized to
sign this Agreement, the certificate for the Shares and the other documents, instruments or certificates to be delivered pursuant
to this Agreement by the Company or any of its officers, together with the true signatures of such officers. The Purchaser may
conclusively rely on such certificate until it shall receive a further certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the
Company canceling or amending the prior certificate and submitting the signatures of the officers named in such further
certificate.
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(iii) A certificate of the President of the Company stating that all covenants and conditions required to be performed prior to or
at the Closing have been performed as of the Closing and that all the representations and warranties contained in Section 3
herein are true and correct as of the Closing.
(iv) Certificates of Good Standing and Existence for the Company from the Secretaries of State of the States of Delaware and
Washington, as the case may be.
(b) Performance. The Company shall have performed and complied with all agreements, obligations and conditions contained in
this Agreement that are required to be performed or complied with by it on or before the Closing.
(c) Consents, Waivers, Etc. The Company shall have obtained all consents or waivers, if any, necessary to execute and deliver
this Agreement, issue the Shares and to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. All corporate and other action
and governmental filings necessary to effectuate the terms of this Agreement, the Shares and other agreements and instruments
executed and delivered by the Company in connection herewith shall have been made or taken, except for any post-sale filing that
may be required under federal or state securities laws. In addition to the documents set forth above, the Company shall have provided
to the Purchaser any other information or copies of documents that it may reasonably request.

(d) Investors' Rights Agreement. The Company's Amended and Restated Investors' Rights Agreement dated as of December 22,
1999 (the " Rights Agreement") shall have been amended to include the Purchaser as a party such that the Purchaser is entitled to
registration pursuant to Section 1.3 of the Rights Agreement with respect to the Shares as though the Purchaser were a Holder (as
defined in the Rights Agreement) and the Shares were Registrable Securities (as defined in the Rights Agreement) for the purposes of
registration pursuant to Section 1.3, and provisions related thereto, of the Rights Agreement.

2.02 Conditions of the Company's Obligation. The obligation of the Company to sell the Shares at the Closing is subject to the

satisfaction of the following conditions:
(a) Completed IPO. The closing of the IPO shall have occurred within 120 days of the date hereof.
(b) Consents, Waivers, Etc. The Company shall have obtained all consents or waivers, if any, necessary to execute and deliver
this Agreement, issue the Shares and to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. All corporate and other action
and governmental filings necessary to effectuate the terms of this Agreement, the Shares and other agreements and instruments
executed and delivered by the Company in connection herewith shall have been made or taken, except for any post-sale filing that
may be required under federal or state securities laws.

ARTICLE III
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY
The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Purchaser as follows:
3.01 Corporate Action. The Company has all necessary corporate power and has taken all corporate action required to enter into and
perform this Agreement and any other agreements and instruments executed in connection herewith (collectively, the " Financing
Documents" ). The Financing Documents are valid and legally binding obligations of the Company, enforceable in accordance with their
terms. The issuance, sale and delivery of the Shares in accordance with this Agreement, have been duly authorized by all necessary
corporate action on the part of the Company. The issuance of the Shares is not subject to preemptive rights or other preferential rights in any
present stockholders of the Company that have not been waived and will not conflict with any provision of any agreement or
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instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it or its property is bound and to which the Company has not obtained appropriate
waivers.
3.02 No Conflict. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company does not, and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby will not, conflict with, or result in any material violation of, or default under (with or without notice or lapse of time, or
both), or give rise to a right of termination, cancellation, modification or acceleration of any obligation under (i) any provision of the Certificate
of Incorporation of the Company or Bylaws of the Company, (ii) any mortgage, indenture, lease, contract or other agreement or instrument,
permit, concession or license to which the Company or any of its properties or assets is subject or (iii) any judgment, order, decree,
applicable to the Company or its properties or assets.
3.03 Status of Shares. The Shares, when issued and delivered in accordance with the terms hereof and after payment of the purchase
price therefor, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully-paid and non-assessable, issued in compliance with applicable state and federal
securities laws and free of restrictions on transfer other than restrictions on transfer under this Agreement and applicable state and federal
securities laws.
3.04 Organization, Good Standing and Qualification. The Company is a corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws
of the jurisdiction of its incorporation and has all requisite corporate power and authority to carry on its business. The Company is duly
qualified to transact business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the failure so to qualify would have a material adverse
effect on its business or properties.
3.05 Capitalization. The capitalization of the Company set forth in the Registration Statement is, and as of the effective date of the
Registration Statement will be, accurate in all material respects. All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company have been duly
authorized and validly issued, are fully paid and non-assessable and are not subject to any pre-emptive or similar rights.

3.06 Registration Statement. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement has been issued and no
proceeding for that purpose has been instituted or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened by the Commission; the Registration
Statement and the Prospectus (as amended or supplemented if the Company shall have furnished any amendments or supplements
thereto) comply, or will comply, as the case may be, in all material respects with the Securities Act and do not and will not, as of the
applicable effective date as to the Registration Statement and any amendment thereto and as of the date of the Prospectus and any
amendment or supplement thereto, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and the Prospectus, as amended or supplemented, at the Closing, if
applicable, as the case may be, will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, except that the foregoing representations and
warranties shall not apply to any statements or omissions in the Registration Statement or the Prospectus made in reliance upon and in
conformity with information relating to any underwriter furnished to the Company in writing by such underwriter expressly for use therein.
3.07 Environmental Laws. The Company (i) is in compliance with any and all applicable foreign, federal, state and local laws and
regulations relating to the protection of human health and safety, the environment or hazardous or toxic substances or wastes, pollutants or
contaminants (collectively, "Environmental Laws "), (ii) has received all permits, licenses or other approvals required of it under applicable
Environmental Laws to conduct its businesses and (iii) is in compliance with all terms and conditions of any such permit, license or
approval, except where such noncompliance with Environmental Laws, failure to receive required permits, licenses or other approvals or
failure to comply with the terms and conditions of such permits, licenses or approvals would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably
be expected to have a material adverse effect on the general affairs,
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business, prospects, management, financial position, stockholders' equity or results of operations of the Company, (a " Material Adverse
Effect").
3.08 Material Changes. Since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus,
there has not been any change in the capital stock (except for the exercise of stock options or the issuance of shares pursuant to the
Company's employee stock plan) or long-term debt of the Company, or any material adverse change, or any development that would
reasonably be expected to cause a prospective material adverse change, in or affecting the general affairs, business, prospects,
management, financial position, stockholders' equity or results of operations of the Company, (a "Material Adverse Change "), otherwise
than as set forth or contemplated in the Prospectus; and except as set forth or contemplated in the Registration Statement and the
Prospectus, the Company has not entered into any transaction or agreement (whether or not in the ordinary course of business) material to
the Company.
3.09 Property. The Company has good and marketable title in fee simple to all items of real property and good and marketable title to all
personal property owned by it, in each case free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects except such as are described or referred to in
the Registration Statement and the Prospectus or such as do not materially affect the value of such property and do not interfere with the use
made or proposed to be made of such property by the Company; and any real property and buildings held under lease by the Company are
held by them under valid, existing and enforceable leases with such exceptions as are not material and do not interfere with the use made or
proposed to be made of such property and buildings by the Company.
3.10 Intellectual Property. Except as described in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, the Company owns, is licensed to use
or otherwise possesses adequate rights to use the patents, patent rights, licenses, inventions, trademarks, service marks, trade names,
copyrights and know-how, including trade secrets and other unpatented and/or unpatentable proprietary or confidential information, systems,
processes or procedures (collectively, the "Intellectual Property "), reasonably necessary to carry on the business conducted by it, except to
the extent that the failure to own, be licensed to use or otherwise possess adequate rights to use such Intellectual Property would not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; the Company has not received any notice of
infringement of or conflict with, and the Company has no knowledge of any infringement of or conflict with, asserted rights of others with
respect to its Intellectual Property which would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect;
the discoveries, inventions, products or processes of the Company referred to in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus do not, to the
knowledge of the Company, infringe or conflict with any right or patent of any third party, or any discovery, invention, product or process
which is the subject of a patent application filed by any third party which patent application has been published or is otherwise known to the
Company which could, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect; except as set forth in the
Registration Statement and the Prospectus, the Company is not obligated to pay a royalty, grant a license or provide other consideration to
any third party in connection with its patents, patent rights, licenses, inventions, trademarks, service marks, trade names, copyrights and
know-how which could, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and no third party,
including any academic or governmental organization, possesses rights to the Intellectual Property which, if exercised, could reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
3.11 Governmental Permits. Except as described in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, the Company owns, possesses or
has obtained all licenses, permits, certificates, consents, orders, approvals and other authorizations from, and has made all declarations and
filings with, all federal, state, local and other governmental authorities (including foreign regulatory agencies), all self-regulatory organizations
and all courts and other tribunals, domestic or foreign, necessary to own or lease, as the case may be, and to operate its properties and to
carry on its business as conducted as
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of the date hereof, except where the failure to own, possess, obtain or make would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material
Adverse Effect, and the Company has not received any actual notice of any proceeding relating to revocation or modification of any such
license, permit, certificate, consent, order, approval or other authorization, except as described in the Registration Statement and the
Prospectus, and the Company is in compliance with all laws and regulations relating to the conduct of its business as conducted as of the
date hereof, and all of the descriptions in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus of the legal and governmental procedures and
requirements of the United States Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA") or any foreign, state or local governmental body exercising
comparable authority are accurate in all material respects.

ARTICLE IV
OTHER AGREEMENTS
4.01 Publicity. The parties agree to issue a joint press release announcing this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby
following execution of this Agreement. Any proposed announcement, press release or other public disclosure concerning this Agreement
and/or any of the transactions or relationships contemplated hereby shall be mutually approved by both parties (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld). The Purchaser agrees and acknowledges that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be
disclosed in the Registration Statement and filed as an exhibit to the next amendment to the Registration Statement following execution
hereof.

ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOUS
5.01 No Waiver. No failure or delay on the part of any party to this Agreement in exercising any right, power or remedy hereunder shall
operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or remedy preclude any other or further exercise
thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy hereunder.

5.02 Amendments, Waivers and Consents. Any provision in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, and except as hereinafter
provided, changes in or additions to this Agreement may be made, and compliance with any covenant or provision set forth herein may be
omitted or waived, if the party requesting such change, addition, omission or waiver shall obtain consent thereto in writing from the other
party. Any waiver or consent may be given subject to satisfaction of conditions stated therein and any waiver or consent shall be effective only
in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.
5.03 Addresses for Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications provided for hereunder shall be in writing and
mailed, faxed or delivered to each applicable party at the address set forth below or at such other address as to which such party may inform
the other parties in writing in compliance with the terms of this Section.
If to the Purchaser: Medarex, Inc., 707 State Road, Suite 206, Princeton, NJ 08540-1437, Attention General Counsel, with a copy to:

Medarex, Inc., 707 State Road, Suite 206, Princeton, NJ 08540-1437 Attention Chief Financial Officer; or at such other address as shall be
designated by the Purchaser in a written notice to the Company complying as to delivery with the terms hereof.
If to the Company: Seattle Genetics, Inc, 22215 26 th Avenue SE, Suite 3000, Bothell, WA 98021, Attention: Tim Carroll, with a copy to:

Venture Law Group, 4750 Carillon Point, Kirkland, WA 98033, Attention: Sonya F. Erickson; or at such other address as shall be designated
by the Company in a written notice to the Purchaser complying as to delivery with the terms hereof.
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All such notices, requests, demands and other communications shall, when mailed (which mailing must be accomplished by first class
mail, postage prepaid; express overnight courier service; or registered mail, return receipt requested) or transmitted by facsimile, be effective
three days after deposited in the mails or upon transmission by facsimile, respectively, addressed as aforesaid, unless otherwise provided
herein.
5.04 Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and the Purchaser and
their respective heirs, successors and assigns, except that the Purchaser shall not have the right to assign its rights hereunder or any
interest herein without the prior written consent of the Company.
5.05 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the documents referred to herein constitute the entire agreement between the parties and
supersedes any prior understandings or agreements concerning the subject matter hereof.

5.06 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and, in the event that any court of competent jurisdiction shall
determine that any one or more of the provisions or part of a provision contained in this Agreement shall, for any reason, be held to be
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision or part of a
provision of this Agreement.
5.07 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of
Washington without regard to its conflicts of laws principles to the contrary.
5.08 Headings. Article, Section and subsection headings in this Agreement are included herein for convenience of reference only and
shall not constitute a part of this Agreement for any other purpose.
5.09 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be enforceable against the party actually
executing the counterpart, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written.

SEATTLE GENETICS, INC.
By:

/s/ H. PERRY FELL

Name: H. PERRY FELL
Title: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MEDAREX, INC.
By:

/s/ RONALD A. PEPIN

Name: RONALD A. PEPIN
Title: VICE PRESIDENT, BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT
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Exhibit A
LOCK-UP AGREEMENT
, 2001

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

CIBC WORLD MARKETS CORP.
BANC OF AMERICA SECURITIES LLC
As Representatives of the several
Underwriters to be named in Schedule I to
the Underwriting Agreement referred to below
c/o J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.

60 Wall Street
New York, New York 10260
Re: Seattle Genetics, Inc.—

Initial Public Offering of Common Stock
Ladies and Gentlemen:
The undersigned understands that you, as Representatives of the several Underwriters, propose to enter into an Underwriting Agreement
(the "Underwriting Agreement ") with Seattle Genetics, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the " Company "), providing for the public offering (the
"Public Offering ") by the several Underwriters to be named in Schedule I to the Underwriting Agreement (the "Underwriters ") of Common
Stock, $0.001 par value, of the Company (the " Common Stock ").
In consideration of the Underwriters' agreement to purchase and make the Public Offering of Common Stock, and for other good and
valuable consideration receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned hereby agrees that, without the prior written consent of J.P.
Morgan Securities Inc. on behalf of the Underwriters, the undersigned will not, directly or indirectly, during the period beginning on the date
hereof and ending 180 days after the date of the prospectus relating to the Public Offering (the "Prospectus "), (1) offer, pledge, announce the
intention to sell, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or
warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any shares of Common Stock or any securities of the Company which are
substantially similar to the Common Stock, including but not limited to any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or
that represent the right to receive, Common Stock (including, but not limited to, Common Stock which may be deemed to be beneficially
owned by the undersigned in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and securities which
may be issued upon exercise of a stock option or warrant) (collectively, the " Company Securities ") or (2) enter into any swap, option, future,
forward or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Company Securities,
regardless of whether any of the transactions described in clause (1) or (2) above is to be settled by delivery of Company Securities, in cash or
otherwise. In addition, the undersigned agrees that, without the prior written consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. on behalf of the
Underwriters, it will not, during the period ending 180 days after the date of the Prospectus, make any demand for, or exercise any right with
respect to, the registration of any Company Securities.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the undersigned may transfer the undersigned's Company Securities (i) as a bona fide gift or gifts,
provided that the donee or donees thereof agree in writing with J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. to be bound by the restrictions set forth herein or
(ii) pursuant to a transfer, either during the undersigned's lifetime or upon death by will or intestacy, to the undersigned's immediate family
or to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of the undersigned or the immediate family of the undersigned, provided that any such
transferees agree in writing with J.P. Morgan
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Securities Inc. to be bound by the restrictions set forth herein, and provided further that any such transfer shall not involve a disposition for
value. In addition, if the undersigned is a corporation, the corporation may transfer Company Securities to any wholly-owned subsidiary of
such corporation; and, if the undersigned is a partnership, the partnership may transfer Company Securities to a partner of such partnership
or a retired partner of such partnership who retires after the date hereof, or to the estate of any such partner or retired partner, and any such
partner who is an individual may transfer shares of capital stock, either during such partner's lifetime or upon death by will or intestacy, to his

or her immediate family or to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of such partner or such partner's immediate family; provided that any
such transferees agree in writing with J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. to be bound by the restrictions set forth herein, and provided further that
any such transfer shall not involve a disposition for value. For the purposes of this paragraph, "immediate family" shall mean any
relationship by blood, marriage or adoption, not more remote than first cousin.
None of the restrictions set forth in this Lock-Up Agreement shall apply to Company Securities acquired in open market transactions after
the Public Offering or Company Securities acquired in the Public Offering (including Company Securities acquired in any directed share
program related to the Public Offering).
In furtherance of the foregoing, the Company and any duly appointed transfer agent for the registration or transfer of the securities
described herein are hereby authorized to decline to make any transfer of securities if such transfer would constitute a violation or breach of
this Lock-Up Agreement.

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the undersigned has full power and authority to enter into this Lock-Up Agreement.
All authority herein conferred or agreed to be conferred and any obligations of the undersigned shall be binding upon the successors,
assigns, heirs or personal representatives of the undersigned.
The undersigned understands that, if the Underwriting Agreement does not become effective by April 30, 2001, or if the Underwriting
Agreement (other than the provisions thereof which survive termination) shall terminate or be terminated prior to payment for and delivery of
the Common Stock to be sold thereunder, the undersigned shall be released from all obligations under this Lock-Up Agreement.
The undersigned recognizes that the Public Offering will be of benefit to the undersigned and will benefit the Company by, among other
things, raising capital for its operations. The undersigned understands that the Underwriters are entering into the Underwriting Agreement
and proceeding with the Public Offering in reliance upon this Lock-Up Agreement.

THIS LOCK-UP AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES THEREOF.
10

Very truly yours,

Name:
Title:
Accepted as of the date first set forth above:

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

CIBC WORLD MARKETS CORP.
BANC OF AMERICA SECURITIES LLC
Acting severally on behalf of themselves and the
several Underwriters to be named in Schedule I
to the Underwriting Agreement

By:

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

By:

Name:
Title:
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
We hereby consent to the use in this Registration Statement on Form S-1 of our report dated January 19, 2001, except for Note 13 as to
which the date is February 2, 2001, relating to the financial statements of Seattle Genetics, Inc., which appears in such Registration
Statement. We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in such Registration Statement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Seattle, Washington
February 6, 2001
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